PROJECT MANUAL

Contract No. R23-077-04

Jeannette Manor Interior Renovations PA-18-14

at the

Jeannette Manor 401 S 4th St. Jeannette PA 15683

Prepared for:

WESTMORELAND COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 167 South Greengate Road Greensburg, PA 15644



April 5, 2024



PROJECT DIRECTORY

PROJECT: JEANNETTE MANOR INTERIOR RENOVATIONS

401 S 4TH ST.

JEANNETTE PA 15644

OWNER: WESTMORELAND COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY

167 SOUTH GREENGATE ROAD,

GREENSBURG, PA 15601

CONTACT: ERIK SPIEGEL, DIRECTOR OF ARCH. & ENGINEERING SERVICES; <u>ERIKS@wchaonline.com</u>

ARCHITECT: SLEIGHTER DESIGN

1060 EBERLY WAY

LEMONT FURNACE, PA 15456 (724) 438-4010, FAX 438-4017 ROB SLEIGHTER, PRESIDENT

CONTACT: KENNETH SCHROCK, ARCHITECT KENSCHROCK@SLEIGHTERDESIGN.COM

END OF PROJECT DIRECTORY

TABLE OF CONTENTS

DOCUMENT TITLE	PAGE(S)
TITLE PAGE	1
PROJECT DIRECTORY	1-2
TABLE OF CONTENTS	1-4
LIST OF DRAWINGS	1-2

$\frac{\text{BIDDING REQUIREMENTS, CONTRACT FORMS,}}{\text{AND}} \\ \frac{\text{CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT}}{\text{CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT}}$

DOCUMENT	<u>TITLE</u>	PAGE(S)
00 0030	ADVERTISEMENT FOR BID	1-2
00 0040	IMPORTANT INSTRUCTIONS TO ALL PRIME	
	CONTRACTORS	1-2
00 0100	INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS	1-6
00 0120	REPRESENTATIONS, CERTIFICATES AND	
	OTHER STATEMENTS OF BIDDERS	1-6
00 0140	CONTRACT PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY FEDERAL LAY	
00 0300	BID FORM	1-4
00 0421	STATEMENT OF BIDDERS QUALIFICATIONS	1-4
00 0700	GENERAL CONDITIONS	1-20
00 0710	EXHIBIT B	1-4
00 0720	EXHIBIT C	1-4
00 0730	EXHIBIT D	1-6
00 0740	EXHIBIT F	1-8
00 0760	PROVISIONS & PROCEDURES PERTAINING	1-8
	TO EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES	
00 0770	PREVIOUS PARTICIPATION CERTIFICATION	1-6
00 0840	NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT	1-2
00 0845	EMPLOYMENT VERIFICATION FORM	1-2
00 0850	FORM OF BID BOND	1-4
00 0860	PERFORMANCE & LABOR & MATERIALS BOND	1-8
00 0865	MAINTENANCE BOND	1-2
00 0870	FORM OF CONTRACT	1-4
00 0880	PREVAILING WAGE REQUIREMENTS	1-10
00 0884	MINIMUM WAGE NOTICE	1-4
00 0886	SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS OF THE	
	CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION (form HUD-2554)	1-6
00 9100	ADDENDA	1-2
DIVISION 1 - GENER	RAL REQUIREMENTS	
01 1000	SUMMARY	1-4
01 1200	MULTIPLE CONTRACT SUMMARY	1-2
01 1230	ALTERNATES	1-2
01 1270	UNIT PRICES	1-2

01 2000 01 3000 01 3213	PRICE & PAYMENT PROCEDURES ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS SCHEDULING & PHASING	1-4 1-6 1-2
01 3216	CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS SCHEDULE SUBMITTALS	1-4
01 3300 01 3500	SAFETY	1-8 1-4
01 3300	QUALITY REQUIREMENTS	1- 4 1-6
01 4216	DEFINITIONS	1-0
01 5000	TEMPORARY FACILITIES & CONTROLS	1-6
01 5500	VEHICULAR ACCESS & PARKING	1-2
01 6000	PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS	1-4
01 7000	EXECUTION & CLOSEOUT REQUIREMENTS	1-10
01 7800	CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS	1-6
DIVISION 2 – E	EXISTING CONDITIONS	
02 4100	DEMOLITION	1-2
DIVISION 3 – C		
03 5400	CAST UNDERLAYMENT	1-3
DIVISION 5 - M		
05 4000	COLD-FORMED METAL FRAMING	1-3
	VOOD, PLASTICS, AND COMPOSITES	
06 1000	ROUGH CARPENTRY	1-2
06 2000	FINISH CARPENTRY	1-2
	HERMAL & MOISTURE PROTECTION	4.0
07 9200	JOINT SEALANTS	1-3
DIVISION 8 – C		
08 1416	FLUSH WOOD DOORS	1-3
08 4113 08 7100	ALUMINUM ENTRANCES AND STOREFRONTS DOOR HARDWARE	1-5 1-10
08 7 100	DOOR HARDWARE	1-10
DIVISION 9 – F		4.0
09 2116 09 3000	GYPSUM BOARD ASSEMBLIES TILING AND GROUT	1-2 1-4
09 5100	SUSPENDED ACOUSTICAL CEILINGS	1-3
09 6514	RESILIENT WALL BASE	1-2
09 6519	RESILIENT TILE FLOORING	1-4
09 6813	TILE CARPETING	1-2
09 9123	PAINTING	1-4
DIVISION 10 -	SPECIALTIES SPECIALTIES	
10 1101	VISUAL DISPLAY BOARDS AND TACK BOARDS	1-2
10 1400	SIGNAGE	1-2
10 2601	WALL AND CORNER GUARDS	1-2
	<u>FURNISHINGS</u>	
12 2400	WINDOW SHADES	1-3
12 3530	RESIDENTIAL CASEWORK	1-3

DIVISION 26 – ELECTRICAL

26 2726	WIRING DEVICES	1-3
26 5000	INTERIOR LIGHTING	1-4

END OF TOC

SECTION 00 0015

LIST OF DRAWINGS

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DRAWING LIST - OVERVIEW

A. The following drawings, in reference to the Project, are indicated by an exact list that form a part of the above contract and shall be considered a part thereof.

1.02 DRAWING LIST - GENERAL CONSTRUCTION

A. DRAWING NO.	DRAWING TITLE
1. G0.01	COVER SHEET
2. A1.01	FIRST FLOOR PLAN
3. A1.02	TYPICAL FLOOR PLAN – FLOORS 2, 4, 6 & 8
4. A1.03	TYPICAL FLOOR PLAN – FLOORS 3, 5 & 7
5. A1.04	NINTH FLOOR PLAN
6. A5.01	ELEVATIONS & SECTIONS

1.03 SUPPLEMENTAL DRAWINGS

A. The Architect, when directed by the Owner, will furnish from time to time supplemental drawings as the work progresses for further illustration of the details of the work. But, these supplemental drawings will not include the shop drawings, all of which are to be prepared by the Contractor and submitted as hereinafter specified for approval before the work is started.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

Not Used.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

Not Used.

END OF SECTION 00 0015

NOTICE TO BIDDERS

PA 18-14 JEANNETTE MANOR – 9 STORY HIGHRISE CITY OF JEANNETTE – WESTMORELAND COUNTY

INVITATION FOR BIDS INTERIOR MODERNIZATION PROJECT

- GENERAL CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT PA 18-14-01-2024.1 GC
- ELECTRICAL CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT PA 18-14-01-2024.2 EC

Westmoreland County Housing Authority is requesting construction bids for the referenced project through sealed bids which will be received by the Westmoreland County Housing Authority, until April 29, 2024 at 10:00 A.M. (eastern standard time).

A Pre-Bid Meeting is scheduled for April 11, 2024, at 10:00 A.M. (eastern standard time) at Jeannette Manor - 401 South Fourth Street - Jeannette, PA 15644

Electronic Bid Documents are available for downloading at www.wchaonline.com. Bidders are required to register online at the www.wchaonline.com to view bid documents. Plan holders proposing to bid shall also register their intent to submit a bid with Westmoreland County Housing Associates, lindam@wchaonline.com and eriks@wchaonline.com in accordance with the bid requirements.

Tribune Review - Advertisement Dates: April 6th, 2024 and April 8th, 2024. Pittsburgh Courier - April 10th 2024.

Westmoreland County Housing Authority,

By: Michael L. Washowich, Executive Director / Contracting Officer

DOCUMENT 00 0040

IMPORTANT INSTRUCTIONS TO ALL PRIME CONTRACTORS

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01. REQUIRED BID SUBMISSION DOCUMENTS

- A. The following list of documents is required to be completed and submitted by the prospective bidder with their respective bid to be considered responsive.
 - 1. 00 0300 BID FORM
 - 2. 00 0730 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY
 - 3. 00 0840 NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT
 - 4. 00 0850 FORM OF BID BOND

1.02. BUILDING PERMITS

- A. Contractor is responsible for ALL permits, fees and licenses necessary for the proper execution and completion of the work.
- B. Contractor shall verify the cost of the building permit with the Jeannette Uniform Construction Code Office and the local municipality, prior to the date of the bid for this project. No additional payments will be made for unanticipated fees.
- C. If a re-inspection is necessary, the contractor is responsible for the re-inspection fee.

1.03. PRODUCTS OR EQUAL

- A. Products specified on the contract document and specifications by manufacturer and model number are done so to establish a level of quality. Similar products of equal value will be considered.
- B. It is the contractor's responsibility to provide adequate detail to prove the products they plan to use meet or exceed the products that have been specified in the contract documents and specifications.

1.04. DEFINITIONS

A. "Provide": Where used in these specifications or on the drawings, means that the contractor shall "furnish and install" such item or items as may be referred to.

1.05. BID WITHDRAW

- A. If a Low Bidder elects to withdraw their bid due to a "Mathematical Error" the schedule of values will be used to fully evaluate the "Error".
- B. This project will follow the "Public Contract Bid Withdraw Law" Act of Jan. 23, 1974, P.L. 9, No.4.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

NOT USED

PART 3 – EXECUTION

NOT USED

END OF SECTION 00 0040

DOCUMENT 00 0100

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

HUD FORM 5369
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS FOR CONTRACTS
PUBLIC AND INDIAN HOUSING PROGRAMS

(6 PAGES)

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Office of Public and Indian Housing

Instructions to Bidders for Contracts Public and Indian Housing Programs

Previous edition is obsolete form **HUD-5369** (10/2002)

Instructions to Bidders for Contracts

Public and Indian Housing Programs

Table of Contents

Cla	use	Page
1.	Bid Preparation and Submission	1
2.	Explanations and Interpretations to Prospective Bidders	1
3.	Amendments to Invitations for Bids	1
4.	Responsibility of Prospective Contractor	1
5.	Late Submissions, Modifications, and Withdrawal of Bid	s 1
6.	Bid Opening	2
7.	Service of Protest	2
8.	Contract Award	2
9.	Bid Guarantee	3
10.	Assurance of Completion	3
11.	Preconstruction Conference	3
12.	Indian Preference Requirements	3

1. Bid Preparation and Submission

- (a) Bidders are expected to examine the specifications, drawings, all instructions, and, if applicable, the construction site (see also the contract clause entitled **Site Investigation and Conditions Affecting the Work** of the *General Conditions of the Contract for Construction*). Failure to do so will be at the bidders' risk.
- (b) All bids must be submitted on the forms provided by the Public Housing Agency/Indian Housing Authority (PHA/IHA). Bidders shall furnish all the information required by the solicitation. Bids must be signed and the bidder's name typed or printed on the bid sheet and each continuation sheet which requires the entry of information by the bidder. Erasures or other changes must be initialed by the person signing the bid. Bids signed by an agent shall be accompanied by evidence of that agent's authority. (Bidders should retain a copy of their bid for their records.)
- (c) Bidders must submit as part of their bid a completed form HUD-5369-A, "Representations, Certifications, and Other Statements of Bidders."
- (d) All bid documents shall be sealed in an envelope which shall be clearly marked with the words "Bid Documents," the Invitation for Bids (IFB) number, any project or other identifying number, the bidder's name, and the date and time for receipt of bids.
- (e) If this solicitation requires bidding on all items, failure to do so will disqualify the bid. If bidding on all items is not required, bidders should insert the words "No Bid" in the space provided for any item on which no price is submitted.
- (f) Unless expressly authorized elsewhere in this solicitation, alternate bids will not be considered.
- (g) Unless expressly authorized elsewhere in this solicitation, bids submitted by telegraph or facsimile (fax) machines will not be considered.
- (h) If the proposed contract is for a Mutual Help project (as described in 24 CFR Part 905, Subpart E) that involves Mutual Help contributions of work, material, or equipment, supplemental information regarding the bid advertisement is provided as an attachment to this solicitation.

2. Explanations and Interpretations to Prospective Bidders

- (a) Any prospective bidder desiring an explanation or interpretation of the solicitation, specifications, drawings, etc., must request it at least 7 days before the scheduled time for bid opening. Requests may be oral or written. Oral requests must be confirmed in writing. The only oral clarifications that will be provided will be those clearly related to solicitation procedures, i.e., not substantive technical information. No other oral explanation or interpretation will be provided. Any information given a prospective bidder concerning this solicitation will be furnished promptly to all other prospective bidders as a written amendment to the solicitation, if that information is necessary in submitting bids, or if the lack of it would be prejudicial to other prospective bidders.
- (b) Any information obtained by, or provided to, a bidder other than by formal amendment to the solicitation shall not constitute a change to the solicitation.

3. Amendments to Invitations for Bids

- (a) If this solicitation is amended, then all terms and conditions which are not modified remain unchanged.
- (b) Bidders shall acknowledge receipt of any amendment to this solicitation (1) by signing and returning the amendment, (2) by identifying the amendment number and date on the bid form, or (3) by letter, telegram, or facsimile, if those methods are authorized in the solicitation. The PHA/IHA must receive acknowledgement by the time and at the place specified for receipt of bids. Bids which fail to acknowledge the bidder's receipt of any amendment will result in the rejection of the bid if the amendment(s) contained information which substantively changed the PHA's/IHA's requirements.
- (c) Amendments will be on file in the offices of the PHA/IHA and the Architect at least 7 days before bid opening.

4. Responsibility of Prospective Contractor

- (a) The PHA/IHA will award contracts only to responsible prospective contractors who have the ability to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of the proposed contract. In determining the responsibility of a bidder, the PHA/IHA will consider such matters as the bidder's:
 - (1) Integrity;
 - (2) Compliance with public policy;
 - (3) Record of past performance; and
 - (4) Financial and technical resources (including construction and technical equipment).
- (b) Before a bid is considered for award, the bidder may be requested by the PHA/IHA to submit a statement or other documentation regarding any of the items in paragraph (a) above. Failure by the bidder to provide such additional information shall render the bidder nonresponsible and ineligible for award.

5. Late Submissions, Modifications, and Withdrawal of Bids

- (a) Any bid received at the place designated in the solicitation after the exact time specified for receipt will not be considered unless it is received before award is made and it:
- (1) Was sent by registered or certified mail not later than the fifth calendar day before the date specified for receipt of offers (e.g., an offer submitted in response to a solicitation requiring receipt of offers by the 20th of the month must have been mailed by the 15th);
- (2) Was sent by mail, or if authorized by the solicitation, was sent by telegram or via facsimile, and it is determined by the PHA/IHA that the late receipt was due solely to mishandling by the PHA/IHA after receipt at the PHA/IHA; or
- (3) Was sent by U.S. Postal Service Express Mail Next Day Service Post Office to Addressee, not later than 5:00 p.m. at the place of mailing two working days prior to the date specified for receipt of proposals. The term "working days" excludes weekends and observed holidays.
- (b) Any modification or withdrawal of a bid is subject to the same conditions as in paragraph (a) of this provision.
- (c) The only acceptable evidence to establish the date of mailing of a late bid, modification, or withdrawal sent either by registered or certified mail is the U.S. or Canadian Postal Service postmark both on the envelope or wrapper and on the original receipt from the U.S. or Canadian Postal Service. Both postmarks must show a legible date or the bid, modification, or withdrawal shall be processed as if mailed late. "Postmark" means a printed, stamped, or otherwise placed impression (exclusive of a postage meter machine impression) that is readily identifiable without further action as having been supplied and affixed by employees of the U.S. or Canadian Postal Service on the date of mailing. Therefore, bidders should request the postal clerk to place a hand cancellation bull's-eye postmark on both the receipt and the envelope or wrapper.
- (d) The only acceptable evidence to establish the time of receipt at the PHA/IHA is the time/date stamp of PHA/IHA on the proposal wrapper or other documentary evidence of receipt maintained by the PHA/IHA.
- (e) The only acceptable evidence to establish the date of mailing of a late bid, modification, or withdrawal sent by Express Mail Next Day Service-Post Office to Addressee is the date entered by the post office receiving clerk on the "Express Mail Next Day Service-Post Office to Addressee" label and the postmark on both the envelope or wrapper and on the original receipt from the U.S. Postal Service. "Postmark" has the same meaning as defined in paragraph (c) of this provision, excluding postmarks of the Canadian Postal Service. Therefore, bidders should request the postal clerk to place a legible hand cancellation bull's eye postmark on both the receipt and Failure by a bidder to acknowledge receipt of the envelope or wrapper.
- (f) Notwithstanding paragraph (a) of this provision, a late modification of an otherwise successful bid that makes its terms more favorable to the PHA/IHA will be considered at any time it is received and may be accepted.
- (g) Bids may be withdrawn by written notice, or if authorized by this solicitation, by telegram (including mailgram) or facsimile machine transmission received at any time before the exact time set for opening of bids; provided that written confirmation of telegraphic or facsimile withdrawals over the signature of the bidder is mailed and postmarked prior to the specified bid opening time. A bid may be withdrawn in person by a bidder or its authorized representative if, before the exact time set for opening of bids, the identity of the person requesting withdrawal is established and the person signs a receipt for the bid.

6. Bid Opening

All bids received by the date and time of receipt specified in the solicitation will be publicly opened and read. The time and place of opening will be as specified in the solicitation. Bidders and other interested persons may be present.

7. Service of Protest

(a) Definitions. As used in this provision:

"Interested party" means an actual or prospective bidder whose direct economic interest would be affected by the award of the contract.

"Protest" means a written objection by an interested party to this solicitation or to a proposed or actual award of a contract pursuant to this solicitation.

(b) Protests shall be served on the Contracting Officer by obtaining written and dated acknowledgement from —

Westmoreland County Housing Authority 167 South Greengate Road Greensburg, PA 15601

[Contracting Officer designate the official or location where a protest may be served on the Contracting Officer]

(c) All protests shall be resolved in accordance with the PHA's/IHA's protest policy and procedures, copies of which are maintained at the PHA/IHA.

8. Contract Award

- (a) The PHA/IHA will evaluate bids in response to this solicitation without discussions and will award a contract to the responsible bidder whose bid, conforming to the solicitation, will be most advantageous to the PHA/IHA considering only price and any price-related factors specified in the solicitation.
- (b) If the apparent low bid received in response to this solicitation exceeds the PHA's/IHA's available funding for the proposed contract work, the PHA/IHA may either accept separately priced items (see 8(e) below) or use the following procedure to determine contract award. The PHA/IHA shall apply in turn to each bid (proceeding in order from the apparent low bid to the high bid) each of the separately priced bid deductible items, if any, in their priority order set forth in this solicitation. If upon the application of the first deductible item to all initial bids, a new low bid is within the PHA's/IHA's available funding, then award shall be made to that bidder. If no bid is within the available funding amount, then the PHA/IHA shall apply the second deductible item. The PHA/IHA shall continue this process until an evaluated low bid, if any, is within the PHA's/IHA's available funding. If upon the application of all deductibles, no bid is within the PHA's/IHA's available funding, or if the solicitation does not request separately priced deductibles, the PHA/IHA shall follow its written policy and procedures in making any award under this solicitation.
- (c) In the case of tie low bids, award shall be made in accordance with the PHA's/IHA's written policy and procedures.
- (d) The PHA/IHA may reject any and all bids, accept other than the lowest bid (e.g., the apparent low bid is unreasonably low), and waive informalities or minor irregularities in bids received, in accordance with the PHA's/IHA's written policy and procedures.

- (e) Unless precluded elsewhere in the solicitation, the PHA/IHA may accept any item or combination of items bid.
- (f) The PHA/IHA may reject any bid as nonresponsive if it is materially unbalanced as to the prices for the various items of work to be performed. A bid is materially unbalanced when it is based on prices significantly less than cost for some work and prices which are significantly overstated for other work.
- (g) A written award shall be furnished to the successful bidder within the period for acceptance specified in the bid and shall result in a binding contract without further action by either party.

Bid Guarantee (applicable to construction and equipment contracts exceeding \$25,000)

All bids must be accompanied by a negotiable bid guarantee which shall not be less than five percent (10%) of the amount of the bid. The bid guarantee may be a certified check, bank draft, U.S. Government Bonds at par value, or a bid bond secured by a surety company acceptable to the U.S. Government and authorized to do business in the state where the work is to be performed. In the case where the work under the contract will be performed on an Indian reservation area, the bid guarantee may also be an irrevocable Letter of Credit (see provision 10, Assurance of Completion, below). Certified checks and bank drafts must be made payable to the order of the PHA/IHA. The bid guarantee shall insure the execution of the contract and the furnishing of a method of assurance of completion by the successful bidder as required by the solicitation. Failure to submit a bid guarantee with the bid shall result in the rejection of the bid. Bid guarantees submitted by unsuccessful bidders will be returned as soon as practicable after bid opening.

10. Assurance of Completion

- (a) Unless otherwise provided in State law, the successful bidder shall furnish an assurance of completion prior to the execution of any contract under this solicitation. This assurance may be [Contracting Officer check applicable items] —
- [X] (1) a performance and payment bond in a penal sum of 100 percent of the contract price; or, as may be required or permitted by State law;
- [] (2) separate performance and payment bonds, each for 50 percent or more of the contract price;
- [] (3) a 20 percent cash escrow;
- [] (4) a 25 percent irrevocable letter of credit; or,
- [] (5) an irrevocable letter of credit for 10 percent of the total contract price with a monitoring and disbursements agreement with the IHA (applicable only to contracts awarded by an IHA under the Indian Housing Program).
- (b) Bonds must be obtained from guarantee or surety companies acceptable to the U.S. Government and authorized to do business in the state where the work is to be performed. Individual sureties will not be considered. U.S. Treasury Circular Number 570, published annually in the Federal Register, lists companies approved to act as sureties on bonds securing Government contracts, the maximum underwriting limits on each contract bonded, and the States in which the company is licensed to do business. Use of companies listed in this circular is mandatory. Copies of the circular may be downloaded on the U.S. Department of Treasury website http://www.fms.treas.gov/c570/index.html, or ordered for a minimum fee by contacting the Government Printing Office at (202) 512-2168.

- (c) Each bond shall clearly state the rate of premium and the total amount of premium charged. The current power of attorney for the person who signs for the surety company must be attached to the bond. The effective date of the power of attorney shall not precede the date of the bond. The effective date of the bond shall be on or after the execution date of the contract.
- (d) Failure by the successful bidder to obtain the required assurance of completion within the time specified, or within such extended period as the PHA/IHA may grant based upon reasons determined adequate by the PHA/IHA, shall render the bidder ineligible for award. The PHA/IHA may then either award the contract to the next lowest responsible bidder or solicit new bids. The PHA/IHA may retain the ineligible bidder's bid guarantee.

Preconstruction Conference (applicable to construction contracts)

After award of a contract under this solicitation and prior to the start of work, the successful bidder will be required to attend a preconstruction conference with representatives of the PHA/IHA and its architect/engineer, and other interested parties convened by the PHA/IHA. The conference will serve to acquaint the participants with the general plan of the construction operation and all other requirements of the contract (e.g., Equal Employment Opportunity, Labor Standards). The PHA/IHA will provide the successful bidder with the date, time, and place of the conference.

- **12. Indian Preference Requirements** (applicable only if this solicitation is for a contract to be performed on a project for an Indian Housing Authority)
- (a) HUD has determined that the contract awarded under this solicitation is subject to the requirements of section 7(b) of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (25 U.S.C. 450e(b)). Section 7(b) requires that any contract or subcontract entered into for the benefit of Indians shall require that, to the greatest extent feasible
- (1) Preferences and opportunities for training and employment (other than core crew positions; see paragraph (h) below) in connection with the administration of such contracts or subcontracts be given to qualified "Indians." The Act defines "Indians" to mean persons who are members of an Indian tribe and defines "Indian tribe" to mean any Indian tribe, band, nation, or other organized group or community, including any Alaska Native village or regional or village corporation as defined in or established pursuant to the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act, which is recognized as eligible for the special programs and services provided by the United States to Indians because of their status as Indians; and,
- (2) Preference in the award of contracts or subcontracts in connection with the administration of contracts be given to Indian organizations and to Indian-owned economic enterprises, as defined in section 3 of the Indian Financing Act of 1974 (25 U.S.C. 1452). That Act defines "economic enterprise" to mean any Indianowned commercial, industrial, or business activity established or organized for the purpose of profit, except that the Indian ownership must constitute not less than 51 percent of the enterprise; "Indian organization" to mean the governing body of any Indian tribe or entity established or recognized by such governing body; "Indian" to mean any person who is a member of any tribe, band, group, pueblo, or community which is recognized by the Federal Government as eligible for services from the Bureau of Indian Affairs and any "Native" as defined in the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act: and Indian "tribe" to mean any Indian tribe, band, group, pueblo, or community including Native villages and Native groups (including

corporations organized by Kenai, Juneau, Sitka, and Kodiak) as defined in the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act, which is recognized by the Federal Government as eligible for services from the Bureau of Indian Affairs.

- (b) (1) The successful Contractor under this solicitation shall comply with the requirements of this provision in awarding all subcontracts under the contract and in providing training and employment opportunities.
- (2) A finding by the IHA that the contractor, either (i) awarded a subcontract without using the procedure required by the IHA, (ii) falsely represented that subcontracts would be awarded to Indian enterprises or organizations; or, (iii) failed to comply with the contractor's employment and training preference bid statement shall be grounds for termination of the contract or for the assessment of penalties or other remedies.
- (c) If specified elsewhere in this solicitation, the IHA may restrict the solicitation to qualified Indian-owned enterprises and Indian organizations. If two or more (or a greater number as specified elsewhere in the solicitation) qualified Indian-owned enterprises or organizations submit responsive bids, award shall be made to the qualified enterprise or organization with the lowest responsive bid. If fewer than the minimum required number of qualified Indian-owned enterprises or organizations submit responsive bids, the IHA shall reject all bids and readvertise the solicitation in accordance with paragraph (d) below.
- (d) If the IHA prefers not to restrict the solicitation as described in paragraph (c) above, or if after having restricted a solicitation an insufficient number of qualified Indian enterprises or organizations submit bids, the IHA may advertise for bids from non-Indian as well as Indian-owned enterprises and Indian organizations. Award shall be made to the qualified Indian enterprise or organization with the lowest responsive bid if that bid is -
- (1) Within the maximum HUD-approved budget amount established for the specific project or activity for which bids are being solicited; and
- (2) No more than the percentage specified in 24 CFR 905.175(c) higher than the total bid price of the lowest responsive bid from any qualified bidder. If no responsive bid by a qualified Indian-owned economic enterprise or organization is within the stated range of the total bid price of the lowest responsive bid from any qualified enterprise, award shall be made to the bidder with the lowest bid.
- (e) Bidders seeking to qualify for preference in contracting or subcontracting shall submit proof of Indian ownership with their bids. Proof of Indian ownership shall include but not be limited to:
- (1) Certification by a tribe or other evidence that the bidder is an Indian. The IHA shall accept the certification of a tribe that an individual is a member.
- (2) Evidence such as stock ownership, structure, management, control, financing and salary or profit sharing arrangements of the enterprise.

- (f) (1) All bidders must submit with their bids a statement describing how they will provide Indian preference in the award of subcontracts. The specific requirements of that statement and the factors to used by the IHA in determining the statement's adequacy are included as an attachment to this solicitation. Any bid that fails to include the required statement shall be rejected as nonresponsive. The IHA may require that comparable statements be provided by subcontractors to the successful Contractor, and may require the Contractor to reject any bid or proposal by a subcontractor that fails to include the statement.
- (2) Bidders and prospective subcontractors shall submit a certification (supported by credible evidence) to the IHA in any instance where the bidder or subcontractor believes it is infeasible to provide Indian preference in subcontracting. The acceptance or rejection by the IHA of the certification shall be final. Rejection shall disqualify the bid from further consideration.
- (g) All bidders must submit with their bids a statement detailing their employment and training opportunities and their plans to provide preference to Indians in implementing the contract; and the number or percentage of Indians anticipated to be employed and trained. Comparable statements from all proposed subcontractors must be submitted. The criteria to be used by the IHA in determining the statement(s)'s adequacy are included as an attachment to this solicitation. Any bid that fails to include the required statement(s), or that includes a statement that does not meet minimum standards required by the IHA shall be rejected as nonresponsive.
- (h) Core crew employees. A core crew employee is an individual who is a bona fide employee of the contractor at the time the bid is submitted; or an individual who was not employed by the bidder at the time the bid was submitted, but who is regularly employed by the bidder in a supervisory or other key skilled position when work is available. Bidders shall submit with their bids a list of all core crew employees.
- (i) Preference in contracting, subcontracting, employment, and training shall apply not only on-site, on the reservation, or within the IHA's jurisdiction, but also to contracts with firms that operate outside these areas (e.g., employment in modular or manufactured housing construction facilities).
- (j) Bidders should contact the IHA to determine if any additional local preference requirements are applicable to this solicitation.
- (k) The IHA [] does [] does not [Contracting Officer check applicable box] maintain lists of Indian-owned economic enterprises and Indian organizations by specialty (e.g., plumbing, electrical, foundations), which are available to bidders to assist them in meeting their responsibility to provide preference in connection with the administration of contracts and subcontracts.

DOCUMENT 00 0120

REPRESENTATIONS, CERTIFICATIONS, and OTHER STATEMENTS of BIDDERS

HUD FORM 5369-A
REPRESENTATIONS, CERTIFICATIONS,
and
OTHER STATEMENTS of BIDDERS
PUBLIC AND INDIAN HOUSING PROGRAMS

(5 PAGES)

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Office of Public and Indian Housing

Representations, Certifications, and Other Statements of Bidders Public and Indian Housing Programs

Previous edition is obsolete form **HUD-5369-A** (11/92)

Representations, Certifications, and Other Statements of Bidders

Public and Indian Housing Programs

Table of Contents

Clause	Page
1. Certificate of Independent Price Determination	1
2. Contingent Fee Representation and Agreement	1
3. Certification and Disclosure Regarding Payments to Influence Certain Federal Transactions	1
4. Organizational Conflicts of Interest Certification	2
5. Bidder's Certification of Eligibility	2
6. Minimum Bid Acceptance Period	2
7. Small, Minority, Women-Owned Business Concern Representation	2
Indian-Owned Economic Enterprise and Indian Organization Representation	2
9. Certification of Eligibility Under the Davis-Bacon Act	3
10. Certification of Nonsegregated Facilities	3
11. Clean Air and Water Certification	3
12. Previous Participation Certificate	3
13. Bidder's Signature	3

1. Certificate of Independent Price Determination

- (a) The bidder certifies that--
- (1) The prices in this bid have been arrived at independently, without, for the purpose of restricting competition, any consultation, communication, or agreement with any other bidder or competitor relating to (i) those prices, (ii) the intention to submit a bid, or (iii) the methods or factors used to calculate the prices offered;
- (2) The prices in this bid have not been and will not be knowingly disclosed by the bidder, directly or indirectly, to any other bidder or competitor before bid opening (in the case of a sealed bid solicitation) or contract award (in the case of a competitive proposal solicitation) unless otherwise required by law; and
- (3) No attempt has been made or will be made by the bidder to induce any other concern to submit or not to submit a bid for the purpose of restricting competition.
- (b) Each signature on the bid is considered to be a certification by the signatory that the signatory--
- (1) Is the person in the bidder's organization responsible for determining the prices being offered in this bid or proposal, and that the signatory has not participated and will not participate in any action contrary to subparagraphs (a)(l) through (a)(3) above; or
- (2) (i) Has been authorized, in writing, to act as agent for the following principals in certifying that those principals have not participated, and will not participate in any action contrary to subparagraphs (a)(I) through (a)(3) above.

full name of person(s) in the bidder's organization responsible for determining the prices offered in this bid or proposal, and the title of his or her position in the bidder's organization];

(ii) As an authorized agent, does certify that the principals named in subdivision (b)(2)(i) above have not participated, and will not participate, in any action contrary to subparagraphs (a)(1) through (a)(3) above; and

- (iii) As an agent, has not personally participated, and will not participate in any action contrary to subparagraphs (a)(1) through (a)(3) above.
- (c) If the bidder deletes or modifies subparagraph (a)2 above, the bidder must furnish with its bid a signed statement setting forth in detail the circumstances of the disclosure.
- [x] [Contracting Officer check if following paragraph is applicable]
- (d) Non-collusive affidavit. (applicable to contracts for construction and equipment exceeding \$50,000)
- (1) Each bidder shall execute, in the form provided by the PHA/ IHA, an affidavit to the effect that he/she has not colluded with any other person, firm or corporation in regard to any bid submitted in response to this solicitation. If the successful bidder did not submit the affidavit with his/her bid, he/she must submit it within three (3) working days of bid opening. Failure to submit the affidavit by that date may render the bid nonresponsive. No contract award will be made without a properly executed affidavit.
- (2) A fully executed "Non-collusive Affidavit" $\ [\]$ is, $\ [\]$ is not included with the bid.

2. Contingent Fee Representation and Agreement

(a) Definitions. As used in this provision:

"Bona fide employee" means a person, employed by a bidder and subject to the bidder's supervision and control as to time, place, and manner of performance, who neither exerts, nor proposes to exert improper influence to solicit or obtain contracts nor holds out as being able to obtain any contract(s) through improper influence.

"Improper influence" means any influence that induces or tends to induce a PHA/IHA employee or officer to give consideration or to act regarding a PHA/IHA contract on any basis other than the merits of the matter.

- (b) The bidder represents and certifies as part of its bid that, except for full-time bona fide employees working solely for the bidder, the bidder:
- (1) [] has, [] has not employed or retained any person or company to solicit or obtain this contract; and
- (2) [] has, [] has not paid or agreed to pay to any person or company employed or retained to solicit or obtain this contract any commission, percentage, brokerage, or other fee contingent upon or resulting from the award of this contract.
- (c) If the answer to either (a)(1) or (a)(2) above is affirmative, the bidder shall make an immediate and full written disclosure to the PHA/IHA Contracting Officer.
- (d) Any misrepresentation by the bidder shall give the PHA/IHA the right to (1) terminate the contract; (2) at its discretion, deduct from contract payments the amount of any commission, percentage, brokerage, or other contingent fee; or (3) take other remedy pursuant to the contract.

3. Certification and Disclosure Regarding Payments to Influence Certain Federal Transactions (applicable to contracts exceeding \$100,000)

(a) The definitions and prohibitions contained in Section 1352 of title 31, United States Code, are hereby incorporated by reference in paragraph (b) of this certification.

- (b) The bidder, by signing its bid, hereby certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief as of December 23, 1989 that:
- (1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress on his or her behalf in connection with the awarding of a contract resulting from this solicitation;
- (2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds (including profit or fee received under a covered Federal transaction) have been paid, or will be paid, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress on his or her behalf in connection with this solicitation, the bidder shall complete and submit, with its bid, OMB standard form LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities;" and
- (3) He or she will include the language of this certification in all subcontracts at any tier and require that all recipients of subcontract awards in excess of \$100,000 shall certify and disclose accordingly.
- (c) Submission of this certification and disclosure is a prerequisite for making or entering into this contract imposed by section 1352, title 31, United States Code. Any person who makes an expenditure prohibited under this provision or who fails to file or amend the disclosure form to be filed or amended by this provision, shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000, and not more than \$100,000, for each such failure.
- (d) Indian tribes (except those chartered by States) and Indian organizations as defined in section 4 of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (25 U.S.C. 450B) are exempt from the requirements of this provision.

4. Organizational Conflicts of Interest Certification

The bidder certifies that to the best of its knowledge and belief and except as otherwise disclosed, he or she does not have any organizational conflict of interest which is defined as a situation in which the nature of work to be performed under this proposed contract and the bidder's organizational, financial, contractual, or other interests may, without some restriction on future activities:

- (a) Result in an unfair competitive advantage to the bidder; or,
- (b) Impair the bidder's objectivity in performing the contract work.
- [] In the absence of any actual or apparent conflict, I hereby certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, no actual or apparent conflict of interest exists with regard to my possible performance of this procurement.

5. Bidder's Certification of Eligibility

- (a) By the submission of this bid, the bidder certifies that to the best of its knowledge and belief, neither it, nor any person or firm which has an interest in the bidder's firm, nor any of the bidder's subcontractors, is ineligible to:
- (1) Be awarded contracts by any agency of the United States Government, HUD, or the State in which this contract is to be performed; or,
 - (2) Participate in HUD programs pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.
- (b) The certification in paragraph (a) above is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when making award. If it is later determined that the bidder knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, the contract may be terminated for default, and the bidder may be debarred or suspended from participation in HUD programs and other Federal contract programs.

6. Minimum Bid Acceptance Period

- (a) "Acceptance period," as used in this provision, means the number of calendar days available to the PHA/IHA for awarding a contract from the date specified in this solicitation for receipt of bids.
- (b) This provision supersedes any language pertaining to the acceptance period that may appear elsewhere in this solicitation.
- (c) The PHA/IHA requires a minimum acceptance period of [Contracting Officer insert time period] calendar days.
- (d) In the space provided immediately below, bidders may specify a longer acceptance period than the PHA's/IHA's minimum requirement. The bidder allows the following acceptance period: calendar days.
- (e) A bid allowing less than the PHA's/IHA's minimum acceptance period will be rejected.
- (f) The bidder agrees to execute all that it has undertaken to do, in compliance with its bid, if that bid is accepted in writing within (1) the acceptance period stated in paragraph (c) above or (2) any longer acceptance period stated in paragraph (d) above.

7. Small, Minority, Women-Owned Business Concern Representation

The bidder represents and certifies as part of its bid/ offer that it -(a) [] is, [] is not a small business concern. "Small business concern," as used in this provision, means a concern, including its affiliates, that is independently owned and operated, not dominant in the field of operation in which it is bidding, and qualified as a small business under the criteria and size standards in 13 CFR 121.

(b) []is, []is not a women-owned business enterprise. "Women-owned business enterprise," as used in this provision, means a business that is at least 51 percent owned by a woman or women who are U.S. citizens and who also control and operate the business.

(c) [] is, [] is not a minority business enterprise. "Minority business enterprise," as used in this provision, means a business which is at least 51 percent owned or controlled by one or more minority group members or, in the case of a publicly owned business, at least 51 percent of its voting stock is owned by one or more minority group members, and whose management and daily operations are controlled by one or more such individuals. For the purpose of this definition, minority group members are:

(Check the block applicable to you)

Black Americans	[] Asian Pacific Americans
[] Hispanic Americans	[] Asian Indian Americans
[] Native Americans	[] Hasidic Jewish Americans

8. Indian-Owned Economic Enterprise and Indian Organization Representation (applicable only if this solicitation is for a contract to be performed on a project for an Indian Housing Authority)

The bidder represents and certifies that it:

- (a) [] is, [] is not an Indian-owned economic enterprise. "Economic enterprise," as used in this provision, means any commercial, industrial, or business activity established or organized for the purpose of profit, which is at least 51 percent Indian owned. "Indian," as used in this provision, means any person who is a member of any tribe, band, group, pueblo, or community which is recognized by the Federal Government as eligible for services from the Bureau of Indian Affairs and any "Native" as defined in the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act.
- (b) [] is, [] is not an Indian organization. "Indian organization," as used in this provision, means the governing body of any Indian tribe or entity established or recognized by such governing body. Indian "tribe" means any Indian tribe, band, group, pueblo, or

community including Native villages and Native groups (including corporations organized by Kenai, Juneau, Sitka, and Kodiak) as defined in the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act, which is recognized by the Federal Government as eligible for services from the Bureau of Indian Affairs.

9. Certification of Eligibility Under the Davis-Bacon Act (applicable to construction contracts exceeding \$2,000)

- (a) By the submission of this bid, the bidder certifies that neither it nor any person or firm who has an interest in the bidder's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded contracts by the United States Government by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- (b) No part of the contract resulting from this solicitation shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible to be awarded contracts by the United States Government by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- (c) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U. S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001.

Certification of Nonsegregated Facilities (applicable to contracts exceeding \$10,000)

- (a) The bidder's attention is called to the clause entitled **Equal Employment Opportunity** of the General Conditions of the Contract for Construction.
- (b) "Segregated facilities," as used in this provision, means any waiting rooms, work areas, rest rooms and wash rooms, restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms and other storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation, and housing facilities provided for employees, that are segregated by explicit directive or are in fact segregated on the basis of race, color, religion, or national origin because of habit, local custom, or otherwise.
- (c) By the submission of this bid, the bidder certifies that it does not and will not maintain or provide for its employees any segregated facilities at any of its establishments, and that it does not and will not permit its employees to perform their services at any location under its control where segregated facilities are maintained. The bidder agrees that a breach of this certification is a violation of the Equal Employment Opportunity clause in the contract.
- (d) The bidder further agrees that (except where it has obtained identical certifications from proposed subcontractors for specific time periods) prior to entering into subcontracts which exceed \$10,000 and are not exempt from the requirements of the Equal Employment Opportunity clause, it will:
- (1) Obtain identical certifications from the proposed subcontractors;
 - (2) Retain the certifications in its files; and
- (3) Forward the following notice to the proposed subcontractors (except if the proposed subcontractors have submitted identical certifications for specific time periods):

Notice to Prospective Subcontractors of Requirement for Certifications of Nonsegregated Facilities

A Certification of Nonsegregated Facilities must be submitted before the award of a subcontract exceeding \$10,000 which is not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Employment Opportunity clause of the prime contract. The certification may be submitted either for each subcontract or for all subcontracts during a period (i.e., quarterly, semiannually, or annually).

Note: The penalty for making false statements in bids is prescribed in 18 U.S.C. 1001.

11. Clean Air and Water Certification (applicable to contracts exceeding \$100,000)

The bidder certifies that:

- (a) Any facility to be used in the performance of this contract [] is, [] is not listed on the Environmental Protection Agency List of Violating Facilities:
- (b) The bidder will immediately notify the PHA/IHA Contracting Officer, before award, of the receipt of any communication from the Administrator, or a designee, of the Environmental Protection Agency, indicating that any facility that the bidder proposes to use for the performance of the contract is under consideration to be listed on the EPA List of Violating Facilities; and,
- (c) The bidder will include a certification substantially the same as this certification, including this paragraph (c), in every nonexempt subcontract.
- **12. Previous Participation Certificate** (applicable to construction and equipment contracts exceeding \$50,000)
- (a) The bidder shall complete and submit with his/her bid the Form HUD-2530, "Previous Participation Certificate." If the successful bidder does not submit the certificate with his/her bid, he/she must submit it within three (3) working days of bid opening. Failure to submit the certificate by that date may render the bid nonresponsive. No contract award will be made without a properly executed certificate.
- (b) A fully executed "Previous Participation Certificate"[] is, [] is not included with the bid.

13. Bidder's Signature

The bidder hereby certifies that the information contained in these certifications and representations is accurate, complete, and current.

(Signature and Date)		
(Typed or Printed Name)		
(Title)	 	
(Company Name)		
(Company Address)		

DOCUMENT 00 0140

CONTRACT PROVISIONS REQUIRED by FEDERAL LAW

HUD FORM 5369-B CONTRACT PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY FEDERAL LAW PUBLIC AND INDIAN HOUSING PROGRAMS

(4 PAGES)

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Office of Public and Indian Housing

OMB Approval No. 2577-0157 (exp. 11/30/2023)

Contract Provisions Required by Federal Law or Owner Contract with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Previous editions are obsolete form **HUD-51915-A** (1/2014)

Contract Provisions Required by Federal Law or Owner Contract with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Office of Public and Indian Housing OMB Approval No. 2577-0**157** (exp. 3/31/2020)

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 3 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. HUD may not conduct or sponsor, and an applicant is not required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number.

These contracts between a HUD grantee (housing agency (HA)) and an architect/engineer (A/E) for design and construction services do not require either party to submit any materials to HUD. The forms provide a contractual agreement for the services to be provided by the A/E and establishes responsibilities of both parties pursuant to the contract. The regulatory authority is 2 CFR 200. These contractual agreements are required by Federal law or regulation pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200. Signing of the contracts is required to obtain or retain benefits. The contracts do not lend themselves to confidentiality.

- 1.0 Contract Provisions Required by Federal Law or Owner Contract with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).
- 1.1 Contract Adjustments. Notwithstanding any other term or condition of this Agreement, any settlement or equitable adjust-ment due to termination, suspension or delays by the Owner shall be negotiated based on the cost principles stated at 48 CFR Subpart 31.2

and conform to the Contract pricing provisions of 2 CFR 200.

- 1.2 Additional Services. The Owner shall perform a cost or price analysis as required by 2 CFR 200 prior to the issuance of a contract modification/amendment for Additional Services. Such Additional Services shall be within the general scope of services covered by this Agreement. The Design Profes-sional shall provide supporting cost information in sufficient detail to permit the Owner to perform the required cost or price analysis.
- 1.3 Restrictive Drawings and Specifications. In accordance with 2 CFR 200 and contract agreements between the Owner interest is and HUD, the Design Professional shall not require the use of materials, products, or services that unduly restrict competition.
- 1.4 Design Certification. Where the Owner is required by federal regulations to provide HUD a Design Professional certification regarding the design of the Projects (24 CFR 905.312), the Design Professional shall provide such a certification to the Owner.
- 1.5 Retention and Inspection of Records. Pursuant to 24 CFR 85.26(i)(10) and (11), access shall be given by the Design Professional to the Owner, HUD, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives, to any books, documents, papers, and records of the Design Professional which are directly pertinent to that specific Contract for the purpose of making an audit, examination, excerpts, and transcriptions. All required records shall be retained for three years after the Owner or Design Professional and other subgrantees make final payments and all other pending matters are closed.
- 1.6 Copyrights and Rights in Data. HUD has no regulations pertaining to copyrights or rights in data as provided in 24 CFR 85.36. HUD requirements, Article 45 of the General Conditions to the Contract for Construction (form HUD-5370) requires that contractors pay all royalties and license fees. All drawings and specifications prepared by the Design Professional pursuant to this contract will identify any applicable patents to enable the general contractor to fulfil the requirements of the construction contract.

1.7 Conflicts of Interest. Based in part on federal regulations (2 CFR 200) and Contract agreement between the Owner and HUD, no employee, officer, or agent of the Owner (HUD grantee) shall participate in selection, or in the award or administration of a contract supported by Federal funds if a conflict of interest, real or apparent, would be involved.

Such a conflict would arise when:

- (i) The employee, officer or agent,
- (ii) Any member of his or her immediate family,
- (iii) His or her partner, or
- (iv) An organization that employs, or is about to employ, any of the above, has a financial or other interest in the firm selected for award. The grantee's or subgrantee's officers, employees or agents will neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from Contractors, or parties to sub-agreements.

 Grantees and subgrantees may set minimum rules where the financial interest is not substantial or the gift is an unsolicited item of nominal intrinsic value. To the extent permit ted by State or local law or

intrinsic value. To the extent permit-ted by State or local law or regulations, such standards or conduct will provide for penalties, sanctions, or other disciplinary actions for violations of such standards by the grantee's and subgrantee's officers, employees, or agents or by Contractors or their agents. The awarding agency may in regulation provide additional prohi-bitions relative to real, apparent, or potential conflicts of interest.

Neither the Owner nor any of its contractors or their subcontractors shall enter into any Contract, subcontract, or agreement, in connection with any Project or any property included or planned to be included in any Project, in which any member, officer, or employee of the Owner, or any member of the governing body of the locality in which the Project is situated, or any member of the governing body of the locality in which the Owner was activated, or in any other public official of such locality or localities who exercises any responsibilities or functions with respect to the Project during his/her tenure or for one year thereafter has any interest, direct or indirect. If any such present or former member, officer, or employee of the Owner, or any such governing body member or such other public official of such locality or localities involuntarily acquires or had acquired prior to the beginning of his/her tenure any such interest, and if such interest is immediately disclosed to the Owner and such disclosure is entered upon the minutes of the Owner, the Owner, with the prior approval of the Government, may waive the prohibition contained in this subsection: Provided, That any such present member, officer, or employee of the Owner shall not participate in any action by the Owner relating to such contract, subcontract, or

No member, officer, or employee of the Owner, no member of the governing body of the locality in which the project is situated, no member of the governing body of the locality in which the Owner was activated, and no other public official of such locality or localities who exercises any functions or responsibilities with respect to the project, during his/her tenure or for one year thereafter, shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in this contract or the proceeds thereof.

- 1.8 Disputes. In part because of HUD regulations (2 CFR 200), this Design Professional Agreement, unless it is a small urchase contract, has administrative, contractual, or legal remedies for instances where the Design Professional violates or breaches Agreement terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as may be appropriate.
- 1.9 Termination. In part because of HUD regulations (24 CFR 85.36(i)(2)), this Design Professional Agreement, unless it is for an amount of \$10,000 or less, has requirements regarding termi-nation by the Owner when for cause or convenience. These include the manner by which the termination will be effected and basis for settlement.
- 1.10 Interest of Members of Congress. Because of Contract agreement between the Owner and HUD, no member of or delegate to the Congress of the United States of America or Resident Commissioner shall be admitted to any share or part of this Contract or to any benefit to arise from it.
- 1.11 Limitation of Payments to Influence Certain Federal Transaction. The Limitation on Use of Appropriated Funds to Influence Certain Federal Contracting and Financial Transactions Act, Section 1352 of Title 31 U.S.C., provides in part that no appropriated funds may be expended by recipient of a federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement to pay any person, including the Design Professional, for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of Congress in connection with any of the following covered Federal actions: the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- 1.12 Employment, Training, and Contracting Opportunities for Low-Income Persons, Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968.
- A. The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u (section 3). The purpose of section 3 is to ensure that employment and other economic opportunities generated by HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects covered by section 3, shall, to the greatest extent feasible, be directed to low- and very low-income persons, par-ticularly persons who are recipients of HUD assistance for hous-ing.

- B. The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 135, which implement section 3. As evidenced by their execution of this contract, the parties to this contract certify that they are under no contractual or other impediment that would prevent them from complying with the part 135 regulations.
- C. The contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or representative of workers with which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other understanding, if any, a notice advising the labor organization or workers' representative of the p contractor's commitments under this section 3 clause, and will

post copies of the notice in conspicuous places at the work site where both employees and applicants for training and employment positions can see the notice. The notice shall describe the section 3 preference, shall set forth minimum number and job titles subject to hire, availability of apprenticeship and training positions, the qualifications for each; and the name and location of the person(s) taking applications for each of the positions; and the anticipated date the work shall begin.

- D. The contractor agrees to include this section 3 clause in every subcontract subject to compliance with regulations in 24 CFR part 135, and agrees to take appropriate action, as provided in an applicable provision of the subcontract or in this section 3 clause, upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR part 135. The contractor will not subcon-tract with any subcontractor where the contractor has notice or knowledge that the subcontractor has been found in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR part 135.
- E. The contractor will certify that any vacant employment positions, including training positions, that are filled (1) after the contractor is selected but before the contract is executed, and (2) with persons other than those to whom the regulations of 24 CFR part 135 require employment opportunities to be directed, were not filled to circumvent the contractor's obligations under 24 CFR part 135.
- F. Noncompliance with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 135 may result in sanctions, termination of this contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD assisted contracts.
- G. Reserved.
- H. Reserved.
- 1.13 Reserved.
- 1.14 Clean Air and Water. (Applicable to contracts in excess of \$100,000). Because of 24 CFR 85.36(i)(12) and federal law, the Design Professional shall comply with applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 1857h-4 transferred to 42 USC § 7607, section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. § 1368), Executive Order 11738, and Environmental Protection Agency regulations (40 CFR part 15), on all contracts, subcontracts, and subgrants of amounts in excess of \$100,000.

- 1.15 Energy Efficiency. Pursuant to Federal regulations (2 C.F.R 200) and Federal law, except when working on an Indian housing authority Project on an Indian reservation, the Design Professional shall comply with the mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy onservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (Pub. L. 94-163 codified at 42 U.S.C.A. § 6321 et. seq.).
- 1.16 Prevailing Wages. In accordance with Section 12 of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937 (42 U.S.C. 1437j) the Design Professional shall pay not less than the wages prevailing in the locality, as determined by or adopted (subsequent to a determination under applicable State or local law) by the Secretary of HUD, to all architects, technical engineers, draftsmen, and technicians.
- 1.17 Non-applicability of Fair Housing Requirements in Indian 85. Housing Authority Contracts. Pursuant to 24 CFR section 905.115(b) title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d-2000d-4), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin in federally assisted programs, and the Fair Housing Act (42 c
- U.S.C. 3601-3620), which prohibits discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, national origin, handicap, or familial status in the sale or rental of housing do not apply to Indian Housing Authorities established by exercise of a Tribe's powers of self-government.
 - 1.18 Prohibition Against Liens. The Design professional is Prohibited from placing a lien on the Owner's property. This prohibition shall be placed in all design professional subcontracts.

DOCUMENT 00 0300

BID FORM

Westmoreland County Housing Authority Interior Renovations to Jeannette Manor 401 S 4th St. Jeannette PA 15644

Proposal from	, hereinafter called "Bidder
	·

Sirs:

Having examined the site of the work and the Contract Documents as prepared by Sleighter Design including the Drawings, Advertisement for Bid, Instructions to Bidders, Representations, Certifications and Other Statements of Bidders, Statement of Bidders Qualifications, this Bid Form, Bid/Performance/Labor and Material Bonds; Insurance Certificate, General Conditions, Supplemental Conditions of the Contract for Construction, Non-Collusive Affidavit, Supplemental General Conditions, Form of Contract, and the Technical Specifications, the undersigned submits this bid and encloses herewith a Bid Guarantee in the proper amount of 10% of the bid and payable to the Westmoreland County Housing Authority. Failure to furnish approved bonds and execute the contract within ten (10) calendar days from issuance of the award, the bid guarantee will be forfeited. Should the owner fail to make an award on this contract through no fault or failure on the part of this bidder, then the owner will return the Bid Guarantee to the Bidder.

It is hereby certified that the undersigned is the only person(s) interested in this bid as principal, and that the bid is made without collusion with any person, firm or corporation. Bidder hereby agrees to execute the contract and furnish surety company bonds in the following amounts within ten (10) calendar days after mailing by the owner of notice of award.

- a. Performance Bond in the amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price.
- b. Labor and Materialmen's/Payment Bond in the amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price, conditioned that the contractor will promptly pay for all material and labor supplied or performed in the prosecution of all work, whether or not the material and labor enter into and become component parts of the project.

Bidder further agrees to begin paperwork and site organization work, scheduling, assembling shop drawings and all other work possible within ten (10) calendar days after date of receipt of the executed contract. It is understood and agreed that this proposal is effective for acceptance by the Owner for a period of sixty (60) days.

Bidder agrees that, if awarded the contract, he will furnish and deliver all materials, tools, equipment, tests and transportation, secure all permits and licenses, do and perform all labor, superintendence, and all means of construction; pay all fees and do incidental work; and to execute, construct and finish in an expeditious, substantial, and workmanlike manner, in accordance with the drawings and specifications to the complete satisfaction and acceptance of the owner for the above captioned contract, and for the price hereinafter stated.

Bidder submits this bid with the understanding that all work shall be completed within 120 calendar days for the base bid.

BASE BID GENERAL CONSTRUCTION

For all General Co	onstruction work indicated on the Contract Documents herein, the sum of:
<u>(\$</u>),
Wage Rate Deter	mination Used for Bid:(bidder to enter wage rate determination used)
	es – note that the Schedule of Values HUD Form 51000 is required to be submitted with s. Reference Section 00 0040 and Section 01 2000.
Bidder's Name:	
Bidder's Signature	9:
ALTERNATE BID conjunction with b	ITEMS – Refer to Section 01 2300 Alternates. Alternate bid items will not be used in uilding unit prices.
	ALTERNATE GC 1 ENT ENTRANCE DOORS (\$)
State the doors at e	amount to Deduct from the base bid, the amount to deduct the new solid core wood each apartment entrance. In lieu of the new wood doors, clean, sand and re-stain the rood doors. Provide new door hardware for the existing doors.
	ALTERNATE GC 2 NITY ROOM EXTERIOR ENTRANCE DOOR (\$)
	amount to Deduct from the base bid, the amount to deduct the new aluminum entrance e community room.
UNIT PRICES – F	Refer to Section 01 1270 Unit Prices
GC –	1 SKIM COATING
	(\$), for each Square Foot (SF) of Skim Coating.
	The General Contractor is to provide skim coating on all the walls noted on the drawings. To remove skim coating, the contractor shall provide a unit cost per square foot. This cost shall include all labor and materials required for skim coating.
GC –	2 GYPSUM WALLBOARD
	(\$), for each Square Foot (SF) of Gypsum Wallboard.
	The General Contractor is to provide 50 square feet of gypsum wallboard patching in the base bid. To add or to remove gypsum wallboard patching, the contractor shall

provide a unit cost per square foot. This cost shall include all labor and materials required for gypsum wallboard.

TIMELY DOOR FRAMES (\$______), per door opening

and furn prov	install ten (10) new Timely doo ish the new door frames. To ad	de the labor to remove ten (10) existing or frames as part of the base bid. The ovel of the transport of the contractor	vner will or shall
BASE BID ELECTRIC	AL CONSTRUCTION		
For all Electrical work	indicated on the Contract Docu	ments herein, the sum of:	
<u>(</u> \$),		
Wage Rate Determina	tion Used for Bid:		
	(bidder t	to enter wage rate determination used)	
	note that the Schedule of Value eference Section 00 0040 and \$	es HUD Form 51000 is required to be sul Section 01 2000.	bmitted with
Bidder's Name:			
Bidder's Signature:			
conjunction with buildir	g unit prices.	Alternates. Alternate bid items will not be	used in
DEDUCT ALT LIGHTING	FERNATE EC 1)	
lights (excludir	ng the emergency lights) on 2nd	d, the amount to deduct all corridor wall- through 9 th floors from the scope of wor ernate EC1.	
Receipt of the followin hereby acknowledged:		on of their contents in the preparation of	this bid is
Addendum No.	Contract No.	<u>Dated</u>	

GC - 3

			-	
			-	
			-	
Failure of Bidder to ack	knowledge rece	ipt of addenda may be	sufficient caus	e for rejection of his
Bidder's Name:				
Bidder's Signature:				
Date:				
		END OF DOCUMENT (00 0300	

DOCUMENT 00 0421 STATEMENT OF BIDDERS QUALIFICATIONS

(3 PAGES)

STATEMENT OF BIDDER'S QUALIFICATIONS

All questions must be answered, and the data given must be clear and comprehensive. This Statement must be notarized.

1.	Name of bidder
2.	Business address
3.	When organized
4.	Where incorporated
5.	How many years have you been engaged in the business for which this bid is intended under
	your present firm or trading name?
6.	Credit available for this contract \$
7.	Contract(s) now in hand, gross amount \$
8.	Are you a Minority Contractor?
9.	Are you a Female-Owned Contractor?
10.	Number of Minority employed by your Company
11.	Number of Females employed by your Company
12.	Plan of organization (staffing):
13.	Have you ever refused to sign a contract that was awarded to you?
14.	Remarks (if any) on Item
	No.13:
15.	Will you, upon request, furnish the Westmoreland County Housing Authority with a detailed
	Financial Statement or any other information as the Housing Authority may
	require?
16.	Have you ever defaulted on a contract?
17.	Remarks (if any) on Item No. 16:

19. List the 5 largest of	or most prestigio	us projects that you have	e completed in t	he past five years:
The undersigned hereby a Westmoreland County Hor Bidder's Qualifications.				
Project Name	Contract Amount	Brief Description o Completed	f Work	Reference Name & Phone
Dated at	this	day of	, 20	
Ву				
Title				
State of)			
County of)			
		, being duly sworn o	leposes and say	s that he/she is the
	of		and that the	ne answers to the
foregoing questions and a	ll statements the	erein contained are true a	and correct.	
Sworn to before me this _		day of	, 20	.
			NOTARY PU	BLIC
My commission expires		·		
R23-077-04 / WCHA Interior Renovations to Jeannette Manor		00 0421- 3		Statement to Bidders Qualifications

18. I.R.S. REPORTING NO. OR SOCIAL SECURITY NO._____

END OF DOCUMENT 00 0421

DOCUMENT 00 0700

GENERAL CONDITIONS

HUD FORM 5370
GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT
FOR CONSTRUCTION
PUBLIC AND INDIAN HOUSING PROGRAMS
(20 PAGES)

General Conditions for Construction Contracts - Public Housing Programs

U.S. Department of Housing and UrbanDev elopment

Office of Public and Indian Housing OMB Approval No. 2577-0157 (exp. 11/30/2023)

Applicability. This form is applicable to any construction/development contract greater than \$150,000.

procurement, implemented at HUD in 2 CFR 200, and those requirements set forth in Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 and its amendment by the Housing and Community Development Act of 1992, implemented by HUD at 24 CFR Part 75.3. The form is required for construction contracts awarded by Public Housing Agencies (PHAs). The form is used by Housing Authorities in solicitations to provide necessary contract clauses. If the form were not used, PHAs would be unable to enforce their contracts.. There are no assurances of confidentiality. HUD may not conduct or sponsor, and an applicant is not required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number.

	Clause	Page		Clause	Page
1.	Definitions	2	1	Administrative Requirements	
2.	Contractor's Responsibility for Work	2	25.	Contract Period	9
3.	Architect's Duties, Responsibilities and Authority	2	26.	Order of Precedence	9
4.	Other Contracts	3	27.	Payments	9
	Construction Requirements		28.	Contract Modifications	10
5.	Preconstruction Conference and Notice to Proceed	3	29.	Changes	10
6.	Construction Progress Schedule	3	30.	Suspension of Work	11
7.	Site Investigation and Conditions Affecting the Work	3	31.	Disputes	11
8.	Differing Site Conditions	4	32.	Default	11
9.	Specifications and Drawings for Construction	4	33.	Liquidated	12
10.	As-Built Drawings	5	34.	Termination of Convenience	12
11.	Material and Workmanship	5	35.	Assignment of Contract	12
12.	Permits and Codes	5	36.	Insurance	12
13.	Health, Safety, and Accident Prevention	6	37.	Subcontracts	13
14.	Temporary Buildings and Transportation Materials	6	38.	Subcontracting with Small and Minority Firms, Women's Business Enterprise, and Labor Surplus Area Firms	13
15.	Availability and Use of Utility Services	6	39.	Equal Employment Opportunity	13
16.	Protection of Existing Vegetation, Structures, Equipment, Utilities, and Improvements	6	40.	Employment, Training, and Contracting Opportunities for Low-Income Persons, Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968	14
17.	Temporary Buildings and Transportation Materials	7	41.	Interest of Members of Congress	15
18.	Clean Air and Water	7	42	Interest of Members, Officers, or Employees and Former Members, Officers, or Employees	15
19.	Energy Efficiency	7	43.	Limitations on Payments Made to Influence	15
20.	Inspection and Acceptance of Construction	7	44.	Royalties and Patents	15
21.	Use and Possession Prior to Completion	8	45.	Examination and Retention of Contractor's Records	15
22.	Warranty of Title	8	46.	Labor Standards-Davis-Bacon and Related Acts	15
23.	Warranty of Construction	8	47.	Non-Federal Prevailing Wage Rates	19
24.	Prohibition Against Liens	9	48.	Procurement of Recovered Materials	19

1. Definitions

- (a) "Architect" means the person or other entity engaged by the PHA to perform architectural, engineering, design, and other services related to the work as provided for in the contract. When a PHA uses an engineer to act in this capacity, the terms "architect" and "engineer" shall be synonymous. The Architect shall serve as a technical representative of the Contracting Officer. The Architect's authority is as set forth elsewhere in this contract.
- (b) "Contract" means the contract entered into between the PHA and the Contractor. It includes the forms of Bid, the Bid Bond, the Performance and Payment Bond or Bonds or other assurance of completion, the Certifications, Representations, and Other Statements of Bidders (form HUD-5370), these General Conditions of the Contract for Construction (form HUD-5370), the applicable wage rate determinations from the U.S. Department of Labor, any special conditions included elsewhere in the contract, the specifications, and drawings. It includes all formal changes to any of those documents by addendum, change order, or other modification.
- (c) "Contracting Officer" means the person delegated the authority by the PHA to enter into, administer, and/or terminate this contract and designated as such in writing to the Contractor. The term includes any successor Contracting Officer and any duly authorized representative of the Contracting Officer also designated in writing. The Contracting Officer shall be deemed the authorized agent of the PHA in all dealings with the Contractor.
- (d) "Contractor" means the person or other entity entering into the contract with the PHA to perform all of the work required under the contract.
- (e) "Drawings" means the drawings enumerated in the schedule of drawings contained in the Specifications and as described in the contract clause entitled Specifications and Drawings for Construction herein.
- (f) "HUD" means the United States of America acting through the Department of Housing and Urban Development including the Secretary, or any other person designated to act on its behalf. HUD has agreed, subject to the provisions of an Annual Contributions Terms and Conditions (ACC), to provide financial assistance to the PHA, which includes assistance in financing the work to be performed under this contract. As defined elsewhere in these General Conditions or the contract documents, the determination of HUD may be required to authorize changes in the work or for release of funds to the PHA for payment to the Contractor. Notwithstanding HUD's role, nothing in this contract shall be construed to create any contractual relationship between the Contractor and HUD.
- (g) "Project" means the entire project, whether construction or rehabilitation, the work for which is provided for in whole or in part under this contract.
- (h) "PHA" means the Public Housing Agency organized under applicable state laws which is a party to this contract.
- (j) "Specifications" means the written description of the technical requirements for construction and includes the criteria and tests for determining whether the requirements are met.
- (I) "Work" means materials, workmanship, and manufacture and fabrication of components.

2. Contractor's Responsibility for Work

- (a) The Contractor shall furnish all necessary labor, materials, tools, equipment, and transportation necessary for performance of the work. The Contractor shall also furnish all necessary water, heat, light, and power not made available to the Contractor by the PHA pursuant to the clause entitled Availability and Use of Utility Services herein.
- (b) The Contractor shall perform on the site, and with its own organization, work equivalent to at least [] (12 percent unless otherwise indicated) of the total amount of work to be performed under the order. This percentage may be reduced by a supplemental agreement to this order if, during performing the work, the Contractor requests a reduction and the Contracting Officer determines that the reduction would be to the advantage of the PHA.
- (c) At all times during performance of this contract and until the work is completed and accepted, the Contractor shall directly superintend the work or assign and have on the work site a competent superintendent who is satisfactory to the Contracting Officer and has authority to act for the Contractor.
- (d) The Contractor shall be responsible for all damages to persons or property that occur as a result of the Contractor's fault or negligence, and shall take proper safety and health precautions to protect the work, the workers, the public, and the property of others. The Contractor shall hold and save the PHA, its officers and agents, free and harmless from liability of any nature occasioned by the Contractor's performance. The Contractor shall also be responsible for all materials delivered and work performed until completion and acceptance of the entire work, except for any completed unit of work which may have been accepted under the contract
- (e) The Contractor shall lay out the work from base lines and bench marks indicated on the drawings and be responsible for all lines, levels, and measurements of all work executed under the contract. The Contractor shall verify the figures before laying out the work and will be held responsible for any error resulting from its failure to do so.
- (f) The Contractor shall confine all operations (including storage of materials) on PHA premises to areas authorized or approved by the Contracting Officer.
- (g) The Contractor shall at all times keep the work area, including storage areas, free from accumulations of waste materials. After completing the work and before final inspection, the Contractor shall (1) remove from the premises all scaffolding, equipment, tools, and materials (including rejected materials) that are not the property of the PHA and all rubbish caused by its work; (2) leave the work area in a clean, neat, and orderly condition satisfactory to the Contracting Officer; (3) perform all specified tests; and, (4) deliver the installation in complete and operating condition.
- (h) The Contractor's responsibility will terminate when all work has been completed, the final inspection made, and the work accepted by the Contracting Officer. The Contractor will then be released from further obligation except as required by the warranties specified elsewhere in the contract.

3. Architect's Duties, Responsibilities, and Authority

(a) The Architect for this contract, and any successor, shall be designated in writing by the Contracting Officer.

- (b) The Architect shall serve as the Contracting Officer's technical representative with respect to architectural, engineering, and design matters related to the work performed under the contract. The Architect may provide direction on contract performance. Such direction shall be within the scope of the contract and may not be of a nature which: (1) institutes additional work outside the scope of the contract; (2) constitutes a change as defined in the Changes clause herein; (3) causes an increase or decrease in the cost of the contract; (4) alters the Construction Progress Schedule; or (5) changes any of the other express terms or conditions of the contract.
- (c) The Architect's duties and responsibilities may include but shall not be limited to:
 - (1) Making periodic visits to the work site, and on the basis of his/her on-site inspections, issuing written reports to the PHA which shall include all observed deficiencies. The Architect shall file a copy of the report with the Contractor's designated representative at the site:
 - (2) Making modifications in drawings and technical specifications and assisting the Contracting Officer in the preparation of change orders and other contract modifications for issuance by the Contracting Officer;
 - (3) Reviewing and making recommendations with respect to - (i) the Contractor's construction progress schedules; (ii) the Contractor's shop and detailed drawings; (iii) the machinery, mechanical and other equipment and materials or other articles proposed for use by the Contractor; and, (iv) the Contractor's price breakdown and progress payment estimates; and
 - (4) Assisting in inspections, signing Certificates of Completion, and making recommendations with respect to acceptance of work completed under the contract.

4. Other Contracts

The PHA may undertake or award other contracts for additional work at or near the site of the work under this contract. The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the other contractors and with PHA employees and shall carefully adapt scheduling and performing the work under this contract to accommodate the additional work, heeding any direction that may be provided by the Contracting Officer. The Contractor shall not commit or permit any act that will interfere with the performance of work by any other contractor or by PHA employees

Construction Requirements

5. Pre-construction Conference and Notice to Proceed

- (a) Within ten calendar days of contract execution, and prior to the commencement of work, the Contractor shall attend a preconstruction conference with representatives of the PHA, its Architect, and other interested parties convened by the PHA. The conference will serve to acquaint the participants with the general plan of the construction operation and all other requirements of the contract. The PHA will provide the Contractor with the date, time, and place of the conference.
- (b) The contractor shall begin work upon receipt of a written Notice to Proceed from the Contracting Officer or designee. The Contractor shall not begin work prior to receiving such notice.

6. Construction Progress Schedule

- (a) The Contractor shall, within five days after the work commences on the contract or another period of time determined by the Contracting Officer, prepare and submit to the Contracting Officer for approval three copies of a practicable schedule showing the order in which the Contractor proposes to perform the work, and the dates on which the Contractor contemplates starting and completing the several salient features of the work (including acquiring labor, materials, and equipment). The schedule shall be in the form of a progress chart of suitable scale to indicate appropriately the percentage of work scheduled for completion by any given date during the period. If the Contractor fails to submit a schedule within the time prescribed, the Contracting Officer may withhold approval of progress payments or take other remedies under the contract until the Contractor submits the required schedule.
- (b) The Contractor shall enter the actual progress on the chart as required by the Contracting Officer, and immediately deliver three copies of the annotated schedule to the Contracting Officer. If the Contracting Officer determines, upon the basis of inspection conducted pursuant to the clause entitled Inspection and Acceptance of Construction, herein that the Contractor is not meeting the approved schedule, the Contractor shall take steps necessary to improve its progress, including those that may be required by the Contracting Officer, without additional cost to the PHA. In this circumstance, the Contracting Officer may require the Contractor to increase the number of shifts, overtime operations, days of work, and/or the amount of construction plant, and to submit for approval any supplementary schedule or schedules in chart form as the Contracting Officer deems necessary to demonstrate how the approved rate of progress will be regained.
- (c) Failure of the Contractor to comply with the requirements of the Contracting Officer under this clause shall be grounds for a determination by the Contracting Officer that the Contractor is not prosecuting the work with sufficient diligence to ensure completion within the time specified in the Contract. Upon making this determination, the Contracting Officer may terminate the Contractor's right to proceed with the work, or any separable part of it, in accordance with the Default clause of this contract.

7. Site Investigation and Conditions Affecting the Work

(a) The Contractor acknowledges that it has taken steps reasonably necessary to ascertain the nature and location of the work, and that it has investigated and satisfied itself as to the general and local conditions which can affect the work or its cost, including but not limited to, (1) conditions bearing upon transportation, disposal, handling, and storage of materials; (2) the availability of labor, water, electric power, and roads;(3) uncertainties of weather, river stages, tides, or similar physical conditions at the site; (4) the conformation and conditions of the ground; and (5) the character of equipment and facilities needed preliminary to and during work performance. The Contractor also acknowledges that it has satisfied itself as to the character, quality, and quantity of surface and subsurface materials or obstacles to be encountered insofar as this information is

- reasonably ascertainable from an inspection of the site, including all exploratory work done by the PHA, as well as from the drawings and specifications made a part of this contract. Any failure of the Contractor to take the actions described and acknowledged in this paragraph will not relieve the Contractor from responsibility for estimating properly the difficulty and cost of successfully performing the work, or for proceeding to successfully perform the work without additional expense to the PHA.
- (b) The PHA assumes no responsibility for any conclusions or interpretations made by the Contractor based on the information made available by the PHA. Nor does the PHA assume responsibility for any understanding reached or representation made concerning conditions which can affect the work by any of its officers or agents before the execution of this contract, unless that understanding or representation is expressly stated in this contract.

8. Differing Site Conditions

- (a) The Contractor shall promptly, and before the conditions are disturbed, give a written notice to the Contracting Officer of (1) subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site which differ materially from those indicated in this contract, or (2) unknown physical conditions at the site(s), of an unusual nature, which differ materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inhering in work of the character provided for in the contract.
- (b) The Contracting Officer shall investigate the site conditions promptly after receiving the notice. Work shall not proceed at the affected site, except at the Contractor's risk, until the Contracting Officer has provided written instructions to the Contractor. If the conditions do materially so differ and cause an increase or decrease in the Contractor's cost of, or the time required for, performing any part of the work under this contract, whether or not changed as a result of the conditions, the Contractor shall file a claim in writing to the PHA within ten days after receipt of such instructions and, in any event, before proceeding with the work. An equitable adjustment in the contract price, the delivery schedule, or both shall be made under this clause and the contract modified in writing accordingly.
- (c) No request by the Contractor for an equitable adjustment to the contract under this clause shall be allowed, unless the Contractor has given the written notice required; provided, that the time prescribed in (a) above for giving written notice may be extended by the Contracting
- (d) No request by the Contractor for an equitable adjustment to the contract for differing site conditions shall be allowed if made after final payment under this contract.

9. Specifications and Drawings for Construction

(a) The Contractor shall keep on the work site a copy of the drawings and specifications and shall at all times give the Contracting Officer access thereto. Anything mentioned in the specifications and not shown on the drawings, or shown on the drawings and not mentioned in the specifications, shall be of like effect as if shown or mentioned in both. In case of difference between drawings and specifications, the specifications shall govern. In case of discrepancy in the figures, in the drawings, or in the specifications, the matter shall be

- promptly submitted to the Contracting Officer, who shall promptly make a determination in writing. Any adjustment by the Contractor without such a determination shall be at its own risk and expense. The Contracting Officer shall furnish from time to time such detailed drawings and other information as considered necessary, unless otherwise provided.
- (b) Wherever in the specifications or upon the drawings the words "directed", "required", "ordered", "designated", "prescribed", or words of like import are used, it shall be understood that the "direction", "requirement", "order", "designation", or "prescription", of the Contracting Officer is intended and similarly the words "approved", "acceptable", "satisfactory", or words of like import shall mean "approved by", or "acceptable to"; or "satisfactory to" the Contracting Officer, unless otherwise expressly stated
- (c) Where "as shown" "as indicated", "as detailed", or words of similar import are used, it shall be understood that the reference is made to the drawings accompanying this contract unless stated otherwise. The word "provided" as used herein shall be understood to mean "provide complete in place" that is "furnished and installed".
- (d) "Shop drawings" means drawings, submitted to the PHA by the Contractor, subcontractor, or any lower tier subcontractor, showing in detail (1) the proposed fabrication and assembly of structural elements and (2) the installation (i.e., form, fit, and attachment details) of materials of equipment. It includes drawings, diagrams, layouts, schematics, descriptive literature, illustrations, schedules, performance and test data, and similar materials furnished by the Contractor to explain in detail specific portions of the work required by the contract. The PHA may duplicate, use, and disclose in any manner and for any purpose shop drawings delivered under this contract.
- (e) If this contract requires shop drawings, the Contractor shall coordinate all such drawings, and review them for accuracy, completeness, and compliance with other contract requirements and shall indicate its approval thereon as evidence of such coordination and review. Shop drawings submitted to the Contracting Officer without evidence of the Contractor's approval may be returned for resubmission. The Contracting Officer will indicate an approval or disapproval of the shop drawings and if not approved as submitted shall indicate the PHA's reasons therefore. Any work done before such approval shall be at the Contractor's risk. Approval by the Contracting Officer shall not relieve the Contractor from responsibility for any errors or omissions in such drawings, nor from responsibility for complying with the requirements of this contract, except with respect to variations described and approved in accordance with (f) below.
- (f) If shop drawings show variations from the contract requirements, the Contractor shall describe such variations in writing, separate from the drawings, at the time of submission. If the Architect approves any such variation and the Contracting Officer concurs, the Contracting Officer shall issue an appropriate modification to the contract, except that, if the variation is minor or does not involve a change in price or in time of performance, a modification need not be issued.
- (g) It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to make timely requests of the PHA for such large scale and full size drawings, color schemes, and other additional information, not already in his possession, which shall be

- required in the planning and production of the work. Such requests may be submitted as the need arises, but each such request shall be filed in ample time to permit appropriate action to be taken by all parties involved so as to avoid delay.
- (h) The Contractor shall submit to the Contracting Officer for approval four copies (unless otherwise indicated) of all shop drawings as called for under the various headings of these specifications. Three sets (unless otherwise indicated) of all shop drawings, will be retained by the PHA and one set will be returned to the Contractor. As required by the Contracting Officer, the Contractor, upon completing the work under this contract, shall furnish a complete set of all shop drawings as finally approved. These drawings shall show all changes and revisions made up to the time the work is completed and accepted.
- (i) This clause shall be included in all subcontracts at any tier. It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that all shop drawings prepared by subcontractors are submitted to the Contracting Officer.

10. As-Built Drawings

- (a) "As-built drawings," as used in this clause, means drawings submitted by the Contractor or subcontractor at any tier to show the construction of a particular structure or work as actually completed under the contract. "As-built drawings" shall be synonymous with "Record drawings."
- (b) As required by the Contracting Officer, the Contractor shall provide the Contracting Officer accurate information to be used in the preparation of permanent as-built drawings. For this purpose, the Contractor shall record on one set of contract drawings all changes from the installations originally indicated, and record final locations of underground lines by depth from finish grade and by accurate horizontal offset distances to permanent surface improvements such as buildings, curbs, or edges of walks.
- (c) This clause shall be included in all subcontracts at any tier. It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that all as-built drawings prepared by subcontractors are submitted to the Contracting Officer.

11. Material and Workmanship

- (a) All equipment, material, and articles furnished under this contract shall be new and of the most suitable grade for the purpose intended, unless otherwise specifically provided in this contract. References in the contract to equipment, material, articles, or patented processes by trade name, make, or catalog number, shall be regarded as establishing a standard of quality and shall not be construed as limiting competition. The Contractor may, at its option, use any equipment, material, article, or process that, in the judgment of, and as approved by the Contracting Officer, is equal to that named in the specifications, unless otherwise specifically provided in this contract.
- (b) Approval of equipment and materials.
 - (1) The Contractor shall obtain the Contracting Officer's approval of the machinery and mechanical and other equipment to be incorporated into the work. When requesting approval, the Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer the name of the manufacturer, the model number, and other information concerning the performance, capacity, nature, and rating of the

- machinery and mechanical and other equipment. When required by this contract or by the Contracting Officer, the Contractor shall also obtain the Contracting Officer's approval of the material or articles which the Contractor contemplates incorporating into the work. When requesting approval, the Contractor shall provide full information concerning the material or articles. Machinery, equipment, material, and articles that do not have the required approval shall be installed or used at the risk of subsequent rejection.
- (2) When required by the specifications or the Contracting Officer, the Contractor shall submit appropriately marked samples (and certificates related to them) for approval at the Contractor's expense, with all shipping charges prepaid. The Contractor shall label, or otherwise properly mark on the container, the material or product represented, its place of origin, the name of the producer, the Contractor's name, and the identification of the construction project for which the material or product is intended to be used.
- (3) Certificates shall be submitted in triplicate, describing each sample submitted for approval and certifying that the material, equipment or accessory complies with contract requirements. The certificates shall include the name and brand of the product, name of manufacturer, and the location where produced.
- (4) Approval of a sample shall not constitute a waiver of the PHA right to demand full compliance with contract requirements. Materials, equipment and accessories may be rejected for cause even though samples have been approved.
- (5) Wherever materials are required to comply with recognized standards or specifications, such specifications shall be accepted as establishing the technical qualities and testing methods, but shall not govern the number of tests required to be made nor modify other contract requirements. The Contracting Officer may require laboratory test reports on items submitted for approval or may approve materials on the basis of data submitted in certificates with samples. Check tests will be made on materials delivered for use only as frequently as the Contracting Officer determines necessary to insure compliance of materials with the specifications. The Contractor will assume all costs of retesting materials which fail to meet contract requirements and/or testing materials offered in substitution for those found deficient.
- (6) After approval, samples will be kept in the Project office until completion of work. They may be built into the work after a substantial quantity of the materials they represent has been built in and accepted.
- (c) Requirements concerning lead-based paint. The Contractor shall comply with the requirements concerning lead-based paint contained in the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4821-4846) as implemented by 24 CFR Part 35.

12. Permits and Codes

(a) The Contractor shall give all notices and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations. Notwithstanding the requirement of the Contractor to comply with the drawings and specifications in the contract, all work installed shall comply with all applicable codes and regulations as amended by any

- waivers. Before installing the work, the Contractor shall examine the drawings and the specifications for compliance with applicable codes and regulations bearing on the work and shall immediately report any discrepancy it may discover to the Contracting Officer. Where the requirements of the drawings and specifications fail to comply with the applicable code or regulation, the Contracting Officer shall modify the contract by change order pursuant to the clause entitled Changes herein to conform to the code or regulation.
- (b) The Contractor shall secure and pay for all permits, fees, and licenses necessary for the proper execution and completion of the work. Where the PHA can arrange for the issuance of all or part of these permits, fees and licenses, without cost to the Contractor, the contract amount shall be reduced accordingly.
- 13. Health, Safety, and Accident Prevention
- (a) In performing this contract, the Contractor shall:
 - (1) Ensure that no laborer or mechanic shall be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to his/her health and/or safety as determined under construction safety and health standards promulgated by the Secretary of Labor by regulation;
 - (2) Protect the lives, health, and safety of other persons;
 - (3) Prevent damage to property, materials, supplies, and equipment; and,
 - (4) Avoid work interruptions.
- (b) For these purposes, the Contractor shall:
 - (1) Comply with regulations and standards issued by the Secretary of Labor at 29 CFR Part 1926. Failure to comply may result in imposition of sanctions pursuant to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (Public Law 91-54, 83 Stat. 96), 40 U.S.C. 3701 et sea.: and
 - (2) Include the terms of this clause in every subcontract so that such terms will be binding on each subcontractor.
- (c) The Contractor shall maintain an accurate record of exposure data on all accidents incident to work performed under this contract resulting in death, traumatic injury, occupational disease, or damage to property, materials, supplies, or equipment, and shall report this data in the manner prescribed by 29 CFR Part 1904
- (d) The Contracting Officer shall notify the Contractor of any noncompliance with these requirements and of the corrective action required. This notice, when delivered to the Contractor or the Contractor's representative at the site of the work, shall be deemed sufficient notice of the noncompliance and corrective action required. After receiving the notice, the Contractor shall immediately take corrective action. If the Contractor fails or refuses to take corrective action promptly, the Contracting Officer may issue an order stopping all or part of the work until satisfactory corrective action has been taken. The Contractor shall not base any claim or request for equitable adjustment for additional time or money on any stop order issued under these circumstances.
- (e) The Contractor shall be responsible for its subcontractors' compliance with the provisions of this clause. The Contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontract as the PHA, the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, or the Secretary of Labor shall direct as a means of enforcing such provisions.

14. Temporary Heating

The Contractor shall provide and pay for temporary heating, covering, and enclosures necessary to properly protect all work and materials against damage by dampness and cold, to dry out the work, and to facilitate the completion of the work. Any permanent heating equipment used shall be turned over to the PHA in the condition and at the time required by the specifications.

15. Availability and Use of Utility Services

- (a) The PHA shall make all reasonably required amounts of utilities available to the Contractor from existing outlets and supplies, as specified in the contract. Unless otherwise provided in the contract, the amount of each utility service consumed shall be charged to or paid for by the Contractor at prevailing rates charged to the PHA or, where the utility is produced by the PHA, at reasonable rates determined by the Contracting Officer. The Contractor shall carefully conserve any utilities furnished without charge.
- (b) The Contractor, at its expense and in a manner satisfactory to the Contracting Officer, shall install and maintain all necessary temporary connections and distribution lines, and all meters required to measure the amount of each utility used for the purpose of determining charges. Before final acceptance of the work by the PHA, the Contractor shall remove all the temporary connections, distribution lines, meters, and associated paraphernalia.
- Protection of Existing Vegetation, Structures, Equipment, Utilities, and Improvements
- (a) The Contractor shall preserve and protect all structures, equipment, and vegetation (such as trees, shrubs, and grass) on or adjacent to the work site, which are not to be removed under this contract, and which do not unreasonably interfere with the work required under this contract.
- (b) The Contractor shall only remove trees when specifically authorized to do so, and shall avoid damaging vegetation that will remain in place. If any limbs or branches of trees are broken during performance of this contract, or by the careless operation of equipment, or by workmen, the Contractor shall trim those limbs or branches with a clean cut and paint the cut with a tree-pruning compound as directed by the Contracting Officer.
- (c) The Contractor shall protect from damage all existing improvements and utilities (1) at or near the work site and (2) on adjacent property of a third party, the locations of which are made known to or should be known by the Contractor. Prior to disturbing the ground at the construction site, the Contractor shall ensure that all underground utility lines are clearly marked.
- (d) The Contractor shall shore up, brace, underpin, secure, and protect as necessary all foundations and other parts of existing structures adjacent to, adjoining, and in the vicinity of the site, which may be affected by the excavations or other operations connected with the construction of the project.
- (e) Any equipment temporarily removed as a result of work under this contract shall be protected, cleaned, and replaced in the same condition as at the time of award of this contract.

- (f) New work which connects to existing work shall correspond in all respects with that to which it connects and/or be similar to existing work unless otherwise required by the specifications.
- (g) No structural members shall be altered or in any way weakened without the written authorization of the Contracting Officer, unless such work is clearly specified in the plans or specifications.
- (h) If the removal of the existing work exposes discolored or unfinished surfaces, or work out of alignment, such surfaces shall be refinished, or the material replaced as necessary to make the continuous work uniform and harmonious. This, however, shall not be construed to require the refinishing or reconstruction of dissimilar finishes previously exposed, or finished surfaces in good condition, but in different planes or on different levels when brought together by the removal of intervening work, unless such refinishing or reconstruction is specified in the plans or specifications.
- (i) The Contractor shall give all required notices to any adjoining or adjacent property owner or other party before the commencement of any work.
- (j) The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the PHA from any damages on account of settlement or the loss of lateral support of adjoining property, any damages from changes in topography affecting drainage, and from all loss or expense and all damages for which the PHA may become liable in consequence of such injury or damage to adjoining and adjacent structures and their premises.
- (k) The Contractor shall repair any damage to vegetation, structures, equipment, utilities, or improvements, including those that are the property of a third party, resulting from failure to comply with the requirements of this contract or failure to exercise reasonable care in performing the work. If the Contractor fails or refuses to repair the damage promptly, the Contracting Officer may have the necessary work performed and charge the cost to the Contractor.

17. Temporary Buildings and Transportation of Materials

- (a) Temporary buildings (e.g., storage sheds, shops, offices, sanitary facilities) and utilities may be erected by the Contractor only with the approval of the Contracting Officer and shall be built with labor and materials furnished by the Contractor without expense to the PHA. The temporary buildings and utilities shall remain the property of the Contractor and shall be removed by the Contractor at its expense upon completion of the work. With the written consent of the Contracting Officer, the buildings and utilities may be abandoned and need not be removed.
- (b) The Contractor shall, as directed by the Contracting Officer, use only established roadways, or use temporary roadways constructed by the Contractor when and as authorized by the Contracting Officer. When materials are transported in prosecuting the work, vehicles shall not be loaded beyond the loading capacity recommended by the manufacturer of the vehicle or prescribed by any federal, state, or local law or regulation. When it is necessary to cross curbs or sidewalks, the Contractor shall protect them from damage. The Contractor shall repair or pay for the repair of any damaged curbs, sidewalks, or roads.

18. Clean Air and Water

The contactor shall comply with the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 USC 7401 et seq., the Federal Water Pollution Control Water Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq., and standards issued pursuant thereto in the facilities in which this contract is to be performed.

19. Energy Efficiency

The Contractor shall comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (Pub.L. 94-163) for the State in which the work under the contract is performed.

20. Inspection and Acceptance of Construction

- (a) Definitions. As used in this clause -
 - (1) "Acceptance" means the act of an authorized representative of the PHA by which the PHA approves and assumes ownership of the work performed under this contract. Acceptance may be partial or complete.
 - (2) "Inspection" means examining and testing the work performed under the contract (including, when appropriate, raw materials, equipment, components, and intermediate assemblies) to determine whether it conforms to contract requirements.
 - (3) "Testing" means that element of inspection that determines the properties or elements, including functional operation of materials, equipment, or their components, by the application of established scientific principles and procedures.
- (b) The Contractor shall maintain an adequate inspection system and perform such inspections as will ensure that the work performed under the contract conforms to contract requirements. All work is subject to PHA inspection and test at all places and at all reasonable times before acceptance to ensure strict compliance with the terms of the contract.
- (c) PHA inspections and tests are for the sole benefit of the PHA and do not: (1) relieve the Contractor of responsibility for providing adequate quality control measures; (2) relieve the Contractor of responsibility for loss or damage of the material before acceptance; (3) constitute or imply acceptance; or, (4) affect the continuing rights of the PHA after acceptance of the completed work under paragraph (j) below.
- (d) The presence or absence of the PHA inspector does not relieve the Contractor from any contract requirement, nor is the inspector authorized to change any term or condition of the specifications without the Contracting Officer's written authorization. All instructions and approvals with respect to the work shall be given to the Contractor by the Contracting Officer.
- (e) The Contractor shall promptly furnish, without additional charge, all facilities, labor, and material reasonably needed for performing such safe and convenient inspections and tests as may be required by the Contracting Officer. The PHA may charge to the Contractor any additional cost of inspection or test when work is not ready at the time specified by the Contractor for inspection or test, or when prior rejection makes reinspection or retest necessary. The PHA shall perform all inspections and tests in a manner that will not unnecessarily delay the work. Special, full size, and performance tests shall be performed as described in the contract.

- (f) The PHA may conduct routine inspections of the construction site on a daily basis.
- (g) The Contractor shall, without charge, replace or correct work found by the PHA not to conform to contract requirements, unless the PHA decides that it is in its interest to accept the work with an appropriate adjustment in contract price. The Contractor shall promptly segregate and remove rejected material from the premises.
- (h) If the Contractor does not promptly replace or correct rejected work, the PHA may (1) by contract or otherwise, replace or correct the work and charge the cost to the Contractor, or (2) terminate for default the Contractor's right to proceed.
- (i) If any work requiring inspection is covered up without approval of the PHA, it must, if requested by the Contracting Officer, be uncovered at the expense of the Contractor. If at any time before final acceptance of the entire work, the PHA considers it necessary or advisable, to examine work already completed by removing or tearing it out, the Contractor, shall on request, promptly furnish all necessary facilities, labor, and material. If such work is found to be defective or nonconforming in any material respect due to the fault of the Contractor or its subcontractors, the Contractor shall defray all the expenses of the examination and of satisfactory reconstruction. If, however, such work is found to meet the requirements of the contract, the Contracting Officer shall make an equitable adjustment to cover the cost of the examination and reconstruction, including, if completion of the work was thereby delayed, an extension of time.
- (j) The Contractor shall notify the Contracting Officer, in writing, as to the date when in its opinion all or a designated portion of the work will be substantially completed and ready for inspection. If the Architect determines that the state of preparedness is as represented, the PHA will promptly arrange for the inspection. Unless otherwise specified in the contract, the PHA shall accept, as soon as practicable after completion and inspection, all work required by the contract or that portion of the work the Contracting Officer determines and designates can be accepted separately. Acceptance shall be final and conclusive except for latent defects, fraud, gross mistakes amounting to fraud, or the PHA's right under any warranty or guarantee.

21. Use and Possession Prior to Completion

- (a) The PHA shall have the right to take possession of or use any completed or partially completed part of the work. Before taking possession of or using any work, the Contracting Officer shall furnish the Contractor a list of items of work remaining to be performed or corrected on those portions of the work that the PHA intends to take possession of or use. However, failure of the Contracting Officer to list any item of work shall not relieve the Contractor of responsibility for complying with the terms of the contract. The PHA's possession or use shall not be deemed an acceptance of any work under the contract.
- (b) While the PHA has such possession or use, the Contractor shall be relieved of the responsibility for (1) the loss of or damage to the work resulting from the PHA's possession or use, notwithstanding the terms of the clause entitled Permits and Codes herein; (2) all maintenance costs on the areas occupied; and, (3) furnishing heat, light, power, and water used in the areas

occupied without proper remuneration therefore. If prior possession or use by the PHA delays the progress of the work or causes additional expense to the Contractor, an equitable adjustment shall be made in the contract price or the time of completion, and the contract shall be modified in writing accordingly.

22. Warranty of Title

The Contractor warrants good title to all materials, supplies, and equipment incorporated in the work and agrees to deliver the premises together with all improvements thereon free from any claims, liens or charges, and agrees further that neither it nor any other person, firm or corporation shall have any right to a lien upon the premises or anything appurtenant thereto.

23. Warranty of Construction

- (a) In addition to any other warranties in this contract, the Contractor warrants, except as provided in paragraph (j) of this clause, that work performed under this contract conforms to the contract requirements and is free of any defect in equipment, material, or workmanship performed by the Contractor or any subcontractor or supplier at any tier. This warranty shall continue for a period of 1 yr (one year unless otherwise indicated) from the date of final acceptance of the work. If the PHA takes possession of any part of the work before final acceptance, this warranty shall continue for a period of (one year unless otherwise indicated) from the date that the PHA takes possession.
- (b) The Contractor shall remedy, at the Contractor's expense, any failure to conform, or any defect. In addition, the Contractor shall remedy, at the Contractor's expense, any damage to PHA-owned or controlled real or personal property when the damage is the result of—
 - The Contractor's failure to conform to contract requirements; or
 - (2) Any defects of equipment, material, workmanship or design furnished by the Contractor.
- (c) The Contractor shall restore any work damaged in fulfilling the terms and conditions of this clause. The Contractor's warranty with respect to work repaired or replaced will run for (one year unless otherwise indicated) from the date of repair or replacement.
- (d) The Contracting Officer shall notify the Contractor, in writing, within a reasonable time after the discovery of any failure, defect or damage.
- (e) If the Contractor fails to remedy any failure, defect, or damage within a reasonable time after receipt of notice, the PHA shall have the right to replace, repair or otherwise remedy the failure, defect, or damage at the Contractor's expense.
- (f) With respect to all warranties, express or implied, from subcontractors, manufacturers, or suppliers for work performed and materials furnished under this contract, the Contractor shall:
 - Obtain all warranties that would be given in normal commercial practice;
 - (2) Require all warranties to be executed in writing, for the benefit of the PHA; and,
 - (3) Enforce all warranties for the benefit of the PHA.
- (g) In the event the Contractor's warranty under paragraph (a) of this clause has expired, the PHA may bring suit at its own expense to enforce a subcontractor's, manufacturer's or supplier's warranty.

- (h) Unless a defect is caused by the negligence of the Contractor or subcontractor or supplier at any tier, the Contractor shall not be liable for the repair of any defect of material or design furnished by the PHA nor for the repair of any damage that results from any defect in PHA furnished material or design.
- (i) Notwithstanding any provisions herein to the contrary, the establishment of the time periods in paragraphs (a) and (c) above relate only to the specific obligation of the Contractor to correct the work, and have no relationship to the time within which its obligation to comply with the contract may be sought to be enforced, nor to the time within which proceedings may be commenced to establish the Contractor's liability with respect to its obligation other than specifically to correct the work.
- (j) This warranty shall not limit the PHA's rights under the Inspection and Acceptance of Construction clause of this contract with respect to latent defects, gross mistakes or fraud

24. Prohibition Against Liens

The Contractor is prohibited from placing a lien on the PHA's property. This prohibition shall apply to all subcontractors at any tier and all materials suppliers.

Administrative Requirements

25. Contract Period

The contrctor shall complete all work required under this contract within 120 calendar days of the effective date of the contract, or within the time schedule established in the notice to proceed issued by the Contracting Officer.

26. Order of Provisions

In the event of a conflict between these General Conditions and the Specifications, the General Conditions shall prevail. In the event of a conflict between the contract and any applicable state or local law or regulation, the state or local law or regulation shall prevail; provided that such state or local law or regulation does not conflict with, or is less restrictive than applicable federal law, regulation, or Executive Order. In the event of such a conflict, applicable federal law, regulation, and Executive Order shall prevail.

27. Payments

- (a) The PHA shall pay the Contractor the price as provided in this contract.
- (b) The PHA shall make progress payments approximately every 30 days as the work proceeds, on estimates of work accomplished which meets the standards of quality established under the contract, as approved by the Contracting Officer. The PHA may, subject to written determination and approval of the Contracting Officer, make more frequent payments to contractors which are qualified small businesses.
- (c) Before the first progress payment under this contract, the Contractor shall furnish, in such detail as requested by the Contracting Officer, a breakdown of the total contract price showing the amount included therein for each principal category of the work, which shall substantiate the payment amount requested in order to provide a

- basis for determining progress payments. The breakdown shall be approved by the Contracting Officer and must be acceptable to HUD. If the contract covers more than one project, the Contractor shall furnish a separate breakdown for each. The values and quantities employed in making up this breakdown are for determining the amount of progress payments and shall not be construed as a basis for additions to or deductions from the contract price. The Contractor shall prorate its overhead and profit over the construction period of the contract.
- (d) The Contractor shall submit, on forms provided by the PHA, periodic estimates showing the value of the work performed during each period based upon the approved
 - submitted not later than ______ days in advance of the date set for payment and are subject to correction and revision as required. The estimates must be approved by the Contracting Officer with the concurrence of the Architect prior to payment. If the contract covers more than one project, the Contractor shall furnish a separate progress payment estimate for each.
- (e) Along with each request for progress payments and the required estimates, the Contractor shall furnish the following certification, or payment shall not be made: I hereby certify, to the best of my knowledge and belief, that:
 - The amounts requested are only for performance in accordance with the specifications, terms, and conditions of the contract;
 - (2) Payments to subcontractors and suppliers have been made from previous payments received under the contract, and timely payments will be made from the proceeds of the payment covered by this certification, in accordance with subcontract agreements; and,
 - (3) This request for progress payments does not include any amounts which the prime contractor intends to withhold or retain from a subcontractor or supplier in accordance with the terms and conditions of the subcontract.

Name:			
Title:			
 Date:			

- (f) Except as otherwise provided in State law, the PHA shall retain ten (10) percent of the amount of progress payments until completion and acceptance of all work under the contract; except, that if upon completion of 50 percent of the work, the Contracting Officer, after consulting with the Architect, determines that the Contractor's performance and progress are satisfactory, the PHA may make the remaining payments in full for the work subsequently completed. If the Contracting Officer subsequently determines that the Contractor's performance and progress are unsatisfactory, the PHA shall reinstate the ten (10) percent (or other percentage as provided in State law) retainage until such time as the Contracting Officer determines that performance and progress are satisfactory.
- (g) The Contracting Officer may authorize material delivered on the site and preparatory work done to be taken into consideration when computing progress payments.

- Material delivered to the Contractor at locations other than the site may also be taken into consideration if the Contractor furnishes satisfactory evidence that (1) it has acquired title to such material; (2) the material is properly stored in a bonded warehouse, storage yard, or similar suitable place as may be approved by the Contracting Officer; (3) the material is insured to cover its full value; and (4) the material will be used to perform this contract. Before any progress payment which includes delivered material is made, the Contractor shall furnish such documentation as the Contracting Officer may require to assure the protection of the PHA's interest in such materials. The Contractor shall remain responsible for such stored material notwithstanding the transfer of title to the PHA.
- (h) All material and work covered by progress payments made shall, at the time of payment become the sole property of the PHA, but this shall not be construed as (1) relieving the Contractor from the sole responsibility for all material and work upon which payments have been made or the restoration of any damaged work; or, (2) waiving the right of the PHA to require the fulfillment of all of the terms of the contract. In the event the work of the Contractor has been damaged by other contractors or persons other than employees of the PHA in the course of their employment, the Contractor shall restore such damaged work without cost to the PHA and to seek redress for its damage only from those who directly caused it.
- (i) The PHA shall make the final payment due the Contractor under this contract after (1) completion and final acceptance of all work; and (2) presentation of release of all claims against the PHA arising by virtue of this contract, other than claims, in stated amounts, that the Contractor has specifically excepted from the operation of the release. Each such exception shall embrace no more than one claim, the basis and scope of which shall be clearly defined. The amounts for such excepted claims shall not be included in the request for final payment. A release may also be required of the assignee if the Contractor's claim to amounts payable under this contract has been assigned.
- (j) Prior to making any payment, the Contracting Officer may require the Contractor to furnish receipts or other evidence of payment from all persons performing work and supplying material to the Contractor, if the Contracting Officer determines such evidence is necessary to substantiate claimed costs.
- (k) The PHA shall not; (1) determine or adjust any claims for payment or disputes arising there under between the Contractor and its subcontractors or material suppliers; or, (2) withhold any moneys for the protection of the subcontractors or material suppliers. The failure or refusal of the PHA to withhold moneys from the Contractor shall in nowise impair the obligations of any surety or sureties under any bonds furnished under this contract.

28. Contract Modifications

- (a) Only the Contracting Officer has authority to modify any term or condition of this contract. Any contract modification shall be authorized in writing.
- (b) The Contracting Officer may modify the contract unilaterally (1) pursuant to a specific authorization stated in a contract clause (e.g., Changes); or (2) for administrative matters which do not change the rights or

- responsibilities of the parties (e.g., change in the PHA address). All other contract modifications shall be in the form of supplemental agreements signed by the Contractor and the Contracting Officer.
- (c) When a proposed modification requires the approval of HUD prior to its issuance (e.g., a change order that exceeds the PHA's approved threshold), such modification shall not be effective until the required approval is received by the PHA.

29. Changes

- (a) The Contracting Officer may, at any time, without notice to the sureties, by written order designated or indicated to be a change order, make changes in the work within the general scope of the contract including changes:

 (1) In the specifications (including drawings and designs);
 (2) In the method or manner of performance of the work;
 - (3) PHA-furnished facilities, equipment, materials, services, or site; or,
 - (4) Directing the acceleration in the performance of the work
- (b) Any other written order or oral order (which, as used in this paragraph (b), includes direction, instruction, interpretation, or determination) from the Contracting Officer that causes a change shall be treated as a change order under this clause; provided, that the Contractor gives the Contracting Officer written notice stating (1) the date, circumstances and source of the order and (2) that the Contractor regards the order as a change order.
- (c) Except as provided in this clause, no order, statement or conduct of the Contracting Officer shall be treated as a change under this clause or entitle the Contractor to an equitable adjustment.
- (d) If any change under this clause causes an increase or decrease in the Contractor's cost of, or the time required for the performance of any part of the work under this contract, whether or not changed by any such order, the Contracting Officer shall make an equitable adjustment and modify the contract in writing. However, except for a adjustment based on defective specifications, no proposal for any change under paragraph (b) above shall be allowed for any costs incurred more than 20 days (5 days for oral orders) before the Contractor gives written notice as required. In the case of defective specifications for which the PHA is responsible, the equitable adjustment shall include any increased cost reasonably incurred by the Contractor in attempting to comply with the defective specifications.
- (e) The Contractor must assert its right to an adjustment under this clause within 30 days after (1) receipt of a written change order under paragraph (a) of this clause, or (2) the furnishing of a written notice under paragraph (b) of this clause, by submitting a written statement describing the general nature and the amount of the proposal. If the facts justify it, the Contracting Officer may extend the period for submission. The proposal may be included in the notice required under paragraph (b) above. No proposal by the Contractor for an equitable adjustment shall be allowed if asserted after final payment under this contract.
- (f) The Contractor's written proposal for equitable adjustment shall be submitted in the form of a lump sum proposal supported with an itemized breakdown of all increases and decreases in the contract in at least the following details:

- (1) Direct Costs. Materials (list individual items, the quantity and unit cost of each, and the aggregate cost); Transportation and delivery costs associated with materials; Labor breakdowns by hours or unit costs (identified with specific work to be performed); Construction equipment exclusively necessary for the change; Costs of preparation and/ or revision to shop drawings resulting from the change; Worker's Compensation and Public Liability Insurance; Employment taxes under FICA and FUTA; and, Bond Costs when size of change warrants revision.
- (2)Indirect Costs. Indirect costs may include overhead, general and administrative expenses, and fringe benefits not normally treated as direct costs.
- (3) Profit. The amount of profit shall be negotiated and may vary according to the nature, extent, and complexity of the work required by the change. The allowability of the direct and indirect costs shall be determined in accordance with the Contract Cost Principles and Procedures for Commercial Firms in Part 31 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation (48 CFR 1-31), as implemented by HUD Handbook 2210.18, in effect on the date of this contract. The Contractor shall not be allowed a profit on the profit received by any subcontractor. Equitable adjustments for deleted work shall include a credit for profit and may include a credit for indirect costs. On proposals covering both increases and decreases in the amount of the contract, the application of indirect costs and profit shall be on the net-change in direct costs for the Contractor or subcontractor performing the work.
- (g) The Contractor shall include in the proposal its request for time extension (if any), and shall include sufficient information and dates to demonstrate whether and to what extent the change will delay the completion of the contract in its entirety.
- (h) The Contracting Officer shall act on proposals within 30 days after their receipt, or notify the Contractor of the date when such action will be taken.
- (i) Failure to reach an agreement on any proposal shall be a dispute under the clause entitled Disputes herein. Nothing in this clause, however, shall excuse the Contractor from proceeding with the contract as changed.
- (j) Except in an emergency endangering life or property, no change shall be made by the Contractor without a prior order from the Contracting Officer.

30. Suspension of Work

- (a) The Contracting Officer may order the Contractor in writing to suspend, delay, or interrupt all or any part of the work of this contract for the period of time that the Contracting Officer determines appropriate for the convenience of the PHA.
- (b) If the performance of all or any part of the work is, for an unreasonable period of time, suspended, delayed, or interrupted (1) by an act of the Contracting Officer in the administration of this contract, or (2) by the Contracting Officer's failure to act within the time specified (or within a reasonable time if not specified) in this contract an adjustment shall be made for any increase in the cost of performance of the contract (excluding profit) necessarily caused by such unreasonable suspension, delay, or interruption and the contract modified in writing accordingly. However, no adjustment shall be made under this clause for any suspension, delay, or interruption to the extent that performance would have

- been so suspended, delayed, or interrupted by any other cause, including the fault or negligence of the Contractor or for which any equitable adjustment is provided for or excluded under any other provision of this contract.
- (c) A claim under this clause shall not be allowed (1) for any costs incurred more than 20 days before the Contractor shall have notified the Contracting Officer in writing of the act or failure to act involved (but this requirement shall not apply as to a claim resulting from a suspension order); and, (2) unless the claim, in an amount stated, is asserted in writing as soon as practicable after the termination of the suspension, delay, or interruption, but not later than the date of final payment under the contract.

31. Disputes

- (a) "Claim," as used in this clause, means a written demand or written assertion by one of the contracting parties seeking, as a matter of right, the payment of money in a sum certain, the adjustment or interpretation of contract terms, or other relief arising under or relating to the contract. A claim arising under the contract, unlike a claim relating to the contract, is a claim that can be resolved under a contract clause that provides for the relief sought by the claimant. A voucher, invoice, or other routine request for payment that is not in dispute when submitted is not a claim. The submission may be converted to a claim by complying with the requirements of this clause, if it is disputed either as to liability or amount or is not acted upon in a reasonable time.
- (b) Except for disputes arising under the clauses entitled Labor Standards - Davis Bacon and Related Acts, herein, all disputes arising under or relating to this contract, including any claims for damages for the alleged breach thereof which are not disposed of by agreement, shall be resolved under this clause.
- (c) All claims by the Contractor shall be made in writing and submitted to the Contracting Officer for a written decision. A claim by the PHA against the Contractor shall be subject to a written decision by the Contracting Officer.
- (d) The Contracting Officer shall, within 60 (unless otherwise indicated) days after receipt of the request, decide the claim or notify the Contractor of the date by which the decision will be made.
- (e) The Contracting Officer's decision shall be final unless the Contractor (1) appeals in writing to a higher level in the PHA in accordance with the PHA's policy and procedures, (2) refers the appeal to an independent mediator or arbitrator, or (3) files suit in a court of competent jurisdiction. Such appeal must be made within (30 unless otherwise indicated) days after receipt of the Contracting Officer's decision.
- (f) The Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of this contract, pending final resolution of any request for relief, claim, appeal, or action arising under or relating to the contract, and comply with any decision of the Contracting Officer.

32. Default

(a) If the Contractor refuses or fails to prosecute the work, or any separable part thereof, with the diligence that will insure its completion within the time specified in this contract, or any extension thereof, or fails to complete said work within this time, the Contracting Officer may, by written notice to the Contractor, terminate the right to proceed with the work (or separable part of the work) that has been delayed. In this event, the PHA may take over the work and complete it, by contract or otherwise, and may take possession of and use any materials, equipment, and plant on the work site necessary for completing the work. The Contractor and its sureties shall be liable for any damage to the PHA resulting from the Contractor's refusal or failure to complete the work within the specified time, whether or not the Contractor's right to proceed with the work is terminated. This liability includes any increased costs incurred by the PHA in completing the work.

- (b) The Contractor's right to proceed shall not be terminated or the Contractor charged with damages under this clause if—
 - (1) The delay in completing the work arises from unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor. Examples of such causes include (i) acts of God, or of the public enemy, (ii) acts of the PHA or other governmental entity in either its sovereign or contractual capacity, (iii) acts of another contractor in the performance of a contract with the PHA, (iv) fires, (v) floods, (vi) epidemics, (vii) quarantine restrictions, (viii) strikes, (ix) freight embargoes, (x) unusually severe weather, or (xi) delays of subcontractors or suppliers at any tier arising from unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of both the Contractor and the subcontractors or suppliers; and
 - (2) The Contractor, within days (10 days unless otherwise indicated) from the beginning of such delay (unless extended by the Contracting Officer) notifies the Contracting Officer in writing of the causes of delay. The Contracting Officer shall ascertain the facts and the extent of the delay. If, in the judgment of the Contracting Officer, the findings of fact warrant such action, time for completing the work shall be extended by written modification to the contract. The findings of the Contracting Officer shall be reduced to a written decision which shall be subject to the provisions of the Disputes clause of this contract.
- (c) If, after termination of the Contractor's right to proceed, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, or that the delay was excusable, the rights and obligations of the parties will be the same as if the termination had been for convenience of the PHA.

33. Liquidated Damages

- (a) If the Contractor fails to complete the work within the time specified in the contract, or any extension, as specified in the clause entitled Default of this contract, the Contractor shall pay to the PHA as liquidated damages, the sum of \$\frac{250.00}{Contracting Officer insert amount] for each day of delay. If different completion dates are specified in the contract for separate parts or stages of the work, the amount of liquidated damages shall be assessed on those parts or stages which are delayed. To the extent that the Contractor's delay or nonperformance is excused under another clause in this contract, liquidated damages shall not be due the PHA. The Contractor remains liable for damages caused other than by delay.
- (b) If the PHA terminates the Contractor's right to proceed, the resulting damage will consist of liquidated damages until such reasonable time as may be required for final

- completion of the work together with any increased costs occasioned the PHA in completing the work.
- (c) If the PHA does not terminate the Contractor's right to proceed, the resulting damage will consist of liquidated damages until the work is completed or accepted.

34. Termination for Convenience

- (a) The Contracting Officer may terminate this contract in whole, or in part, whenever the Contracting Officer determines that such termination is in the best interest of the PHA. Any such termination shall be effected by delivery to the Contractor of a Notice of Termination specifying the extent to which the performance of the work under the contract is terminated, and the date upon which such termination becomes effective.
- (b) If the performance of the work is terminated, either in whole or in part, the PHA shall be liable to the Contractor for reasonable and proper costs resulting from such termination upon the receipt by the PHA of a properly presented claim setting out in detail: (1) the total cost of the work performed to date of termination less the total amount of contract payments made to the Contractor; (2) the cost (including reasonable profit) of settling and paying claims under subcontracts and material orders for work performed and materials and supplies delivered to the site, payment for which has not been made by the PHA to the Contractor or by the Contractor to the subcontractor or supplier; (3) the cost of preserving and protecting the work already performed until the PHA or assignee takes possession thereof or assumes responsibility therefore; (4) the actual or estimated cost of legal and accounting services reasonably necessary to prepare and present the termination claim to the PHA; and (5) an amount constituting a reasonable profit on the value of the work performed by the Contractor.
- (c) The Contracting Officer will act on the Contractor's claim within days (60 days unless otherwise indicated) of receipt of the Contractor's claim.
- (d) Any disputes with regard to this clause are expressly made subject to the provisions of the Disputes clause of this contract.

35. Assignment of Contract

The Contractor shall not assign or transfer any interest in this contract; except that claims for monies due or to become due from the PHA under the contract may be assigned to a bank, trust company, or other financial institution. Such assignments of claims shall only be made with the written concurrence of the Contracting Officer. If the Contractor is a partnership, this contract shall inure to the benefit of the surviving or remaining member(s) of such partnership as approved by the Contracting Officer.

36. Insurance

- (a) Before commencing work, the Contractor and each subcontractor shall furnish the PHA with certificates of insurance showing the following insurance is in force and will insure all operations under the Contract:
 - (1) Workers' Compensation, in accordance with state or Territorial Workers' Compensation laws.
 - (2) Commercial General Liability with a combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage of not less than \$\frac{1,000,000}{} [Contracting Officer insert amount]

- per occurrence to protect the Contractor and each subcontractor against claims for bodily injury or death and damage to the property of others. This shall cover the use of all equipment, hoists, and vehicles on the site(s) not covered by Automobile Liability under (3) below. If the Contractor has a "claims made" policy, then the following additional requirements apply: the policy must provide a "retroactive date" which must be on or before the execution date of the Contract; and the extended reporting period may not be less than five years following the completion date of the Contract.
- (b) Before commencing work, the Contractor shall furnish the PHA with a certificate of insurance evidencing that Builder's Risk (fire and extended coverage) Insurance on all work in place and/or materials stored at the building site(s), including foundations and building equipment, is in force. The Builder's Risk Insurance shall be for the benefit of the Contractor and the PHA as their interests may appear and each shall be named in the policy or policies as an insured. The Contractor in installing equipment supplied by the PHA shall carry insurance on such equipment from the time the Contractor takes possession thereof until the Contract work is accepted by the PHA. The Builder's Risk Insurance need not be carried on excavations, piers, footings, or foundations until such time as work on the superstructure is started. It need not be carried on landscape work. Policies shall furnish coverage at all times for the full cash value of all completed construction, as well as materials in place and/or stored at the site(s), whether or not partial payment has been made by the PHA. The Contractor may terminate this insurance on buildings as of the date taken over for occupancy by the PHA. The Contractor is not required to carry Builder's Risk Insurance for modernization work which does not involve structural alterations or additions and where the PHA's existing fire and extended coverage policy can be endorsed to include such work.
- (c) All insurance shall be carried with companies which are financially responsible and admitted to do business in the State in which the project is located. If any such insurance is due to expire during the construction period, the Contractor (including subcontractors, as applicable) shall not permit the coverage to lapse and shall furnish evidence of coverage to the Contracting Officer. All certificates of insurance, as evidence of coverage, shall provide that no coverage may be canceled or nonrenewed by the insurance company until at least 30 days prior written notice has been given to the Contracting Officer.

37. Subcontracts

- (a) Definitions. As used in this contract -
 - (1) "Subcontract" means any contract, purchase order, or other purchase agreement, including modifications and change orders to the foregoing, entered into by a subcontractor to furnish supplies, materials, equipment, and services for the performance of the prime contract or a subcontract.

- (2) "Subcontractor" means any supplier, vendor, or firm that furnishes supplies, materials, equipment, or services to or for the Contractor or another subcontractor.
- (b) The Contractor shall not enter into any subcontract with any subcontractor who has been temporarily denied participation in a HUD program or who has been suspended or debarred from participating in contracting programs by any agency of the United States Government or of the state in which the work under this contract is to be performed.
- (c) The Contractor shall be as fully responsible for the acts or omissions of its subcontractors, and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by them as for the acts or omissions of persons directly employed by the Contractor.
- (d) The Contractor shall insert appropriate clauses in all subcontracts to bind subcontractors to the terms and conditions of this contract insofar as they are applicable to the work of subcontractors.
- (e) Nothing contained in this contract shall create any contractual relationship between any subcontractor and the PHA or between the subcontractor and HUD.

38. Subcontracting with Small and Minority Firms, Women's Business Enterprise, and Labor Surplus Area Firms

The Contractor shall take the following steps to ensure that, whenever possible, subcontracts are awarded to small business firms, minority firms, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms:Á

- (a) Placing qualified small and minority businesses andÁ women's business enterprises on solicitation lists;Á
- (b) Ensuring that small and minority businesses andÁ women's business enterprises are solicited wheneverÁ they are potential sources;Á
- (c) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible,Á into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximumÁ participation by small and minority businesses andÁ women's business enterprises;Á
- (d) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirementsÁ of the contract permit, which encourage participation byÁ small and minority businesses and women's businessÁ enterprises; andÁ
- (e) Using the services and assistance of the U.S. SmallÁ Business Administration, the Minority BusinessÁ Development Agency of the U.S. Department ofÁ Commerce, and State and local governmental smallÁ business agencies.Á

39. Equal Employment Opportunity

During the performance of this contract, the ContractorĐÁ

Ù^|\^{Á}grees as follows:Á

- (a) The Contractor D/\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightarrow\|\rightar
- (b) The Contractor®\(\mathbb{P}\)|\(\circ\) shall take affirmative action to Á

 \(\text{All the contractor }\mathbb{P}\)\(\circ\)\(\circ\) shall take affirmative action to Á

 \(\text{All the contractor }\mathbb{P}\)\(\circ\)\(\c

demotion, (4) transfer, (5) recruitment orÁ
recruitment advertising, (6) layoff or termination, (7) ratesÁ
of pay or other forms of compensation, and (8) selectionÁ

for training including apprenticeship Á

form HUD-5370 (1/2014)

- (c) The Contractor D/||^| agrees to post in conspicuous places available Áo employees and applicants for employment AMA notices Áo be provided by the Contracting Officer setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. Á
- (d) The Contractor®J^|\-\frac{1}{8}hall, in all solicitations orÁ advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor/Seller, state that all qualified applicants willÁ receive consideration for employment without regard toÁ race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.Á
- (e) The Contractor D/\|\rightarrow\|\frac{1}{8}\text{hall send, to each labor union or representative of workers with which it has a collective A bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, A the notice to be provided by the Contracting Officer A advising the labor union or workers' representative of the A Contractor's commitments under this clause, and post A copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to A employees and applicants for employment.
- (f) The Contractor (A) | \(^1\A\) shall comply with Executive Order 11246. (As amended, and the rules, regulations, and orders A of the (A) secretary of Labor. (A)
- (g) The Contractor®/\(\text{Pi}\)\(\text{\fixed}\)\(\text
- (h) In the event of a that the Contractor®/^|\frac{1}{A}s in non-compliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor/seller may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
- (i)The contractor/seller will include the provisions of paragraphs (a) through (h) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each sub[contractor/seller] or vendor. The [contractor/seller] will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as may be directed by the Secretary of Labor as a means of enforcing such provisions in cluding sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event the [contractor/seller] becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction, the [contractor/seller] may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.
- (j) Compliance with the requirements of this clause shall beÁ to the maximum extent consistent with, but not inÁ derogation of, compliance with section 7(b) of the IndianÁ Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act and theÁ Indian Preference clause of this contract.Á
- 40. Employment, Training, and Contracting Opportunities for Low-Income Persons, Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968.

- (a) The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u (section 3). The purpose of section 3 is to ensure that employment and other economic opportunities generated by HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects covered by section 3, shall, to the greatest extent feasible, be directed to low- and very low-income persons, particularly persons who are recipients of HUD assistance for housing.
- (b) The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR Part 135, which implement section 3. As evidenced by their execution of this contract, the parties to this contract certify that they are under no contractual or other impediment that would prevent them from complying with the Part 135 regulations.
- (c) The contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or representative of workers with which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other understanding, if any, a notice advising the labor organization or workers' representative of the contractor's commitments under this section 3 clause, and will post copies of the notice in conspicuous places at the work site where both employees and applicants for training and employment positions can see the notice. The notice shall describe the section 3 preference, shall set forth minimum number and job titles subject to hire, availability of apprenticeship and training positions, the qualifications for each; and the name and location of the person(s) taking applications for each of the positions; and the anticipated date the work shall begin.
- (d) The contractor agrees to include this section 3 clause in every subcontract subject to compliance with regulations in 24 CFR Part 135, and agrees to take appropriate action, as provided in an applicable provision of the subcontract or in this section 3 clause, upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR Part 135. The contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where the contractor has notice or knowledge that the subcontractor has been found in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR Part 135.
- (e) The contractor will certify that any vacant employment positions, including training positions, that are filled (1) after the contractor is selected but before the contract is executed, and (2) with persons other than those to whom the regulations of 24 CFR Part 135 require employment opportunities to be directed, were not filled to circumvent the contractor's obligations under 24 CFR Part 135.
- (f) Noncompliance with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR Part 135 may result in sanctions, termination of this contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD assisted contracts.
- (g) With respect to work performed in connection with section 3 covered Indian housing assistance, section 7(b) of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (25 U.S.C. 450e) also applies to the work to be performed under this contract. Section 7(b) requires that to the greatest extent feasible (i) preference and opportunities for training and employment shall be given to Indians, and (ii) preference in the award of contracts and subcontracts shall be given to Indian organizations and Indian-owned Economic Enterprises. Parties to this contract that are subject to the provisions of section 3 and section 7(b)agree to comply with section 3 to the maximum extent feasible, but not in derogation of compliance with section 7(b).

41. Interest of Members of Congress

No member of or delegate to the Congress of the United States of America shall be admitted to any share or part of this contract or to any benefit that may arise therefrom.

42. Interest of Members, Officers, or Employees and Former Members, Officers, or Employees

No member, officer, or employee of the PHA, no member of the governing body of the locality in which the project is situated, no member of the governing body of the locality in which the PHA was activated, and no other public official of such locality or localities who exercises any functions or responsibilities with respect to the project, shall, during his or her tenure, or for one year thereafter, have any interest, direct or indirect, in this contract or the proceeds thereof.

43. Limitations on Payments made to Influence Certain Federal Financial Transactions

- (a) The Contractor agrees to comply with Section 1352 of Title 31, United States Code which prohibits the use of Federal appropriated funds to pay any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with any of the following covered Federal actions: the awarding of any Federal contract; the making of any Federal grant; the making of any Federal loan; the entering into of any cooperative agreement; or the modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- (b) The Contractor further agrees to comply with the requirement of the Act to furnish a disclosure (OMB Standard Form LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities) if any funds other than Federal appropriated funds (including profit or fee received under a covered Federal transaction) have been paid, or will be paid, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

44. Royalties and Patents

The Contractor shall pay all royalties and license fees. It shall defend all suits or claims for infringement of any patent rights and shall save the PHA harmless from loss on account thereof; except that the PHA shall be responsible for all such loss when a particular design, process or the product of a particular manufacturer or manufacturers is specified and the Contractor has no reason to believe that the specified design, process, or product is an infringement. If, however, the Contractor has reason to believe that any design, process or product specified is an infringement of a patent, the Contractor shall promptly notify the Contracting Officer. Failure to give such notice shall make the Contractor responsible for resultant loss.

45. Examination and Retention of Contractor's Records

- (a) The PHA, HUD, or Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives shall, until 3 years after final payment under this contract, have access to and the right to examine any of the Contractor's directly pertinent books, documents, papers, or other records involving transactions related to this contract for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and transcriptions.
- (b) The Contractor agrees to include in first-tier subcontracts under this contract a clause substantially the same as paragraph (a) above. "Subcontract," as used in this clause, excludes purchase orders not exceeding \$10,000.
- (c) The periods of access and examination in paragraphs (a) and (b) above for records relating to (1) appeals under the Disputes clause of this contract, (2) litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this contract, or (3) costs and expenses of this contract to which the PHA, HUD, or Comptroller General or any of their duly authorized representatives has taken exception shall continue until disposition of such appeals, litigation, claims, or exceptions.

46. Labor Standards - Davis-Bacon and Related Acts

If the total amount of this contract exceeds \$2,000, the Federal labor standards set forth in the clause below shall apply to the development or construction work to be performed under the contract.

(a) Minimum Wages.

(1) All laborers and mechanics employed under this contract in the development or construction of the project(s) involved will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR Part 3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the Contractor and such laborers and mechanics. Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under Section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv): also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the regular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits in the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein; provided, that the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classification and wage rates conformed under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall

be posted at all times by the Contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers

- (2) (i) Any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. HUD shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefor only when all the following criteria have been met: (A) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and (B) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and (C) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.
 - (ii) If the Contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and HUD or its designee agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by HUD or its designee to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employee Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise HUD or its designee or will notify HUD or its designee within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
 - (iii) In the event the Contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and HUD or its designee do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), HUD or its designee shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of HUD or its designee, to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise HUD or its designee or will notify HUD or its designee within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
 - (iv) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to subparagraphs (a)(2)(ii) or (iii) of this clause shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in classification.
- (3) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the Contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof
- (4) If the Contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the Contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the

- amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program; provided, that the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the Contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the Contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.
- (b) Withholding of funds. HUD or its designee shall, upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld from the Contractor under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime Contractor, or any other Federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime Contractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the Contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working in the construction or development of the project, all or part of the wages required by the contract, HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the Contractor, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased. HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the Contractor, disburse such amounts withheld for and on account of the Contractor or subcontractor to the respective employees to whom they are due.
- (c) Payrolls and basic records.
 - (1) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the Contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working in the construction or development of the project. Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made, and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found. under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv), that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the Contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.

- (2) (i) The Contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to the Contracting Officer for transmission to HUD or its designee. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under subparagraph (c)(1) of this clause. This information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 (Federal Stock Number 029-005-00014-1) is available for this purpose and may be purchased from the Superintendent of Documents, U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C. 20402. The Contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1214-0149.)
 - (ii) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the Contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:
 - (A) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be maintained under paragraph (c) (1) of this clause and that such information is correct and complete;
 - (B) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in 29 CFR Part 3; and
 - (C) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.
 - (iii) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirements for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by subparagraph (c)(2)(ii) of this clause.
 - (iv) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the Contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under Section 1001 of Title 18 and Section 3729 of Title 31 of the United States Code.
- (3) The Contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under subparagraph (c)(1) available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of HUD or its designee, the Contracting Officer, or the Department of Labor and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the Contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the Contractor, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to

- make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.
- (d) (1) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship and Training, Employer and Labor Services (OATELS), or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by OATELS, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by OATELS or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the Contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated in this paragraph, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the Contractor's or subcontractor's registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event OATELS, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by OATELS, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the Contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable
 - (2) Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under

program is approved.

the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed in the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate in the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate in the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate in the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the Contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

- (3) Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees, and journeymen under this clause shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR Part 30.
- (e) Compliance with Copeland Act requirements. The Contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3, which are hereby incorporated by reference in this contract.
- (f) Contract termination; debarment. A breach of this contract clause may be grounds for termination of the contract and for debarment as a Contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.
- (g) Compliance with Davis-Bacon and related Act requirements. All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and related Acts contained in 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract.
- (h) Disputes concerning labor standards. Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this clause shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the Contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the PHA, HUD, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.
- (i) Certification of eligibility.
 - (1) By entering into this contract, the Contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the Contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded contracts by the United States Government by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).

- (2) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a United States Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- (3) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U. S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001.
- (j) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. As used in this paragraph, the terms "laborers" and "mechanics" include watchmen and guards.
 - (1) Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics, including watchmen and guards, shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which the individual is employed on such work to work in excess of 40 hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in such workweek.
 - (2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the provisions set forth in subparagraph (j)(1) of this clause, the Contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such Contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic (including watchmen and guards) employed in violation of the provisions set forth in subparagraph (j)(1) of this clause, in the sum of \$10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of 40 hours without payment of the overtime wages required by provisions set forth in subparagraph (j)(1) of this
 - (3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. HUD or its designee shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the Contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any Federal contract with the same prime Contractor, or any other Federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime Contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such Contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the provisions set forth in subparagraph (j)(2) of this clause.
- (k) Subcontracts. The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts all the provisions contained in this clause, and such other clauses as HUD or its designee may by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these provisions in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime Contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all these provisions.

47. Non-Federal Prevailing Wage Rates

- (a) Any prevailing wage rate (including basic hourly rate and any fringe benefits), determined under State or tribal law to be prevailing, with respect to any employee in any trade or position employed under the contract, is inapplicable to the contract and shall not be enforced against the Contractor or any subcontractor, with respect to employees engaged under the contract whenever such non-Federal prevailing wage rate exceeds:
 - (1) The applicable wage rate determined by the Secretary of Labor pursuant to the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141 et seq.) to be prevailing in the locality with respect to such trade;
- (b) An applicable apprentice wage rate based thereon specified in an apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) or a DOLrecognized State Apprenticeship Agency; or
- (c) An applicable trainee wage rate based thereon specified in a DOL-certified trainee program.
- 48. Procurement of Recovered Materials.
- (a) In accordance with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, the Contractor shall procure items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR Part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition. The Contractor shall procure items designated in the EPA guidelines that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable unless the Contractor determines that such items: (1) are not reasonably available in a reasonable period of time; (2) fail to meet reasonable performance standards, which shall be determined on the basis of the guidelines of the National Institute of Standards and Technology, if applicable to the item; or (3) are only available at an unreasonable price.
- (b) Paragraph (a) of this clause shall apply to items purchased under this contract where: (1) the Contractor purchases in excess of \$10,000 of the item under this contract; or (2) during the preceding Federal fiscal year, the Contractor: (i) purchased any amount of the items for use under a contract that was funded with Federal appropriations and was with a Federal agency or a State agency or agency of a political subdivision of a State; and (ii) purchased a total of in excess of \$10,000 of the item both under and outside that contract.

DOCUMENT 00 0710

"EXHIBIT B"

THE MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM IN COMPLIANCE WITH EXECUTIVE ORDER 11625 (3 PAGES)

"EXHIBIT B"

THE MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM IN COMPLIANCE WITH EXECUTIVE ORDER 11625

The Westmoreland County Housing Authority hereby adopts this Affirmative Action Program for the Utilization of Minority Businesses, in compliance with Executive Order 11625.

OBJECTIVE

To affirmatively provide opportunities for business participation by Minority Businesses.

POLICY:

It is the Policy of the Westmoreland County Housing Authority to implement Executive Order 11625 that, to the fullest extent feasible, opportunities for full participation by Minority Business Enterprises will be provided.

BOUNDARIES:

There are no boundaries to the area of coverage to the Minority Business Enterprise Program. However, priority of consideration will be afforded to those sub-areas of lesser geographical definition as they relate to specific projects and opportunities.

ANALYSIS:

In order to access realistically the potential for involvement relative to Minority Business Enterprise Participation, the Small Business Administration, Department of Labor, Minority Business Directory, Employment Security Office, the Department of Housing and Urban Development, and the Department of Labor will be consulted. The Westmoreland County Housing Authority will through contract conditions, require compliance by all Contractors and Subcontractors with the intent and purpose of this Minority Business Enterprise Program.

GOALS:

Minority Business Enterprise goals will be projected on an annual basis by the Westmoreland County Housing Authority. The Annual Goals may be realized by the Westmoreland County Housing Authority through the Annual Operating Budget and/or sub-goals on specified projects.

OUTREACH:

Bidding procedures will be in compliance with Federal, State, and Local Statutes. Advertising will be done in the local newspapers once a week for a period of two (2) weeks. Also, all Minority Contractors listed in the current Minority Business Directory will be sent a copy of the advertisement. In addition, copies of the Advertisement will send to the Minority Business Opportunity Committee and Dodge Reports. Special notice will be given to community organizations, both public and private, with interest in minority affairs. All advertisements and notices will contain the Executive Order 11625 requirements.

THE MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM - PAGE 2

MONITORING:

The Westmoreland County Housing Authority will be responsible for the implementation and monitoring of this Program. Contracts will be monitored weekly, with a monthly report listing the extent of the minority utilization. In the event that projected goals are not met, a concentrated effort will be made in order to meet stated goals.

SANCTIONS:

Any compliance or disputes which may arise in connection with the Minority Business Enterprise Program operation will be resolved by the Westmoreland County Housing Authority. If not resolved, the matter shall be referred to the Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity Division, Pittsburgh Area Office, U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, for advice and assistance.

EVALUATION:

The Westmoreland County Housing Authority will, on a timely basis, with the assistance of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, evaluate the success of this Program, and take the appropriate measure to improve the operation of the Minority Business Enterprise Program.

DOCUMENT 00 0720

"EXHIBIT C"

THE MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM (4 PAGES)

"EXHIBIT C"

PART OF GENERAL CONDITIONS PROVISIONS AND PROCEDURES Pertaining to THE MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM IN CONNECTION WITH FEDERAL ASSISTED PROJECTS IN COMPLIANCE WITH EXECUTIVE ORDER 11625

OBJECTIVE

The procedures set forth in this Part contain the method approved by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development for carrying out the responsibilities under Executive Order 11625.

DEFINITION

Executive Order 11625 covered projects means any project assisted by any program administered by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development in which loans, grants, subsidies, or other financial assistance is provided.

Minority is defined racially, to include Negro/black, Spanish American, American Indian, Oriental, and others, not ethnically.

Work – is defined for purposes of Executive Order 11625 as construction or construction related activities including the purchase of goods, supplies and services.

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE

Every contractor and subcontractor shall incorporate, or cause to be incorporated, in all contracts for work in connection with a Federally assisted project the following:

- A. The work to be performed under this contract is on a project assisted under a program providing direct Federal financial assistance from the Department of Housing and Urban Development and is subject to the requirements of executive Order 11625.
- B. The parties to this contract will comply with the intent and purposes of said Executive Order 11625, and all applicable procedures issued there under prior to the execution of this contract. The parties to this contract certify and agree that they are under no contractual or other disability, which would prevent them from complying with these requirements.
- C. The contractor will send to appropriate minority organizations or representative(s) of minority(s) a notice advising the said minority organization or representative of his commitments under this Executive Order 11625 and shall retain copies of the notice in an appropriate file available for inspection by authorized party(s).
- D. The contractor will include this Executive Order 11625 clause in every subcontract for work in connection with the project and will, at the directions of the applicant for or recipient of Federal financial assistance, take appropriate action pursuant to the subcontract upon a finding that the subcontractor is in noncompliance. The contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where it has notice or knowledge that the latter will not participate and will not let any

- subcontract unless the subcontractor has first provided it with a preliminary statement of goals to comply with the intent and purpose of these procedures.
- E. Compliance with the provisions of Executive Order 11625, the intent and purpose thereof, shall be a condition of the Federal financial assistance provided to the project, binding upon the applicant or recipient for such assistance, its successors, and assigns, to these sanctions specified by the grant or loan agreement or contract through which Federal assistance is provided.

PROCEDURES

Prior to the signing of the contract, the contractor shall provide a preliminary statement of minority business utilization where known; where not known, such information shall be supplied prior to the signing of any contract between the contractor and subcontractor.

UTILIZATION OF BUSINESSES

Each contractor and subcontractor undertaking work on an Executive Order 11625 covered object shall assure that to the greatest extent feasible, contracts for work to be performed connection with the projects are awarded to minority business concerns.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PLAN FOR UTILIZATION OF MINORITY BUSINESS

	The contractor or subcontractor shall utilize minority business concerns in contracting for work to be performed in connection with the completion of the contract. To this end the contractor or subcontractor projects a utilization goal of \$ or					
	% of total dolla	<u></u>				
		GOAL ALLOCATIONS	3			
Catego Dollars	ry	Amount Available in Dollars		Amount Project in		
Minority	Business	\$	\$			
Minority Contractors		\$ \$_				
		e of contracts to be awarded to e category over the duration of thi	_			

Analyze the minority potential for each category and set projected utilization goals for minority participation.

Ensure that the appropriate business concerns are timely notified of pending contractual opportunities either personally or through locally utilized media.

GOOD FAITH EFFORT

Each contractor and subcontractor seeking to establish that a good faith effort has been made shall, as a minimum, attempt to recruit from the appropriate areas the necessary eligible business concerns through:

- Local advertising
- B. Small Business Administration
- C. Signs placed at the site.
- D. U.S. Department of Commerce Funded Agency
- E. Community Organizations
- F. U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE

The contractor shall execute the Certificate of Compliance and shall cause all subcontractors undertaking work in connection with this contract to furnish the same.

MINORITY BUSINESS UTILIZATION CERTIFICATION

Will abide by greatest extent feasible, the requirements of Execu	and initiate in all their subcontracts, to the tive Order 11625.
DATE	
	11111

DOCUMENT 00 0730

"EXHIBIT D" (NOTE: EXHIBIT E – NOT USED)

STANDARD FEDERAL EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT SPECIFICATIONS

(6 PAGES)

"EXHIBIT D"

41 CFR 60 – 4.3 GENERAL CONDITIONS

Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications (Executive Order 11246)

- 1. As used in these specifications:
- a) ``Covered area" means the geographical area described in the solicitation from which this contract resulted.
- b) ``Director" means Director, Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, United States Department of Labor, or any person to whom the Director delegates authority.
- c) ``Employer identification number" means the Federal Social Security number used on the Employer's Quarterly Federal Tax Return, U.S. Treasury Department Form 941.
- d) ``Minority" includes:
 - i. Black (all persons having origins in any of the Black African racial groups not of Hispanic origin);
 - ii. Hispanic (all persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American or other Spanish Culture or origin, regardless of race)
 - iii. Asian and Pacific Islander (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands); and
 - iv. American Indian or Alaskan Native (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of North America and maintaining identifiable tribal affiliations through membership and participation or community identification).
- Whenever the Contractor, or any Subcontractor at any tier, subcontracts a portion of the work involving any construction trade, it shall physically include in each subcontract in excess of \$10,000 the provisions of these specifications and the Notice which contains the applicable goals for minority and female participation and which is set forth in the solicitations from which this contract resulted.
- 3. If the Contractor is participating (pursuant to 41 CFR 60-4.5) in a Hometown Plan approved by the U.S. Department of Labor in the covered area either individually or through an association, its affirmative action obligations on all work in the Plan area (including goals and timetables) shall be in accordance with that Plan for those trades which have unions participating in the Plan. Contractors must be able to demonstrate their participation in and compliance with the provisions of any such Hometown Plan. Each Contractor or Subcontractor participating in an approved Plan is individually required to comply with its obligations under the EEO clause, and to make a good faith effort to achieve each goal under the Plan in each trade in which it has employees. The overall good faith performance by other Contractors or Subcontractors toward a goal in an approved Plan does not excuse any covered Contractor's or Subcontractor's failure to take good faith efforts to achieve the Plan goals and timetables.
- 4. The Contractor shall implement the specific affirmative action standards provided in paragraphs 7 a through p of these specifications. The goals set forth in the solicitation from which this contract resulted are expressed as percentages of the total hours of employment and training of minority and female utilization the Contractor should reasonably be able to achieve in each construction trade in which it has employees in the covered area. Covered Construction contractors performing construction work in geographical areas where they do not have a Federal or federally assisted construction contract shall apply the minority and female goals established for the geographical area where the work is being performed. Goals are published periodically in the Federal Register in notice form, and such notices may be obtained from any Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs office or from Federal procurement contracting officers. The Contractor is expected to make substantially uniform progress in meeting its goals in each craft during the period specified.
- 5. Neither the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement, nor the failure by a union with whom the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement, to refer either minorities or women

- shall excuse the Contractor's obligations under these specifications, Executive Order 11246, or the regulations promulgated pursuant thereto.
- 6. In order for the nonworking training hours of apprentices and trainees to be counted in meeting the goals, such apprentices and trainees must be employed by the Contractor during the training period, and the Contractor must have made a commitment to employ the apprentices and trainees at the completion of their training, subject to the availability of employment opportunities. Trainees must be trained pursuant to training programs approved by the U.S. Department of Labor.
- 7. The Contractor shall take specific affirmative actions to ensure equal employment opportunity. The evaluation of the Contractor's compliance with these specifications shall be based upon its effort to achieve maximum results from its actions. The Contractor shall document these efforts fully, and shall implement affirmative action steps at least as extensive as the following:
 - a) Ensure and maintain a working environment free of harassment, intimidation, and coercion at all sites, and in all facilities at which the Contractor's employees are assigned to work. The Contractor, where possible, will assign two or more women to each construction project. The Contractor shall specifically ensure that all foremen, superintendents, and other on-site supervisory personnel are aware of and carry out the Contractor's obligation to maintain such a working environment, with specific attention to minority or female individuals working at such sites or in such facilities.
 - b) Establish and maintain a current list of minority and female recruitment sources, provide written notification to minority and female recruitment sources and to community organizations when the Contractor or its unions have employment opportunities available, and maintain a record of the organizations' responses.
 - c) Maintain a current file of the names, addresses and telephone numbers of each minority and female off-the-street applicant and minority or female referral from a union, a recruitment source or community organization and of what action was taken with respect to each such individual. If such individual was sent to the union hiring hall for referral and was not referred back to the Contractor by the union or, if referred, not employed by the Contractor, this shall be documented in the file with the reason therefore, along with whatever additional actions the Contractor may have taken.
 - d) Provide immediate written notification to the Director when the union or unions with which the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement has not referred to the Contractor a minority person or woman sent by the Contractor, or when the Contractor has other information that the union referral process has impeded the Contractor's efforts to meet its obligations.
 - e) Develop on-the-job training opportunities and/or participate in training programs for the area which expressly include minorities and women, including upgrading programs and apprenticeship and trainee programs relevant to the Contractor's employment needs, especially those programs funded or approved by the Department of Labor. The Contractor shall provide notice of these programs to the sources compiled under 7b above.
 - f) Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy by providing notice of the policy to unions and training programs and requesting their cooperation in assisting the Contractor in meeting its EEO obligations; by including it in any policy manual and collective bargaining agreement; by publicizing it in the company newspaper, annual report, etc.; by specific review of the policy with all management personnel and with all minority and female employees at least once a year; and by posting the company EEO policy on bulletin boards accessible to all employees at each location where construction work is performed.
 - g) Review, at least annually, the company's EEO policy and affirmative action obligations under these specifications with all employees having any responsibility for hiring, assignment, layoff, termination or other employment decisions including specific review of these items with onsite supervisory personnel such as Superintendents, General Foremen, etc., prior to the initiation of construction work at any job site. A written record shall be made and maintained identifying the time and place of these meetings, persons attending, subject matter discussed, and disposition of the subject matter.
 - h) Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy externally by including it in any advertising in the news media, specifically including minority and female news media, and providing written

- notification to and discussing the Contractor's EEO policy with other Contractors and Subcontractors with whom the Contractor does or anticipates doing business.
- i) Direct its recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority, female and community organizations, to schools with minority and female students and to minority and female recruitment and training organizations serving the Contractor's recruitment area and employment needs. Not later than one month prior to the date for the acceptance of applications for apprenticeship or other training by any recruitment source, the Contractor shall send written notification to organizations such as the above, describing the openings, screening procedures, and tests to be used in the selection process.
- j) Encourage present minority and female employees to recruit other minority persons and women and, where reasonable, provide after school, summer and vacation employment to minority and female youth both on the site and in other areas of a Contractor's work force.
- k) Validate all tests and other selection requirements where there is an obligation to do so under 41 CFR Part 60-3.
- Conduct, at least annually, an inventory and evaluation at least of all minority and female
 personnel for promotional opportunities and encourage these employees to seek or to prepare
 for, through appropriate training, etc., such opportunities.
- m) Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work assignments and other personnel practices, do not have a discriminatory effect by continually monitoring all personnel and employment related activities to ensure that the EEO policy and the Contractor's obligations under these specifications are being carried out.
- n) Ensure that all facilities and company activities are non-segregated except that separate or single-user toilet and necessary changing facilities shall be provided to assure privacy between the sexes.
- o) Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of offers or subcontracts from minority and female construction contractors and suppliers, including circulation of solicitations to minority and female contractor associations and other business associations.
- p) Conduct a review, at least annually, of all supervisors' adherence to and performance under the Contractor's EEO policies and affirmative action obligations.
- 8. Contractors are encouraged to participate in voluntary associations which assist in fulfilling one or more of their affirmative action obligations (7a through p). The efforts of a contractor association, joint contractor-union, contractor-community, or other similar group of which the contractor is a member and participant, may be asserted as fulfilling any one or more of its obligations under 7a through p of these Specifications provided that the contractor actively participates in the group, makes every effort to assure that the group has a positive impact on the employment of minorities and women in the industry, ensures that the concrete benefits of the program are reflected in the Contractor's minority and female workforce participation, makes a good faith effort to meet its individual goals and timetables, and can provide access to documentation which demonstrates the effectiveness of actions taken on behalf of the Contractor. The obligation to comply, however, is the Contractor's and failure of such a group to fulfill an obligation shall not be a defense for the Contractor's noncompliance.
- 9. A single goal for minorities and a separate single goal for women have been established. The Contractor, however, is required to provide equal employment opportunity and to take affirmative action for all minority groups, both male and female, and all women, both minority and non-minority. Consequently, the Contractor may be in violation of the Executive Order if a particular group is employed in a substantially disparate manner (for example, even though the Contractor has achieved its goals for women generally, the Contractor may be in violation of the Executive Order if a specific minority group of women is underutilized).
- 10. The Contractor shall not use the goals and timetables or affirmative action standards to discriminate against any person because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- 11. The Contractor shall not enter into any Subcontract with any person or firm debarred from Government contracts pursuant to Executive Order 11246.
- 12. The Contractor shall carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of these specifications and of the Equal Opportunity Clause, including suspension, termination and cancellation of existing subcontracts as may be imposed or ordered pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and its implementing regulations, by the Office of Federal Contract Compliance

- Programs. Any Contractor who fails to carry out such sanctions and penalties shall be in violation of these specifications and Executive Order 11246, as amended.
- 13. The Contractor, in fulfilling its obligations under these specifications, shall implement specific affirmative action steps, at least as extensive as those standards prescribed in paragraph 7 of these specifications, so as to achieve maximum results from its efforts to ensure equal employment opportunity. If the Contractor fails to comply with the requirements of the Executive Order, the implementing regulations, or these specifications, the Director shall proceed in accordance with 41 CFR 60-4.8.
- 14. The Contractor shall designate a responsible official to monitor all employment related activity to ensure that the company EEO policy is being carried out, to submit reports relating to the provisions hereof as may be required by the Government and to keep records. Records shall at least include for each employee the name, address, telephone numbers, construction trade, union affiliation if any, employee identification number when assigned, social security number, race, sex, status (e.g., mechanic, apprentice trainee, helper, or laborer), dates of changes in status, hours worked per week in the indicated trade, rate of pay, and locations at which the work was performed. Records shall be maintained in an easily understandable and retrievable form; however, to the degree that existing records satisfy this requirement, contractors shall not be required to maintain separate records.
- 15. Nothing herein provided shall be construed as a limitation upon the application of other laws which establish different standards of compliance or upon the application of requirements for the hiring of local or other area residents (e.g., those under the Public Works Employment Act of 1977 and the Community Development Block Grant Program).

EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246 CERTIFICATION

greatest extent feasible, the requirements of Execu	will abide by and initiate in all subcontracts, to the tive Order 11246.
· · ·	
	Title
	Date

DOCUMENT 00 0740

"EXHIBIT F"

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 12138 (8 PAGES)

"EXHIBIT "F"

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 12138

May 18, 1979, 44 F.R. 29637

CREATING A NATIONAL WOMEN'S BUSINESS ENTERPRISE POLICY AND PRESCRIBING ARRANGEMENTS FOR DEVELOPING, COORDINATING

AND IMPLEMENTING A NATIONAL PROGRAM FOR WOMEN'S BUSINESS ENTERPRISE

In response to the findings of the Interagency Task Force on Women Business Owners and congressional findings that recognize:

- 1. The significant role which small business and women entrepreneurs can play in promoting full employment and balanced growth in our economy.
- 2. The many obstacles facing women entrepreneurs; and
- 3. The need to aid and stimulate women's business enterprise.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE FEDERAL DEPARTMENTS AND AGENCIES

Within the constraints of statutory authority and as otherwise permitted by law:

- (A) Each department and agency of the Executive Branch shall take appropriate action to facilitate, preserve and strengthen women's business enterprise and to ensure full participation by women in the free enterprise system.
- (B) Each department and agency shall take affirmative action in support of women's business enterprise in appropriate programs and activities including but not limited to:
 - 1. Management, technical, financial and procurement assistance.
 - 2. Business-related education, training, counseling information dissemination, and
 - 3. Procurement.
- (C) Each department or agency empowered to extend Federal financial assistance to any program or activity shall issue regulations requiring the recipient of such assistance to take appropriate affirmative action in support of women's business enterprise and to prohibit actions or policies which discriminate against women's business enterprise on the ground of sex. For purposes of this subsection, Federal financial assistance means assistance extended by way of grant, cooperative agreement, loan or contract other than a contract of insurance or guaranty. These regulations shall prescribe sanctions for noncompliance. Unless otherwise specified by law, no agency sanctions shall be applied until the agency or department concerned has advised the appropriate person or persons of the failure to comply with its regulations and has determined that compliance cannot be secured by voluntary means.

For purposes of this Order, affirmative action may include, but is not limited to, creating or supporting new programs responsive to the special needs of women's business enterprise, establishing incentives to promote business or business-related opportunities for women's business enterprise, collecting and disseminating information in support of women's business enterprise, and insuring to women's business enterprise knowledge of and ready access to business-related services and resources. If, in implementing this Order, an agency undertakes to use or to require compliance with numerical set-asides, or similar measures, it shall state the purpose of such measure, and the measure shall be designed on the basis of pertinent factual findings of discrimination against women's business enterprise and the need for such measure.

In carrying out their responsibilities under Section 1-1, the departments and agencies shall consult the Department of Justice, and the Department of Justice shall provide legal guidance concerning these responsibilities.

ESTABLISHMENT OF THE INTERAGENCY COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S BUSINESS ENTERPRISE

To help insure that the actions ordered above are carried out in an effective manner, I hereby establish the Interagency Committee on Women's Business Enterprise (hereinafter called the Committee).

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 12138

Chairperson of the Committee (hereinafter called the Chairperson) shall be appointed by the President. The Chairperson shall be the presiding officer of the Committee and shall have such duties as prescribed in this Order or by the Committee in its rules of procedure. The Chairperson may also represent his or her department, agency or office on the Committee.

Committee shall be composed of the Chairperson and other members appointed by the heads of departments and agencies from among high level policy-making officials. In making these appointments, the recommendations of the Chairperson shall be taken into consideration. The following departments and agencies and such other departments and agencies as the Chairperson shall select shall be members of the Committee: the Departments of Agriculture; Commerce; Defense; Energy; Health and Human Services; Housing and Urban Development; Interior; Justice; Labor; Transportation; Treasury; the Federal Trade Commission; General Services Administration; National Science Foundation; Office of Federal Procurement Policy; and the Small Business Administration. These members shall have a vote. Nonvoting members shall include the Executive Director of the Committee and at least one but no more than three representatives from the Executive Office of the President appointed by the President.

Committee shall meet at least quarterly at the call of the Chairperson, and at such other times as may be determined to be useful according to the rules of procedure adopted by the Committee.

Administrator of the Small Business Administration shall provide an Executive Director and adequate staff and administrative support for the Committee. The staff shall be located in the Office of the Chief Counsel for Advocacy of the Small Business Administration, or in such other office as may be established specifically to further the policies expressed herein. Nothing in this Section prohibits the use of other properly available funds and resources in support of the Committee.

FUNCTIONS OF THE COMMITTEE

Promote, coordinate and monitor the plans, programs and operations of the departments and agencies of the Executive Branch which may contribute to the establishment, preservation and strengthening of women's business enterprise. It may, as appropriate, develop comprehensive interagency plans and specific program goals for women's business enterprise with the cooperation of the departments and agencies.

Establish such policies, definitions, procedures and guidelines to govern the implementation, interpretation and application of this order, and generally perform such functions and take such steps as the Committee may deem to be necessary or appropriate to achieve the purposes and carry out the provisions hereof.

Promote the mobilization of activities and resources of State and local governments, business and trade associations, private industry, colleges and universities, foundations, professional organizations, and volunteer and other groups toward the growth of women's business enterprise, and facilitate the coordination of the efforts of these groups with those of the departments and agencies.

Make an annual assessment of the progress made in the Federal Government toward assisting women's business enterprise to enter the mainstream of business ownership and to provide recommendations for future actions to the President.

Convene and consult as necessary with persons inside and outside government to develop and promote new ideas concerning the development of women's business enterprise.

Consider the findings and recommendations of government and private sector investigations and studies of the problems of women entrepreneurs and promote further research into such problems.

Design a comprehensive and innovative plan for a joint Federal and private sector effort to develop increased numbers of new women-owned businesses and larger and more successful women-owned businesses. The plan should set specific reasonable targets which can be achieved at reasonable and identifiable costs and should provide for the measurement of progress towards these targets at the end of two and five years. Related outcomes such as income and tax revenues generated, jobs created, new products and services introduced, or new domestic or foreign markets created should also be projected and measured in relation to costs wherever possible. The Committee should submit the plan to the President for approval within six months of the effective date of this Order.

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 12138

OTHER RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE FEDERAL DEPARTMENTS AND AGENCIES

The head of each department and agency shall designate a high-level official to have the responsibility for the participation and cooperation of that department or agency in carrying out this Executive order. This person may be the same person who is the department or agency's representative to the Committee.

To the extent permitted by law, each department and agency upon request by the Chairperson shall furnish information, assistance and reports and otherwise cooperate with the Chairperson and the Committee in the performance of their functions hereunder. Each department or agency shall ensure that systematic data collection processes are capable of providing the Committee current data helpful in evaluating and promoting the efforts herein described.

The officials designated under Section 1-401, when so requested, shall review the policies and programs of the women's business enterprise program, and shall keep the Chairperson informed of proposed budget, plans and programs of their departments or agencies affecting women's business enterprise.

Each Federal department or agency, within constraints of law, shall continue current efforts to foster and promote women's business enterprise and to support the program herein set forth, and shall cooperate with the Chairperson and the Committee in increasing the total Federal effort.

REPORTS

The Chairperson shall, promptly after the close of the fiscal year, submit to the President a full report of the activities of the Committee hereunder during the previous fiscal year. Further, the Chairperson shall, from time to time, submit to the President the Committee's recommendations for legislation or other action to promote the purposes of this Order.

Each Federal department and agency shall report to the Chairperson as hereinabove provided on a timely basis so that the Chairperson and the Committee can consider such reports for the Committee report to the President.

DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of this Order, the following definitions shall apply:

- (1) "Women-owned business" means a business that is at least 51 percent owned by a woman or women who also control and operate it. "Control" in this context means exercising the power to make policy decisions. "Operate" in this context means being actively involved in the day-to-day management.
- (2) "Women's business enterprise" means a woman-owned business or businesses or the efforts of a woman or women to establish, maintain or develop such a business or businesses.

Nothing in subsections 1-601 or 1-602 of this Section (1-6) should be construed to prohibit the use of other definitions of a woman-owned business or women's business enterprise by departments and agencies of the Executive Branch where other definitions are deemed reasonable and useful for any purpose not inconsistent with the purposes of this Order. Wherever feasible, departments and agencies should use the definition of a woman-owned business in subsection 1-601 above for monitoring performance with respect to women's business enterprise in order to assure comparability of data throughout the Federal Government.

CONSTRUCTION

Nothing in this Order shall be construed as limiting the meaning or effect of any existing Executive order.

EXECUTIVE ORDER 12138

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE

Every Contractor and Subcontractor shall incorporate, or cause to be incorporated, in all contracts for work in connection with a Federally assisted project the following:

- A. The work to be performed under this Contract is on a project assisted basis under a program providing direct Federal Financial Assistance from the Department of Housing and Urban Development and is subject to the requirements of Executive Order 12138.
- B. The parties to this Contract will comply with the intent and purposes of said Executive Order 12138, and all applicable procedures issued thereunder prior to the execution of this Contract.
 The parties to this Contract certify and agree that they are under no contractual or other disability which would prevent them from complying with these requirements.
- C. The Contractor will send to appropriate woman-owned business organizations a notice advising the organization of their commitment under this Executive Order 12138 and shall retain copies of the notice in an appropriate file available for inspection by authorized parties.
- D. The Contractor will include this Executive Order 12138 Clause in every subcontract for work in connection with the project and will, at the direction of the applicant for or recipient of Federal Financial Assistance, take appropriate action pursuant to the sub-contract upon a finding that the subcontractor is in non-compliance. The Contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where it has notice or knowledge that the latter will not participate and will not let any subcontract unless the subcontractor has first provided the contractor with a preliminary statement of goals to comply with the intent and purpose of these procedures.
- E. Compliance with the provisions of Executive Order 12138, the intent and purpose, thereof, shall be a condition of the Federal Financial Assistance provided to the project, binding upon the applicant or recipient for such assistance, its successors, and assigns, to these sanctions specified by the grant or loan agreement or contract through which Federal assistance is provided.

BIDDING PROCEDURES

Prior to signing of the Contract, the contractor shall provide a preliminary statement of woman-owned business enterprise utilization where known; where not known, such information shall be supplied prior to signing of any contract between the contractor and subcontractor.

UTILIZATION OF BUSINESSES

Each contractor and subcontractor undertaking work on an Executive Order 12138 covered project shall assure to the greatest extent feasible, contracts for work to be performed in connection with the projects are awarded to woman-owned business concerns.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PLAN FOR UTILIZATION OF WOMAN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE

The contractor or subcontractor shall utilize woman-owned business concerns in contracting the work to be performed in connection with the completion of the Contract. To this end, the contractor or subcontractor projects a utilization goal of \$______ or ______%

EXECUTIVE ORDER 12138

GOAL ALLOCATIONS

Cat	<u>egory</u>	Amount Available (Dollars)	Amount Projected	(Dollars)
A.	Woman-Owned Business	\$	_\$		
В.	Woman-Owned Contractor	rs \$	\$		_

Set forth the dollar value of contracts to be awarded to eligible contractors and businesses within each category over the duration of the Contract.

Analyze the woman-owned potential for each category and set projected utilization goals for women-owned business participation.

Ensure that the appropriate business concerns are timely notified of pending contractual opportunities either personally or through locally utilized media.

GOOD FAITH EFFORT

Each contractor and subcontractor seeking to establish that a good faith effort has been made shall, as a minimum, attempt to recruit from the appropriate areas the necessary eligible business concerns through:

- A. Local Advertising
- B. Small Business Administration
- C. Signs placed at the site
- D. U.S. Department of Commerce Funded Agency
- E. Community Organizations
- F. U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE

The contractor shall execute the Certificate of Compliance and shall cause all subcontractors undertaking work in connection with this Contract to furnish the same.

WOMAN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE UTILIZATION CERTIFICATION

subcontracts, to the greatest extent feasible,	will abide by and initiate in all their the requirements of Executive Order 12138.
	CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR
	BY
TITLE	
	DATE

DOCUMENT 00 0760

PROVISIONS AND PROCEDURES PERTAINING TO
EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES FOR BUSINESS AND LOWER
INCOME PERSONS IN CONNECTION WITH FEDERAL
ASSISTED PROJECTS IN COMPLIANCE WITH
SECTION 3 OF THE HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT ACT OF 1968

(7 PAGES)

PART OF GENERAL CONDITIONS

PROVISIONS AND PROCEDURES

Pertaining to EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES FOR BUSINESS AND LOWER INCOME PERSONS IN CONNECTION WITH FEDERAL ASSISTED PROJECTS Incompliance with SECTION 3 OF THE HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT ACT OF 1968

SEC. 4.1 – Purpose and Scope

The regulations set forth in this Part contain the procedures established by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development for carrying out the responsibilities under Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, 12 U.S.C. 1701u.

Sec. 4.2 Definitions

"Section 3 covered project" means any nonexempt project assisted by any program administered by the Secretary in which loans, grants, subsidies, or other financial assistance are provided in aid of housing, urban planning, development, redevelopment or renewal, public or community facilities, and new community development, except as provided under Title 24, Part 135, Section 135.5, para. (M).

Sec. 4.3 Assurance of Compliance

Every contractor and subcontractor shall incorporate, or cause to be incorporated, in all contract for work in connection with a Section 3 covered project, the following clause:

- A. The work to be performed under this contract is on a project assisted under a program providing direct Federal financial assistance from the Department of Housing and Urban Development and is subject to the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u. Section 3 requires that to the greatest extent feasible opportunities for training and employment be given lower income residents of the project area and contracts for work in connection with the project by awarded to business concerns which are located in, or owned in substantial part by persons residing in the area of the project.
- B. The parties to this contract will comply with the provisions of said Section 3 and the regulations issued pursuant thereto by the Secretary of Housing and Urban

Development set forth in 24 CFR 135, and all applicable rules and orders of the Department issued there under prior to the execution of this contract. The parties to this contract certify and agree that they are under no contractual or other disability which would prevent them from complying with these requirements.

C. The contractor will send to each labor organization or representative of workers with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, if any, a notice advising the said labor organization or workers' representative of his commitments under this Section 3 clause and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment or training.

The contractor will include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract for work in connection with the project and will, at the direction of the applicant for or recipient of Federal financial assistance, take appropriate action pursuant to the subcontract upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of regulations issued by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, 24 CFR 135. The contractor will

not subcontract with any subcontractor where it has notice or knowledge that the latter has been found in violation of regulations under 24 CFR 135 and will not let any subcontract unless the subcontractor has first provided it with a preliminary statement of ability to comply with the requirements of these regulations.

Compliance with the provisions of Section 3, the regulations set forth in 24 CFR 135, and all applicable rules and orders of the Department issued thereunder prior to the execution of the contract, shall be a condition of the Federal financial assistance provided to the project, binding upon the applicant or recipient for such assistance, its successors, and assigns. Failure to fulfill these requirements shall subject the applicant or recipient, its contractors and subcontractors, its successors, and assigns, to those sanctions specified by the grant or loan agreement or contract through which Federal assistance is provided, and to such sanctions as are specified by 24 CFR 135, 135.

Section 4.4 Bidding Procedures

Prior to the signing of the contract, the contractor shall provide a preliminary statement of work force needs (skilled, semi-skilled, unskilled labor and trainees by category) where known; where not known, such information shall be supplied prior to the signing of any contract between the contractor and subcontractors.

Section 4.A Trainees

The contractor or subcontractor shall fulfill his obligation to utilize lower income project areas residents as trainees to the greatest extent feasible by:

- (1) Utilizing the maximum number of persons in the various training categories in all phases of the work to be performed under the Section 3 covered project, and
- (2) Filling all vacant training positions with lower income project area residents except for those training positions which remain unfilled after a good faith effort has been made.
- (3) "Manpower Utilization Training Table" See Appendix #1.

Section 4.B Residents as Employees

Each contractor and subcontractor shall fulfill his obligation to utilize lower income project areas residents as employees to the greatest extent feasible by:

- (1) Identifying the number of positions in the various occupational categories including skilled, semiskilled, and unskilled labor needed to perform each phase of the Section 3 covered project.
- (2) Identifying the number of positions currently occupied by regular, permanent employees.
- (3) Identifying the positions not currently occupied by regular, permanent employees.
- (4) Establishing the positions identified in paragraph (3) of this Part, a goal which is consistent with this subpart within each occupational category of the number of positions to be filled by lower residents of the Section 3 covered project areas.
- (5) "Work Force Needs Table" See Appendix #1.

Section 4.C Utilization of Businesses

Each contractor and subcontractor undertaking work on a Section 3 covered project shall assure that to the greatest extent feasible, contracts for work to be performed in connection with the project – are awarded to business concerns located within the Section 3 covered project areas or business concerns owned in substantial part by persons residing in the Section 3 covered area.

(1) "Business Utilization Table" – See Appendix #2.

Section 4.5 Good Faith Effort

Each contractor and subcontractor seeking to establish that a good faith effort, as required by Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C., 1701u, has been made to fill all training positions with lower income area

residents; and fill all employment positions identified in Section 4.4, paragraph B, subparagraphs (3) and (4) shall:

- A. Attempt to recruit from the appropriate areas the necessary number of lower income residents through local advertising media, signs placed at the proposed site and community organizations and public and private institutions operating within or serving the project area, such as State Employment Office, Opportunities Industrialization Center (OIC) and WCHA
- B. Maintain a list of all lower income area residents who have applied either on their own or on referral from any source, and employ such person if otherwise eligible and/or qualified and if a vacancy exists. If no vacancies exist, the listed for the first available opening.

Any contractor or subcontractor which fills vacant apprentice and trainee positions and/or employment positions, identified in subparagraph B above, but more specifically identified in Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, 12 U.S.C. 1701u, Part 135. Section 135.40 and Section 135.55, in his organization immediate prior to undertaking work pursuant to a Section 3 covered contract shall set forth evidence acceptable to the Secretary that its actions were not an attempt to circumvent these regulations.

Section 4.6 Affirmative Action Plan

- A. An Affirmative Action Plan pursuant to a Section 3 covered contract shall:
- (1) Set forth the approximate number and estimated dollar value of contracts to be awarded to eligible businesses and entrepreneurs within each category over the duration of this contract.
- (2) Ensure that the appropriate business concerns are notified of pending contractual opportunities either personally or through locally utilized media.

B. Good Faith Effort

Each contractor and subcontractor seeking to establish that a good faith effort has been made shall, as a minimum, attempt to recruit from the appropriate areas the necessary eligible business concerns through:

- Local Advertising.
- (2) Signs placed at the site.
- (3) Community organizations, public and private institutions operating or serving within the project areas such as P.A.C., OIC, and WCHA, and any equivalent organization.
- C. "Business Utilization Table."

See Appendix #2

D. "AAP Form."

See Appendix #2

Sec. 4.7 Certificate of Compliance

The contractor shall execute the Certificate of Compliance and cause all subcontractors undertaking work in connection with this contract to furnish the same.

SECTION 3 CERTIFICATION

Will abide by and initiate in all their subcontracts to the greatest extent feasible the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, 12 U.S.C. 1701 u.

APPENDIX NO. 1

1. MANPOWER UTILIZATION TABLE

Occupation	Total Work	Skilled	Trainees	No. Project Area Resident to be Utilized	
Category	Force			be Ut	ilizea
(Write List)				Skilled	<u>Trainee</u>
Total					

EMPLOYMENT CERTIFICATION

A.	The Company hereby certifies that the above t employee positions required in the execution o number of lower income project area residents	f Contract No and also represents the
B.	The Company certifies that it will make a good employees stated above utilizing such communications.	faith effort to employ the number of lower income nity-based organizations and service agencies as Industrialization Center (OIC); and on the site
	company employment posters.	
C.		s listed in the above table approximates the ratio of
	lower income residents to the total population of	or the project area.
		COMPANY
		BY
		Authorized Signature
		Title
		Date

APPENDIX NO. 2

The Company shall utilize business concerns located in Project No. _____ in contracting for work to be performed in connection with the completion of the contract. To this end the Company shall require the

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PLAN FOR UTILIZATION OF SECTION 3 PROJECT BUSINESSES

Subcontracts	Total Subcont Dollar Amoun		Proposed Section 3 Business Available For Use	Total Subcontract to Section 3 Businesses Dollar Amount
(Write List)				
			COMPANY	
		Dec		
		ву	Authorized Signat	ure
		Title		
		Date		

DOCUMENT 00 0770

PREVIOUS PARTICIPATION CERTIFICATION

HUD FORM 2530 (5 PAGES)

US Department of Housing and Urban Development

Office of Housing/Federal Housing Commissioner

US Department of Agriculture

Farmers Home Administration

Participant(s) of Covered Projects	For HUD	HQ/FmHA use only	7		
(See instructions)					
Reason for submission:					
1. Agency name and City where the application is filed		2. Project Name, Project Number, City and Zip Code			
4. Number of Units or Beds	5. Section of Act 6. Type			roject (check one)	
			☐ Existing	☐ Rehabilitation	Proposed (New)
ants and attach complete organization ch	ıart for all orgai	nizations showing ov	vnership %		
controlling participant(s) proposing to participate		8 Role of Each Principa	al in Project	9. SSN or IRS Employer N	umber (TIN)
1	4. Number of Units or Beds ants and attach complete organization ch	4. Number of Units or Beds 5. Section of ants and attach complete organization chart for all organiza	2. Project Name, Project Number, City 4. Number of Units or Beds 5. Section of Act ants and attach complete organization chart for all organizations showing over the section of the se	2. Project Name, Project Number, City and Zip Code 4. Number of Units or Beds 5. Section of Act 6. Type of Project Number of Units or Beds and attach complete organization chart for all organizations showing ownership %	2. Project Name, Project Number, City and Zip Code 4. Number of Units or Beds 5. Section of Act 6. Type of Project (check one) Existing Rehabilitation and attach complete organization chart for all organizations showing ownership %

- 1. Schedule A contains a listing, for the last ten years, of every project assisted or insured by HUD, USDA FmHA and/or State and local government housing finance agencies in which the controlling participant(s) have participated or are now participating.
- 2. For the period beginning 10 years prior to the date of this certification, and except as shown on the certification:
- a. No mortgage on a project listed has ever been in default, assigned to the Government or foreclosed, nor has it received mortgage relief from the mortgagee;
- b. The controlling participants have no defaults or noncompliance under any Conventional Contract or Turnkey Contract of Sale in connection with a public housing project;
- c. There are no known unresolved findings as a result of HUD audits, management reviews or other Governmental investigations concerning the controlling participants or their projects;
- d. There has not been a suspension or termination of payments under any HUD assistance contract due to the controlling participant's fault or negligence;
- e. The controlling participants have not been convicted of a felony and are not presently the subject of a complaint or indictment charging a felony. (A felony is defined as any offense punishable by imprisonment for a term exceeding one year, but does not include any offense classified as a misdemeanor under the laws of a State and punishable by imprisonment of two years or less):
- f. The controlling participants have not been suspended, debarred or otherwise restricted by any Department or Agency of the Federal Government or of a State Government from doing business with such Department or Agency:
- g. The controlling participants have not defaulted on an obligation covered by a surety or performance bond and have not been the subject of a claim under an employee fidelity bond;
- 3. All the names of the controlling participants who propose to participate in this project are listed above.
- 4. None of the controlling participants is a HUD/FmHA employee or a member of a HUD/FmHA employee's immediate household as defined in Standards of Ethical Conduct for Employees of the Executive Branch in 5 C.F.R. Part 2635 (57 FR 35006) and HUD's Standard of Conduct in 24 C.F.R. Part 0 and USDA's Standard of Conduct in 7 C.F.R. Part 0 Subpart B.
- 5. None of the controlling participants is a participant in an assisted or insured project as of this date on which construction has stopped for a period in excess of 20 days or which has been substantially completed for more than 90 days and documents for closing, including final cost certification, have not been filed with HUD or FmHA.
- 6. None of the controlling participants have been found by HUD or FmHA to be in noncompliance with any applicable fair housing and civil rights requirements in 24 CFR 5.105(a). (If any controlling participants have been found to be in noncompliance with any requirements, attach a signed statement explaining the relevant facts, circumstances, and resolution, if any).
- 7. None of the controlling participants is a Member of Congress or a Resident Commissioner nor otherwise prohibited or limited by law from contracting with the Government of the United States of America.
- 8.Statements above (if any) to which the controlling participant(s) cannot certify have been deleted by striking through the words with a pen, and the controlling participant(s) have initialed each deletion (if any) and have attached a true and accurate signed statement (if applicable) to explain the facts and circumstances.

I/We, the undersigned, certify under penalty of perjury that the information provided above is true and correct. WARNING: Anyone who knowingly submits a false claim or makes a false statement is subject to criminal and/or civil penalties, including confinement for up to 5 years, fines, and civil and administrative penalties. (18 U.S.C. §§ 287, 1001, 1010, 1012, 1014; 31 U.S.C. §3729, 3802).

Name of Controlling Participant	Signature of Controlling	Certification Date	Area Code and Tel. No.
	Participant	(mm/dd/yyyy)	
This form prepared by (print name)	Area	Code and Tel. No.	

OMB Approval No. 2502-0118 (Exp. 01/31/2026)

Schedule A: List of Previous Projects and Section 8 Contracts. Below is a complete list of the controlling participants' previous participation projects and participation history in covered projects as per 24 CFR, part 200 §200.214 and multifamily Housing programs of FmHA, State and local Housing Finance Agencies, if applicable. Note: Read and follow the instruction sheet carefully. Make full disclosure. Add extra sheets if you need more space. Double check for accuracy. If no previous projects, write by your name, "No previous participation, First Experience". 1. Controlling Participants' Name (Last, First) 2. List of previous projects (Project name, 3.List Participants' Role(s) 4. Status of loan 5. Was the Project ever 6. Last MOR rating and project ID and, Govt. agency involved) Physical Insp. Score and (indicate dates participated, and if (current, defaulted, in default during your assigned, foreclosed) fee or identity of interest participation Yes No If yes, explain participant) Part II- For HUD Internal Processing Only Received and checked by me for accuracy and completeness; recommend approval or refer to Headquarters after checking appropriate box. Date (mm/dd/yyyy) Tel No. and area code A. No adverse information; form HUD-2530 approval C. Disclosure or Certification problem Staff Processing and Control recommended. B. Name match in system D. Other (attach memorandum) Signature of authorized reviewer Signature of authorized reviewer Date (mm/dd/yyyy) Approved Yes No

Instructions for Completing the Previous Participation Certificate, form HUD-2530

Carefully read these instructions and the applicable regulations. A copy of the regulations published at 24 C.F.R. part 200, subpart H, § 200.210-200.222 can be obtained on-line at www.gpo.gov and from the Account Executive at any HUD Office. Type or print neatly in ink when filling out this form. Incomplete form will be returned to the applicant.

Attach extra sheets as you need them. Be sure to indicate "Continued on Attachments" wherever appropriate. Sign each additional page that you attach if it refers to you or your record. **Carefully read the certification before you sign it.** Any questions regarding the form or how to complete it can be answered by your HUD Account Executive.

Purpose: This form provides HUD/USDA FmHA with a certified report of all previous participation in relevant HUD/USDA programs by those parties submitting the application. The information requested in this form is used by HUD/USDA to determine if you meet the standards established to ensure that all controlling participants in HUD/USDA projects will honor their legal, financial and contractual obligations and are of acceptable risks from the underwriting standpoint of an insurer, lender or governmental agency. HUD requires that you certify and submit your record of previous participation, in relevant projects, by completing and signing this form, before your participation can be approved.

HUD approval of your certification is a necessary precondition for your participation in the project and in the capacity that you propose. If you do not file this certification, do not furnish the information requested accurately, or do not meet established standards, HUD will not approve your certification.

Note that approval of your certification does not obligate HUD to approve your project application, and it does not satisfy all other HUD program requirements relative to your qualifications.

Who Must Sign and File Form HUD-2530: Form HUD-2530 must be completed and signed by all Controlling Participants of Covered Projects, as such terms are defined in 24 CFR part 200 §200.212, and as further clarified by the Processing Guide (HUD notice H 2016-15) referenced in 24 CFR §200.210(b) and available on the HUD website at: http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/program_offices/housing/mfh/prevparticipation.

Where and When Form HUD-2530 Must Be Filed: The original of this form must be submitted to the HUD Office where your project application will be processed at the same time you file your initial project application. This form must be filed with applications for projects listed in 24 CFR §200.214 and for the Triggering Events listed at 24 CFR §200.218.

Review of Adverse Determination: If approval of your participation in a HUD project is denied, withheld, or conditionally granted on the basis of your record of previous participation, you will be notified by the HUD Office. You may request reconsideration in accordance with 24 CFR §200.222 and further clarified by the Processing Guide. Request must be made in writing within 30 days from your receipt of the notice of determination.

The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) is authorized to collect this information by law 42 U.S.C. 3535(d) and by regulation at 24 CFR 200.210. This information is needed so that principals applying to participate in multifamily programs can become HUD-approved controlling participants. The information you provide will enable HUD to evaluate your record with respect to established standards of performance, responsibility and eligibility. Without prior approval, a controlling participant may not participate in a proposed or existing multifamily or healthcare project. HUD uses this information to evaluate whether or not controlling participants pose an unsatisfactory underwriting risk. The information is used to evaluate the potential controlling participants and approve only individuals and organizations that will honor their legal, financial and contractual obligations.

Privacy Act Statement: The Housing and Community Development Act of 1987, 42 U.S.C. 3543 requires persons applying for a Federally-insured or guaranteed loan to furnish his/her Social Security Number (SSN). HUD must have your SSN for identification of your records. HUD may use your SSN for automated processing of your records and to make requests for information about you and your previous records with other public agencies and private sector sources. HUD may disclose certain information to Federal, State and local agencies when relevant to civil, criminal, or regulatory investigations and prosecutions. It will not be otherwise disclosed or released outside of HUD, except as required and permitted by law. You must provide all of the information requested in this application, including your SSN. Failure to provide any of the information will result in your disapproval of participation in this HUD program. APPS SORN could be accessed in Federal Register / Vol. 81, No. 146 / Friday, July 29, 2016 / Notices ([Docket No. FR–5921–N–10] Implementation of the Privacy Act of 1974, as Amended; Amended System of Records Notice, Active Partners Performance System).

PRA Statement: The public reporting burden is estimated at 3 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering, and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.

Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions to reduce this burden, to the Reports Management Officer, Paperwork Reduction Project, to the Office of Information Technology, US. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Washington, DC 20410-3600. When providing comments, please refer to OMB Approval No. 2502-0118. HUD may not conduct and sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, a collection of information unless the collection displays a valid control number.

The collection is authorized by 12 U.S.C 1702-1715z; 42 U.S.C. 3535(d). HUD form 2530 is created to collect information as mandated by 24 CFR Part 200. The HUD-2530 form is used to protect HUD's Multifamily Housing and Healthcare programs by comprehensively assessing industry participants' risk. It is the Department's policy that participants in its housing programs honor their legal, financial, and contractual obligations. Accordingly, uniform standards are established for approvals, disapprovals, or withholding actions on principals in projects, based upon their past performances as well as other relevant information. Respondents such as owners, management agents, master tenants, general contractors, and nursing home operators are subject to review. The information on this form needs to be collected by the Department to evaluate participants' previous performance and compliance with contracts, regulations, and directives.

DOCUMENT 00 0840

NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT

(2 PAGES)

Non-Collusive Affidavit

STATE OF _	: CONTRACT/BID NO
COUNTY OF	:S.S. :
I state that I a	m the of, (TITLE) (FIRM OR COMPANY)
	authorized to make this Affidavit on behalf of my Firm or Company, and its owners, officers. I am the person responsible in my Firm or Company for the prices (s) and this Bid.
I state that:	
(1)	The price (s) and amount of this Bid have been arrived at independently and without consultation, communication or agreement with any other contractor,
(2)	bidder, or potential bidder. Neither the price (s) nor the amount of this Bid, and neither the approximate price (s) nor the approximate amount of this Bid have been disclosed to any other firm or person who is a bidder or potential bidder, and they will not be disclosed to any other firm or person who is a bidder or potential bidder, and they will not be disclosed before bid opening.
(3)	No attempt has been made or will be made to induce any firm or person to refrain from bidding on this Contract, or to submit a bid higher than this bid, or to submit any intentionally high or noncompetitive bid or other form of complementary bid.
(4)	The bid of my Firm or Company is made in good faith and not pursuant to any agreement or discussion with, or inducement from, any firm or person to submit a complementary or other noncompetitive bid.
(5)	(FIRM OR COMPANY)
	officers, directors and employees are not currently under investigation by any governmental agency and have not in the last four years been convicted or found liable of any act prohibited by State or Federal Law in any jurisdiction, involving conspiracy or collusion with respect to bidding on any public contract, except as follows:
I state	that understands and acknowledges (FIRM OR COMPANY)
Westr subm this A	ne above representations are material and important, and will be relied on by the moreland County Housing Authority in awarding the contract (s) for which this bid is itted. I understand and my Firm Or Company understands that any misstatement in ffidavit is and shall be treated as fraudulent concealment from the Westmoreland by Housing Authority of the true facts relating to the submission of bids for this act.
	(NAME AND FIRM OR COMPANY POSITION)

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEF	ORE ME		
THIS	DAY OF		
	, 20		
NOTARY PUBLIC			
		My Commission Expires	

DOCUMENT 00 0845

PUBLIC WORKS EMPLOYMENT VERIFICATION FORM

(2 PAGES)



COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

PUBLIC WORKS EMPLOYMENT VERIFICATION FORM

		Date	
Business or Organization Name (Emplo	oyer)		
Address			
City	State	Zip Code	
Contractor O			
Contracting Public Body			
Contract/Project No			
Project Description			
Project Location			
As a contractor/subcontractor for the of the above date, our company is in ('the Act') through utilization of the Department of Homeland Security. January 1, 2013 are authorized to wor It is also agreed to that all public w verify the employment eligibility of each throughout the duration of the prederal EVP upon each new hire shall I,, authorized in this verification of false or misleading information is sanctions provided by law.	compliance with the Pub federal E-Verify Program To the best of my/our k in the United States. Forks contractors/subcont ach new hire within five (public works contract. Do be maintained in the even morized representative of acion form is true and corre	lic Works Employment Verific (EVP) operated by the Unit knowledge, all employees he ractors will utilize the feder 5) business days of the employmentation confirming the tof an investigation or audit the company above, attested and understand that the second	cation Act ted States hired post ral EVP to oyee start use of the t that the ubmission
		Authorized Representative	Signature

Document 00 0850

Form of Bid Bond

(3 Pages)

BID BOND

	oo CUDE	TV are hold and
(Name of Surety)	, as SURE	i r are neid and
firmly bound unto Westmoreland County Hosum ofStates, for the payment of which sum well an administrators, successors, and assigns jointly	DOLLARS, (\$) I d truly to be made, we bind ourse	awful money of the United lives, our heirs, executors,
		556H.S.
THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS has submitted the accompanying bid dated		
NOW, THEREFORE, if the Principal shall not the opening of the same, or, if no period be shall within the period specified therefore, of specified within ten (10) days after the prescrivitien contract with the LHA in accordance sufficient surety or sureties, as may be required contract. In the event of the withdrawal of sa such contract and give such bond within the difference between the amount specified in some required work or supplies or both, if the last obligation shall be void and of no effect, other than the composition of the withdrawal of sa such contract and give such bond within the difference between the amount specified in some required work or supplies or both, if the last obligation shall be void and of no effect, other than the composition of the personne of the presence of:	specified, within sixty (60) days a pr, if no period be specified ther ribed forms are presented to him with the bid as accepted, and ed, for the faithful performance and id bid within the period specified, he time specified, if the Principal aid bid and the amount for which atter amount be in excess of the wise to remain in full force and virtual unden parties have executed the, 20, the nad and these presents duly signature.	fter the said opening, and efore, or, if no period be for signature, enter into a give bond with good and d proper fulfillment of such or the failure to enter into al shall pay the LHA the the LHA may procure the e former, then the above ue. is instrument under their ame and corporate seal of
In presence of:		
	(Individual Principal)	(SEAL)
	(Individual Principal) (Business Address)	
		(SEAL)
	(Business Address)	
Attest:	(Business Address) (Individual Principal)	

	(Business Address) By	Affix Corporate Seal
Attest:		
	(Corporate Surety)	
	(Business Address) By	Affix Corporate Seal
(Power-of-attorney for person s	igning for surety must be att	tached to bond.)
CERTIFICATE AS	TO CORPORATE PRINCIP	PAL
I,, certify the of the corporation named as Principal in the state the said bond on behalf of the Principal was the know the signature, and signature thereto is attested to for and in behalf of said corporation.	within bond; that hen genuine; and that said bon	who signed of said corporation; that I d was duly signed, sealed and
		(Corporate Seal)

DOCUMENT 00 0860

PERFORMANCE AND LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND

INSTRUCTIONS – 1 PAGE
PERFORMANCE BOND – 2 PAGES
LABOR AND MATERIALMEN'S BOND – 3 PAGES
(7 PAGES)

DIRECTIONS FOR PREPARATION OF PERFORMANCE AND LABOR AND MATERIALMEN'S BOND

- 1. Individual sureties, partnerships, or corporations not in the surety business will not be acceptable.
- 2. The name of the Principal shall be shown exactly as it appears in the contract.
- 3. The penal sum shall be not less than that required by the specifications.
- 4. If the Principals are partners, or joint venturers, each member shall execute the bond as an individual, with his place of residence shown.
- 5. If the Principal is a corporation, the bond shall be executed under its corporate seal. If the corporation has no corporate seal the fact shall be stated, in which case a scroll or adhesive seal shall be affixed following the corporate name.
- 6. The official character and authority of the person(s) executing the bond for the Principal, if a corporation, shall be certified by the secretary or assistant secretary thereof under the corporate seal, OR there may be attached copies of so much of the records of the corporation as will evidence the official character and authority of the officer signing, duly certified by the secretary or assistant secretary, under the corporate seal, to be true copies.
- 7. The current Power-of-Attorney of the person signing for the surety company must be attached to the bond.
- 8. The date of the bond must NOT be prior to the date of the surety company.
- 9. The Surety Company's Bond must include:
 - a. The rate of premium in dollars per thousand; and
 - b. The total dollar amount premium charged.
- 10. The signature of a witness shall appear in the appropriate place attesting to the signature of each party to the bond.
- 11. Type or print the name underneath EACH SIGNATURE appearing on the bond.
- 12. An executed copy of the bond must be attached to each copy of the Contract (Original Counterpart) intended for signing.

PERFORMANCE BOND

	(Name of Princ	ipal)		, as Prin	icipai, and	
	(. ,		•		
	(Name of Sure		, a	s Surety, a	ire neid and	
assigns (hereina Dollars, (\$ to be made, we be	o the Westmoreland fter called the Oblige), lawful money ind ourselves, our height these presents.	e), in the penal sur	n of es, for the pa	yment of w	vhich sum will	and truly
		litata a cantata Oca			(1	
Contract),	Principal has entered dated		tract with sa	_	(hereinafter (20,	called the for
said work shall be	e deemed a part herec	f as fully as if set ou		Contract an	d the Specific	ations for
faithfully perform claims and dema persons or prope Obligee from any shall fully reimbu	DRE, THE CONDITION the Contract and his unds incurred in or for erty in the performance and all cost and darese and repay the saith default, then this obtained.	part at the time and the same, or growing the thereof, and shall mage which the said d Obligee any and	in the manning out of the lift fully indem displayed Manager M	er therein passes, or annify and so any suffer by and expense	provided and for injury or d ave harmless y reason to d which it may	satisfy all amage to the said o so, and y incur by
alteration or add accompanying th	for the value received ition to the terms of the same shall in any th change, extension of difications.	ne Contract or to the way affect its obligation	e work to be ation on this	e performe Bond, and	d or the Sped d it does here	cifications by waive
seals this of each corpora	HEREOF, the above be determined and the party brings here the authority to	ofeto affix, and these	, 20 e presents	, the na	ame and corp	orate seal
Individual Princip In the presence of						
					(SEAL)	
(Individual Princip	oal)					
		(Business	Address)			
					(SEAL	_)
(Individual Princip	oai)					
		(Business	Address)			
R23-077-04 / W0	CHA Interior	00 0860- 3		Performa	nce, Labor &	Materials

Bond

Renovations to Jeannette Manor

Corporate Principals Sign Here Attest:			
(Corporate Principal)			_
(Title)	(Business Address)		_
Surety Sign Here Attest:			
(Corporate Surety) Witness:			-
	(Business Address)		-
	Ву		_ AFFIX
CORPORATE	Title		SEAL
The rate of premium on this Bond is		per thousand.	
Total amount of premium charged is \$			
The above must be filled in by Corporate Surmust be attached.	ety. Power-of-Attorney of	person signing for Surety	company
CERTIFICATE AS TO CORPORATE PRINC	<u>IPAL</u>		
I,, certify the corporation named as Principal in the within be said bond on behalf of the Principal was then know the signature and signature thereto is gattested for and in behalf of said corporation	oond; that genuine; and that said Bo	, who s of said Corporated and was duly signed, seale	igned the tion; that I
			(SEAL)
	DATE		,

LABOR AND MATERIALMEN'S BOND

which Contract and the Specifications for said work shall be deemed a part thereof as fully as if set out herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH THAT if said principal and all subcontractors to whom any portion of the work provided for in said Contract is sublet and all assignees of said principal and of such subcontractors shall promptly make payment for all material furnished, labor supplied or performed, rental for equipment employed, and services rendered by public utilities or in connection with the prosecution of the work, whether or not the said material, labor, equipment, or services entered into and become component parts of the work or improvement contemplated in said contract, or in any amendment or extension of or addition to said Contract, then the above obligation shall be void; otherwise to remain in full force and effect. PROVIDED, However that this bond is subject to the following conditions and limitations.

(a) All persons who have performed labor, rendered services or furnished materials or machinery, shall have a direct right of action against the principal and surety on this Bond, which right of action shall be assorted in proceedings instituted in the state in which such labor performed, services rendered or materials furnished (or where labor has been performed, services rendered or materials furnished under said Contract in more than one State, then in any such State, insofar as permitted by the laws of such State, such right of action shall be asserted in a proceeding instituted in the name of the Obligee to the use and benefit of the person instituting such action and any or all other persons having claims hereunder, and any other person having a claim hereunder shall have the right to be made a party to such proceeding (but not later than one year after the complete performance of said

Contract and final settlement thereof) and to have such claim adjudicated in such action and judgment rendered thereon.

- (b) The surety shall not be liable hereunder for any damages or compensation recoverable under any workmen's compensation or employer liability statute.
- (c) In no event shall the surety be liable for a greater sum than the penalty of this bond, or subject to any suit, action or proceeding thereon that is instituted later than one year after the complete performance of said Contract and final settlement thereof.
- (d) As used herein: The Term "person" refers to any individual, firm or corporation who have furnished materials or machinery or public utility services to be used on or incorporated in the work or the prosecution thereof provided for in said Contract or in any amendment or extension of or addition to said Contract, and/or to any person engaged in the prosecution of the work provided for in said Contract or in any amendment or extension of or addition to said Contract, who is an agent, servant or employee of the principal, or of any subcontractor, or of any assignee of said principal or of any subcontractor and also anyone so engaged who performs the work of a laborer or of a mechanic, regardless of any contractual relationship between the principal, or any subcontractor, or any assignee of said principal or of said subcontractor, and such laborer or mechanic, but shall not include office employees not regularly stationed at the site of the work.

The said Surety, for the value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract, or to the work to be performed thereunder of the Specifications accompanying the same, shall in any wise affect its obligation on this Bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alterations or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the work or the Specifications.

		DELIVERED , 20_		ORIGINAL	COUNTERPARTS	this
WITNESS:	:		Individual P	Principals Sign Here	} .	
		_	Title		(Seal)	
		_	Title		(Seal)	
			Title			
					(Seal)	
ATTEST:			Corporate F	Principal Sign Here	:	
BY						
TITLE			BY			
)4 / WCHA Ir ns to Jeanne	nor	00 0860- 6		rmance, Labor & Mate	erials Bond

TITLE	(Seal)
Surety Sign Here:	
BY	
TITLE	(Seal)

SECTION 00 0865 MAINTENANCE BOND

CONTRACT No. _CONTRACT

BOND NO. _____

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESEN	NTS THAT we	, the undersigned __			
		as PRINCIP	AL, and		
		_, a corporation or	ganized and	d existing under	the laws
of the state of					
				DOLLARS	(\$
),					
lawful money of the United State	es of America, t	o pay to the said _			to
which payment well and truly administrators, successors, and	be made an assigns, jointly	nd done, we bind and severally, firm	d ourselves ly by these p	, our heirs, e presents.	executors
WHEREAS, the above bounded dated this the					
upon certain ter hereto attached, and made apart	ms and conditi	ons mentioned in t	the said Cor	ntract, a copy of	f which is
WHEREAS, IT IS ONE OF THE before the final acceptance of the					ited on or
NOW, THEREFORE, the condition shall remedy without cost to the substitution which may develop during a perimental work performed under said Control defective or inferior materials or and remain in full force and effective	said	ear from the date of uch defects, in the or having jurisdicti	of completio judgment of ion in the p	any n and acceptar f remises, are ca	defectorice of the defectories o
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the s Seal the day and year first above		_ AND SURETY h	nave duly ex	ecuted this Bo	nd under
Signed and sealed this	d	ay of		20xx.	
		(Princi	ipal Name) (Seal)	_
			siness Addro	ess)	
(Witness)	Ву:	(= 3.			
(11111200)	-,.				
		(Principle	Title)		

(Surety Name)	
(Surety Business Address)	
Dv.	(Witness)
By: (Attorney – In - Fact)	witness)

DOCUMENT 00 0870

FORM OF CONTRACT

(3 PAGES)

FORM OF CONTRACT

THIS AGREEMENT n	nade this	day of	, in the year Two Thousand and
by and between		a corporation	on organized and existing under laws of the State of
, a pa	rtnership consisting of		, or individual trading as
		, he	rinafter called the "Contractor", and
THE WESTMORELA	ND COUNTY HOUSING	S AUTHORITY,	hereinafter called the "WCHA",
WITNESSETH, That t	he Contractor and the \	WCHA for the co	onsideration stated herein mutually agree as follows:
and complete all work	required for (the const	ruction of) <u>(desc</u>	n all labor, material, equipment and services, and perform ription of work and project identification) in strict accordance
with the Specifications	s for		(Identify the Specifications)
	numberedandand made a part hereof.	, which sa	, dated, and the Drawings referred to therein, all as prepared by aid Specifications, Addenda and Drawings are incorporated
ARTICLE 2. The Con	tract Price. The WCH.	A shall pay the 0	Contractor for the performance of the Contract, in current Specifications, the sum ofDollars
ARTICLE 3. Contract	Documents. The Contr	ract shall consist	of the following component parts:
a. b. c.	This Instrument General Conditions Special Conditions		

This instrument, together with the other documents enumerated in this Article 3, which said other documents are as fully a part of the Contract as if hereto attached or herein repeated, form the Contract. In the event that any provision in any component part of this Contract conflicts with any provision of any other component part, the provision of the component part first enumerated in this Article 3 shall govern, except as otherwise specifically stated. The various provisions in Addenda shall be construed in the order of preference of the component part of Contract which each modifies.

e.

Drawings

FORM OF CONTRACT

	eto have caused This Instrument to be executed in as sas of the day and year first above written.
	, ,
	(Contractor)
	(Contractor)
ATTEST:	
	Ву
	Title
	Business Address:
	(Street)
	(City) (Zip Code)
	(WCHA)
	Ву
	Title
	Business Address:
	(Street)
	(City) (Zip Code)

(Print or type the names underneath all signatures).

DOCUMENT 00 0880

WAGE DETERMINATION SCHEDULE

"General Decision Number: PA20240105 02/02/2024

Superseded General Decision Number: PA20230105

State: Pennsylvania

Construction Type: Building

County: Westmoreland County in Pennsylvania.

BUILDING CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (does not include single family homes or apartments up to and including 4 stories).

Note: Contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act are generally required to pay at least the applicable minimum wage rate required under Executive Order 14026 or Executive Order 13658. Please note that these Executive Orders apply to covered contracts entered into by the federal government that are subject to the Davis-Bacon Act itself, but do not apply to contracts subject only to the Davis-Bacon Related Acts, including those set forth at 29 CFR 5.1(a)(1).

If the contract is entered into on or after January 30, 2022, or the contract is renewed or extended (e.g., an |. The contractor must pay option is exercised) on or after January 30, 2022:

- | Executive Order 14026 generally applies to the contract.
- all covered workers at least \$17.20 per hour (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for all hours spent performing on the contract in 2024.

If the contract was awarded on |. Executive Order 13658 or between January 1, 2015 and January 29, 2022, and the contract is not renewed or extended on or after January 30, 2022:

- generally applies to the contract.
- . The contractor must pay all covered workers at least \$12.90 per hour (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for all hours spent performing on that contract in 2024.

The applicable Executive Order minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually. If this contract is covered by one of the Executive Orders and a classification considered necessary for performance of work on the contract does not appear on this wage determination, the contractor must still submit a conformance request.

Additional information on contractor requirements and worker

protections under the Executive Orders is available at http://www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification	Number	Publication 1	Date
0		01/05/2024	

1 01/12/2024 02/02/2024

ASBE0002-005 08/01/2023

	Rates	Fringes
ASBESTOS WORKER/HEAT & FROST INSULATOR MECHANICAL- Duct, Pipe & Mechanical System Insulation and Industrial Work (Including Duct and		
Pipe)	\$ 45.50	28.93
BOIL0154-007 01/01/2023		

	Rates	Fringes
BOILERMAKER	.\$ 45.60	31.37

BRPA0009-011 12/01/2022

	Rates	Fringes
TILE FINISHER\$		17.16
TILE SETTER\$	35.64 	21.63

BRPA0009-051 12/01/2022

	Rates	Fringes
BRICKLAYER (Including Pointing, Caulking, Cleaning		
and Brick Refractory Work)	\$ 36.55	24.46
MASON - STONE	\$ 36.55	24.46
Additional \$0.75 to the base wage	for Brick Refr	actory work

CARP0142-013 06/01/2023

CARPENTER (Including	
Acoustical Ceiling	
Installation, Drywall	
Hanging, Metal Stud	
Installation, Floor	
Laying-Hardwood, Carpet and	
Vinyl; Form Work, and	
Scaffold Building)\$ 38.92	20.06

Rates Fringes

CARP0274-003 01/01/2024		
	Rates	Fringes
PILEDRIVERMAN	.\$ 40.63	21.92
CARP0443-004 06/01/2023		
	Rates	Fringes
MILLWRIGHT	.\$ 45.50	31.56%+9.01
ELEC0005-018 12/22/2023		
	Rates	Fringes
ELECTRICIAN (Alarm Installation, Installation of Sound and Communication System and Low Voltage Wiring, HVAC/Temperature Controls Installation Only)	.\$ 48.61	30.91
* ENGI0066-040 06/12/2017		
	Rates	Fringes
POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATOR Backhoe/Excavator/Trackhoe, Bobcat/Skid Steer/Skid Loader, Bulldozer, Compactor, Crane*, Drill Rig Caissons, Drill, Gradall, Grader/Blade, Man Lift/Outside Elevator, Mechanic, Paver (Asphalt, Aggregate, and Concrete), Scraper, Forklift (Lull) Broom/Sweeper, Compressor, Concrete Pump, Highlift, Hoist, Pump, Roller, Tugboat, Forklift	.\$ 34.49	20.15
(ridden or self-propelled). Loader Oiler	.\$ 34.49	20.15 20.15 20.15
*Add to Crane rate:		
Booms 101-150 jibs- Add Booms 151-200 jibs- Add Booms 201-251 jibs- Add	\$1.50	
IRON0003-025 06/01/2023		
	Rates	Fringes

R23-077-04 / WCHA Interior Renovations to Jeannette Manor

<pre>IRONWORKER (Ornamental, Reinforcing, Rigger and Structural; Metal Buildings: Metal Siding/Wall Panels Installation)</pre>	\$ 38.89	34.54
LABO0125-006 06/01/2022		
	Rates	Fringes
LABORER Mason Tender - Cement/Concrete	\$ 30.24	12.05
LABO0373-001 01/01/2017		
	Rates	Fringes
LABORER (Asbestos Abatement (Removal from Floors, Walls, and Ceilings))	¢ 22 60	15.44
LABO1451-001 01/01/2019		
LABO1451-001 01/01/2019	Rates	Fringes
LABORER Common or General; Mason Tender- Brick		17.60
PAIN0057-033 06/01/2023		
	Rates	Fringes
PAINTER (Brush, Roller, and Spray, excluding work on Industrial sites)		23.72 23.26
PAIN0057-034 06/01/2023		
	Rates	Fringes
PAINTER (INDUSTRIAL: Brush and Roller Only) PAINTER (INDUSTRIAL: Spray	\$ 36.01	23.72
and Sandblaster Only)		23.72
PAIN0751-006 09/01/2023		
	Rates	Fringes
GLAZIER	\$ 35.65	29.73
PLAS0526-015 06/01/2021		

	Rates	Fringes
CEMENT MASON/CONCRETE FINISHER.	\$ 31.77	21.89
PLAS0526-026 06/01/2021		
	Rates	Fringes
PLASTERER	\$ 30.69	18.99
PLUM0354-010 06/01/2017		
	Rates	Fringes
PIPEFITTER (Industrial)	\$ 37.88	22.90
PLUM0354-018 06/01/2017		
	Rates	Fringes
PLUMBER	\$ 33.83	22.90
PLUM0354-019 06/01/2019		
	Rates	Fringes
PIPEFITTER (Includes HVAC Pipe Installation, Excludes Work on Industrial Sites)	\$ 34.77	24.25
ROOF0037-005 06/01/2023		
	Rates	Fringes
ROOFER (Excludes Metal Roof Installation and Waterproofing)	\$ 37.00	19.92
SHEE0012-011 07/01/2022		
	Rates	Fringes
SHEET METAL WORKER (Includes HVAC Duct and Metal Roof Installation)	\$ 39.50	30.79
* UAVG-PA-0032 01/01/2024		
0.110 2.11 0.002 0.27 0.27 2.02 2	Rates	Fringes
SPRINKLER FITTER (Fire Sprinklers)		26.79
SUPA2011-063 08/20/2014		
	Rates	Fringes

LABORER:	Asphalt Raker\$ 20.92	9.09
LABORER:	Landscape \$ 18.10	0.00
LABORER:	Luteman\$ 21.13	8.23
ROOFER: W	aterproofing Only\$ 23.13	2.51
TRUCK DRI	VER: Dump Truck\$ 23.36	7.60

WELDERS - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing operation to which welding is incidental.

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year. Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at

https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/government-contracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within the scope of the classifications listed may be added after award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses (29CFR 5.5 (a) (1) (iii)).

The body of each wage determination lists the classification and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical order of ""identifiers"" that indicate whether the particular rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local), a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate (weighted union average rate).

Union Rate Identifiers

A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed

in dotted lines beginning with characters other than ""SU"" or ""UAVG"" denotes that the union classification and rate were prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example: PLUM0198-005 07/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of the union which prevailed in the survey for this classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198 indicates the local union number or district council number where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number, 005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing the wage determination. 07/01/2014 is the effective date of the most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1, 2014.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the ""SU"" identifier indicate that no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that classification. As this weighted average rate includes all rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-007 5/13/2014. SU indicates the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 5/13/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate that no single majority rate prevailed for those classifications; however, 100% of the data reported for the classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010 08/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number, 0010 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 08/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is based.

WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

- 1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can be:
- * an existing published wage determination
- * a survey underlying a wage determination
- * a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on a wage determination matter
- * a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour National Office because National Office has responsibility for the Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this initial contact is not satisfactory, then the process described in 2.) and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal process described here, initial contact should be with the Branch of Construction Wage Determinations. Write to:

Branch of Construction Wage Determinations Wage and Hour Division U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an interested party (those affected by the action) can request review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator (See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

Wage and Hour Administrator U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the interested party's position and by any information (wage payment data, project description, area practice material, etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board). Write to:

Administrative Review Board U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final.

END OF GENERAL DECISION"

DOCUMENT 00 0884

MINIMUM WAGE NOTICE

(3 PAGES)

EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

UNDER THE DAVIS-BACON ACT

FOR LABORERS AND MECHANICS EMPLOYED ON FEDERAL OR FEDERALLY ASSISTED CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

PREVAILING WAGES

You must be paid not less than the wage rate listed in the Davis-Bacon Wage Decision posted with this Notice for the work you perform.

OVERTIME

You must be paid not less than one and one-half times your basic rate of pay for all hours worked over 40 in a work week. There are few exceptions.

ENFORCEMENT

Contract payments can be withheld to ensure workers receive wages and overtime pay due, and liquidated damages may apply if overtime pay requirements are not met. Davis-Bacon contract clauses allow contract termination and debarment of contractors from future federal contracts for up to three years. A contractor who falsifies certified payroll records or induces wage kickbacks may be subject to civil or criminal prosecution, fines and/or imprisonment.

APPRENTICES

Apprentice rates apply only to apprentices properly registered under approved Federal or State apprenticeship programs.

PROPER PAY

If you do not receive proper pay, or require further information on the applicable wages, contact the Contracting Officer listed below:

Westmoreland County Housing Authority 154 South Greengate Road Greensburg, PA 15601 Michael L. Washowich

or contact the U.S. Department of Labor's Wage and Hour Division.







DOCUMENT 00 0886

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION (form HUD-2554)

(5 PAGES)

Supplementary
Conditions of the
Contract for
Construction
Section 232

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Office of Residential Care Facilities

OMB Approval No. 2502-0605 (exp. 06/30/2022)

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 0.5 hours. This includes the time for collecting, reviewing, and reporting the data. The information is being collected to obtain the supportive documentation which must be submitted to HUD for approval, and is necessary to ensure that viable projects are developed and maintained. The Department will use this information to determine if properties meet HUD requirements with respect to development, operation and/or asset management, as well as ensuring the continued marketability of the properties. This agency may not collect this information, and you are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number.

Warning: Any person who knowingly presents a false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement or claim in a matter within the jurisdiction of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development is subject to criminal penalties, civil liability, and administrative sanctions.

Article 1: Labor Standards

- A. **Applicability.** The Project or program to which the construction work covered by this Contract pertains is being assisted or insured by the United States of America, and the following Federal Labor Standards Provisions are included in this Contract or related instrument pursuant to the provisions applicable to such Federal assistance or insurance. Any statute or regulation contained herein shall also include any subsequent amendment or successor statute or regulation.
- B. **Minimum Wages.** Pursuant to Section 212 of the National Housing Act, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1715c, the minimum wage provisions contained in this paragraph B do not apply to those projects with Security Instruments insured under Section 221(h)(1) designed for less than 9 families and they do not apply to those projects with Security Instruments insured under either Section 220 or 233 designed for less than 12 families.
- 1. (i) All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the Project) shall be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR Part 3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the Contractor and such laborers and mechanics. Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under Section 1 (b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141(2)(B)(ii)) on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv); also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs, which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed,

without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: *Provided*, that the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classification and wage rates conformed under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(v)) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the Contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

- (ii) (a) Any class of laborers or mechanics that is not listed in the wage determination and that is to be employed under this Contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. HUD shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits only when the following criteria have been met:
 - (1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
 - (2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and
 - (3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.
- (b) If the Contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and HUD or its designee agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by HUD or its designee to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, D.C. 20210 ("Administrator"). The Administrator, or an authorized representative, shall approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within thirty (30) days of receipt and so advise HUD or its designee or shall notify HUD or its designee within the thirty (30) day period that additional time is necessary. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB control number 1215-0140.)
- (c) In the event the Contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives and HUD or its designee do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), HUD or its designee shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of HUD or its designee, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, shall issue a determination within thirty (30) days of receipt and so advise HUD or its designee or shall notify HUD or its designee within the thirty (30) day period that additional time is necessary. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0140.)

- (d) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to subparagraphs B.1.(ii)(b) or (c) of this Article, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this Contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
- (iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the Contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit that is not expressed as an hourly rate, the Contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.
- (iv) If the Contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the Contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, *Provided*, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the Contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the Contractor to set aside, in a separate account, assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0140.)
- 2. Withholding. HUD or its designee shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the Contractor under this Contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other Federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees and helpers, employed by the Contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the Contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee or helper, employed or working on the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the Project), all or part of the wages required by the Contract, HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the Contractor, sponsor, applicant, or Owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased. HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the Contractor, disburse such amounts withheld for and on account of the Contractor or subcontractor to the respective employees to whom they are due.

3. Payrolls, records, and certifications.

(i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the Contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937, or under the Housing Act of 1949, in the construction or development of the Project). Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in Section 1 (b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141(2)(B)(ii))), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of

Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in Section 1 (b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141(2)(B)(ii)), the Contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Numbers 1215-0140 and 1215-0017.)

(ii)(a) The Contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to HUD or its designee if the agency is a party to the Contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the Contractor shall submit the payrolls to the applicant, sponsor, or Owner, as the case may be, for transmission to HUD or its designee. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each employee (e.g., the last four digits of the employee's social security number). The required weekly payroll information must be submitted electronically. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social security number and current address of each covered worker, and shall provide them upon request to HUD or its designee if the agency is a party to the Contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the Contractor will submit the payrolls to the applicant sponsor, or Owner, as the case may be, for transmission to HUD or its designee, the Contractor, or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage requirements. It is not a violation of this subparagraph for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and social security numbers to the prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submission to HUD or its designee. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0149.)

- (b) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the Contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the Contract and shall certify the following:
 - (1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(ii), the appropriate information is being maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), and that such information is correct and complete.

- (2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the Contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in 29 CFR Part 3;
- (3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the Contract.
- (c) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by subparagraph B.3.(ii)(b) of this Article.
- (d) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the Contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under Section 1001 of Title 18 and Sections 3801 *et seq.* of Title 31 of the United States Code.
- (iii) The Contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under subparagraph B.3.(i) of this Article available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of HUD or its designee or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the Contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the Contractor, sponsor, applicant, or Owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.

4. Apprentices and Trainees.

(i) **Apprentices.** Apprentices shall be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by such Office, or if a person is employed in his or her first ninety (90) days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship, or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the Contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than

the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where the Contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the Contractor's or subcontractor's registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the Office of Apprenticeship, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by such Office, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the Contractor shall no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

- (ii) **Trainees.** Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees shall not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman's hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate that is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the Contractor shall no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.
- (iii) **Equal employment opportunity.** The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under 29 CFR Part 5 shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR Part 30.
- 5. **Compliance with Copeland Act Requirements.** The Contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this Contract.

- 6. **Subcontracts.** The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in subparagraphs 1 through 10 of this paragraph B and such other clauses as HUD or its designee may by appropriate instructions require, and a copy of the applicable prevailing wage determination, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all Contract clauses referenced in this subparagraph.
- 7. **Contract termination and debarment.** A breach of the Contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the Contract, and for debarment as a contractor or a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.
- 8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements. All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this Contract.
- 9. **Disputes concerning labor standards.** Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this Contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this Contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the Contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and HUD or its designee, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.

10. Certification of Eligibility.

- (i) By entering into this Contract, the Contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the Contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3144(b)(2)) or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be awarded HUD contracts or participate in HUD programs pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.
- (ii) No part of this Contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3144(b)(2)) or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be awarded HUD contracts or participate in HUD programs pursuant to 2 CFR Part 2424.
- (iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001. Additionally, U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1010, "Department of Housing and Urban Development and Federal Housing Administration transactions" provides in part: "Whoever, for the purpose of . . . influencing in any way the action of such Department . . . makes, passes, utters or publishes any statement, knowing the same to be false . . . shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than two years, or both."

C. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act.

1. **Applicability and Definitions.** This paragraph C of Article 1 is applicable only if a direct form of federal assistance is involved, such as Section 8, Section 202/811 Capital

Advance, grants etc., and is applicable only where the prime contract is in an amount greater than \$100,000. As used in this paragraph C, the terms "laborers" and "mechanics" include watchmen and guards.

- 2. **Overtime requirements.** No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the Contract work that may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty (40) hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours in such workweek.
- 3. Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the immediately preceding subparagraph C.2, the Contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, the Contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory) for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of such subparagraph, for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty (40) hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in such subparagraph.
- 4. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. HUD or its designee shall, upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the Contractor or subcontractor under any such contract, or under any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or under any other Federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act which is held by the same prime contractor such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such Contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in subparagraph 3 of this paragraph C.
- 5. **Subcontracts.** The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in subparagraphs 1 through 5 of this paragraph C and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in such subparagraphs 1 through 5.

D. Certification.

For projects with Security Instruments insured under the National Housing Act, as amended, that are subject to paragraph B of this Article 1, the Contractor is required to execute the Contractor's Prevailing Wage Certificate within HUD-92448 as a condition precedent to insurance by HUD of the Loan, or an advance thereof, made or to be made by the Lender in connection with the construction of the Project.

Article 2: Equal Employment Opportunity

- A. **Applicability.** This Article 2 applies to any contract for construction work, or modification thereof, as defined in the regulations of the Secretary of Labor at 41 CFR Chapter 60, which is paid for in whole or in part with funds obtained from the Federal Government or borrowed on the credit of the Federal Government pursuant to a grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee, or undertaken pursuant to any Federal program involving such grant, contract, loan, insurance, or guarantee.
- B. The Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, or national origin. The Contractor shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training including apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.
- C. The Contractor shall, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor state that all qualified applicants shall receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, or national origin. The contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part of such employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish information.
- D. The Contractor shall send to each labor union or representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers representatives of the Contractor's commitments hereunder, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.
- E. The Contractor shall comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, as amended, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.
- F. The Contractor shall furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and

shall permit access to its books, records, and accounts by the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

- G. In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this Contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this Contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and Contractor may be declared ineligible for further government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246, or by rule, regulations or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
- H. The Contractor shall include the provisions of paragraphs A through H of this Article 2 in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to Section 204 of Executive Order 11246, as amended, so that such provisions shall be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The Contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as HUD or the Secretary of Labor may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance. *Provided, however*, that in the event the Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by HUD or the Secretary of Labor, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

Article 3: Equal Opportunity for Businesses and Lower Income Persons Located Within the Project Area

- A. This Article 3 is applicable to projects covered by Section 3, as defined in 24 CFR Part 135.
- B. The work to be performed under this Contract is on a project assisted under a program providing direct Federal financial assistance from HUD and is subject to the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u. Section 3 requires that to the greatest extent feasible opportunities for training and employment be given to low- and very low-income persons who are (1) residents of the housing developments for which the assistance is expended, (2) residents of other developments managed by the public or Indian housing agency that is expending the assistance, (3) participants in YouthBuild programs, and (4) other low- and very low-income persons residing within the metropolitan area (or nonmetropolitan county) as determined by HUD in which the Project is located and contracts for work in connection with the Project be awarded to business concerns that provide economic opportunities for low- and very low-income persons.

Article 4: Health and Safety

A. This Article 4 is applicable only where the prime contract is in an amount greater than \$100,000.

- B. No laborer or mechanic shall be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to his or her health and safety as determined under construction safety and health standards promulgated by the Secretary of Labor by regulation.
- C. The Contractor shall comply with all regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor pursuant to 29 CFR Part 1926, and failure to comply may result in imposition of sanctions pursuant to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, 40 U.S.C 3701 *et seq*.
- D. The Contractor shall include the provisions of this Article 4 in every subcontract so that such provisions shall be binding on each subcontractor. The Contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontract as HUD or the Secretary of Labor shall direct as a means of enforcing such provisions.

DOCUMENT 00 9100

ADDENDA (Sample)

PRO	PROJECT NO	
Proj	ject Name:	
ADDENDUM NO	DATE OF ISSUE: PAGE NO. 1	
Notice to All Bidders:	TAGENO. T	
This addendum is hereby made a part of addendum is to amend, modify and clarif	the contract and is to be included therein. The purpose of this fy the contract documents, as follows:	
CHANGES TO PREVIOUS ADDENDUM	<u>1:</u>	
CHANGES TO SPECIFICATIONS:		
CHANGES TO DRAWINGS:		
preparation of their Bid and shall so indic to acknowledge receipt of this addendum	e consideration to the contents of this addendum in the cate on the Bid Form in the spaces provided. Failure of a bidder on his Bid form may be considered sufficient cause for rejection each bidder to assure that all his suppliers and subcontractors ddendum.	
Architect: Sleighter Design 1060 Eberly Way Lemont Furnace, PA 15456		
Owner: Westmoreland County Housing Authority 167 South Greengate Road, Greensburg, PA 15601	<i>'</i>	
	OF ADDENDUM NO	

SECTION 01 1000 SUMMARY

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 PROJECT

- A. Project Name: Interior Renovations to Jeannette Manor.
- B. Owner's Name: Westmoreland County Housing Authority.
- C. Architect's Name: Sleighter Design.

Summary of work:

The primary objective is to update the hallways to include the following:

1. First Floor

- a. New LVT flooring and cove base in Corridors, Community Room and Community Room Restrooms
- b. Paint and skim walls in Vestibule, Lobby, Corridors, Community Room and Community Room Restrooms
- c. Grout existing floor tile in Vestibule and Lobby
- d. Paint existing ceiling and bulkheads in Community Room
- e. New ceiling tile in existing ceiling grid in Community Room and Restrooms
- f. Paint existing doors and frames
- g. New apartment doors and paint existing frames
- h. New casework at Community Room kitchen and Lobby mailbox center
- i. Replace existing Emergency Fire Equipment Signal Fixture and provide new Signal Fixture at 18" AFF below
- i. Replace existing receptacle and cover at Vestibule, Lobby and Corridors
- k. New stainless steel wainscot at elevator doors
- I. New corner guards in all public spaces
- m. Replace handrail vinyl cover, returns and corner with Owner provided materials in kind

2. Second through Eight Floors

- a. New LVT flooring and cove base in Corridors and Lobby
- b. Paint and skim walls in Lobby, Corridors, 2nd Floor Office and Laundry Rooms (4th, 6th and 8th Floors)
- c. Paint existing ceiling and bulkheads in Lobby and Corridors
- d. Paint existing doors and frames
- e. New apartment doors and paint existing frames
- f. Replace existing Emergency Fire Equipment Signal Fixture and provide new Signal Fixture at 18" AFF below
- g. Replace existing receptacle and cover at Lobby and Corridors
- h. New stainless steel wainscot at elevator doors
- i. New corner guards in all public spaces
- j. Replace handrail vinyl cover, returns and corner with Owner provided materials in kind
- k. Replace existing wall mounted light fixture in Corridors and Lobby

3. Ninth Floor

- a. New LVT flooring and cove base in Corridors and Lobby
- b. Paint and skim walls in Lobby and Corridors
- c. Paint existing ceiling and bulkheads in Lobby and Corridors

- d. Paint existing doors and frames
- e. New apartment doors and paint existing frames
- f. Replace existing Emergency Fire Equipment Signal Fixture and provide new Signal Fixture at 18" AFF below
- g. Replace existing receptacle and cover at Lobby and Corridors
- h. New stainless steel wainscot at elevator doors
- i. New corner guards in all public spaces
- j. Replace handrail vinyl cover, returns and corner with Owner provided materials in kind
- k. Replace existing wall mounted light fixture in Corridors and Lobby

4. Elevators

- a. Paint elevator doors (both sides) at Second through Ninth Floors
- b. Paint elevator doors on cab side at First Floor
- c. New LVT flooring in both elevator cars
- d. New wall panels in both elevator cars

1.02 CONTRACT DESCRIPTION

- A. Contract Type: One prime contract, based on a Stipulated Base Bid Cost.
- B. Contracts will be awarded for these trades:
 - 1. General Construction
- C. The work of each trade is identified in the contract documents.

1.03 WORK BY OTHERS

A. Items noted NIC (Not in Contract) are not a part of the Prime Contracts.

1.04 OWNER OCCUPANCY

- A. Owner intends to continue to occupy all of the spaces of the existing building during the entire construction period.
- B. Cooperate with Owner to minimize conflict and to facilitate Owner's operations.
- C. Schedule the Work to accommodate Owner occupancy.

1.05 CONTRACTOR USE OF SITE AND PREMISES

- A. Construction Operations: Limited to areas noted on Drawings.
- B. Arrange use of site and premises to allow:
 - 1. Owner occupancy.
 - 2. Use of site and premises by the public.
- C. Provide access to and from site as required by law and by Owner:

- 1. Emergency Building Exits During Construction: Keep all exits required by code open during construction period; provide temporary exit signs if exit routes are temporarily altered.
- 2. Do not obstruct roadways, sidewalks, or other public ways without permit.

D. Time Restrictions:

- 1. Limit conduct of especially noisy exterior work to the hours of 8 am to 5 pm.
- E. Utility Outages and Shutdown:
 - 1. Limit disruption of utility services to hours the building is unoccupied.
 - 2. Do not disrupt or shut down life safety systems, including but not limited to fire sprinklers and fire alarm system, without 7-days notice to Owner and authorities having jurisdiction.
 - 3. Prevent accidental disruption of utility services to other facilities.

1.06 WORK SEQUENCE

A. Coordinate construction schedule and operations with Owner and Architect.

PART 2 PRODUCTS - NOT USED

PART 3 EXECUTION - NOT USED

END OF SECTION

SECTION 01 1200

MULTIPLE CONTRACT SUMMARY

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Summary of Work for Prime Contracts.
- B. Administrative and Procedural Sections Applicable to each Prime Contract

1.02 PROJECT WORK COVERED BY CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

- A. The prime contracts on this project are as follows:
 - General Construction
 - 2. Electrical Construction
- B. Work of each separate Prime Contract is identified in the following paragraphs and as indicated on the Contract Drawings. Each Prime Contractor shall familiarize themselves with the description of the work of other Prime Contractors, and shall incorporate into their bid the work that is an appropriate part of their contract. The General Contractor shall be the lead Contractor and shall in general, control the sequencing of the work. Each Prime Contractor shall coordinate their work with work of other Contractors so as not to limit, prohibit or interfere with the progress of other contracts. One or all contracts may be in progress at the time of each contractor's work.

1.03 ADMINISTRATIVE AND PROCEDURAL SECTIONS

- A. Applicable to each Prime Contract
 - 1. 00 0030 Advertisement For Bid
 - 2. 00 0040 Important Instructions for All Prime Contractors
 - 3. 00 0100 Instructions To Bidders
 - 4. 00 0120 Representations, Certificates, & other Statements of Bidders
 - 5. 00 0140 Contract Provisions Required by Federal Law
 - 6. 00 0300 Bid Form
 - 7. 00 0421 Statement of Bidders Qualifications
 - 8. 00 0700 General Conditions
 - 9. 00 0710 Exhibit B
 - 10. 00 0720 Exhibit C
 - 11. 00 0730 Exhibit D
 - 12. 00 0740 Exhibit F
 - 13. 00 0760 Provisions & Procedures Pertaining to Employment Opportunities
 - 14. 00 0770 Previous Participation Certification
 - 15. 00 0840 Non-Collusive Affidavit
 - 16. 00 0845 Employment Verification Form
 - 17. 00 0850 Form of Bid Bond
 - 18. 00 0860 Performance, Labor & Materials Bond
 - 19. 00 0865 Maintenance Bond
 - 20. 00 0870 Form of Contract
 - 21. 00 0880 Prevailing Wage Requirements
 - 22. 00 0884 Minimum Wage Notice
 - 23. 00 0886 Supplementary Conditions of The Contract For Construction (form HUD-2554)
 - 24. 00 9100 Addenda
 - 25. 01 1000 Summary
 - 26. 01 1200 Multiple Contract Summary
 - 27. 01 1230 Alternates
 - 28. 01 1270 Unit Prices
 - 29. 01 2000 Price & Payment Procedures
 - 30. 01 3000 Administrative Requirements
 - 31. 01 3213 Scheduling and Phasing

32. 01 3216 33. 01 3300	Construction Progress Schedule Submittals
34. 01 3500	Safety
35. 01 4000	Quality Requirements
36. 01 4216	Definitions
37. 01 5000	Temporary Facilities & Controls
38. 01 5500	Vehicular Access & Parking
39. 01 6000	Product Requirements
40. 01 7000	Execution & Closeout Requirements
41. 01 7800	Closeout Submittals

1.04 GENERAL CONSTRUCTION

A. Contract work is specified in the following sections:

Contract work is opening in the following contents:			
1. 02 4100	Demolition		
2. 03 5400	Cast Underlayment		
3. 05 4000	Cold-formed Metal Framing		
4. 06 1000	Rough Carpentry		
5. 06 2000	Finish Carpentry		
6. 07 9200	Joint Sealants		
7. 08 1416	Flush Wood Doors		
8. 08 4113	Aluminum Entrance and Storefronts		
9. 08 7100	Door Hardware		
10. 09 2116	Gypsum Board Assemblies		
11. 09 3000	Tiling and Grout		
12. 09 5100	Suspended Acoustic Ceilings		
13. 09 6514	Resilient Wall Base		
14. 09 6519	Resilient Tile Flooring		
15. 09 9813	Tile Carpeting		
16. 09 9123	Painting		
17. 10 1101	Visual Display Boards and Tack Boards		
18. 10 1400	Signage		
19. 10 2601	Wall Panels and Corner Guards		
20. 12 2400	Window Shades		
21. 12 3530	Residential Casework		

B. Contract work is identified on the Architectural drawings. All drawings are issued with the General contract for reference and coordination with other trades.

1.05 ELECTRICAL

- A. Contract work that is specified in the following sections.
 - 26 2726 Wiring Devices
 26 5000 Interior Lighting
- B. Contract work is identified on the drawings. All drawings are issued with the Electrical contract for reference and coordination with other trades.

1.08 SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

A. Each Prime Contractors shall be responsible for their own demolition as well as patching and repairing areas disturbed by their work.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 01 1230 ALTERNATES

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01. SECTION INCLUDES

A. Description of Alternates.

1.02. RELATED REQUIREMENTS

- A. Document 00 2100 A701- Instructions to Bidders: Instructions for preparation of pricing for Alternates.
- B. Document 00 5200 A101-2017 Standard Form of Agreement: Paragraph 4.2 Alternates; Incorporating monetary value of accepted Alternates.

1.03. ACCEPTANCE OF ALTERNATES

- A. Alternates quoted on Bid Forms will be reviewed and accepted or rejected at Owner's option. Accepted Alternates will be identified in the Owner-Contractor Agreement.
- B. Coordinate related work and modify surrounding work to integrate the Work of each Alternate.

1.04.SCHEDULE OF ALTERNATES

DEDUCT ALTERNATE GC 1 APARTMENT ENTRANCE DOORS (\$)				
State the amount to Deduct from the base bid, the amount to deduct the new solid core wood doors at each apartment entrance. In lieu of the new wood doors, clean, sand and re-stain the existing wood doors. Provide new door hardware for the existing doors.				
DEDUCT ALTERNATE GC 2 COMMUNITY ROOM EXTERIOR ENTRANCE DOOR (\$)				
State the amount to Deduct from the base bid, the amount to deduct the new aluminum entrance door at the community room.				
DEDUCT ALTERNATE EC 1 LIGHTING (\$				
State the amount to Deduct from the base bid, the amount to deduct all corridor wall-mounted lights (excluding the emergency lights) on 2 nd through 9 th floors from the scope of work. Emergency lighting is to remain as part of Alternate EC1.				

PART 2 PRODUCTS - NOT USED

PART 3 EXECUTION - NOT USED

END OF SECTION 01 1230

UNIT PRICES SECTION 01 1270

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 RELATED DOCUMENTS

A. Construction Drawings, Technical Specifications, Addenda, and general provisions of the Contract, including Contract General Conditions and Supplementary General Conditions and other Division 1 Specification Sections, apply to this Section.

1.02 SECTION INCLUDES

A. Administrative and procedural requirements for unit prices.

1.03 RELATED SECTIONS

- A. Section 00 0300 Bid Form.
- B. Section 00 0700 General Conditions for Change Orders.

1.04 DEFINITIONS

- A. Unit Price: An amount proposed by Bidder and stated on the Bid Proposal as a price per unit of measurement for materials or services that will be added to or deducted from the Contract Sum by Change Order in the event the estimated quantities of Work required by the Contract Documents are increased or decreased.
 - Unit prices quoted in the Bid Proposal are for additions or deletions of approved items of Work.
 - All unit prices quoted shall be for the items completely installed, furnished, and operable in accordance with the Contract Documents, and shall include profit, overhead, taxes, cost of coordinating the unit price work with adjacent work, compensation for risk of loss or damage to the work regardless of cause, all expenses due to delays in performance, so they are the complete price to the Owner.
 - 3. Unit prices shall not apply to work the Contractor elects to do for its own convenience or to correct errors committed by the Contractor.
 - 4. All unit prices shall remain in effect for the full term of the Contract.
 - 5. Quantities listed in the Contract Documents are approximate only. Contract Amount shall be adjusted by change order using unit prices listed for actual quantities of Work performed.

1.05 PROCEDURES

- A. Measurement and Payment Procedures: As stated in General Conditions of the Contract. Refer to individual product Specification Sections for Work that requires establishment of unit prices. Basis of each unit price is specified in those Sections.
 - 1. Measure: Owner reserves the right to reject Contractor's measurement of work-inplace that involves use of established unit prices and to have this Work measured, at the Owner's expense, by an independent surveyor.
 - B. List of Unit Prices: A list of unit prices is included at the end of this Section. Specification Sections referenced in the schedule contain requirements for materials described under each unit price.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

Not Applicable to this Section.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 LIST OF UNIT PRICES

GC -	1 SKIM COATING		
	(\$), for each Square Foot	(SF) of Skim Coating.	
	The General Contractor is to provide skim coadrawings. To remove skim coating, the contra foot. This cost shall include all labor and mate	ctor shall provide a unit cost per square	
GC –	2 GYPSUM WALLBOARD		
	(\$), for each Square Foot	(SF) of Gypsum Wallboard.	
	The General Contractor is to provide 50 squar the base bid. To add or to remove gypsum wa provide a unit cost per square foot. This cost s required for gypsum wallboard.	Ilboard patching, the contractor shall	
GC -	3 TIMELY DOOR FRAMES		
	(\$), per door opening.		
	The General Contractor is to provide the labor to remove ten (10) existing door fram		

The General Contractor is to provide the labor to remove ten (10) existing door frames and install ten (10) new Timely door frames as part of the base bid. The owner will furnish the new door frames. To add or to remove labor costs, the contractor shall provide a unit cost for each door opening. This cost shall include labor only, door frames will be furnished buy the owner.

END OF SECTION 01 1270

SECTION 01 2000 PRICE AND PAYMENT PROCEDURES

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

A. Procedures for preparation and submittal of applications for progress payments.

1.02 SCHEDULE OF VALUES

- Form to be used: HUD-51000.
- B. Forms filled out by hand will not be accepted.
- Submit Schedule of Values in triplicate within 15 days after date of Owner-Contractor Agreement.

1.03 APPLICATIONS FOR PROGRESS PAYMENTS

- A. Payment Period: Monthly.
- B. Form to be used: HUD-51001.
- C. Forms filled out by hand will not be accepted.
- D. Execute certification by signature of authorized officer.
- E. Use data from approved Schedule of Values. Provide dollar value in each column for each line item for portion of work performed and for stored products.
- F. Submit three copies of each Application for Payment.
- G. Include the following with the application:
 - 1. Transmittal letter as specified for Submittals in Section 01 3000.
 - 2. Application for Payment (HUD-51001)
 - 3. Construction progress schedule, revised and current as specified in Section 01 3000.
 - 4. Schedule of Change Orders (HUD-51002)
 - 5. Schedule of Materials Stored (HUD-51003)
 - 6. Summary of Materials Stored (HUD-51004)
 - 7. Construction Progress Schedule (HUD-5372)
 - 8. Contractor Payment Certification (HUD-5370, clause 27e)
 - 9. Copy of approved Schedule of Values (HUD-51000)
 - 10. Copy of the previous Payment Application (first page only)
- H. Certified Payrolls must be submitted on a weekly basis to the owner. Applications for payment will not be approved without all certified payrolls submitted.

1.04 MODIFICATION PROCEDURES

- A. For minor changes not involving an adjustment to the Contract Sum or Contract Time, Architect or Owner will issue instructions directly to Contractor.
- B. For other required changes, Architect will issue a document signed by Owner instructing Contractor to proceed with the change, for subsequent inclusion in a Change Order.
 - 1. The document will describe the required changes and will designate method of determining any change in Contract Sum or Contract Time.
 - 2. Promptly execute the change.
- C. For changes for which advance pricing is desired, Architect will issue a document that includes a detailed description of a proposed change with supplementary or revised drawings and specifications, a change in Contract Time for executing the change with a stipulation of any overtime work required and the period of time during which the requested price will be considered valid. Contractor shall prepare and submit a fixed price quotation within two days.
- D. Contractor may propose a change by submitting a request for change to Architect, describing the proposed change and its full effect on the Work, with a statement describing the reason for the change, and the effect on the Contract Sum and Contract Time with full documentation and

- a statement describing the effect on Work by separate or other contractors. Document any requested substitutions in accordance with Section 01 6000.
- E. Computation of Change in Contract Amount: As specified in the Agreement and Conditions of the Contract.
 - 1. For change requested by Architect for work falling under a fixed price contract, the amount will be based on Contractor's price quotation as approved by the Architect.
 - 2. For change requested by Contractor, the amount will be based on the Contractor's request for a Change Order as approved by Architect.
 - 3. For pre-determined unit prices and quantities, the amount will based on the fixed unit prices.
 - For change ordered by Architect without a quotation from Contractor, the amount will be determined by Architect based on the Contractor's substantiation of costs as specified for Time and Material work.
- F. Substantiation of Costs: Provide full information required for evaluation.
 - 1. Provide the following data:
 - a. Quantities of products, labor, and equipment.
 - b. Taxes, insurance, and bonds.
 - c. Overhead and profit.
 - d. Justification for any change in Contract Time.
 - e. Credit for deletions from Contract, similarly documented.
 - 2. Support each claim for additional costs with additional information:
 - a. Origin and date of claim.
 - b. Dates and times work was performed, and by whom.
 - c. Time records and wage rates paid.
 - d. Invoices and receipts for products, equipment, and subcontracts, similarly documented.
 - 3. For Time and Material work, submit itemized account and supporting data after completion of change, within time limits indicated in the Conditions of the Contract.
 - a. The Owner or Engineer shall verify all Time and Materials used on a daily basis.
- G. Execution of Change Orders: Architect will issue Change Orders for signatures of parties as provided in the Conditions of the Contract.
- H. Promptly revise progress schedules to reflect any change in Contract Time, revise subschedules to adjust times for other items of work affected by the change, and resubmit.
- I. Promptly enter changes in Project Record Documents.

1.05 APPLICATION FOR FINAL PAYMENT

- A. Prepare Application for Final Payment as specified for progress payments, identifying total adjusted Contract Sum, previous payments, and sum remaining due.
- B. Application for Final Payment will not be considered until the following have been accomplished:
 - 1. All closeout procedures specified in Section 01 7000.
 - 2. Release of Certification of Final Payment.

PART 2 PRODUCTS - NOT USED

PART 3 EXECUTION - NOT USED

END OF SECTION

SECTION 01 3000

ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- Preconstruction meeting.
- B. Progress meetings.
- C. Construction progress schedule.
- D. Progress photographs.
- E. Coordination drawings.
- F. Submittals for review, information, and project closeout.

1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

- Section 01 3216 Construction Progress Schedule: Form, content, and administration of schedules.
- B. Section 01 3300 Submittals
- Section 01 7000 Execution and Closeout Requirements: Additional coordination requirements.
- D. Section 01 7800 Closeout Submittals: Project record documents.

1.03 PROJECT COORDINATION

- A. Cooperate with the Owner in allocation of mobilization areas of site; for field offices and sheds, for storage areas, access, traffic, and parking facilities.
- B. During construction, coordinate use of site and facilities through the Owner.
- C. Comply with Owner and Architect's procedures for intra-project communications; submittals, reports and records, schedules, coordination drawings, and recommendations; and resolution of ambiguities and conflicts.
- D. Comply with instructions of the Owner for use of temporary utilities and construction facilities.
- E. Coordinate field engineering and layout work under instructions of the Architect.
- F. Make the following types of submittals to Architect:
 - Requests for interpretation.
 - 2. Requests for substitution.
 - 3. Shop drawings, product data, and samples.
 - 4. Test and inspection reports.
 - 5. Design data.
 - 6. Manufacturer's instructions and field reports.
 - 7. Applications for payment and change order requests.
 - 8. Progress schedules.
 - 9. Coordination drawings.
 - 10. Correction Punch List and Final Correction Punch List for Substantial Completion.
 - 11. Closeout submittals.

1.04 ADMINSTRATIVE AND SUPERVISORY PERSONNEL

- A. General: In addition to its full-time on site Project Superintendent, each Prime Contractor shall provide other administrative and supervisory personnel, as required for proper performance of the work. Include special personnel required for coordination of operations with other Prime Contractors.
- B. Project Coordinator: The Contractor for General Construction shall provide a fulltime Superintendent/Project Coordinator, experienced in administration and supervision of building construction, including plumbing, mechanical, and electrical work. The Superintendent/Project

Coordinator shall be authorized to act as the coordinator of construction activities between the separate Prime Contractors.

- 1. Construction activities requiring coordination by the Project Coordinator include, but are not limited to, the following:
 - a. Scheduling and sequencing the Work.
 - b. Sharing access to work spaces.
 - c. Installations.
 - d. Protection of each other's work.
 - e. Cutting and patching.
 - f. Selections for compatibility.
 - g. Coordination drawings.
 - h. Inspections and tests.
 - i. Temporary services and facilities.
 - j. Daily project clean up activities.
 - k. Quality Control.
- C. Staff Names: Within 5 calendar days of commencement of construction operations, each Prime Contractor shall submit a list of its principal staff assignments, including the Superintendent and other personnel in attendance at the Project Site. Identify individuals and their duties and responsibilities. List their addresses and telephone numbers.

1.05 CONTRACTOR COORDINATION

- A. The General Contractor is designated as the Lead Prime Contractor for the Project. Each Prime Contractor shall coordinate its construction activities with those of the other prime contractors and other entities involved to assure efficient and orderly installation of each part of the work. Each Prime Contractor shall coordinate its operations with operations included under different Sections of the Specifications that depend on each other for proper installation, connection, and operation.
- B. Each Prime Contractor shall schedule its construction operations in the sequence required to obtain the best results where installation of one part of the Work depends on installation of other components, before or after its own installation.
- C. Where availability of space is limited, each Prime Contractor shall coordinate installation of different components with other prime contractors to assure maximum accessibility for required maintenance, service, and repair.
- D. Each Prime Contractor shall make adequate provisions to accommodate items scheduled for later installation.
- E. Each Prime Contractor shall participate in these coordination requirements. Each Prime Contractor shall advise the Owner and Engineer of overall coordination progress. When necessary, such as in congested spaces where multiple prime contracts are involved, the prime contractors shall meet with the Owner and Engineer and all other prime contractors involved to resolve critical coordination areas. Specific responsibilities are assigned to each prime contractor. The General Contractor and other Prime Contractors shall prepare Coordination Drawings as necessary to verify conflicts prior to installation.
- F. In the event of coordination disputes or questions, the prime contractors involved shall submit the question or dispute to the engineer. The engineer will provide specific direction relating to the question or dispute. Direction provided to prime contractors in response to questions or disputes shall be adhered to by all prime contractors. The Owner will not consider requests for additional time or coordination, questions, or disputes. In all matters pertaining to coordination, the decision of the engineer shall be final.
- G. Where necessary, prepare memoranda for distribution to each party involved, outlining special procedures required for coordination. Include such items as required notices, reports, and attendance at meetings.
 - Prepare similar memoranda for the Owner and separate contractors where coordination of their Work is required.

- H. Administrative Procedures: Each Prime Contractor shall coordinate scheduling and timing of its required administrative procedures with other construction activities and activities of other prime contractors to avoid conflicts and assure orderly progress of the work. Such administrative activities include, but are not limited to, the following:
 - Preparation of schedules.
 - 2. Installation and removal of temporary facilities.
 - 3. Delivery and processing of submittals.
 - 4. Progress meetings.
 - 5. Project closeout activities.

PART 2 PRODUCTS - NOT USED

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 PRECONSTRUCTION MEETING

- A. Owner will schedule a meeting after Notice of Award.
- B. Attendance Required:
 - 1. Owner.
 - 2. Architect.
 - 3. Prime Contractors.
- C. Agenda:
 - Execution of Owner-Contractor Agreement.
 - 2. Submission of executed bonds and insurance certificates.
 - 3. Distribution of Contract Documents.
 - 4. Submission of list of Subcontractors, Schedule of Values, and Progress Schedule.
 - 5. Designation of personnel representing the parties to Contract, Owner and Architect.
 - 6. Procedures and processing of field decisions, submittals, substitutions, applications for payments, proposal request, Change Orders, and Contract closeout procedures.
 - 7. Scheduling.
- D. Owner will record minutes and distribute copies within five days after meeting to participants, with copies to Architect, Owner, Contractors, and those affected by decisions made.

3.02 SITE MOBILIZATION MEETING

- A. Schedule meeting at the Project site prior to Contractor occupancy.
 - Attendance Required:
 - 1. Contractor.
 - 2. Owner.
 - 3. Architect.
 - 4. Contractor's Superintendent.
 - 5. Major Subcontractors.
- C. Agenda:
 - Use of premises by Owner and Contractor.
 - 2. Owner's requirements and occupancy prior to completion.
 - 3. Construction facilities and controls provided by Owner.
 - 4. Security and housekeeping procedures.
 - 5. Schedules.
- D. Record minutes and distribute copies within two days after meeting to participants, with two copies to Architect, Owner, participants, and those affected by decisions made.

3.03 PROGRESS MEETINGS

- A. Owner will make arrangements for meetings, prepare agenda with copies for participants, preside at meetings.
- B. Attendance Required:
 - Contractor.

- 2. Owner.
- Architect.
- 4. Special Consultants.
- 5. Contractor's Superintendent.
- 6. Major Subcontractors.

C. Agenda:

- 1. Review minutes of previous meetings.
- 2. Review of Work progress.
- 3. Field observations, problems, and decisions.
- 4. Identification of problems that impede, or will impede, planned progress.
- 5. Review of submittals schedule and status of submittals.
- 6. Review of off-site fabrication and delivery schedules.
- 7. Maintenance of progress schedule.
- 8. Corrective measures to regain projected schedules.
- 9. Planned progress during succeeding work period.
- 10. Coordination of projected progress.
- 11. Maintenance of quality and work standards.
- 12. Effect of proposed changes on progress schedule and coordination.
- 13. Other business relating to Work.
- D. Contractors shall provide a written report on past weeks work at each job conference.
- E. Contractors shall provide a written report on projected work for the next week at each job conference.
- F. Owner will record minutes and distribute copies within two days after meeting to participants, with copies to Architect, Owner, Contractors, and those affected by decisions made.

3.04 CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS SCHEDULE - SEE SECTION 01 3216

3.05 PROGRESS PHOTOGRAPHS

- A. Submit new photographs at least once a month, within 3 days after exposure.
- B. Photography Type: Digital; electronic files.
- C. Provide photographs of site and construction throughout progress of Work produced by an experienced photographer, acceptable to Architect.
- D. In addition to periodic, recurring views, take photographs of each of the following events:
 - Completion of site clearing.
 - 2. Excavations in progress.
 - 3. Foundations in progress and upon completion.
 - 4. Structural framing in progress and upon completion.
 - 5. Final completion, minimum of ten (10) photos.

E. Views:

- 1. Provide non-aerial photographs from four cardinal views at each specified time, until Date of Substantial Completion.
- 2. Consult with Architect for instructions on views required.
- 3. Provide factual presentation.
- 4. Provide correct exposure and focus, high resolution and sharpness, maximum depth of field, and minimum distortion.
- 5. Point of View Sketch: Provide sketch identifying point of view of each photograph.
- F. Digital Photographs: 24 bit color, minimum resolution of 1024 by 768, in JPG format; provide files unaltered by photo editing software.
 - 1. Delivery Medium: Via email.
 - 2. File Naming: Include project identification, date and time of view, and view identification.
 - 3. Point of View Sketch: Include digital copy of point of view sketch with each electronic submittal; include point of view identification in each photo file name.

4. PDF File: Assemble all photos into printable pages in PDF format, with 2 to 3 photos per page, each photo labeled with file name; one PDF file per submittal.

3.06 COORDINATION DRAWINGS

- A. Provide information required by Architect for preparation of coordination drawings.
- B. Review drawings prior to submission to Architect.
- C. Provide input from all Prime Contractor involved.
- D. The General Contractor shall coordinate their work to ensure that the project progresses without interruption. Conflicts of equipment shall be resolved prior to installation, and the required clear equipment working spaces shall be maintained (and applicable building codes shall be met). The engineer shall be notified immediately of any discrepancies.

3.07 SUBMITTALS FOR REVIEW - REFER TO SECTION 01 3300 SUBMITTALS

END OF SECTION

SECTION 01 3213 SCHEDULING AND PHASING

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

- A. Total time for **Substantial Completion** of the contract is **120 calendar days** from the written notice to proceed.
- B. Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work for its intended use. The intended use of this project is delivering apartments ready for occupancy and rent by the owner.

1.02 FINAL COMPLETION

- Total time for Final Completion of the contract is 134 calendar days from the written notice to proceed.
- B. Final Completion is the stage when all Work is complete in accordance with the Contract Documents, the owner and architect have accepted the Work, and all Closeout documents have been completed and accepted by the owner.

1.03 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

- A. The damages incurred by the Owner due to the Contractor's failure to complete the Work, or portions thereof, designated in the Contract Documents, including any extensions thereof under the Contract Documents, shall be in the amount set forth below for each consecutive calendar day beyond each Specific Date (Sunday and all holidays included) for which the Contractor shall fail to complete the Work or designated portion thereof designated in this section.
- B. The amount of liquidated damages provided in the Contract Documents shall not be considered a penalty and shall compensate the Owner only for the Owner's inability to use or otherwise have available, the Project or any portion thereof for its intended purpose by the Dates set forth in the Contract Documents.
- C. If, during the course of the Contractor's performance of the Work, the Contractor shall fail to complete the Work, or portions thereof, in accordance with Specific Dates or the Contract Time, the Owner may retain the estimated amount of liquidated damages for which the Contractor shall be liable to the Owner under the Contract Documents, from amounts which become payable or are otherwise certified as payable to the Contractor under the Contract Documents.
- D. In the event that the Work must be conducted beyond the normal working hours specified or if the Project is not completed within the specified duration, the Contractors shall reimburse the Consultants (A/E, etc.) for all of their expenses. Expenses shall be calculated at the cost times 2.75 on labor, and costs times 1.15 on all other items.
- E. Liquidated Damages will be assessed as follows:
 - 1. Substantial Completion = **\$250.00 per day** for each day the project is not substantially complete beyond the date established for Substantial Completion.
 - 2. Final Completion = **\$250.00 per day** for each day the project is not at Final Completion beyond the date established for Final Completion.
 - 3. If the project is not Substantially complete and Final completion is not achieved in the specified times, then both liquidated damage costs shall apply simultaneously.
 - 4. If the owner incurs additional damages as a result of the project not being either Substantially Complete or achieving Final Completion within the required dates, the Contractor shall also be liable for these costs.

1.04 SCHEDULING

- A. The General Contractor must provide a detailed project schedule indicating all the work activities in accordance with Section 01 3216.
- B. The schedule must be reviewed and approved by the owner and engineer prior to beginning construction.

1.05 WEATHER DELAYS

- A. Contractors shall expect and incorporate into the schedule delays due to weather.
- B. In extreme cases, such as natural disasters, weather delays may be accepted as justification for a contract time extension, however time extensions will not be accepted for normal weather conditions.

1.06 WORK HOURS

- A. Contractors shall include all necessary overtime, weekend, holiday, and second and/or third shift work to complete the project within the specified project duration.
- B. No extension of contract length or contract cost will be allowed for contractors to work additional hours.

PART 2 PRODUCTS - NOT USED

PART 3 EXECUTION - NOT USED

SECTION 01 3216

CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS SCHEDULE

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Preliminary schedule.
- B. Construction progress schedule, with network analysis diagrams and reports.

1.02 RELATED SECTIONS

- A. Section 01 1000 Summary: Work sequence.
- B. Section 01 3213 Scheduling and Phasing

1.03 SCHEDULE COORDINATION

- A. The General Contractor shall establish the overall schedule.
- B. The General Contractor is responsible for maintenance and updates to the schedule throughout the project.

1.04 SUBMITTALS

- A. Within 5 days after date of Agreement, submit preliminary schedule to the Engineer for review.
- B. If preliminary schedule requires revision after review, submit revised schedule within 5 days.
- Within 5 days after review of preliminary schedule, submit draft of proposed complete schedule for review.
- D. Within 5 days after joint review, submit complete schedule.
- E. Submit updated schedule with each Application for Payment, or as requested by the Owner or Engineer.
- F. Submit under transmittal letter form specified in Section 01 3000 Administrative Requirements.

1.05 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Contractor's Administrative Personnel: 5 years minimum experience in using and monitoring CPM schedules on comparable projects.

1.06 SCHEDULE FORMAT

- A. Listings: In chronological order according to the start date for each activity. Identify each activity with the applicable specification section number.
- B. Scale and Spacing: To allow for notations and revisions.

PART 2 PRODUCTS - NOT USED

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 PRELIMINARY SCHEDULE

A. Prepare preliminary schedule in the form of a preliminary network diagram.

3.02 CONTENT

- A. Show complete sequence of construction by activity, with dates for beginning and completion of each element of construction.
- B. Identify each item by specification section number.
- C. Identify work of separate stages and other logically grouped activities.
- D. Show accumulated percentage of completion of each item, and total percentage of Work completed, as of the first day of each month.
- E. Provide separate schedule of submittal dates for shop drawings, product data, and samples, owner-furnished products, and dates reviewed submittals will be required from Architect. Indicate decision dates for selection of finishes.

F. Provide legend for symbols and abbreviations used.

3.03 NETWORK ANALYSIS

- A. Prepare network analysis diagrams and supporting mathematical analyses using the Critical Path Method.
- B. Illustrate order and interdependence of activities and sequence of work; how start of a given activity depends on completion of preceding activities, and how completion of the activity may restrain start of subsequent activities.
- C. Mathematical Analysis: Tabulate each activity of detailed network diagrams, using calendar dates, and identify for each activity:
 - 1. Preceding and following event numbers.
 - 2. Activity description.
 - 3. Estimated duration of activity, in maximum 15 day intervals.
 - 4. Earliest start date.
 - 5. Earliest finish date.
 - 6. Actual start date.
 - 7. Actual finish date.
 - 8. Latest start date.
 - 9. Latest finish date.
 - 10. Total and free float; float time shall accrue to Owner and to Owner's benefit.
 - 11. Monetary value of activity, keyed to Schedule of Values.
 - 12. Percentage of activity completed.
 - 13. Responsibility.
- D. Analysis Program: Capable of compiling monetary value of completed and partially completed activities, accepting revised completion dates, and recomputation of all dates and float.
- E. Required Reports: List activities in sorts or groups:
 - 1. By preceding work item or event number from lowest to highest.
 - 2. By amount of float, then in order of early start.
 - 3. Listing of activities on the critical path.

3.04 REVIEW AND EVALUATION OF SCHEDULE

- Participate in joint review and evaluation of schedule with Architect at each submittal.
- B. Evaluate project status to determine work behind schedule and work ahead of schedule.
- C. After review, revise as necessary as result of review, and resubmit within 5 days.

3.05 UPDATING SCHEDULE

- A. Maintain schedules to record actual start and finish dates of completed activities.
- B. Indicate progress of each activity to date of revision, with projected completion date of each activity.
- C. Update diagrams to graphically depict current status of Work.
- D. Identify activities modified since previous submittal, major changes in Work, and other identifiable changes.
- E. Indicate changes required to maintain Date of Final Completion.
- F. Submit reports required to support recommended changes.
- G. Provide narrative report to define problem areas, anticipated delays, and impact on the schedule. Report corrective action taken or proposed and its effect including the effects of changes on schedules of separate contractors.

3.06 DISTRIBUTION OF SCHEDULE

A. Distribute copies of updated schedules to Contractor's project site file, to subcontractors, suppliers, Architect, Owner, and other concerned parties.

B.	Instruct recipients to promptly report, in writing, problems anticipated by projections shown in schedules.
	END OF SECTION

Page Intentionally Blank

SECTION 01 3300 SUBMITTALS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Project Submittal Log.
- B. Approval of Manufacturers, Suppliers and subcontractors.
- C. Approval of Samples.
- D. Approval of Shop Drawings.
- E. Substitutions.

1.02 PROJECT SUBMITTAL LOG

- A. The Contractor shall furnish to the Engineer, within thirty (30) days after the contract award date, one (1) copy of a Project Submittal Log, in chart form. The Project Submittal Log form shall be coordinated with the construction schedule to prevent any delays. The schedule shall prioritize materials and take into account manufacturing lead times. Failure to submit and maintain the submittal schedule must be identified in writing to the Owner/Engineer and may result in holding payment to the Contractor.
 - 1. The Project Submittal Log shall be comprehensive to include, but not be limited to, the following types of submittals:
 - a. Shop Drawings
 - b. Catalog Data
 - c. Samples
 - d. Schedules
 - e. Charts
 - f. Equipment Lists
 - g. Mock-Up Panels
 - h. Tests and Test Reports
 - i. Local, State, and Federal Agency Permits
 - j. Local, State, and Federal Agency Approvals
 - k. Independent Agency Reports and Approvals
 - I. Miscellaneous Items
 - m. Operating and Maintenance Instructions
 - n. Certificates
 - o. Warranties and Guarantees
 - p. Project Record Documents
 - q. Final Documents
 - r. Owner's Manual
 - s. Certification Forms
 - t. Applications for Payments
 - u. Performance Bonds
 - v. Payment Bonds
 - 2. The Project Submittal Log shall include, but not limited to, the following chart columns:
 - a. Specification Number
 - b. Description
 - c. Number of copies
 - d. To A/E
 - e. Date from A/E
 - f. Date to Contractor
 - g. Actions Taken
 - h. Remarks

1.03 APPROVAL OF MANUFACTURERS, SUPPLIERS AND SUB- CONTRACTORS

A. Submit for approval within ten (10) days after the contract award, on the Contractor's letterhead, a complete list of manufacturers, suppliers and sub-contractors for all major items of material, equipment, or systems to be used, including complete and accurate name, address and telephone numbers.

1.04 SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES

- A. Each submittal shall include a single item or element of construction. A Submittal Cover Sheet, on attached form, shall be completed, signed and certified by the Contractor for EACH submittal. The Engineer will not accept submittals including multiple items or elements of construction. Submittals not meeting this procedure requirement may be returned with No Action Taken. No extension of Contract Time will be authorized due to failure to comply with this procedure.
- B. Coordination: Coordinate preparation and processing of submittals with performance of construction activities. Transmit each submittal sufficiently in advance of performance of related construction activities to avoid delays.
 - 1. Coordinate each submittal with fabrication, purchasing, testing, delivery, other submittals, and related activities that require sequential activity.
 - Coordinate transmittal of different types of submittal for related elements of the work so processing will not be delayed by the need to review submittals concurrently for coordination.
 - a. The Engineer reserves the right to withhold action on a submittal requiring coordination with other submittals until all related submittals are received.
 - b. Be advised that all interior finishes will be reviewed together and finally determined after receipt of all shop drawings, product data and samples which pertain to the interior finish color selections and related equipment.
 - c. Be advised that all exterior finishes and site elements will be reviewed together and finally determined after receipt of all shop drawings, product data and samples which pertain to the exterior finish color selections and related equipment.
 - 3. Processing: To avoid the need to delay installation as a result of the time required to process submittals, allow sufficient time for submittal review, including time for submittals.
 - a. Allow a minimum of thirty (30) working days for review. Addition time may be required for further review and/or coordination with consultants and subsequent submittals as determined by Engineer.
 - b. If a resubmittal is necessary, process the same as the original submittal.
 - c. No extension of Contract Time will be authorized because of failure to transmit submittals to Engineer sufficiently in advance of Work to permit processing.
- C. Submittal Preparation: The Engineer will not accept submittals received without the attached Submittal Cover Sheet. The Contractor shall stamp the Submittal Cover Sheet with a uniform action stamp. The Contractor shall mark the stamp appropriately to indicate the action taken. Submittal shall be pre-reviewed by the Contractor PRIOR to submittal to Engineer for review.
 - 1. Use the Submittal Cover Sheet attached at the end of this Section for all submittals.
 - 2. Complete all information required on Submittal Cover Sheet failure to do so may result in return of the submittal with No Action Taken. No extension of Contract Time will be authorized because of failure to comply with this procedure.
 - 3. Contractor's Transmittal: The Engineer will not accept submittals received from sources other than the Contractor.
 - 4. Contractors shall provide all submittals electronically in PDF format.
 - 5. Following approval of submittals, the Contractor shall provide hard copies of the approved submittals to the owner.

1.05 SUBMITTALS

A. SHOP DRAWINGS

 Submit newly prepared information drawn accurately and to scale. Highlight, encircle, or otherwise indicate deviations from the Contract Documents or copy standard information

- as the basis of Shop Drawings. Standard information prepared without specific reference to the Project is not a Shop Drawing.
- 2. Shop Drawings include fabrication and installation drawings, setting diagrams, schedules, patterns, templates and similar drawings. Include the following information:
 - Dimensions.
 - b. Identification of products and materials included by sheet and detail number.
 - c. Notation of dimensions established by field measurement.
 - d. Sheet Size: Except for templates, patterns and similar full-size Drawings, submit Shop Drawings on sheets at least 8 ½ by 11 inches but no larger than 30 by 42 inches.
 - e. Maintain a complete set of shop drawings on site during construction.
 - f. Maintain a set of marked up Shop drawings as part of the project record documents to be turned over to the Owner at Contract Closeout.
 - g. Do not use Shop Drawings without an appropriate final stamp indicating action taken.

B. PRODUCT DATA

- 1. Collect Product Data into a single submittal for each element of construction or system. Product Data includes printed information, such as manufacturers installation instructions, catalog cuts, standard color charts, roughing-in diagrams and templates, standard wiring diagrams. And performance curves.
- 2. Mark each copy to show applicable choices and options. Where printed Product Data includes information on several products that are not required, mark copies to indicate the applicable information. Include the following information:
 - a. Manufacturer's printed recommendations.
 - b. Compliance with trade association standards.
 - c. Compliance with recognized testing agency standards.
 - d. Application of testing agency labels and seals.
 - e. Notation of dimensions verified by field measurement.
 - f. Notation of coordination requirements.
 - g. Maintain a complete set of Product Data on site during construction.
 - h. Maintain a set of marked up Product Data as part of project record documents to be turned over to Owner at Contract Closeout.
 - i. Do not use Product Data without an appropriate final stamp indicating action taken.
- C. Action Stamp: The Contractor will stamp each sheet of Submittal with a uniform, action stamp. The Contractor shall mark the stamp appropriately to indicate the action taken.
- D. Distribution: Furnish copies of final approved Submittal to installers, subcontractors, suppliers, manufacturers, fabricators, an all others required for performance of construction activities.
- E. All required shop drawings and catalog data must be submitted within 30 days of the first official job meeting.

1.06 SAMPLES

- A. Where required by individual specification sections, submit full-sized, fully fabricate Samples cured and finished as specified and physically identical with the material or product proposed. Samples include partial sections of manufactured or fabricated components, cuts or containers of materials, color range sets, and swatches showing color, texture, and pattern.
 - 1. Mount or display Samples in the manner to facilitate review of qualities indicated. Prepare Samples to match the Engineer's sample. Include the following:
 - a. Specifications Section number and reference.
 - b. Generic description of the Sample.
 - c. Sample source.
 - d. Product name or name of manufacturer.
 - e. Compliance with recognized standards.
 - f. Availability and delivery time.
 - g. Submit Samples for review of size, kind, color, pattern, and texture. Submit Samples for a final check of these characteristics with other elements and a comparison of

these characteristics between the final submittal and the actual component as delivered and installed.

- 1) Where variation in color, pattern, texture, or other characteristic is inherent in the material or product represented, submit at least 3 multiple units that show approximate limits of the variation.
- 2) Refer to other Specification Sections for requirements for Samples that illustrate workmanship, fabrication techniques, details of assembly, connections, operation, and similar construction characteristics.
- 3) Samples not incorporated into the Work, or otherwise designated as the Owner's property, are the property of the Contractor and shall be removed from the site prior to Substantial completion.
- h. Submittal: Submit a full set of choices where Samples are submitted for selection of color, pattern, texture, or similar characteristics from a range of standard choices.
- i. The Engineer will review and return preliminary submittals with the Engineer's notation, indicating selection and other action.
 - 1) Refer to Submittals Procedures for coordination of sample Submittals.

1.07 ENGINEER'S ACTION

- A. Except for submittal for record or information, where action and return is required, the Engineer will review each submittal, mark to indicate action taken, and return promptly.
 - 1. Compliance with specified characteristics is the Contractor's responsibility.
- B. Action Stamp: The Engineer will stamp each submittal with a uniform, action stamp. The Engineer will mark the stamp to indicate the action taken, as follows:
 - "NO EXCEPTION TAKEN": The Work covered by the submittal may proceed without further submittal provided it complies with requirements of the Contract Documents. Final payment depends on that compliance.
 - 2. REJECTED": Do not proceed with Work covered by the submittal, including purchasing, fabrication, delivery or other activity. Do not resubmit a revised copy; prepare a new submittal according to the notations; resubmit without delay. Repeat if necessary to obtain different action
 - 3. "SUBMIT SPECIFIED ITEM": Do not proceed with Work covered by the submittal, including purchasing, fabrication, delivery or other activity. Prepare a new submittal indicating specified material; resubmit without delay.
 - 4. "MAKE CORRECTIONS NOTED": Contractor shall address all notations and proceed with work provided it complies with the Contract Documents. Final payment depends on that compliance.
 - 5. "REVISE AND RESUBMIT": Do not proceed with Work covered by the submittal, including purchasing, fabrication, delivery or other activity. Revise or prepare a new submittal according to the notations; resubmit without delay. Repeat if necessary to obtain different action mark.
 - 6. "RESUBMISSION NOT REQUIRED": The Work covered by the submittal may proceed provide it complies with notations or corrections on the submittal and requirements of the Contract Documents. Final payment depends on that compliance.
- C. Unsolicited Submittals: The Engineer will take no action on unsolicited submittals.

1.08 SUBSTITUTIONS

- A. Substitutions: Products considered to be able to perform the same function but not necessarily have the same design, arrangement, details, utility requirements and/or dimensions. Changes in products, materials, and equipment required by the Contract Documents proposed by the Contractor after award of the Contract are considered to be requests for substitutions. The following are not considered to be requests for substitutions:
 - 1. Revisions to the Contract Documents requested by the Owner or Architect.
 - Specified options of products or "approved equals" as permitted and included in the Contract Documents.

3. The Contractor's determination of and compliance with governing regulations and orders issued by governing authorities.

B. Substitutions

- 1. Substitution Request: The Architect will consider requests for substitutions if received within 60 days after Notice to Proceed. Requests received more than 60 days after Notice to Proceed may be considered or rejected at the discretion of the Architect. The Architect will only consider requests for substitution submitted by the Prime Contractor whose work is involved. No substitution requests will be considered from manufacturer's representatives or product vendors unless submitted through a prime contractor. No substitution requests will be considered during the bid period. Bids shall be based on products from one of the manufacturers specified or an "or equal" product. Bidders shall submit products not indicated in the Specifications at their own risk. The Architect shall determine if a proposed product is equal to a specified product. Furthermore, regardless as to whether or not a manufacturer is listed in the Specification, that manufacturer or product is not relieved of its obligations to meet the technical requirements of the specified intent.
 - a. Transmit each request for substitution for consideration to the Architect's FTP Site; if hard copies or samples must be submitted as part of the substitution request, transmit a minimum of two (2) duplicate copies. Requests shall be on the Substitution Request Form found at the end of this Section. Requests not meeting this procedural requirement will be returned with no action taken.
 - b. Identify the product to be substituted in each request. Include related Specification Section and Drawing numbers.
 - c. Respond to all of the following items. Attach to the Substitution Request Form:
 - Coordination information, including a list of changes or modifications needed to other parts of the Work and to construction performed by the Owner and/or separate Contractors, that will be necessary to accommodate the proposed substitution.
 - 2) A detailed comparison of significant qualities of the proposed substitution with those of the Work specified. Significant qualities may include elements, such as performance, weight, size, durability, and visual effect.
 - 3) Product Data, including Drawings and descriptions of products.
 - 4) Samples, where applicable or requested.
 - 5) A statement indicating the substitution's effect on the Contractor's Construction Schedule compared to the schedule without approval of the substitution. Indicate the effect of the proposed substitution on the overall Contract Time.
 - 6) Cost information, including a proposal of the net change, if any in the Contract Sum.
 - 7) The Contractor's certification that the proposed substitution conforms to all requirements of the Contract Documents in every respect and is appropriate for the applications indicated.
 - 8) The Contractor's waiver of rights to additional payment or time that may subsequently become necessary because of the failure of the substitution to perform adequately.
 - (a) The Contractor's Certification that all costs of other Prime Contractors which are covered by the substitution will be borne by the substituting Contractor.
 - d. Architect's Action: The Architect will notify the Contractor of acceptance or rejection of the substitution within two (2) weeks of receipt of the request. If necessary, the Architect will request additional information or documentation for evaluation within one (1) week of receipt of a request.
 - Use the product specified if the Architect cannot make a decision on the use of a proposed substitute within the time allocated. Following acceptance of the substitution, the Contractor shall submit related information and product data in accordance with Section 01300- Submittals.

- 2. Conditions for Consideration: The Architect will receive and consider the Contractor's request for substitution when one or more of the following conditions are satisfied, as determined by the Architect. Requests will be returned with no action taken if none of the following conditions are satisfied.
 - a. Extensive revisions to the Contract Documents are not required.
 - b. Proposed changes are in keeping with the general intent of the Contract Documents.
 - c. The specified product cannot be provided within the Contract Time. The Architect will not consider the request if the product cannot be provided as a result of the Contractor's failure to pursue the Work promptly.
 - d. The requested substitution offers the Owner a substantial advantage, in cost, time, or energy conservation.
 - e. The specified product cannot receive necessary approval by a governing authority.
 - f. The specified product cannot be provided in a manner that is compatible with other materials and where the Contractor certifies that the substitution will overcome the incompatibility.
 - g. The specified product cannot be coordinated with other materials and where the Contractor certifies that the proposed substitution can be coordinated.
 - h. The specified product cannot provide a warranty required by the Contract Documents and where the Contractor certifies that the proposed substitution provides the required warranty.
- Conditions for Acceptance: Following evaluation by the Architect and in accordance with a Change Order, the Contractor may make a substitution only with the consent of the Owner.

PART 2 PRODUCTS
2.01 NOT USED.
PART 3 EXECUTION
3.01 NOT USED.

SECTION 01 3500 SAFETY

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 RELATED DOCUMENTS

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions and other Division 1 Specification Sections, apply to this Section.

1.02 SUMMARY

- A. General: This Section specifies the required safety procedures for this Project.
- B. It is recognized that the safety of all personnel is the responsibility of each Prime Contractor involved in the construction of this Project. It is the contractual obligation of the Contractor to adhere to all requirements of the Occupational Health and Safety Act (OSHA), as well as Local, State, and Federal safety rules and regulations. Each Prime Contractor shall assure the safety of their personnel by providing all protection and safety devices, covers, etc. as they relate to the safe conduct of their work in accordance with all Local, State and Federal regulations. Each Prime Contractor is responsible for any safety requirements that are contractually those of any Contractor.
- C. The General Contractor shall be designated as the "Lead Contractor" with respect to jobsite safety. Responsibilities and authority of the General Contractor shall be as follows:
 - 1. This Contractor will be responsible to inspect and maintain safe working conditions on the jobsite.
 - 2. Where the work of one (1) Contractor places another Contractor's workers in jeopardy, the "Lead Contractor" shall direct and coordinate the effort of the Contractors to ensure that jobsite safety is maintained.
 - 3. This Contractor will maintain a "competent person" on site at all times designated to make safety inspections and to serve as the designated representative in charge of safety during the inspection by OSHA employees.
 - 4. This Contractor may direct another Contractor to make corrections in the event of a safety violation. Failure of another Contractor to take prompt action (within 24 hours following written notice) to correct a safety violation will empower this Contractor to make the necessary corrections and to receive full compensation for such corrections directly from the Owner. The Owner will verify and provide documentation of time and material expended to make corrections and in turn will recover the amount of expense from the offending Contractor through a deduct Change Order.
 - 5. This Contractor's responsibilities and corresponding authority will be as defined in the General Conditions of the Contract for Construction.
 - 6. The individual Prime Contractors will maintain primary responsibility for the safety of their workers. The "Lead Contractor" will serve to identify areas of concern and will endeavor to accomplish required corrections through cooperation of the other Prime Contractors. In the event this effort is unsuccessful, the "Lead Contractor" will take action as defined above.
 - 7. The Owner will make payment to the "Lead Contractor" when corrective action has been taken on behalf of an offending Contractor, and the "Lead Contractor" has provided appropriate documentation in accord with contract modification procedures.
 - 8. All Contractors shall provide regular and periodic safety inspections and reports. Inspections and reports shall be performed on a Daily basis.
 - Each Prime Contractor shall provide a safety representative who is trained in First Aid and CPR.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT APPLICABLE)

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 ACCIDENTS

A. The Contractor shall notify the Owner of any personal injury that could require medical treatment of any Contractor or their subcontractor's employees at the project site. Also, any damage to property arising in connection with the Contractor's performance should be told to the Owner as promptly as possible after the occurrence of such injury or damage but at the maximum 24 hours. Within 48 hours of such occurrence, the Contractor shall furnish to the Owner a complete written report of such injury or damage. Accident Reports shall include specific actions taken by the Contractor to preclude recurrence of similar incidents.

3.02 EMERGENCY DATA

- A. The Contractor shall provide the Owner with the following emergency data prior to beginning work at the project site:
 - 1. Emergency care facility to be utilized, address and telephone number.
 - 2. Insurance company and local agent/name, address and telephone number.
 - 3. Detailed description of overall corporation or company Safety Program.
 - 4. Employees qualified in type of first aid, list employee and associated skill.
 - 5. Detailed description of specifically tailored job site safety program.
 - 6. Identify corporate and job site safety officer.
 - 7. Submit weekly TOOL BOX SAFETY TALK program/meeting minutes including:
 - a. Day of week.
 - b. Time of day.
 - c. Location.
 - d. Attendance record.
 - e. Agenda.
 - f. Unsafe items previously discussed, date of correction.
 - g. Identify on-site personnel with FIRST AID training.
 - All applicable MSDS Program sheets. (Include numbered pages and Table of Contents.
 - i. Submit completed hazardous substance survey form.
 - j. Review project "Emergency Response Plan" with the Owner.

3.03 SAFETY AGREEMENT

- A. The Contractor shall review and comply with the following Safety Agreement before beginning work:
 - 1. As a Contractor under this Contract, you have, by accepting this Contract, obligated yourself to conduct all your operations within this Safety Agreement.
 - 2. The Contractor agrees that the prevention of accidents to employees engaged in the Work under this Agreement is the responsibility of the Contractor.
 - 3. The Contractor agrees to comply with all laws, regulations and codes concerning safety as shall be applicable to the Work and to the safety standards established during the progress of the Work. When so ordered, the Contractor agrees to stop any part of the Work which the "Lead Contractor" or any other applicable agency may deem unsafe until corrective measures satisfactory to the Owner and in accordance with the applicable Federal and/or State regulations have been taken and further agrees to make no claim for damages growing out of such stoppages. Should the Contractor neglect to adopt such corrective measures, the Owner may elect to hire an entity, perform the corrections and deduct the cost from payments due or to become due the Contractor. Failure on the part of the Owner to stop unsafe practices shall in no way relieve the Contractor of his responsibility.
 - 4. The Contract realizes that an effective accident prevention program is to the mutual benefit of all Contractors through improved employee and public relations and through increased efficiency and production. Further, no accident prevention activity can be truly

effective without the sincere cooperation of each Contractor performing on the site. Your attention is directed, but not limited to the following items:

B. Housekeeping

1. Indiscriminate accumulations of debris, waste or scrap in work areas will not be permitted. (Areas will be designated for storage or disposal). All materials, tools and equipment must be stored in an orderly manner in designated areas.

C. Personal Protection Equipment

- Contractors must furnish their employees with the proper type of personal protective equipment as required by the operations being performed, including, but not necessarily limited to the following:
 - a. Hard Hats must be furnished to employees and worn at ALL times when on this project, whether or not an overhead hazard exists or what state the project may be in.
 - b. The Owner requires that appropriate attire be worn at all times while employees are working on-site. Appropriate attire shall be as deemed necessary by the Owner and in accordance with all applicable OSHA regulations.

D. Safety Meetings

1. The Contractor is required to conduct and all employees are required to attend a "Tool Box" type safety meeting once a week. The meetings may either be presided over by the Contractor's foreman or another competent representative designated by the Contractor.

E. Fire Protection

 The Contractor must supply approved fire extinguishers for emergency use within his own immediate area of operation, including the Contractor's office, tool and storage enclosures.

F. Treatment of Injuries

 The Contractor shall require that all employees injured (no matter how slight) while working on this project, report immediately for First Aid Treatment. The Contractor shall maintain adequate First Aid Facilities in the field.

G. Cooperation

 Any deviation from this course of action will be called to the attention of the Contractor for immediate correction. Conversely, the Contractor should call attention to any unsafe conditions or unsafe practice by other Contractors at the site.

H. Installed Safety Apparatus

1. Each Contractor is responsible for the reinstallation of safety apparatus installed by other Contractors if removed to facilitate the installation of their own Contract Work.

I. Weapons Policy

- All persons are prohibited from carrying, possessing or storing a handgun, firearm, or weapon of any kind while on the Project site, regardless of whether the person has registered the weapon or is licensed to carry a concealed weapon.
- Failure to abide by all terms and conditions of this policy may result in discipline up to and
 including termination. Further, carrying any weapon onto the Owner's property in violation
 of this policy will be considered an act of criminal trespass and possession of a weapon
 will be grounds for immediate removal of the person from the Project Site, and may result
 in prosecution.

J. Radios

1. The playing of radios will not be permitted on this Project site.

Page Intentionally Blank

SECTION 01 4000 QUALITY REQUIREMENTS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- Quality assurance.
- B. Quality Control Plan
- C. References and standards.
- D. Testing and inspection agencies and services.
- E. Control of installation.
- F. Mock-ups.
- G. Tolerances.
- H. Manufacturers' field services.
- Defect Assessment.

1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Testing Agency Qualifications:
 - 1. Prior to start of Work, submit agency name, address, and telephone number, and names of full time registered Engineer and responsible officer.
 - Submit copy of report of laboratory facilities inspection made by NIST Construction Materials Reference Laboratory during most recent inspection, with memorandum of remedies of any deficiencies reported by the inspection.

1.03 CONTRACTOR'S QUALITY CONTROL PLAN

- A. Quality Control Plan a written plan describing how the contractor will evaluate the work to confirm that it complies with the Contract Documents and authorities having jurisdiction. The Plan shall be submitted within 15 days following Notice to Proceed.
- B. The Prime contractor shall employ a Quality Control Inspector whose primary responsibility is to verify that the work in place meets the contract document requirements through inspections, review of testing, and coordination with subcontractors, manufactures, and suppliers. The Inspector's duties shall include, but not be limited to:
 - 1. monitor quality control over suppliers, manufacturers, products, services site conditions, and workmanship, to produce Work of specified quality.
 - 2. ensure work complies with manufacturers' instructions, including each step in sequence.
 - 3. request clarification from the appropriate party's should manufacturers' instructions conflict with Contract Documents.
 - comply with specified standards as minimum quality for the Work except where more stringent tolerances, codes, or specified requirements indicate higher standards or more precise workmanship.
 - 5. ensure work is performed by persons qualified to produce workmanship of specified quality.
 - 6. secure products are in place with positive anchorage devices designed and sized to withstand stresses, vibration, physical distortion, or disfigurement.
 - 7. ensure testing and inspection agencies are scheduled, proper tests and inspections are performed, and the work is in compliance with the requirements.
- C. Quality Control Reports the Quality Control Inspector shall prepare a weekly Quality Control Report that summarizes all work completed, it's compliance with the Contract Documents, and any deficiencies that exist. The report shall be prepared in digital format and submitted at the weekly project meeting.

1.04 REFERENCES AND STANDARDS

- A. For products and workmanship specified by reference to a document or documents not included in the Project Manual, also referred to as reference standards, comply with requirements of the standard, except when more rigid requirements are specified or are required by applicable codes.
- B. Conform to reference standard of date of issue current on date of Contract Documents, except where a specific date is established by applicable code.
- C. Obtain copies of standards where required by product specification sections.
- D. Maintain copy at project site during submittals, planning, and progress of the specific work, until Substantial Completion.
- E. Should specified reference standards conflict with Contract Documents, request clarification from Architect before proceeding.
- F. Neither the contractual relationships, duties, or responsibilities of the parties in Contract nor those of Architect shall be altered from the Contract Documents by mention or inference otherwise in any reference document.

1.05 TESTING AND INSPECTION AGENCIES AND SERVICES

- A. Contractor shall employ and pay for services of an independent testing agency to perform specified testing and inspection.
- B. Employment of agency in no way relieves Contractor of obligation to perform Work in accordance with requirements of Contract Documents.

PART 2 PRODUCTS - NOT USED

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 CONTROL OF INSTALLATION

- A. Monitor quality control over suppliers, manufacturers, products, services, site conditions, and workmanship, to produce Work of specified quality.
- B. Comply with manufacturers' instructions, including each step in sequence.
- C. Should manufacturers' instructions conflict with Contract Documents, request clarification from Architect before proceeding.
- D. Comply with specified standards as minimum quality for the Work except where more stringent tolerances, codes, or specified requirements indicate higher standards or more precise workmanship.
- E. Have Work performed by persons qualified to produce required and specified quality.
- F. Verify that field measurements are as indicated on shop drawings or as instructed by the manufacturer.
- G. Secure products in place with positive anchorage devices designed and sized to withstand stresses, vibration, physical distortion, and disfigurement.

3.02 MOCK-UPS

- A. Before installing portions of the Work where mock-ups are required, construct mock-ups in location and size indicated for each form of construction and finish required to comply with the following requirements, using materials indicated for the completed Work. The purpose of mock-up is to demonstrate the proposed range of aesthetic effects and workmanship.
- B. Accepted mock-ups establish the standard of quality the Architect will use to judge the Work.
- C. Integrated Exterior Mock-ups: construct integrated exterior mock-up as indicated on Drawings. Coordinate installation of exterior envelope materials and products as required in individual Specification Sections. Provide adequate supporting structure for mock-up materials as necessary.
- D. Room Mock-ups: Construct room mock-ups as indicated on Drawings. Coordinate installation of materials, products, and assemblies as required in Specification Sections; finish according to

- requirements. Provide required lighting and any supplemental lighting where required to enable Architect to evaluate quality of the mock-up.
- E. Notify Architect and Owner seven (7) working days in advance of dates and times when mockups will be constructed.
- F. Provide supervisory personnel who will oversee mock-up construction. Provide workers that will be employed during the construction at Project.
- G. Tests shall be performed under provisions identified in this section and identified in the respective product specification sections.
- H. Assemble and erect specified items with specified attachment and anchorage devices, flashings, seals, and finishes.
- I. Obtain Architect's approval of mock-ups before starting work, fabrication, or construction.
 - 1. Architect will issue written comments within five (5) working days of initial review and each subsequent follow up review of each mock-up.
 - 2. Make corrections as necessary until Architect's approval is issued.
- J. Accepted mock-ups shall be a comparison standard for the remaining Work.
- K. Where mock-up has been accepted by Architect and is specified in product specification sections to be removed, protect mock-up throughout construction, remove mock-up and clear area when directed to do so by Architect.
- L. Where possible salvage and recycle the demolished mock-up materials.

3.03 TOLERANCES

- A. Monitor fabrication and installation tolerance control of products to produce acceptable Work. Do not permit tolerances to accumulate.
- B. Comply with manufacturers' tolerances. Should manufacturers' tolerances conflict with Contract Documents, request clarification from Architect before proceeding.
- C. Adjust products to appropriate dimensions; position before securing products in place.

3.04 TESTING AND INSPECTION

- A. See individual specification sections for testing and inspection required.
- B. Testing Agency Duties:
 - 1. Provide qualified personnel at site. Cooperate with Architect and Contractor in performance of services.
 - 2. Perform specified sampling and testing of products in accordance with specified standards.
 - 3. Ascertain compliance of materials and mixes with requirements of Contract Documents.
 - 4. Promptly notify Architect and Contractor of observed irregularities or non-conformance of Work or products.
 - 5. Perform additional tests and inspections required by Architect.
 - 6. Submit reports of all tests/inspections specified.
- C. Limits on Testing/Inspection Agency Authority:
 - Agency may not release, revoke, alter, or enlarge on requirements of Contract Documents.
 - 2. Agency may not approve or accept any portion of the Work.
 - 3. Agency may not assume any duties of Contractor.
 - 4. Agency has no authority to stop the Work.
- D. Contractor Responsibilities:
 - 1. Deliver to agency at designated location, adequate samples of materials proposed to be used that require testing, along with proposed mix designs.
 - Cooperate with laboratory personnel, and provide access to the Work and to manufacturers' facilities.
 - 3. Provide incidental labor and facilities:

- a. To provide access to Work to be tested/inspected.
- To obtain and handle samples at the site or at source of Products to be tested/inspected.
- c. To facilitate tests/inspections.
- d. To provide storage and curing of test samples.
- 4. Notify Architect and laboratory 48 hours prior to expected time for operations requiring testing/inspection services.
- 5. Employ services of an independent qualified testing laboratory and pay for additional samples, tests, and inspections required by Contractor beyond specified requirements.
- 6. Arrange with Owner's agency and pay for additional samples, tests, and inspections required by Contractor beyond specified requirements.
- E. Re-testing required because of non-conformance to specified requirements shall be performed by the same agency on instructions by Architect.
- F. Re-testing required because of non-conformance to specified requirements shall be paid for by Contractor.

3.05 MANUFACTURERS' FIELD SERVICES

- A. When specified in individual specification sections, require material or product suppliers or manufacturers to provide qualified staff personnel to observe site conditions, conditions of surfaces and installation, quality of workmanship, start-up of equipment, test, adjust and balance of equipment as applicable, and to initiate instructions when necessary.
- B. Report observations and site decisions or instructions given to applicators or installers that are supplemental or contrary to manufacturers' written instructions.

3.06 DEFECT ASSESSMENT

- A. Replace Work or portions of the Work not conforming to specified requirements.
- B. If, in the opinion of Owner, it is not practical to remove and replace the Work, Owner will direct an appropriate remedy or adjust payment.

SECTION 01 4216 DEFINITIONS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SUMMARY

- A. This section supplements the definitions contained in the General Conditions.
- B. Other definitions are included in individual specification sections.

1.02 DEFINITIONS

- A. Furnish: To supply, deliver, unload, and inspect for damage.
- B. Install: To unpack, assemble, erect, apply, place, finish, cure, protect, clean, start up, and make ready for use.
- C. Product: Material, machinery, components, equipment, fixtures, and systems forming the work result. Not materials or equipment used for preparation, fabrication, conveying, or erection and not incorporated into the work result. Products must be new, never before used.
- D. Project Manual: The book-sized volume that includes the procurement requirements (if any), the contracting requirements, and the specifications.
- E. Provide: To furnish and install.
- F. Supply: Same as Furnish.

PART 2 PRODUCTS - NOT USED

PART 3 EXECUTION - NOT USED

Page Intentionally Blank

SECTION 01 5000

TEMPORARY FACILITIES AND CONTROLS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01. SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Sanitary Provisions.
- B. Temporary Water.
- C. Temporary Power.
- D. Temporary Heat
- E. Telephone.
- F. Safety and Protection.
- G. Hoisting Facilities.
- H. Storage.
- I. Parking.
- J. Progress Cleaning and Waste Removal.
- K. Removal.

1.02. SANITARY PROVISIONS

A. Contractor may use existing public restrooms in the building. Coordinate available locations with the owner and building maintenance personnel.

1.03. TEMPORARY WATER

A. Contractor may use existing water service in the building. Coordinate available locations with the owner and building maintenance personnel.

1.04. TEMPORARY POWER

A. Contractor may use existing electric service in the building. Coordinate available locations with the owner and building maintenance personnel.

1.05. TEMPORARY HEAT

A. Not Required

1.06. TELEPHONE

- A. The contractor shall provide cell phone numbers of onsite project superintendent(s), provided that they are onsite at all times work is in progress.
- B. The engineer and owner shall always have the ability to contact the contractor at site.

1.07. SAFETY AND PROTECTION

- A. The Contractor shall:
 - Furnish all required safety and first aid requirements in complete accord with all OSHA Regulations.
 - 2. Furnish all necessary enclosures, flares and lights, traffic regulation flag men and traffic signals.
 - 3. Furnish all necessary bracing, scaffolding, protective covers, drop cloths, and other construction aids.
 - 4. Erect and maintain proper protection for all equipment and all parts of the building during all stages of construction, alterations, or repairs, and shall correct at their own expense any damage to the same to the satisfaction of the Owner. Special precaution shall be taken to protect the building and grounds from damage during the course of construction of the project.
 - 5. The Contractor shall take proper and necessary precautions to protect pedestrians, streets, sidewalks, private roads and walks, and will be held responsible for any damage or injury.

- 6. Provide and maintain guard lights at barricades, railings, obstructions in the streets, or sidewalks.
- Maintain and enforce regulations covering all fire hazards including smoking and shall provide suitable fire extinguishers and/or other protective measures in proper locations.
- 8. Adequately protect all utilities and service lines. Services and utilities must not be interrupted without first making necessary and satisfactory arrangements with the proper authorities.
- 9. Furnish all necessary noise control and dust control measures.
- 10. Provide for proper storage, removal and disposal of all debris, trash, rubbish and garbage. Comply with all applicable federal, state and local regulations dealing with environmental protection measures and dealing with hazardous materials.
- 11. Provide all necessary security measures including locked storage, night lights, and temporary enclosures. The Owner may, at any time direct the general contractor to provide additional security, including fencing and temporary enclosures, and watchman if required.
- 12. Safety provisions shall be in compliance with Article 10 of the General Conditions.
- 13. Active work areas shall be fenced with a 4' high orange safety fence. All posts must have protective caps and the fence must be inspected and maintained each work day.

1.08. HOISTING FACILITIES

- A. The Contractor shall provide, maintain and operate, at no cost to the Owner, all required lifting, jacking or hoisting equipment of capacities as needed to perform all work. Comply with all safety requirements.
- B. The Contractor shall provide, maintain and operate, at no cost to the Owner, all required scaffolding, bracing, walkways and support as needed to perform all work. Comply with all safety requirements.

1.09. STORAGE

- A. No storage of tools, equipment, or materials will be permitted in the building, except in designated work areas during each phase of construction.
- B. It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to arrange with the proper authorities, the owner for an assigned space or spaces for any necessary trailers, vans, or sheds for use as material, tool and equipment storage or job office. Locate trailers outside of improvement areas to prevent interference or delays in the project.

1.10 PARKING

- A. Limited parking for construction workers may be made available on site by prearrangement with the Owner, however adequate space for Owner use must be maintained.
- B. The Contractor shall be responsible for arranging parking for themself and their sub-contractors.

1.11 PROGRESS CLEANING AND WASTE REMOVAL

- A. The Contractor shall:
 - 1. Maintain areas free of waste materials, debris, and rubbish.
 - 2. Maintain site in a clean and orderly condition.
 - 3. Remove debris and rubbish from attics, and other closed or remote spaces, prior to enclosing the space.
 - 4. Daily broom clean work areas.
 - 5. Collect and remove waste materials, debris, and rubbish daily from site and dispose in a dumpster or off-site.

- 6. Remove tools, scaffolding and surplus materials at the completion of work.
- 7. Broom and vacuum clean work areas at the completion of work.
- B. The Contractor shall provide for a dumpster on site for his own use and for miscellaneous daily trash. Make special provisions for handling hazardous waste in compliance with all local, state, and federal regulations.
- C. The Contractor shall be responsible for proper collection, storage and disposal of waste materials (excepting hazardous materials) resulting from demolition packaging and crating.
- D. The Contractor shall clean work area of all construction debris at the end of each workday. The debris shall be placed in a dumpster and removed from the site as soon as the dumpster is full. Debris shall be deposed of in accordance with all Local, State & federal regulations.
- E. No burning is permitted.

1.12. REMOVAL

A. Remove all temporary facilities completely from the site upon completion of the project.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

NOT USED

PART 3 EXECUTION

NOT USED

Page Intentionally Blank

SECTION 01 5500 VEHICULAR ACCESS AND PARKING

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Access roads.
- B. Parking.
- C. Existing pavements and parking areas.
- D. Permanent pavements and parking facilities.
- E. Construction parking controls.
- F. Flag persons.
- G. Flares and lights.
- H. Haul routes.
- Traffic signs and signals.
- J. Maintenance.
- K. Removal, repair.
- L. Mud from site vehicles.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 SIGNS, SIGNALS, AND DEVICES

- A. Traffic Cones and Drums, Flares and Lights: As approved by local jurisdictions.
- B. Flag Person Equipment: As required by local jurisdictions.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 PREPARATION

A. Clear areas, provide surface and storm drainage of road, parking, area premises, and adjacent areas.

3.02 ACCESS ROADS

- A. Use of existing on-site streets and driveways for construction traffic is not permitted without the approval of the authority having jurisdiction.
- B. Tracked vehicles not allowed on paved areas.
- C. Provide unimpeded access for emergency vehicles. Maintain 12 foot width driveways with turning space between and around combustible materials.
- D. Provide and maintain access to fire hydrants free of obstructions.

3.03 PARKING

- A. Use of existing parking facilities by construction personnel is not permitted.
- B. Use of new parking facilities by construction personnel is not permitted.
- Arrange for temporary parking areas to accommodate use of construction personnel.

3.04 PERMANENT PAVEMENTS AND PARKING FACILITIES

- A. The base for permanent roads and parking areas may be used for construction traffic.
- B. Avoid traffic loading beyond paving design capacity. Tracked vehicles not allowed.

3.05 CONSTRUCTION PARKING CONTROL

- A. Control vehicular parking to prevent interference with public traffic and parking, access by emergency vehicles, and Owner's operations.
- B. Monitor parking of construction personnel's vehicles in existing facilities. Maintain vehicular access to and through parking areas.

C. Prevent parking on or adjacent to access roads or in non-designated areas.

3.06 FLAG PERSONS

A. Provide trained and equipped flag persons to regulate traffic when construction operations or traffic encroach on public traffic lanes.

3.07 FLARES AND LIGHTS

A. Use flares and lights during hours of low visibility to delineate traffic lanes and to guide traffic.

3.08 HAUL ROUTES

- A. Consult with authority having jurisdiction, establish public thoroughfares to be used for haul routes and site access.
- B. Confine construction traffic to designated haul routes.
- C. Provide traffic control at critical areas of haul routes to regulate traffic, to minimize interference with public traffic.

3.09 TRAFFIC SIGNS AND SIGNALS

- A. At approaches to site and on site, install at crossroads, detours, parking areas, and elsewhere as needed to direct construction and affected public traffic.
- B. Install and operate traffic control signals to direct and maintain orderly flow of traffic in areas under Contractor's control, and areas affected by Contractor's operations.
- C. Relocate as Work progresses, to maintain effective traffic control.

3.10 MAINTENANCE

- A. Maintain traffic and parking areas in a sound condition free of excavated material, construction equipment, Products, mud, snow, and ice.
- B. Maintain existing paved areas used for construction; promptly repair breaks, potholes, low areas, standing water, and other deficiencies, to maintain paving and drainage in original, or specified, condition.

3.11 REMOVAL, REPAIR

- A. Remove temporary roads when permanent paving is usable.
- B. Repair existing facilities damaged by use, to new condition.
- C. Repair damage caused by installation.

3.12 MUD FROM SITE VEHICLES

A. Provide means of removing mud from vehicle wheels before entering streets.

3.13 DELIVERY OF EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS

- A. Contractor must coordinate and arrange for the delivery and staging of materials and equipment to the project site.
- B. Equipment and materials may not be stored in the streets, alleys, or adjacent properties without approval of the authority having jurisdiction.

SECTION 01 6000 PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- Re-use of existing products.
- B. Transportation, handling, storage and protection.
- C. Product option requirements.
- D. Substitution limitations and procedures.
- E. Procedures for Owner-supplied products.
- F. Maintenance materials, including extra materials, spare parts, tools, and software.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 EXISTING PRODUCTS

- A. Do not use materials and equipment removed from existing premises unless specifically required or permitted by the Contract Documents.
- B. Unforeseen historic items encountered remain the property of the Owner; notify Owner promptly upon discovery; protect, remove, handle, and store as directed by Owner.
- C. Existing materials and equipment indicated to be removed, but not to be re-used, relocated, reinstalled, delivered to the Owner, or otherwise indicated as to remain the property of the Owner, become the property of the Contractor; remove from site.

2.02 NEW PRODUCTS

- A. Provide new products unless specifically required or permitted by the Contract Documents.
- B. DO NOT USE products having any of the following characteristics:
 - Containing lead, cadmium, asbestos.
- C. Where all other criteria are met, Contractor shall give preference to products that:
 - 1. Are extracted, harvested, and/or manufactured closer to the location of the project.
 - 2. Have longer documented life span under normal use.
 - 3. Result in less construction waste.

2.03 STANDARD OF QUALITY

- A. The various materials and products specified in the specifications by name or description are given to establish a standard of quality and cost for bid purposes. It is not the intent to limit the bidder, the bid, or the evaluation of the bid to any one material or product specified but rather to describe the minimum standard. When proprietary names are used, they shall be followed by the words "or alternatives of the quality necessary to meet the specifications". A bid containing an alternative which does not meet the specifications may be declared non-responsive. A bid containing an alternative may be accepted but, if an award is made to that bidder, the bidder will be required to replace any alternatives which do not meet the specifications.
- B. No approval prior to bidding and no listing on Proposal Forms will be required. It will, however, be the responsibility of the Contractor to obtain the Owner/engineer's approval for any product or material not named by submitting adequate data for proper evaluation after contract award and prior to confirmation of order for any such item.
- C. Contractor will be responsible for all changes required for installation of any approved equal or accepted substituted item at no additional cost to the Owner.

2.04 MAINTENANCE MATERIALS

- A. Furnish extra materials, spare parts, tools, and software of types and in quantities specified in individual specification sections.
- B. Deliver to Project site; obtain receipt prior to final payment.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 SUBSTITUTION PROCEDURES

- A. Substitutions will only be considered after contract award.
- B. Document each request with complete data substantiating compliance of proposed substitution with Contract Documents.
- C. A request for substitution constitutes a representation that the submitter:
 - 1. Has investigated proposed product and determined that it meets or exceeds the quality level of the specified product.
 - 2. Agrees to provide the same warranty for the substitution as for the specified product.
 - 3. Agrees to coordinate installation and make changes to other Work that may be required for the Work to be complete with no additional cost to Owner.
 - Waives claims for additional costs or time extension that may subsequently become apparent.
 - 5. Agrees to reimburse Owner and Architect for review or redesign services associated with re-approval by authorities.
- D. Substitutions will not be considered when they are indicated or implied on shop drawing or product data submittals, without separate written request, or when acceptance will require revision to the Contract Documents.
- E. Substitution Submittal Procedure (after contract award):
 - 1. Submit substitution requests by completing the form in Section 01 3300 Submittals, see this section for additional information and instructions.
 - 2. Submit shop drawings, product data, and certified test results attesting to the proposed product equivalence. Burden of proof is on proposer.
 - Architect will notify Contractor in writing of decision to accept or reject request.

3.02 OWNER-SUPPLIED PRODUCTS

- A. Owner's Responsibilities:
 - Arrange for and deliver Owner reviewed shop drawings, product data, and samples, to Contractor.
 - 2. Arrange and pay for product delivery to site.
 - 3. On delivery, inspect products jointly with Contractor.
 - 4. Submit claims for transportation damage and replace damaged, defective, or deficient items.
 - 5. Arrange for manufacturers' warranties, inspections, and service.
- B. Contractor's Responsibilities:
 - 1. Review Owner reviewed shop drawings, product data, and samples.
 - Receive and unload products at site; inspect for completeness or damage jointly with Owner.
 - 3. Handle, store, install and finish products.
 - 4. Repair or replace items damaged after receipt.

3.03 TRANSPORTATION AND HANDLING

- A. Package products for shipment in manner to prevent damage; for equipment, package to avoid loss of factory calibration.
- B. If special precautions are required, attach instructions prominently and legibly on outside of packaging.
- C. Coordinate schedule of product delivery to designated prepared areas in order to minimize site storage time and potential damage to stored materials.
- D. Transport and handle products in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.
- E. Transport materials in covered trucks to prevent contamination of product and littering of surrounding areas.

- F. Promptly inspect shipments to ensure that products comply with requirements, quantities are correct, and products are undamaged.
- G. Provide equipment and personnel to handle products by methods to prevent soiling, disfigurement, or damage, and to minimize handling.
- H. Arrange for the return of packing materials, such as wood pallets, where economically feasible.

3.04 STORAGE AND PROTECTION

- A. Designate receiving/storage areas for incoming products so that they are delivered according to installation schedule and placed convenient to work area in order to minimize waste due to excessive materials handling and misapplication.
- B. Store and protect products in accordance with manufacturers' instructions.
- C. Store with seals and labels intact and legible.
- D. Store sensitive products in weather tight, climate controlled, enclosures in an environment favorable to product.
- E. For exterior storage of fabricated products, place on sloped supports above ground.
- F. Provide bonded off-site storage and protection when site does not permit on-site storage or protection.
- G. Protect products from damage or deterioration due to construction operations, weather, precipitation, humidity, temperature, sunlight and ultraviolet light, dirt, dust, and other contaminants.
- H. Comply with manufacturer's warranty conditions, if any.
- I. Do not store products directly on the ground.
- J. Cover products subject to deterioration with impervious sheet covering. Provide ventilation to prevent condensation and degradation of products.
- K. Store loose granular materials on solid flat surfaces in a well-drained area. Prevent mixing with foreign matter.
- L. Prevent contact with material that may cause corrosion, discoloration, or staining.
- M. Provide equipment and personnel to store products by methods to prevent soiling, disfigurement, or damage.
- N. Arrange storage of products to permit access for inspection. Periodically inspect to verify products are undamaged and are maintained in acceptable condition.

Page Intentionally Blank

SECTION 01 7000

EXECUTION AND CLOSEOUT REQUIREMENTS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Examination, preparation, and general installation procedures.
- B. Requirements for alterations work, including selective demolition, except removal, disposal, and/or remediation of hazardous materials and toxic substances.
- C. Pre-installation meetings.
- D. Cutting and patching.
- E. Surveying for laying out the work.
- F. Cleaning and protection.
- G. Starting of systems and equipment.
- H. Demonstration and instruction of Owner personnel.
- Closeout procedures, including Contractor's Correction Punch List, except payment procedures.
- J. General requirements for maintenance service.

1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

- A. Section 01 1000 Summary: Limitations on working in existing building; continued occupancy; work sequence; identification of salvaged and relocated materials.
- B. Section 01 3000 Administrative Requirements: Submittals procedures.
- C. Section 01 4000 Quality Requirements: Testing and inspection procedures.
- D. Section 01 5000 Temporary Facilities and Controls: Temporary exterior enclosures.
- E. Section 01 5000 Temporary Facilities and Controls: Temporary interior partitions.
- F. Section 01 5100 Temporary Utilities: Temporary heating, cooling, and ventilating facilities.
- G. Section 01 5713 Temporary Erosion and Sediment Control: Additional erosion and sedimentation control requirements.
- H. Section 01 7800 Closeout Submittals: Project record documents, operation and maintenance data, warranties and bonds.

1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. See Section 01 3000 Administrative Requirements, for submittal procedures.
- B. Survey work: Submit name, address, and telephone number of Surveyor before starting survey work.
 - 1. On request, submit documentation verifying accuracy of survey work.
 - 2. Submit a copy of site drawing signed by the Land Surveyor, that the elevations and locations of the work are in conformance with Contract Documents.
 - 3. Submit surveys and survey logs for the project record.
- Demolition Plan: Submit demolition plan as specified by OSHA and local authorities.
 - Indicate extent of demolition, removal sequence, bracing and shoring, and location and construction of barricades and fences. Include design drawings and calculations for bracing and shoring.
 - 2. Identify demolition firm and submit qualifications.
 - 3. Include a summary of safety procedures.
- D. Project Record Documents: Accurately record actual locations of capped and active utilities.

1.04 QUALIFICATIONS

A. For demolition work, employ a firm specializing in the type of work required.

- B. For survey work, employ a land surveyor registered in the State in which the Project is located and acceptable to Architect. Submit evidence of Surveyor's Errors and Omissions insurance coverage in the form of an Insurance Certificate.
- C. For design of temporary shoring and bracing, employ a Professional Engineer experienced in design of this type of work and licensed in the State in which the Project is located.

1.05 PROJECT CONDITIONS

- Use of explosives is not permitted.
- B. Grade site to drain. Maintain excavations free of water. Provide, operate, and maintain pumping equipment.
- C. Protect site from puddling or running water. Provide water barriers as required to protect site from soil erosion.
- D. Ventilate enclosed areas to assist cure of materials, to dissipate humidity, and to prevent accumulation of dust, fumes, vapors, or gases.
- E. Dust Control: Execute work by methods to minimize raising dust from construction operations. Provide positive means to prevent air-borne dust from dispersing into atmosphere and over adjacent property.
 - 1. Provide dust-proof enclosures to prevent entry of dust generated outdoors.
 - 2. Provide dust-proof barriers between construction areas and areas continuing to be occupied by Owner.
- F. Erosion and Sediment Control: Plan and execute work by methods to control surface drainage from cuts and fills, from borrow and waste disposal areas. Prevent erosion and sedimentation.
- G. Noise Control: Provide methods, means, and facilities to minimize noise produced by construction operations.
 - 1. Outdoors: Limit conduct of especially noisy exterior work to the hours of 8 am to 5 pm.
- H. Pollution Control: Provide methods, means, and facilities to prevent contamination of soil, water, and atmosphere from discharge of noxious, toxic substances, and pollutants produced by construction operations. Comply with federal, state, and local regulations.

1.06 COORDINATION

- A. Coordinate scheduling, submittals, and work of the various sections of the Project Manual to ensure efficient and orderly sequence of installation of interdependent construction elements, with provisions for accommodating items installed later.
- B. Notify affected utility companies and comply with their requirements.
- C. Verify that utility requirements and characteristics of new operating equipment are compatible with building utilities. Coordinate work of various sections having interdependent responsibilities for installing, connecting to, and placing in service, such equipment.
- D. Coordinate space requirements, supports, and installation of mechanical and electrical work that are indicated diagrammatically on Drawings. Follow routing shown for pipes, ducts, and conduit, as closely as practicable; place runs parallel with lines of building. Utilize spaces efficiently to maximize accessibility for other installations, for maintenance, and for repairs.
- E. In finished areas except as otherwise indicated, conceal pipes, ducts, and wiring within the construction. Coordinate locations of fixtures and outlets with finish elements.
- F. Coordinate completion and clean-up of work of separate sections.
- G. After Owner occupancy of premises, coordinate access to site for correction of defective work and work not in accordance with Contract Documents, to minimize disruption of Owner's activities.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 PATCHING MATERIALS

- A. New Materials: As specified in product sections; match existing products and work for patching and extending work.
- B. Product Substitution: For any proposed change in materials, submit request for substitution described in Section 01 6000 Product Requirements.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 EXAMINATION

- A. Verify that existing site conditions and substrate surfaces are acceptable for subsequent work. Start of work means acceptance of existing conditions.
- B. Verify that existing substrate is capable of structural support or attachment of new work being applied or attached.
- C. Examine and verify specific conditions described in individual specification sections.
- D. Take field measurements before confirming product orders or beginning fabrication, to minimize waste due to over-ordering or misfabrication.
- E. Verify that utility services are available, of the correct characteristics, and in the correct locations.
- F. Prior to Cutting: Examine existing conditions prior to commencing work, including elements subject to damage or movement during cutting and patching. After uncovering existing work, assess conditions affecting performance of work. Beginning of cutting or patching means acceptance of existing conditions.

3.02 PREPARATION

- A. Clean substrate surfaces prior to applying next material or substance.
- B. Seal cracks or openings of substrate prior to applying next material or substance.
- C. Apply manufacturer required or recommended substrate primer, sealer, or conditioner prior to applying any new material or substance in contact or bond.

3.03 PREINSTALLATION MEETINGS

- A. When required in individual specification sections, convene a preinstallation meeting at the site prior to commencing work of the section.
- B. Require attendance of parties directly affecting, or affected by, work of the specific section.
- C. Notify Architect four days in advance of meeting date.
- D. Prepare agenda and preside at meeting:
 - 1. Review conditions of examination, preparation and installation procedures.
 - 2. Review coordination with related work.
- E. Record minutes and distribute copies within two days after meeting to participants, with one copies to Architect, Owner, participants, and those affected by decisions made.

3.04 LAYING OUT THE WORK

- A. Verify locations of survey control points prior to starting work.
- B. Promptly notify Architect of any discrepancies discovered.
- C. Contractor shall locate and protect survey control and reference points.
- D. Control datum for survey is that indicated on Drawings.
- E. Protect survey control points prior to starting site work; preserve permanent reference points during construction.
- F. Promptly report to Architect the loss or destruction of any reference point or relocation required because of changes in grades or other reasons.

- G. Replace dislocated survey control points based on original survey control. Make no changes without prior written notice to Architect.
- H. Utilize recognized engineering survey practices.
- I. Establish elevations, lines and levels. Locate and lay out by instrumentation and similar appropriate means:
 - 1. Site improvements including pavements; stakes for grading, fill and topsoil placement; utility locations, slopes, and invert elevations.
- J. Periodically verify layouts by same means.
- K. Maintain a complete and accurate log of control and survey work as it progresses.

3.05 GENERAL INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS

- A. Install products as specified in individual sections, in accordance with manufacturer's instructions and recommendations, and so as to avoid waste due to necessity for replacement.
- B. Make vertical elements plumb and horizontal elements level, unless otherwise indicated.
- C. Install equipment and fittings plumb and level, neatly aligned with adjacent vertical and horizontal lines, unless otherwise indicated.
- D. Make consistent texture on surfaces, with seamless transitions, unless otherwise indicated.
- E. Make neat transitions between different surfaces, maintaining texture and appearance.

3.06 ALTERATIONS

- A. Drawings showing existing construction and utilities are based on casual field observation and existing record documents only.
 - 1. Verify that construction and utility arrangements are as shown.
 - 2. Report discrepancies to Architect before disturbing existing installation.
 - 3. Beginning of alterations work constitutes acceptance of existing conditions.
- B. Keep areas in which alterations are being conducted separated from other areas that are still occupied.
 - 1. Provide, erect, and maintain temporary dustproof partitions of construction specified in Section 01 5000 in locations indicated on drawings.
- C. Maintain weatherproof exterior building enclosure except for interruptions required for replacement or modifications; take care to prevent water and humidity damage.
 - 1. Where openings in exterior enclosure exist, provide construction to make exterior enclosure weatherproof.
 - 2. Insulate existing ducts or pipes that are exposed to outdoor ambient temperatures by alterations work.
- D. Remove existing work as indicated and as required to accomplish new work.
 - 1. Remove rotted wood, corroded metals, and deteriorated masonry and concrete; replace with new construction specified.
 - 2. Remove items indicated on drawings.
 - 3. Relocate items indicated on drawings.
 - 4. Where new surface finishes are to be applied to existing work, perform removals, patch, and prepare existing surfaces as required to receive new finish; remove existing finish if necessary for successful application of new finish.
 - 5. Where new surface finishes are not specified or indicated, patch holes and damaged surfaces to match adjacent finished surfaces as closely as possible.
- E. Services (Including but not limited to HVAC, Plumbing, Fire Protection, Electrical, and Telecommunications): Remove, relocate, and extend existing systems to accommodate new construction.
 - 1. Maintain existing active systems that are to remain in operation; maintain access to equipment and operational components; if necessary, modify installation to allow access or provide access panel.

- 2. Where existing systems or equipment are not active and Contract Documents require reactivation, put back into operational condition; repair supply, distribution, and equipment as required.
- 3. Where existing active systems serve occupied facilities but are to be replaced with new services, maintain existing systems in service until new systems are complete and ready for service.
 - Disable existing systems only to make switchovers and connections; minimize duration of outages.
 - b. See Section 01 1000 for other limitations on outages and required notifications.
 - c. Provide temporary connections as required to maintain existing systems in service.
- 4. Verify that abandoned services serve only abandoned facilities.
- 5. Remove abandoned pipe, ducts, conduits, and equipment, including those above accessible ceilings; remove back to source of supply where possible, otherwise cap stub and tag with identification; patch holes left by removal using materials specified for new construction.
- F. Protect existing work to remain.
 - 1. Prevent movement of structure; provide shoring and bracing if necessary.
 - 2. Perform cutting to accomplish removals neatly and as specified for cutting new work.
 - 3. Repair adjacent construction and finishes damaged during removal work.
- G. Adapt existing work to fit new work: Make as neat and smooth transition as possible.
 - 1. When existing finished surfaces are cut so that a smooth transition with new work is not possible, terminate existing surface along a straight line at a natural line of division and make recommendation to Architect.
 - 2. Where removal of partitions or walls results in adjacent spaces becoming one, rework floors, walls, and ceilings to a smooth plane without breaks, steps, or bulkheads.
 - 3. Where a change of plane of 1/4 inch or more occurs in existing work, submit recommendation for providing a smooth transition for Architect review and request instructions.
- H. Patching: Where the existing surface is not indicated to be refinished, patch to match the surface finish that existed prior to cutting. Where the surface is indicated to be refinished, patch so that the substrate is ready for the new finish.
- I. Refinish existing surfaces as indicated:
 - 1. Where rooms or spaces are indicated to be refinished, refinish all visible existing surfaces to remain to the specified condition for each material, with a neat transition to adjacent finishes.
 - If mechanical or electrical work is exposed accidentally during the work, re-cover and refinish to match.
- J. Clean existing systems and equipment.
- K. Remove demolition debris and abandoned items from alterations areas and dispose of off-site; do not burn or bury.
- L. Do not begin new construction in alterations areas before demolition is complete.
- M. Comply with all other applicable requirements of this section.

3.07 CUTTING AND PATCHING

- A. Whenever possible, execute the work by methods that avoid cutting or patching.
- B. See Alterations article above for additional requirements.
- C. Perform whatever cutting and patching is necessary to:
 - 1. Complete the work.
 - 2. Fit products together to integrate with other work.
 - 3. Provide openings for penetration of mechanical, electrical, and other services.
 - 4. Match work that has been cut to adjacent work.
 - 5. Repair areas adjacent to cuts to required condition.

- 6. Repair new work damaged by subsequent work.
- 7. Remove samples of installed work for testing when requested.
- 8. Remove and replace defective and non-conforming work.
- D. Execute work by methods that avoid damage to other work and that will provide appropriate surfaces to receive patching and finishing. In existing work, minimize damage and restore to specified condition.
- E. Employ skilled and experienced installer to perform cutting for weather exposed and moisture resistant elements, and sight exposed surfaces.
- F. Cut rigid materials using masonry saw or core drill. Pneumatic tools not allowed without prior approval.
- G. Restore work with new products in accordance with requirements of Contract Documents.
- H. Fit work air tight to pipes, sleeves, ducts, conduit, and other penetrations through surfaces.
- At penetrations of fire rated walls, partitions, ceiling, or floor construction, completely seal voids with fire rated material in accordance with Section 07 8400, to full thickness of the penetrated element.
- J. Patching:
 - Finish patched surfaces to match finish that existed prior to patching. On continuous surfaces, refinish to nearest intersection or natural break. For an assembly, refinish entire unit
 - 2. Match color, texture, and appearance.
 - 3. Repair patched surfaces that are damaged, lifted, discolored, or showing other imperfections due to patching work. If defects are due to condition of substrate, repair substrate prior to repairing finish.

3.08 PROGRESS CLEANING

- A. Maintain areas free of waste materials, debris, and rubbish. Maintain site in a clean and orderly condition.
- B. Remove debris and rubbish from pipe chases, plenums, attics, crawl spaces, and other closed or remote spaces, prior to enclosing the space.
- C. Broom and vacuum clean interior areas prior to start of surface finishing, and continue cleaning to eliminate dust.
- D. Collect and remove waste materials, debris, and trash/rubbish from site periodically and dispose off-site; do not burn or bury.

3.09 PROTECTION OF INSTALLED WORK

- A. Protect installed work from damage by construction operations.
- B. Provide special protection where specified in individual specification sections.
- C. Provide temporary and removable protection for installed products. Control activity in immediate work area to prevent damage.
- D. Provide protective coverings at walls, projections, jambs, sills, and soffits of openings.
- E. Protect finished floors, stairs, and other surfaces from traffic, dirt, wear, damage, or movement of heavy objects, by protecting with durable sheet materials.
- F. Prohibit traffic or storage upon waterproofed or roofed surfaces. If traffic or activity is necessary, obtain recommendations for protection from waterproofing or roofing material manufacturer.
- G. Prohibit traffic from landscaped areas.
- H. Remove protective coverings when no longer needed; reuse or recycle coverings if possible.

3.10 SYSTEM STARTUP

A. Coordinate schedule for start-up of various equipment and systems.

- B. Notify Architect and owner seven days prior to start-up of each item.
- C. Verify that each piece of equipment or system has been checked for proper lubrication, drive rotation, belt tension, control sequence, and for conditions that may cause damage.
- D. Verify tests, meter readings, and specified electrical characteristics agree with those required by the equipment or system manufacturer.
- E. Verify that wiring and support components for equipment are complete and tested.
- F. Execute start-up under supervision of applicable Contractor personnel and manufacturer's representative in accordance with manufacturers' instructions.
- G. When specified in individual specification Sections, require manufacturer to provide authorized representative to be present at site to inspect, check, and approve equipment or system installation prior to start-up, and to supervise placing equipment or system in operation.
- H. Submit a written report that equipment or system has been properly installed and is functioning correctly.

3.11 DEMONSTRATION AND INSTRUCTION

- A. Demonstrate operation and maintenance of products to Owner's personnel two weeks prior to date of Substantial Completion.
- B. Demonstrate start-up, operation, control, adjustment, trouble-shooting, servicing, maintenance, and shutdown of each item of equipment at scheduled time, at equipment location.
- For equipment or systems requiring seasonal operation, perform demonstration for other season within six months.
- D. Provide a qualified person who is knowledgeable about the Project to perform demonstration and instruction of owner personnel.
- E. Utilize operation and maintenance manuals as basis for instruction. Review contents of manual with Owner's personnel in detail to explain all aspects of operation and maintenance.
- F. Prepare and insert additional data in operations and maintenance manuals when need for additional data becomes apparent during instruction.

3.12 ADJUSTING

A. Adjust operating products and equipment to ensure smooth and unhindered operation.

3.13 FINAL CLEANING

- A. Use cleaning materials that are nonhazardous.
- B. Clean interior and exterior glass, surfaces exposed to view; remove temporary labels, stains and foreign substances, polish transparent and glossy surfaces, vacuum carpeted and soft surfaces.
- C. Remove all labels that are not permanent. Do not paint or otherwise cover fire test labels or nameplates on mechanical and electrical equipment.
- D. Clean equipment and fixtures to a sanitary condition with cleaning materials appropriate to the surface and material being cleaned.
- E. Clean filters of operating equipment.
- F. Clean debris from roofs, gutters, downspouts, scuppers, overflow drains, area drains, and drainage systems.
- G. Clean site; sweep paved areas, rake clean landscaped surfaces.
- H. Remove waste, surplus materials, trash/rubbish, and construction facilities from the site; dispose of in legal manner; do not burn or bury.

3.14 CLOSEOUT PROCEDURES

- A. Make submittals that are required by governing or other authorities.
 - 1. Provide copies to Architect and Owner.

- B. Accompany Project Coordinator on preliminary inspection to determine items to be listed for completion or correction in the Contractor's Correction Punch List for Contractor's Notice of Substantial Completion.
- C. Notify Architect when work is considered ready for Architect's Substantial Completion inspection.
- D. Submit written certification containing Contractor's Correction Punch List, that Contract Documents have been reviewed, work has been inspected, and that work is complete in accordance with Contract Documents and ready for Architect's Substantial Completion inspection.
- E. Conduct Substantial Completion inspection and create Final Correction Punch List containing Architect's and Contractor's comprehensive list of items identified to be completed or corrected and submit to Architect.
- F. Correct items of work listed in Final Correction Punch List and comply with requirements for access to Owner-occupied areas.
- G. Notify Architect when work is considered finally complete and ready for Architect's Substantial Completion final inspection.
- H. Complete items of work determined by Architect listed in executed Certificate of Substantial Completion.

3.15 MAINTENANCE

- A. Provide service and maintenance of components indicated in specification sections.
- B. Maintenance Period: As indicated in specification sections or, if not indicated, not less than one year from the Date of Substantial Completion or the length of the specified warranty, whichever is longer.
- C. Examine system components at a frequency consistent with reliable operation. Clean, adjust, and lubricate as required.
- D. Include systematic examination, adjustment, and lubrication of components. Repair or replace parts whenever required. Use parts produced by the manufacturer of the original component.
- E. Maintenance service shall not be assigned or transferred to any agent or subcontractor without prior written consent of the Owner.

SECTION 01 7800 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- Project Record Documents.
- B. Operation and Maintenance Data.
- C. Warranties and bonds.

1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

- A. Section 01 3000 Administrative Requirements: Submittals procedures, shop drawings, product data, and samples.
- B. Section 01 7000 Execution and Closeout Requirements: Contract closeout procedures.
- C. Individual Product Sections: Specific requirements for operation and maintenance data.
- D. Individual Product Sections: Warranties required for specific products or Work.

1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. Project Record Documents: Submit documents to Architect 15 days prior to final inspection. This copy will be reviewed and returned after final inspection, with Architect comments. Revise content of all documents as required prior to final submission.
- B. Operation and Maintenance Data:
 - 1. For equipment, or component parts of equipment put into service during construction and operated by Owner, submit completed documents within ten days after acceptance.
 - 2. Submit one copy of completed documents 15 days prior to final inspection. This copy will be reviewed and returned after final inspection, with Architect comments. Revise content of all document sets as required prior to final submission.
 - 3. Submit two sets of revised final documents in final form within 10 days after final inspection.
 - 4. In addition to the hard copy binders, submit a digital (PDF) format copy.

C. Warranties and Bonds:

- 1. For equipment or component parts of equipment put into service during construction with Owner's permission, submit documents within 10 days after acceptance.
- 2. Make other submittals within 10 days after Date of Substantial Completion, prior to final Application for Payment.
- 3. For items of Work for which acceptance is delayed beyond Date of Substantial Completion, submit within 10 days after acceptance, listing the date of acceptance as the beginning of the warranty period.
- 4. In addition to the hard copy binders, submit a digital (PDF) format copy.

PART 2 PRODUCTS - NOT USED

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS

- A. Maintain on site one set of the following record documents; record actual revisions to the Work:
 - 1. Drawings.
 - 2. Specifications.
 - 3. Addenda.
 - 4. Change Orders and other modifications to the Contract.
 - 5. Reviewed shop drawings, product data, and samples.
 - 6. Manufacturer's instruction for assembly, installation, and adjusting.
- B. Ensure entries are complete and accurate, enabling future reference by Owner.
- C. Store record documents separate from documents used for construction.

- D. Record information concurrent with construction progress.
- E. Specifications: Legibly mark and record at each product section description of actual products installed, including the following:
 - 1. Manufacturer's name and product model and number.
 - 2. Product substitutions or alternates utilized.
 - 3. Changes made by Addenda and modifications.
- F. Record Drawings and Shop Drawings: Legibly mark each item to record actual construction including:
 - 1. Measured depths of foundations in relation to finish first floor datum.
 - 2. Measured horizontal and vertical locations of underground utilities and appurtenances, referenced to permanent surface improvements.
 - 3. Measured locations of internal utilities and appurtenances concealed in construction, referenced to visible and accessible features of the Work.
 - 4. Field changes of dimension and detail.
 - All filed markups shall be converted to PDF format using professional software capable of producing legible and detailed notations. A scanned version of the hand drawings is not acceptable.
 - 6. Details not on original Contract drawings.
- G. Final Record Document Set: Submit Final PDF markups both in digital format and two copies of the full size drawing sets.

3.02 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE DATA

- A. Source Data: For each product or system, list names, addresses and telephone numbers of Subcontractors and suppliers, including local source of supplies and replacement parts.
- B. Product Data: Mark each sheet to clearly identify specific products and component parts, and data applicable to installation. Delete inapplicable information.
- C. Drawings: Supplement product data to illustrate relations of component parts of equipment and systems, to show control and flow diagrams. Do not use Project Record Documents as maintenance drawings.
- D. Typed Text: As required to supplement product data. Provide logical sequence of instructions for each procedure, incorporating manufacturer's instructions.

3.03 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE DATA FOR MATERIALS AND FINISHES

- A. For Each Product, Applied Material, and Finish:
 - 1. Product data, with catalog number, size, composition, and color and texture designations.
 - 2. Information for re-ordering custom manufactured products.
- B. Instructions for Care and Maintenance: Manufacturer's recommendations for cleaning agents and methods, precautions against detrimental cleaning agents and methods, and recommended schedule for cleaning and maintenance.
- C. Where additional instructions are required, beyond the manufacturer's standard printed instructions, have instructions prepared by personnel experienced in the operation and maintenance of the specific products.

3.04 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE DATA FOR EQUIPMENT AND SYSTEMS

- A. For Each Item of Equipment and Each System:
 - 1. Description of unit or system, and component parts.
 - 2. Identify function, normal operating characteristics, and limiting conditions.
 - 3. Include performance curves, with engineering data and tests.
 - 4. Complete nomenclature and model number of replaceable parts.
- B. Where additional instructions are required, beyond the manufacturer's standard printed instructions, have instructions prepared by personnel experienced in the operation and maintenance of the specific products.

- C. Operating Procedures: Include start-up, break-in, and routine normal operating instructions and sequences. Include regulation, control, stopping, shut-down, and emergency instructions. Include summer, winter, and any special operating instructions.
- D. Maintenance Requirements: Include routine procedures and guide for preventative maintenance and trouble shooting; disassembly, repair, and reassembly instructions; and alignment, adjusting, balancing, and checking instructions.
- E. Provide servicing and lubrication schedule, and list of lubricants required.
- F. Include manufacturer's printed operation and maintenance instructions.
- G. Include sequence of operation by controls manufacturer.
- H. Provide original manufacturer's parts list, illustrations, assembly drawings, and diagrams required for maintenance.
- I. Provide Contractor's coordination drawings, with color coded piping diagrams as installed.
- J. Provide charts of valve tag numbers, with location and function of each valve, keyed to flow and control diagrams.
- K. Provide list of original manufacturer's spare parts, current prices, and recommended quantities to be maintained in storage.
- L. Include test and balancing reports.
- M. Additional Requirements: As specified in individual product specification sections.

3.05 ASSEMBLY OF OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE MANUALS

- A. Assemble operation and maintenance data into durable manuals for Owner's personnel use, with data arranged in the same sequence as, and identified by, the specification sections.
- B. Where systems involve more than one specification section, provide separate tabbed divider for each system.
- C. Binders: Commercial quality, 8-1/2 by 11 inch three D side ring binders with durable plastic covers; 2 inch maximum ring size. When multiple binders are used, correlate data into related consistent groupings.
- D. Cover: Identify each binder with typed or printed title OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE INSTRUCTIONS; identify title of Project; identify subject matter of contents.
- E. Project Directory: Title and address of Project; names, addresses, and telephone numbers of Architect, Consultants, Contractor and subcontractors, with names of responsible parties.
- F. Tables of Contents: List every item separated by a divider, using the same identification as on the divider tab; where multiple volumes are required, include all volumes Tables of Contents in each volume, with the current volume clearly identified.
- G. Dividers: Provide tabbed dividers for each separate product and system; identify the contents on the divider tab; immediately following the divider tab include a description of product and major component parts of equipment.
- H. Text: Manufacturer's printed data, or typewritten data on 20 pound paper.
- I. Drawings: Provide with reinforced punched binder tab. Bind in with text; fold larger drawings to size of text pages.
- J. Arrangement of Contents: Organize each volume in parts as follows:
 - 1. Project Directory.
 - 2. Table of Contents, of all volumes, and of this volume.
 - 3. Operation and Maintenance Data: Arranged by system, then by product category.
 - a. Source data.
 - b. Product data, shop drawings, and other submittals.
 - c. Operation and maintenance data.
 - d. Field quality control data.
 - e. Photocopies of warranties and bonds.

4. Design Data: To allow for addition of design data furnished by Architect or others, provide a tab labeled "Design Data" and provide a binder large enough to allow for insertion of at least 20 pages of typed text.

3.06 WARRANTIES AND BONDS

- A. Obtain warranties and bonds, executed in duplicate by responsible Subcontractors, suppliers, and manufacturers, within 10 days after completion of the applicable item of work. Except for items put into use with Owner's permission, leave date of beginning of time of warranty until Date of Substantial completion is determined.
- B. Verify that documents are in proper form, contain full information, and are notarized.
- C. Co-execute submittals when required.
- D. Retain warranties and bonds until time specified for submittal.
- E. Manual: Bind in commercial quality 8-1/2 by 11 inch three D side ring binders with durable plastic covers.
- F. Cover: Identify each binder with typed or printed title WARRANTIES AND BONDS, with title of Project; name, address and telephone number of Contractor and equipment supplier; and name of responsible company principal.
- G. Table of Contents: Neatly typed, in the sequence of the Table of Contents of the Project Manual, with each item identified with the number and title of the specification section in which specified, and the name of product or work item.
- H. Separate each warranty or bond with index tab sheets keyed to the Table of Contents listing. Provide full information, using separate typed sheets as necessary. List Subcontractor, supplier, and manufacturer, with name, address, and telephone number of responsible principal.

SECTION 02 4100 DEMOLITION

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

A. Selective demolition of building elements for alteration purposes.

1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

- Section 01 5000 Temporary Facilities and Controls: Security, protective barriers, and waste removal.
- B. Section 01 7000 Execution and Closeout Requirements: Project conditions; protection of bench marks, survey control points, and existing construction to remain; reinstallation of removed products; temporary bracing and shoring.

1.03 REFERENCE STANDARDS

- A. 29 CFR 1926 U.S. Occupational Safety and Health Standards; current edition.
- B. NFPA 241 Standard for Safeguarding Construction, Alteration, and Demolition Operations; 2013.

PART 2 EXECUTION

2.01 SCOPE

A. Remove items indicated on drawings.

2.02 GENERAL PROCEDURES AND PROJECT CONDITIONS

- A. Comply with other requirements specified in Section 01 7000.
- B. Comply with applicable codes and regulations for demolition operations and safety of adjacent structures and the public.
 - 1. Provide, erect, and maintain temporary barriers and security devices.
 - 2. Use physical barriers to prevent access to areas that could be hazardous to workers or the public.
 - 3. Conduct operations to minimize effects on and interference with adjacent structures and occupants.
 - 4. Do not close or obstruct roadways or sidewalks without permit.
 - 5. Conduct operations to minimize obstruction of public and private entrances and exits; do not obstruct required exits at any time; protect persons using entrances and exits from removal operations.
 - 6. Obtain written permission from owners of adjacent properties when demolition equipment will traverse, infringe upon or limit access to their property.
- C. Do not begin removal until receipt of notification to proceed from Owner.
- D. Do not begin removal until built elements to be salvaged or relocated have been removed.
- E. Protect existing structures and other elements that are not to be removed.
 - Provide bracing and shoring.
 - 2. Prevent movement or settlement of adjacent structures.
 - 3. Stop work immediately if adjacent structures appear to be in danger.
- F. Minimize production of dust due to demolition operations; do not use water if that will result in ice, flooding, sedimentation of public waterways or storm sewers, or other pollution.
- G. If hazardous materials are discovered during removal operations, stop work and notify Architect and Owner; hazardous materials include regulated asbestos containing materials, lead, PCB's, and mercury.

2.03 EXISTING UTILITIES

- A. Protect existing utilities to remain from damage.
- B. Do not disrupt public utilities without permit from authority having jurisdiction.

- C. Do not close, shut off, or disrupt existing life safety systems that are in use without at least 7days prior written notification to Owner.
- D. Do not close, shut off, or disrupt existing utility branches or take-offs that are in use without at least 3 days prior written notification to Owner.

2.04 SELECTIVE DEMOLITION FOR ALTERATIONS

- A. Drawings showing existing construction and utilities are based on casual field observation and existing record documents only.
 - 1. Verify that construction and utility arrangements are as shown.
 - 2. Report discrepancies to Architect before disturbing existing installation.
 - 3. Beginning of demolition work constitutes acceptance of existing conditions that would be apparent upon examination prior to starting demolition.
- B. Separate areas in which demolition is being conducted from other areas that are still occupied.
 - 1. Provide, erect, and maintain temporary dustproof partitions of construction specified in Section 01 5000 in locations indicated on drawings.
- C. Remove existing work as indicated and as required to accomplish new work.
 - 1. Remove items indicated on drawings.
- D. Protect existing work to remain.
 - 1. Prevent movement of structure; provide shoring and bracing if necessary.
 - 2. Perform cutting to accomplish removals neatly and as specified for cutting new work.
 - 3. Repair adjacent construction and finishes damaged during removal work.
 - 4. Patch as specified for patching new work.

2.05 DEBRIS AND WASTE REMOVAL

- A. Remove debris, junk, and trash from site.
- B. Leave site in clean condition, ready for subsequent work.
- C. Clean up spillage and wind-blown debris from public and private lands.

SECTION 03 5400 CAST UNDERLAYMENT

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Liquid-applied self-leveling floor underlayment.
 - 1. Use cementitious type.

1.02 REFERENCE STANDARDS

- A. ASTM C109/C109M Standard Test Method for Compressive Strength of Hydraulic Cement Mortars (Using 2-in. or (50-mm) Cube Specimens); 2016a.
- B. ASTM C348 Standard Test Method for Flexural Strength of Hydraulic-Cement Mortars; 2014.
- C. ASTM E84 Standard Test Method for Surface Burning Characteristics of Building Materials; 2015a.

1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. See Section 01 3000 Administrative Requirements, for submittal procedures.
- B. Product Data: Provide manufacturer's data sheets documenting physical characteristics and product limitations of underlayment materials. Include information on surface preparation, environmental limitations, and installation instructions.

1.04 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Applicator Qualifications: Company specializing in performing the work of this section, and approved by manufacturer.

1.05 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

- A. Store products in manufacturer's unopened packaging until ready for installation.
- B. Keep dry and protect from direct sun exposure, freezing, and ambient temperature greater than 105 degrees F.

1.06 MOCK-UP

- A. Provide a mock-up for evaluation of surface preparation techniques and application workmanship.
 - 1. Prepare mock-up in location designated by Architect.
 - 2. Area: 6 ft by 6 ft.
- B. Mock-up may remain as part of the Work.

1.07 FIELD CONDITIONS

- A. Do not install underlayment until floor penetrations and peripheral work are complete.
- B. Maintain minimum ambient temperatures of 50 degrees F 24 hours before, during and 72 hours after installation of underlayment.
- C. During the curing process, ventilate spaces to remove excess moisture.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 MANUFACTURERS

- A. Cementitious Underlayment:
 - ARDEX Engineered Cements; FEATHER FINISH with ARDEX MC ULTRA: www.ardexamericas.com.
 - 2. Substitutions: See Section 01 6000 Product Requirements.

2.02 MATERIALS

- A. Cast Underlayments, General:
- B. Cementitious Underlayment: Blended cement mix, that when mixed with water in accordance with manufacturer's directions will produce self-leveling underlayment with the following properties:
 - 1. Compressive Strength: Minimum 4000 psi after 28 days, tested per ASTM C109/C109M.
 - 2. Flexural Strength: Minimum 1000 psi after 28 days, tested per ASTM C348.
 - 3. Density: 125 lb/cu ft, nominal.
 - 4. Final Set Time: 1-1/2 to 2 hours, maximum.
 - 5. Thickness: Capable of thicknesses from feather edge to maximum 3-1/2 inch.
 - 6. Surface Burning Characteristics: Flame spread/Smoke developed index of 0/0 in accordance with ASTM E84.
- C. Water: Potable and not detrimental to underlayment mix materials.
- D. Primer: Manufacturer's recommended type.
- E. Joint and Crack Filler: Latex based filler, as recommended by manufacturer.

2.03 MIXING

- A. Site mix materials in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.
- B. Mix to self-leveling consistency without over-watering.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 EXAMINATION

A. Verify that substrate surfaces are clean, dry, unfrozen, do not contain petroleum byproducts, or other compounds detrimental to underlayment material bond to substrate.

3.02 PREPARATION

- A. Remove substrate surface irregularities. Fill voids and deck joints with filler. Finish smooth.
- B. Vacuum clean surfaces.
- C. Prime substrate in accordance with manufacturer's instructions. Allow to dry.
- D. Close floor openings.

3.03 APPLICATION

- A. Install underlayment in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.
- B. Place to indicated thickness, with top surface level to 1/8 inch in 10 ft.
- C. For final thickness over 1-1/2 inches, place underlayment in layers. Allow initial layer to harden to the point where the material has lost its evaporative moisture. Immediately prime and begin application of the subsequent layer within 24 hours.
- D. Place before partition installation.
- E. Where additional aggregate has been used in the mix, add a top layer of neat mix (without aggregate), if needed to level and smooth the surface.
- F. If a fine, feathered edge is desired, steel trowel the edge after initial set, but before it is completely hard.

3.04 CURING

- A. Once underlayment starts to set, prohibit foot traffic until final set has been reached.
- B. Air cure in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.

3.05 PROTECTION

- A. Protect against direct sunlight, heat, and wind; prevent rapid drying to avoid shrinkage and cracking.
- B. Do not permit traffic over unprotected floor underlayment surfaces.

Page Intentionally Blank

SECTION 05 4000 COLD-FORMED METAL FRAMING

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

A. Formed steel stud interior wall framing.

1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

A. Section 09 2116 - Gypsum Board Assemblies: Gypsum-based sheathing.

1.03 REFERENCE STANDARDS

- A. AISI S100-12 North American Specification for the Design of Cold-Formed Steel Structural Members; American Iron and Steel Institute; 2012.
- B. ASTM A153/A153M Standard Specification for Zinc Coating (Hot-Dip) on Iron and Steel Hardware; 2009.
- C. ASTM A653/A653M Standard Specification for Steel Sheet, Zinc-Coated (Galvanized) or Zinc-Iron Alloy-Coated (Galvannealed) by the Hot-Dip Process; 2015.
- D. ASTM C955 Standard Specification for Load-Bearing (Transverse and Axial) Steel Studs, Runners (Tracks), and Bracing or Bridging for Screw Application of Gypsum Panel Products and Metal Plaster Bases: 2011c.
- E. ASTM C1007 Standard Specification for Installation of Load Bearing (Transverse and Axial) Steel Studs and Related Accessories; 2011a.
- F. SSPC-Paint 20 Zinc-Rich Primers (Type I, "Inorganic," and Type II, "Organic"); 2002 (Ed. 2004).

1.04 SUBMITTALS

- A. See Section 01 3000 Administrative Requirements, for submittal procedures.
- B. Product Data: Provide manufacturer's data on factory-made framing connectors, showing compliance with requirements.
- Manufacturer's Installation Instructions: Indicate special procedures, conditions requiring special attention, and non-typical conditions.

1.05 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Designer Qualifications: Design framing system under direct supervision of a Professional Structural Engineer experienced in design of this Work and licensed in the State in which the Project is located.
- B. Installer Qualifications: Company specializing in performing the work of this section with minimum three years documented experience and approved by manufacturer.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 MANUFACTURERS

- A. Metal Framing:
 - 1. Clark Dietrich Building Systems LLC: www.clarkdietrich.com.
 - 2. Substitutions: See Section 01 6000 Product Requirements.
- B. Framing Connectors and Accessories:
 - 1. Same manufacturer as metal framing.
 - 2. Substitutions: See Section 01 6000 Product Requirements.

2.02 FRAMING SYSTEM

- A. Provide primary and secondary framing members, bridging, bracing, plates, gussets, clips, fittings, reinforcement, and fastenings as required to provide a complete framing system.
- B. Design Criteria: Provide completed framing system having the following characteristics:

- 1. Design: Calculate structural characteristics of cold-formed steel framing members according to AISI S100-12.
- 2. Structural Performance: Design, engineer, fabricate, and erect to withstand specified design loads for project conditions within required limits.
- 3. Design Loads: In accordance with applicable codes.

2.03 FRAMING MATERIALS

- A. Studs and Track: ASTM C955; studs formed to channel, "C", or "Sigma" shape with punched web; U-shaped track in matching nominal width and compatible height.
 - 1. Gauge and Depth: As required to met specified performance levels.
- B. Framing Connectors: Factory-made, formed steel sheet.
 - Material: ASTM A653/A653M SS Grade 33 and 40 (minimum), with G90/Z275 hot dipped galvanized coating for base metal thickness less than 10 gage, 0.1345 inch, and factory punched holes and slots.
 - 2. Structural Performance: Maintain load and movement capacity required by applicable code, when evaluated in accordance with AISI S100-12.
 - 3. Movement Connections: Provide mechanical anchorage devices that accommodate movement using slotted holes, shouldered screws or screws and anti-friction or stepped bushings, while maintaining structural performance of framing. Provide movement connections where indicated on drawings.
 - a. Where continuous studs bypass elevated floor slab, connect stud to slab in manner allowing vertical and horizontal movement of slab without affecting studs; allow for minimum movement of 1/2 inch.
 - b. Where top of stud wall terminates below structural floor or roof, connect studs to structure in manner allowing vertical and horizontal movement of slab without affecting studs; allow for minimum movement of 1/2 inch.
 - c. Provide top track preassembled with connection devices spaced to fit stud spacing indicated on drawings; minimum track length of 12 feet.
 - 4. Fixed Connections: Provide non-movement connections for tie-down to foundation, floor-to-floor tie-down, roof-to-wall tie-down, joist hangers, gusset plates, and stiffeners.
 - 5. Wall Stud Bridging Connections: Provide mechanical load-transferring devices that accommodate wind load torsion and weak axis buckling induced by axial compression loads. Provide bridging connections where indicated on the drawings.
 - 6. Products:
 - a. Substitutions: See Section 01 6000 Product Requirements.

2.04 ACCESSORIES

- A. Bracing, Furring, Bridging: Formed sheet steel, thickness determined for conditions encountered; finish to match framing components.
- B. Touch-Up Primer for Galvanized Surfaces: SSPC-Paint 20, Type I Inorganic, complying with VOC limitations of authorities having jurisdiction.
- C. Water-Resistive Barrier: As specified in Section 07 2500.

2.05 FASTENERS

- A. Self-Drilling, Self-Tapping Screws, Bolts, Nuts and Washers: Hot dip galvanized per ASTM A153/A153M.
- B. Anchorage Devices: Powder actuated.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 INSTALLATION OF STUDS

- A. Install components in accordance with manufacturers' instructions and ASTM C1007 requirements.
- B. Construct corners using minimum of three studs. Install double studs at wall openings, door and window jambs.

- C. Install load bearing studs full length in one piece. Splicing of studs is not permitted.
- D. Install load bearing studs, brace, and reinforce to develop full strength and achieve design requirements.
- E. Coordinate placement of insulation in multiple stud spaces made inaccessible after erection.
- F. Install intermediate studs above and below openings to align with wall stud spacing.
- G. Provide deflection allowance in stud track, directly below horizontal building framing at non-load bearing framing.
- H. Attach cross studs to studs for attachment of fixtures anchored to walls.
- I. Install framing between studs for attachment of mechanical and electrical items, and to prevent stud rotation.
- J. Touch-up field welds and damaged galvanized surfaces with primer.

Page Intentionally Blank

SECTION 06 1000 ROUGH CARPENTRY

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- Non-structural dimension lumber framing.
- B. Concealed wood blocking, nailers, and supports.

1.02 REFERENCE STANDARDS

- A. ASTM A153/A153M Standard Specification for Zinc Coating (Hot-Dip) on Iron and Steel Hardware; 2016a.
- B. AWC (WFCM) Wood Frame Construction Manual for One- and Two-Family Dwellings; 2015.
- C. PS 2 Performance Standard for Wood-Based Structural-Use Panels; 2010.
- D. PS 20 American Softwood Lumber Standard; 2020.

1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. See Section 01 3000 Administrative Requirements, for submittal procedures.
- B. Product Data: Provide technical data on insulated sheathing, wood preservative materials, and application instructions.

1.04 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

 General: Cover wood products to protect against moisture. Support stacked products to prevent deformation and to allow air circulation.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

- A. Dimension Lumber: Comply with PS 20 and requirements of specified grading agencies.
 - 1. If no species is specified, provide any species graded by the agency specified; if no grading agency is specified, provide lumber graded by any grading agency meeting the specified requirements.
 - 2. Grading Agency: Any grading agency whose rules are approved by the Board of Review, American Lumber Standard Committee (www.alsc.org) and who provides grading service for the species and grade specified; provide lumber stamped with grade mark unless otherwise indicated.

2.02 DIMENSION LUMBER FOR CONCEALED APPLICATIONS

- A. Sizes: varies as needed for blocking
- B. Moisture Content: S-dry or MC19.
- D. Miscellaneous Framing, Blocking, Nailers, Grounds, and Furring:
 - 1. Lumber: S4S, No. 2 or Standard Grade.
 - 2. Boards: Standard or No. 3.
 - 3. Performance Category: 3/4 PERF CAT.

2.03 ACCESSORIES

- A. Fasteners and Anchors:
 - 1. Metal and Finish: Hot-dipped galvanized steel complying with ASTM A153/A153M for high humidity and preservative-treated wood locations, unfinished steel elsewhere.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 INSTALLATION - GENERAL

- A. Select material sizes to minimize waste.
- B. Reuse scrap to the greatest extent possible; clearly separate scrap for use on site as accessory components, including: shims, bracing, and blocking.

3.02 BLOCKING, NAILERS, AND SUPPORTS

A. Provide framing and blocking members as indicated or as required to support windows and trim.

3.03 TOLERANCES

- A. Framing Members: 1/4 inch (6 mm) from true position, maximum.
- B. Variation from Plane (Other than Floors): 1/4 inch in 10 feet (2 mm/m) maximum, and 1/4 inch in 30 feet (7 mm in 10 m) maximum.

3.04 CLEANING

- A. Waste Disposal: Comply with the requirements of Section 01 7419 Construction Waste Management and Disposal.
 - 1. Comply with applicable regulations.
 - Do not burn scrap on project site.
 - 3. Do not burn scraps that have been pressure treated.
 - 4. Do not send materials treated with pentachlorophenol, CCA, or ACA to co-generation facilities or "waste-to-energy" facilities.
- B. Do not leave any wood, shavings, sawdust, etc. on the ground or buried in fill.
- C. Prevent sawdust and wood shavings from entering the storm drainage system.

SECTION 06 2000 FINISH CARPENTRY

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

A. Finish carpentry items.

1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

A. Section 06 1000 - Rough Carpentry: Support framing, grounds, and concealed blocking.

1.03 REFERENCE STANDARDS

- ASTM E84 Standard Test Method for Surface Burning Characteristics of Building Materials; 2015a.
- B. AWI/AWMAC/WI (AWS) Architectural Woodwork Standards; 2014.

1.04 SUBMITTALS

- A. See Section 01 3000 Administrative Requirements for submittal procedures.
- B. Shop Drawings: Indicate materials, component profiles, fastening methods, jointing details, and accessories.
 - 1. Minimum Scale of Detail Drawings: 1-1/2 inch to 1 foot.
 - 2. Provide the information required by AWI/AWMAC/WI (AWS).
- C. Samples: Submit two samples of wood trim 12 inches long.

1.05 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Fabricator Qualifications: Company specializing in fabricating the products specified in this section with minimum five years of documented experience.

1.06 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

A. Protect work from moisture damage

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 FINISH CARPENTRY ITEMS

- A. Quality Grade: Unless otherwise indicated provide products of quality specified by AWI/AWMAC/WI (AWS) for Custom Grade.
- B. Surface Burning Characteristics: Provide materials having fire and smoke properties as required by applicable code.
- C. Interior Woodwork Items:
 - 1. Miscellaneous Trim: Clear white pine; prepare for painted finish.

2.02 WOOD-BASED COMPONENTS

A. Wood fabricated from old growth timber is not permitted.

2.03 FABRICATION

A. When necessary to cut and fit on site, provide materials with ample allowance for cutting. Provide trim for scribing and site cutting.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 EXAMINATION

A. Verify adequacy of backing and support framing.

3.02 INSTALLATION

- A. Install work in accordance with AWI/AWMAC/WI (AWS) requirements for grade indicated.
- B. Set and secure materials and components in place, plumb and level.
- C. Carefully scribe work abutting other components, with maximum gaps of 1/32 inch. Do not use additional overlay trim to conceal larger gaps.

3.03 PREPARATION FOR SITE FINISHING

- A. Set exposed fasteners. Apply wood filler in exposed fastener indentations. Sand work smooth.
- B. Before installation, prime paint surfaces of items or assemblies to be in contact with cementitious materials.

3.04 TOLERANCES

- A. Maximum Variation from True Position: 1/16 inch.
- B. Maximum Offset from True Alignment with Abutting Materials: 1/32 inch.

SECTION 07 9200 JOINT SEALANTS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Nonsag gunnable joint sealants.
- B. Joint backings and accessories.

1.02 REFERENCE STANDARDS

- A. ASTM C661 Standard Test Method for Indentation Hardness of Elastomeric-Type Sealants by Means of a Durometer; 2015.
- B. ASTM C794 Standard Test Method for Adhesion-In-Peel of Elastomeric Joint Sealants; 2018.
- C. ASTM C920 Standard Specification for Elastomeric Joint Sealants; 2018.
- D. ASTM C1087 Standard Test Method for Determining Compatibility of Liquid-Applied Sealants with Accessories Used in Structural Glazing Systems; 2016.
- E. ASTM C1193 Standard Guide for Use of Joint Sealants; 2016.
- F. ASTM C1248 Standard Test Method for Staining of Porous Substrate by Joint Sealants; 2018.
- G. ASTM C1330 Standard Specification for Cylindrical Sealant Backing for Use with Cold Liquid-Applied Sealants; 2018.

1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. See Section 01 3000 Administrative Requirements, for submittal procedures.
- B. Product Data for Sealants: Submit manufacturer's technical data sheets for each product to be used, that includes the following.
 - 1. Physical characteristics, including movement capability, VOC content, hardness, cure time, and color availability.
 - 2. List of backing materials approved for use with the specific product.
 - 3. Substrates that product is known to satisfactorily adhere to and with which it is compatible.
 - 4. Substrates the product should not be used on.
- Preconstruction Laboratory Test Reports: Submit at least four weeks prior to start of installation.

1.04 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Preconstruction Laboratory Testing: Arrange for sealant manufacturer(s) to test each combination of sealant, substrate, backing, and accessories.
 - 1. Adhesion Testing: In accordance with ASTM C794.
 - 2. Compatibility Testing: In accordance with ASTM C1087.
 - 3. Allow sufficient time for testing to avoid delaying the work.
 - 4. Deliver to manufacturer sufficient samples for testing.
 - 5. Report manufacturer's recommended corrective measures, if any, including primers or techniques not indicated in product data submittals.
 - 6. Testing is not required if sealant manufacturer provides data showing previous testing, not older than 24 months, that shows satisfactory adhesion, lack of staining, and compatibility.

1.05 WARRANTY

- A. See Section 01 7800 Closeout Submittals, for additional warranty requirements.
- B. Correct defective work within a five year period after Date of Substantial Completion.
- C. Warranty: Include coverage for installed sealants and accessories that fail to achieve watertight seal, exhibit loss of adhesion or cohesion, or do not cure.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 MANUFACTURERS

- A. Non-Sag Sealants: Permits application in joints on vertical surfaces without sagging or slumping.
 - 1. Bostik Inc; www.bostik-us.com/#sle.
 - Dow Chemical Company; consumer.dow.com/en-us/industry/ind-buildingconstruction.html/#sle.
 - 3. Franklin International, Inc; www.titebond.com/#sle.
 - 4. Pecora Corporation; www.pecora.com/#sle.
 - 5. Tremco Commercial Sealants & Waterproofing; www.tremcosealants.com/#sle.
 - 6. W.R. Meadows, Inc; www.wrmeadows.com/#sle.
 - 7. Substitutions: See Section 01 6000 Product Requirements.
- B. Self-Leveling Sealants: Pourable or self-leveling sealant that has sufficient flow to form a smooth, level surface when applied in a horizontal joint.
 - 1. Bostik Inc; www.bostik-us.com/#sle.
 - Dow Chemical Company; consumer.dow.com/en-us/industry/ind-buildingconstruction.html/#sle.
 - 3. Pecora Corporation; www.pecora.com/#sle.
 - 4. Tremco Commercial Sealants & Waterproofing; www.tremcosealants.com/#sle.
 - 5. W.R. Meadows, Inc; www.wrmeadows.com/#sle.
 - 6. Substitutions: See Section 01 6000 Product Requirements.

2.02 JOINT SEALANT APPLICATIONS

A. Scope:

- 1. Interior Joints: Do not seal interior joints unless specifically indicated to be sealed. Interior joints to be sealed include, but are not limited to, the following items.
 - a. Joints between door, window, and other frames and adjacent construction.
 - b. Other joints indicated below.
- 2. Do not seal the following types of joints.
 - a. Intentional weepholes in masonry.
 - Joints indicated to be treated with manufactured expansion joint cover or some other type of sealing device.
 - Joints where sealant is specified to be provided by manufacturer of product to be sealed.
 - d. Joints where installation of sealant is specified in another section.
 - e. Joints between suspended panel ceilings/grid and walls.

2.03 NONSAG JOINT SEALANTS

- C. Silicone Sealant: ASTM C920, Grade NS, Uses M and A; not expected to withstand continuous water immersion or traffic.
 - 1. Movement Capability: Plus and minus 25 percent, minimum.
 - 2. Color: To be selected by Architect from manufacturer's standard range.
 - Manufacturers:
 - a. Franklin International, Inc; Titebond 100% Silicone Sealant: www.titebond.com.
 - c. Pecora Corporation; Pecora 860: www.pecora.com.

2.04 ACCESSORIES

- A. Backer Rod: Cylindrical cellular foam rod with surface that sealant will not adhere to, compatible with specific sealant used, and recommended by backing and sealant manufacturers for specific application.
 - Type for Joints Not Subject to Pedestrian or Vehicular Traffic: ASTM C1330; Type O -Open Cell Polyurethane.
 - Type for Joints Subject to Pedestrian or Vehicular Traffic: ASTM C1330; Type B Bi-Cellular Polyethylene.

- 3. Open Cell: 40 to 50 percent larger in diameter than joint width.
- 4. Closed Cell and Bi-Cellular: 25 to 33 percent larger in diameter than joint width.
- B. Backing Tape: Self-adhesive polyethylene tape with surface that sealant will not adhere to and recommended by tape and sealant manufacturers for specific application.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 EXAMINATION

- A. Verify that joints are ready to receive work.
- B. Verify that backing materials are compatible with sealants.
- C. Verify that backer rods are of the correct size.

3.02 PREPARATION

- A. Remove loose materials and foreign matter that could impair adhesion of sealant.
- B. Clean joints, and prime as necessary, in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.
- Perform preparation in accordance with manufacturer's instructions and ASTM C1193.
- D. Mask elements and surfaces adjacent to joints from damage and disfigurement due to sealant work; be aware that sealant drips and smears may not be completely removable.

3.03 INSTALLATION

- A. Perform work in accordance with sealant manufacturer's requirements for preparation of surfaces and material installation instructions.
- B. Perform installation in accordance with ASTM C1193.
- C. Install bond breaker backing tape where backer rod cannot be used.
- D. Install sealant free of air pockets, foreign embedded matter, ridges, and sags, and without getting sealant on adjacent surfaces.
- E. Do not install sealant when ambient temperature is outside manufacturer's recommended temperature range, or will be outside that range during the entire curing period, unless manufacturer's approval is obtained and instructions are followed.
- F. Nonsag Sealants: Tool surface concave, unless otherwise indicated; remove masking tape immediately after tooling sealant surface.

3.04 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

- Perform field quality control inspection/testing as specified in PART 1 under QUALITY ASSURANCE article.
- B. Remove and replace failed portions of sealants using same materials and procedures as indicated for original installation.

Page Intentionally Blank

SECTION 08 1416 FLUSH WOOD DOORS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

A. Flush wood doors; flush configuration; fire-rated and non-rated.

1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

A. Section 08 7100 - Door Hardware.

1.03 REFERENCE STANDARDS

- A. AWI (QCP) Quality Certification Program; current edition at www.awiqcp.org.
- B. AWI/AWMAC/WI (AWS) Architectural Woodwork Standards; 2014, with Errata (2016).
- C. AWMAC/WI (NAAWS) North American Architectural Woodwork Standards, U.S. Version 3.1; 2016, with Errata (2017).
- D. NFPA 80 Standard for Fire Doors and Other Opening Protectives; 2016.
- E. NFPA 252 Standard Methods of Fire Tests of Door Assemblies: 2018.
- F. UL 10C Standard for Positive Pressure Fire Tests of Door Assemblies; Current Edition, Including All Revisions.
- G. WDMA I.S. 1A Interior Architectural Wood Flush Doors; 2013.

1.04 SUBMITTALS

- A. See Section 01 3000 Administrative Requirements, for submittal procedures.
- B. Product Data: Indicate door core materials and construction; veneer species, type and characteristics.
- C. Shop Drawings: Show doors and frames, elevations, sizes, types, swings, undercuts, beveling, blocking for hardware, factory machining, factory finishing, cutouts for glazing and other details.
 - Provide information as required by AWI/AWMAC/WI (AWS) or AWMAC/WI (NAAWS).
- D. Samples: Submit two samples of door veneer, 4 x 4 inch in size illustrating wood grain, stain color, and sheen.
- E. Certificate: Submit labels and certificates required by quality assurance and quality control programs.
- F. Warranty, executed in Owner's name.

1.05 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Maintain one copy of the specified door quality standard on site for review during installation and finishing.
- B. Manufacturer Qualifications: Company specializing in manufacturing the products specified in this section, with not less than three years of documented experience.
 - 1. Company with at least one project within the past 5 years with value of woodwork within 20 percent of cost of woodwork for this project.
 - 2. Accredited participant in the specified certification program prior to the commencement of fabrication and throughout the duration of the project.
- C. Installer Qualifications: Company specializing in performing work of the type specified in this section, with not less than three years of documented experience.

D. Quality Certification:

1. Comply with AWI (QCP) woodwork association quality certification service/program in accordance with requirements for work specified in this section: www.awiqcp.org/#sle.

- 2. Provide labels or certificates indicating that the installed work complies with AWI/AWMAC/WI (AWS) or AWMAC/WI (NAAWS) requirements for grade or grades specified.
- 3. Provide designated labels on shop drawings as required by certification program.
- 4. Provide designated labels on installed products as required by certification program.
- 5. Submit certifications upon completion of installation that verifies this work is in compliance with specified requirements.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 DOORS AND PANELS

- A. Doors: Refer to drawings for locations and additional requirements.
 - Quality Standard: Custom Grade, Heavy Duty performance, in accordance with AWI/AWMAC/WI (AWS) or AWMAC/WI (NAAWS), unless noted otherwise.
 - 2. Wood Veneer Faced Doors: 5-ply unless otherwise indicated.

2.02 DOOR AND PANEL CORES

A. Fire-Rated Doors: Mineral core type, with fire resistant composite core (FD), plies and faces as indicated above; with core blocking as required to provide adequate anchorage of hardware without through-bolting.

2.03 DOOR FACINGS

A. Veneer Facing for Stained Finish: White Maple, veneer grade in accordance with quality standard indicated, plain sliced (flat cut), with book match between leaves of veneer, running match of spliced veneer leaves assembled on door or panel face.

2.04 DOOR CONSTRUCTION

- A. Fabricate doors in accordance with door quality standard specified.
- B. Cores Constructed with stiles and rails:
 - 1. Provide solid blocks at lock edge for hardware reinforcement.
 - 2. Provide solid blocking for other through bolted hardware.
- C. Glazed Openings: Non-removable stops on non-secure side; sizes and configurations as indicated on drawings.
- D. Factory machine doors for hardware other than surface-mounted hardware, in accordance with hardware requirements and dimensions.
- E. Factory fit doors for frame opening dimensions identified on shop drawings, with edge clearances in accordance with specified quality standard.
- F. Provide edge clearances in accordance with the quality standard specified.

2.05 FACTORY FINISHING - WOOD VENEER DOORS

- A. Finish work in accordance with AWI/AWMAC/WI (AWS) or AWMAC/WI (NAAWS), Section 5 Finishing for grade specified and as follows:
- B. Factory finish doors in accordance with approved sample.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 EXAMINATION

- A. Verify existing conditions before starting work.
- B. Verify that opening sizes and tolerances are acceptable.
- C. Do not install doors in frame openings that are not plumb or are out-of-tolerance for size or alignment.

3.02 INSTALLATION

- A. Install doors in accordance with manufacturer's instructions and specified quality standard.
 - 1. Install fire-rated doors in accordance with NFPA 80 requirements.
- B. Factory-Finished Doors: Do not field cut or trim; if fit or clearance is not correct, replace door.

- C. Use machine tools to cut or drill for hardware.
- D. Coordinate installation of doors with installation of frames and hardware.

3.03 TOLERANCES

- A. Conform to specified quality standard for fit and clearance tolerances.
- B. Conform to specified quality standard for telegraphing, warp, and squareness.

3.04 ADJUSTING

- A. Adjust doors for smooth and balanced door movement.
- B. Adjust closers for full closure.

Page Intentionally Blank

SECTION 08 4113 ALUMINUM ENTRANCE AND STOREFRONTS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SUMMARY

A. Section Includes: Aluminum Storefront, including:

1. Stile Doors

1.02 SYSTEM PERFORMANCE DESCRIPTION

- A. Performance Requirements: Provide aluminum storefront systems that comply with performance requirements indicated, as demonstrated by testing manufacturer's assemblies in accordance with test method indicated.
 - 1. Air Infiltration: Completed storefront systems shall have 0.06 CFM/FT² (1.10 m³/h·m²) maximum allowable infiltration when tested in accordance with ASTM E 283 at differential static pressure of 6.24 PSF (299 Pa).
 - 2. Water Infiltration: No uncontrolled water when tested in accordance with ASTM E 331 at test pressure differential of: 10 PSF (479 Pa) (or when required, field tested in accordance with AAMA 503). Fastener Heads must be seated and sealed against Sill Flashing on any fasteners that penetrate through the Sill Flashing.
 - 3. Wind Loads: Completed storefront system shall withstand wind pressure loads normal to wall plane indicated:
 - a) Exterior Walls:
 - 1) Positive Pressure:
 - 2) Negative Pressure:
 - b) Interior Walls (Pressure Acting in Either Direction):
 - 4. Deflection: Maximum allowable deflection in any member when tested in accordance with ASTM E 330 with allowable stress in accordance with AA Specifications for Aluminum Structures.
 - a) Without Horizontals: L/175 or 3/4" (19.1mm) maximum.
 - b) With Horizontals: L/175 or L/240 + 1/4" (6.4mm) for spans greater than 13'-6" (4.1m) but less than 40'-0" (12.2m).
 - 5. Thermal Movement: Provide for thermal movement caused by 180 degrees F. (82.2 degrees C.) surface temperature, without causing buckling stresses on glass, joint seal failure, undue stress on structural elements, damaging loads on fasteners, reduction of performance, or detrimental effects.
 - 6. Thermal Performance: When tested in accordance with AAMA 507, AAMA 1503, and NFRC 100:
 - a) Condensation Resistance Factor (CRF_f): A minimum of 66 (with a CRF_g of 64.)
 - b) Thermal Transmittance U Value: 0.36 BTU/HR/FT2/°F or less with a COG of 0.29.

1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. General: Prepare, review, approve, and submit specified submittals in accordance with "Conditions of the Contract" and Division 1 Submittals Sections. Product data, shop drawings, samples, and similar submittals are defined in "Conditions of the Contract."
- B. Product Data: Submit product data for each type storefront series specified.
- C. Substitutions: Whenever substitute products are to be considered, supporting technical data, samples, and test reports must be submitted ten (10) working days prior to bid date in order

- to make a valid comparison.
- D. Shop Drawings: Submit shop drawings showing layout, profiles, and product components, including anchorage, accessories, finish colors and textures.
- E. Samples: Submit verification samples for colors on actual aluminum substrates indicating full color range expected in installed system.
- F. Quality Assurance / Control Submittals:
 - 1. Test Reports: Submit certified test reports showing compliance with specified performance characteristics and physical properties.
 - 2. Installer Qualification Data: Submit installer qualification data.
- G. Closeout Submittals:
 - 1. Warranty: Submit warranty documents specified herein.
 - Project Record Documents: Submit project record documents for installed materials in accordance with Division 1 Project Closeout (Project Record Documents) Section.

1.04 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Qualifications:
 - 1. Installer Qualifications: Installer experienced (as determined by contractor) to perform work of this section who has specialized in the installation of work similar to that required for this project. If requested by Owner, submit reference list of completed projects.
 - 2. Manufacturer Qualifications: Manufacturer capable of providing field service representation during
 - construction process.
- B. Pre-Installation Meetings: Conduct pre-installation meeting to verify project requirements, substrate conditions, manufacturer's installation instructions, and manufacturer's warranty requirements.

1.05 PROJECT CONDITIONS / SITE CONDITIONS

A. Field Measurements: Verify actual measurements/openings by field measurements before fabrication; show recorded measurements on shop drawings. Coordinate field measurements, fabrication schedule with construction progress to avoid construction delays.

1.06 WARRANTY

- A. Project Warranty: Refer to "Conditions of the Contract" for project warranty provisions.
- B. Manufacturer's Warranty: Submit, for Owner's acceptance, manufacturer's standard warranty document executed by an authorized company official.
 - 1. Warranty Period: Manufacturer's one (5) year standard warranty commencing on the substantial date of completion for the project provided that the warranty,
 - 2. Finish Warranty:
 - a) Ten (10) years for metal finishes in Dark Bronze Anodize

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 MANUFACTURERS (Acceptable Manufacturers/Products)

- A. Acceptable Manufacturers:
 - 1. Entrance Doors:
 - a) YKK 50D Wide Stile Door
 - b) Wausau Window and Wall Wide Stile Door
 - c) Old Castle Building Envelope Series WS-500 Door
- B. Wide Stile Swing Doors:
 - 1. Description: 5" (127.0 mm) Door Stile

- 2. Corner Construction: Fabricate door corners joined by concealed reinforcement secured with screws and sigma deep penetration welding.
- 3. Glazing Stops: Manufacturer's standard snap-in glazing stops with EPDM glazing gaskets to prevent water infiltration.
- 4. Weather-stripping: Manufacturer's standard pile type in replaceable rabbets for stiles; manufacturer's standard EPDM bulb type in door frames.
- 5. Hardware: install existing hardware from removed door.

2.02 MATERIALS

- A. Extrusions: ASTM B 221 (ASTM B 221M), 6063-T5 Aluminum Alloy.
- B. Aluminum Sheet:
 - 1. Painted Finish: ASTM B 209 (ASTM B 209M), 3003-H14 Aluminum Alloy, 0.080" (1.95 mm) minimum thickness.

2.03 ACCESSORIES

- A. Manufacturer's Standard Accessories:
 - Fasteners: Zinc plated steel concealed fasteners; Hardened aluminum alloys or AISI 300 series stainless steel exposed fasteners
 - Glazing: Setting blocks, edge blocks, and spacers in accordance with ASTM C 864, shore durometer hardness as recommended by manufacturer; Glazing gaskets in accordance with ASTM C 864.
 - 3. 0.050 Aluminum Sill Flashing End Dams must have 3 point attachment.

2.04 FABRICATION

- A. Shop Assembly: Fabricate and assemble units with joints only at intersection of aluminum members with uniform hairline joints; rigidly secure, and sealed in accordance with manufacturer's recommendations.
 - 1. Hardware: Drill and cut to template for hardware. Reinforce frames and door stiles to receive hardware in accordance with manufacturer's recommendations.
 - 2. Welding: Conceal welds on aluminum members in accordance with AWS recommendations or methods recommended by manufacturer. Members showing welding bloom or discoloration on finish or material distortion will be rejected.

2.05 FINISHES AND COLORS

- A. Match Existing Finish: Prepare aluminum surfaces for specified finish; apply shop finish in accordance with the following
 - 1. Anodic Coating: Electrolytic color coating followed by an organic seal applied in accordance with the requirements of AAMA 612. Aluminum extrusions shall be produced from quality controlled billets meeting AA-6063-T5.
 - a) Exposed Surfaces shall be free of scratches and other serious blemishes.
 - b) Extrusions shall be given a caustic etch followed by an anodic oxide treatment and then sealed with an organic coating applied with an electrodeposition process.
 - c) The anodized coating shall comply with all of the requirements of AAMA 612: Voluntary Specifications, Performance Requirements and Test Procedures for Combined Coatings of Anodic Oxide and Transparent Organic Coatings on Architectural Aluminum. Testing shall demonstrate the ability of the finish to resist damage from mortar, salt spray, and chemicals commonly found on construction sites, and to resist the loss of color and gloss.
 - d) Overall coating thickness for finishes shall be a minimum of 0.7 mils.
 - e) CASS Corrosion Resistance Test, CASS 240/ASTM B368 Test Method.

f) Other AAMA 2605 Performance Tests specified in these specifications, such as: 7.3 Dry Film Hardness; 7.8.2 Salt Spray Resistance; 7.9.1.2 Color Retention, South Florida; 7.9.1.4 Gloss Retention, South Florida.Color of Anodize Finish to be Class 1 Dark Bronze Anodize.

B. Finishes Testing:

- 1. Apply 0.5% solution NaOh, sodium hydroxide, to small area of finished sample area; leave in place for sixty minutes; lightly wipe off NaOh; Do not clean area further.
- 2. Submit samples with test area noted on each sample.

2.06 GLAZING

- A. Glazing Gaskets: Provide Manufacturer's standard compression types, replaceable, molded or extruded, of profile and hardness required to maintain weathertight seal.
- B. Spacers and Setting Blocks: Manufacturer's standard elastomeric type.
- C. Glazing Make-up
 - 1. Insulated Glass shall consist of outer and inner panes of ¼" thick fully tempered glass, sealed with argon filled air space and shall have either Technoform, Warm Edge or equal spacer. Standard aluminum box spacer will not be considered
 - a) Outer pane shall be manufacturers standard bronze, gray or solex tint glass (fully tempered)
 - b) Inner pane shall be clear tempered glass with Low E Coating #3 surface. Low E shall be equivalent to Vitro Solarban 60.Where integral blinds do not occur, provide insulated glass as noted below.
 - c) Overall glass make-up of insulated glass
 - d) Exterior unit: (1" Insulated Glass: ¼" tinted tempered x argon space with technoform spacer x ¼" clear tempered, Vitro Solarban 60 Low E #3 surface)

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS / RECOMMENDATIONS

A. Compliance: Comply with manufacturer's product data, including product technical bulletins, installation instructions, and product carton instructions. The latest installation manual is available at www.ykkap.com.

3.02 EXAMINATION

A. Site Verification of Conditions: Verify conditions (which have been previously installed under other sections) are acceptable for product installation in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.

3.03 PREPARATION

- A. Adjacent Surfaces Protection: Protect adjacent work areas and finish surfaces from damage during product installation.
 - 1. Aluminum Surface Protection: Protect aluminum surfaces from contact with lime, mortar, cement, acids, and other harmful contaminants.

3.04 INSTALLATION

- A. General: Install manufacturer's system in accordance with shop drawings, and within specified tolerances.
 - 1. Protect aluminum members in contact with masonry, steel, concrete, or dissimilar materials using nylon pads or bituminous coating.
 - 2. Shim and brace aluminum system before anchoring to structure.
 - 3. Provide sill flashing at exterior storefront systems. Extend extruded flashing continuous with splice joints; set in continuous beads of sealant.

- 4. Verify storefront system allows water entering system to be collected in gutters and wept to exterior.
- 5. Verify metal joints are sealed in accordance with manufacturers installation instructions.
- 6. Locate expansion mullions where indicated on reviewed shop drawings.
- 7. Seal metal to metal storefront system joints with sealant recommended by system manufacturer.

3.05 ADJUSTING AND CLEANING

- A. Adjusting: Adjust swing doors for operation in accordance with manufacturer's recommendations.
- B. Cleaning: The General Contractor shall clean installed products in accordance with manufacturer's instructions prior to owner's acceptance, and remove construction debris from project site. Legally dispose of debris.
- C. Protection: The General Contractor shall protect the installed product's finish surfaces from damage during construction.

Page Intentionally Blank

SECTION 08 7100 DOOR HARDWARE

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 SUMMARY

- A. This section includes commercial door hardware for the following:
 - 1. All Hollow Metal Doors/Openings
 - 3. Storefront/Aluminum Doors/Openings
- B. Codes and References: Comply with the version year adopted by the Authority having Jurisdiction.
 - 1. ANSI A 117.1 Accessible and Usable Buildings and Facilities.
 - 2. ICC/IBC International Building Code.
 - 3. NFPA 70 National Electrical Code.
 - 4. NFPA 80 Fire Doors and Windows
 - 5. NFPA 101 Life Safety Code.
 - 6. NFPA 105 Installation of Smoke Door Assemblies.
 - 7. State Building Codes, Local Amendments.
- C. Standards: All hardware specified herein shall comply with the following industry standards:
 - 1. ANSI/BHMA Certified Product Standards A 156 Series
 - 2. UL10C Positive pressure Fire Tests of Door Assemblies

1.02 SUBMITTALS

- A. Product Data: Manufacturers product data sheets including installation details, material descriptions, dimensions of individual components and profiles, operational descriptions and finishes.
- B. Door Hardware Schedule: Prepared by or under the supervision of supplier, detailing fabrication and assembly of door hardware, as well as procedures and diagrams. Coordinate the final Door Hardware Schedule with doors, frames, and related work to ensure proper size, thickness, hand, function, and finish of door hardware.
 - Organization: Organize the Door Hardware Schedule into door hardware sets indicating complete designations of every item required for each door or opening. Organize door hardware sets in same order as in the Door Hardware Sets. Submittals that do not follow the same format and order as the Door Hardware Sets will be rejected and subject to resubmission.
 - 2. Content Include the following information:
 - a. Type, style, function, size, hand and finish of each door hardware item.
 - b. Manufacturer of each item
 - c. Fastening and other pertinent information
 - d. Location of door hardware ser, cross-referenced to Drawings, both on floor plans and in door and frame schedule
 - e. Explanation of abbreviations, symbols, and codes contained in schedule
 - f. Mounting locations for door hardware
 - g. Door and frame sizes and materials
 - h. Warranty information for each product
 - Submittal Sequence: Submit the final Door Hardware Schedule at earliest possible date, particularly where approval of the Door Hardware Schedule must precede fabrication of other work that is critical in the Project construction schedule. Include Product Data, Samples, Shop Drawings of other work affected by door hardware, and other information essential to the coordinated review of the Door Hardware Schedule.
 - (a) Keying Schedule: After a keying meeting with the owner has taken place prepare a separate keying schedule detailing final instructions. Submit the

keying schedule in electronic format. Include keying system explanation, door numbers, key set symbols, hardware set numbers and special instructions. Owner must approve submitted keying schedule prior to the ordering of permanent cylinders/cores.

1.03 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Manufacturers Qualifications: Engage qualified manufacturers with a minimum five years documented experience in producing hardware and equipment similar to that indicated for this Project and that have a proven record of successful in-service performance.
- B. Installer Qualifications: A minimum three years documented experience installing both standard and electrified door hardware similar in material, design, and extent to that indicated for this Project and whose work has resulted in construction with a record of successful in-service performance.
- C. Door Hardware Supplier Qualifications Experienced commercial door hardware distributors with a minimum five years documented experience supplying both mechanical and electromechanical hardware installations comparable in material, design and extent to that indicated for this project.
- D. Source Limitations: Obtain each type and variety of door hardware specified in this section from a single source unless otherwise indicated.
 - 1. Electrified modifications or enhancements made to a source manufacturers product line by a secondary or third party source will not be accepted.
 - 2. Provide electromechanical door hardware from the same manufacturer as mechanical door hardware, unless otherwise indicated.
 - a. Keying conference to incorporate the following criteria into the final keying:
 - 1) Function of building, purpose of each area and degree of security required.
 - (a) Plans for existing and future key system expansion.
 - (b) Requirements for key control storage and software.
 - (c) Installation of permanent keys, cylinder cores, and software.
 - (d) Address and requirements for delivery of keys.
 - 2) Pre-Submittal Conference: Conduct coordination with attendance by representatives of Supplier(s),Installer(s), and Contractor(s) to review proper methods and the procedures for receiving, handling, and installing door hardware.
 - (a) Prior to installation of door hardware, conduct a project specific training meeting to instruct the installing contractors' personnel on the proper installation and adjustment of their respective products. Product training to be attended by installers of door for aluminum, hollow metal and wood doors. Training will include the use of installation manuals, hardware schedules, templates and physical product samples as required.
 - (b) Review sequence of operation narratives for each unique access controlled opening.
 - (c) Review and finalize construction schedule and verify availability of materials.
 - (d) Review the required inspecting, testing, commissioning, and demonstration procedures
 - 3) At completion of installation, provide written documentation that components were applied to manufacturer's instructions and recommendations and according to approved schedule.

1.04 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

A. Inventory door hardware on receipt and provide secure lock-up and shelving for door hardware delivered to Project site. Do not store electronic access control hardware, software or accessories at Project site without prior authorization.

- B. Tag each item or package separately with identification related to the final Door Hardware Schedule, and include basic installation instructions with each item or package.
- C. Deliver, as applicable, permanent keys, cylinders, cores, access control credentials, software and related accessories directly to Owner via registered mail or overnight package service. Instructions for delivery to the Owner shall be established at the "Keying Conference".

1.05 COORDINATION

A. Templates: Obtain and distribute to the parties involved templates for doors, frames, and other work specified to be factory prepared for installing standard and electrified hardware. Check Shop Drawings of other work to confirm that adequate provisions are made for locating and installing hardware to comply with indicated requirements.

1.06 WARRANTY

- A. General Warranty: Reference Division 01, General Requirements. Special warranties specified in this Article shall not deprive Owner of other rights Owner may have under other provisions of the Contract Documents and shall be in addition to, and run concurrent with, other warranties made by Contractor under requirements of the Contract Documents.
- B. Warranty Period: Written warranty, executed by manufacturer(s), agreeing to repair or replace components of standard and electrified door hardware that fails in materials or workmanship within specified warranty period after final acceptance by the Owner. Failures include, but are not limited to, the following:
 - 1. Structural failures including excessive deflection, cracking, or breakage.
 - 2. Faulty operation of the hardware.
 - 3. Deterioration of metals, metal finishes, and other materials beyond normal weathering.

1.07 MAINTENANCE SERVICE

A. Maintenance Tools and Instructions: Furnish a complete set of specialized tools and maintenance instructions as needed for Owner's continued adjustment, maintenance, and removal and replacement of door hardware.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 SCHEDULED DOOR HARDWARE

- A. General: Provide door hardware for each door to comply with requirements in Door Hardware Sets and each referenced section that products are to be supplied under.
- B. Designations: Requirements for quantity, item, size, finish or color, grade, function, and other distinctive qualities of each type of door hardware are indicated in the Door Hardware Sets at the end of Part 3. Products are identified by using door hardware designations, as follows:
- C. Named Manufacturer's Products: Product designation and manufacturer are listed for each door hardware type required for the purpose of establishing requirements. Manufacturers' names are abbreviated in the Door Hardware Schedule.

2.02 HANGING DEVICES

- A. Hinges: ANSI/BHMA A156.1 certified butt hinges with number of hinge knuckles as specified in the Door Hardware Sets.
 - 1. Quantity: Provide the following hinge quantity, unless otherwise indicated:
 - a. Two Hinges: For doors with heights up to 60 inches.
 - b. Three Hinges: For doors with heights 61 to 90 inches.
 - c. Four Hinges: For doors with heights 91 to 120 inches.
 - d. For doors with heights more than 120 inches, provide 4 hinges, plus 1 hinge for every 30 inches of door height greater than 120 inches.
 - 1) Hinge Size: Provide the following, unless otherwise indicated, with hinge widths sized for door thickness and clearances required:
 - (a) Widths up to 3'0": 4-1/2" standard or heavy weight as specified.
 - (1) Sizes from 3'1" to 4'0": 5" standard or heavy weight as specified.

- (2) Hinge Weight and Base Material: Unless otherwise indicated, provide the following:
- (3) Exterior Doors: Heavy weight, non-ferrous, ball bearing or oil impregnated bearing hinges unless Hardware Sets indicate standard weight.
- (4) Interior Doors: Standard weight, steel, ball bearing or oil impregnated bearing hinges unless Hardware Sets indicate heavy weight.
- (5) Hinge Options: Comply with the following where indicated in the Hardware Sets or on Drawings:
- (6) Non-removable Pins: Provide set screw in hinge barrel that, when tightened into a groove in hinge pin, prevents removal of pin while door is closed; for the all out-swinging lockable doors.
- (7) Acceptable Manufacturers:
- (8) Hager Companies (HA).
- (9) McKinney Products (MK).
- (10) Stanley Hardware (ST).

B. Full Mortise Hinges:

- 1. Full mortise hinges for interior applications up to and including thirty-six inch wide leaves shall be standard weight ball-bearing hinges, no smaller than four and one-half inches x four and one-half inches, steel, five knuckle design; with two ball bearings, non-rising removable steel pin with button tip and plug, conforming to the requirements of ANSI A 8112, equal to McKinney #MPB79.
 - a. Provide heavy weight ball-bearing hinges, four and one-half x four and one-half inches for all doors larger than thirty-six inches in width; or, more than one and one-quarter inches thick.
 - b. Hinges for doors for mechanical closets, small storage closets, and similar support spaces may be standard weight plain bearing no smaller than four and one-half inches x four and one-half inches, conforming to the requirements of ANSI A 8133, equal to McKinney Companies #MPB79.
 - c. Hinges at labeled doors shall be stainless steel.
 - 1) Hinges shall be tested with and conform to the requirements of ANSI A 156.1.
 - (a) Screw hole locations shall conform to standards approved by ANSI A 156.7.
 - (1) Hinges shall be of sufficient throw to allow a door swing of one hundred eighty degrees.
 - (2) Pins in hinges in doors in rated walls and exterior applications shall be non-removable [NRP].
 - (3) Furnish three hinges up to ninety inches high and one additional hinge for every thirty inches or fraction thereof.
- C. Continuous Geared Hinges: ANSI/BHMA A156.26 Grade 1-600 certified continuous geared hinge with minimum 0.120-inch thick extruded 6060 T6 aluminum alloy hinge leaves and a minimum overall width of 4 inches. Hinges are non-handed, reversible and fabricated to template screw locations. Factory trim hinges to suit door height and prepare for electrical cutouts.
 - 1. Acceptable Manufacturers:
 - a. Bommer Industries (BO).
 - b. McKinney Products (MK).
 - c. Pemko Manufacturing (PE).
 - d. Stanley Hardware (ST)

2.03 DOOR OPERATING TRIM

- A. Flush Bolts and Surface Bolts: ANSI/BHMA A156.3 and A156.16, Grade 1, certified.
 - 1. Flush bolts to be furnished with top rod of sufficient length to allow bolt retraction device location approximately six feet from the floor.

- 2. Furnish dust proof strikes for bottom bolts.
- 3. Surface bolts to be minimum 8" in length and U.L. listed for labeled fire doors and U.L. listed for windstorm components where applicable.
- 4. Provide related accessories (mounting brackets, strikes, coordinators, etc.) as required for appropriate installation and operation.
- 5. Acceptable Manufacturers:
 - a. Ives (IV).
 - b. Rockwood Manufacturing (RO).
 - c. Trimco (TC).
- B. Door Push Plates and Pulls: ANS/BHMA A156.6 certified door pushes and pulls of type and design specified in the Hardware Sets. Coordinate and provide proper width and height as required where conflicting hardware dictates.
 - 1. Push/Pull Plates: Minimum .050 inch thick, size as indicated in hardware sets, with beveled edges, secured with exposed screws unless otherwise indicated.
 - 2. Door Pull and Push Bar Design: Size, shape, and material as indicated in the hardware sets. Minimum clearance of 2 1/2-inches from face of door unless otherwise indicated.
 - 3. Offset Pull Design: Size, shape, and material as indicated in the hardware sets. Minimum clearance of 2 1/2-inches from face of door and offset of 90 degrees unless otherwise indicated.
 - 4. Fasteners: Provide manufacturer's designated fastener type as indicated in Hardware Sets.
 - 5. Acceptable Manufacturers:
 - a. Ives (IV).
 - b. Rockwood Manufacturing (RO).
 - c. Trimco (TC).

2.04 CYLINDERS AND KEYING

- A. General: Cylinder manufacturer to have minimum (10) years experience designing secured master key systems and have on record a published security keying system policy.
- B. Source Limitations: Obtain each type of keyed cylinder and keys from the same source manufacturer as locksets and exit devices, unless otherwise indicated.
- C. Cylinders: Original manufacturer cylinders complying with the following:
 - 1. Mortise Type: Threaded cylinders with rings and cams to suit hardware application.
 - 2. Rim Type: Cylinders with back plate, flat-type vertical or horizontal tailpiece, and raised trim ring.
 - 3. Bored-Lock Type: Cylinders with tailpieces to suit locks.
 - 4. Mortise and rim cylinder collars to be solid and recessed to allow the cylinder face to be flush and be free spinning with matching finishes.
 - 5. Keyway: Manufacturer's Standard.
 - 6. Keying System: Each type of lock and cylinders to be factory keyed.
 - a. Conduct specified "Keying Conference" to define and document keying system instructions and requirements.
 - b. Furnish factory cut, nickel-silver large bow permanently inscribed with a visual key control number as directed by Owner.
 - c. New System: Key locks to a new key system as directed by the Owner.
 - 7. Key Quantity: Provide the following minimum number of keys:
 - a. Change Keys per Cylinder: Two (2)
 - b. Master Keys (per Master Key Level/Group): Five (5).
 - c. Construction Keys (where required): Ten (10).
 - Construction Keying: Provide construction master keyed cylinders.

2.05 MECHANICAL LOCKS AND LATCHING DEVICES

A. Locksets; Latch sets [Passage Sets]; Privacy Sets; and, Dummy Trim:

8.

- Locksets; latch sets; privacy sets; and, dummy trims for Bidding Purposes, shall be Yale Products, meeting or exceeding the requirements of ANSI A 156.2, 4700LN Series certified Grade 1 strength and operational requirements.
- Locksets; latch sets; privacy sets and dummy trim shall meet accessibility guidelines for the Americans with Disabilities Act and the requirements of the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards and ANSI 117.1
- 3. 4700 (LN) Series locksets are UL cUL listed for use on fire doors having a rating up to and including three hours.
- 4. Designs shall be pressure cast zinc lever, wrought brass rose, conforming to the requirements of ANSI A117.1.
 - a. Levers must match Augusta B-AU and accept both small format interchangeable cores [SFIC] and large format interchangeable cores [LFIC].
 - 1) Hardware supplier must provide cylinder housing compatible with owner keyways.
 - (a) Cylinder housing shall be comparable to K680 KT1 626; six pin, extruded brass.
 - (1) Locksets, latch sets (passage sets), and privacy sets shall be furnished with sufficient strike lip to protect the door trim.
 - (2) Coordinate with Owner's fire alarm system/security system/building automation system vendor for specific requirements relating to the installation of the electronic recognition system at indicated doors.
- 5. Interconnected Locksets
 - Locksets for guest entry doors for Bidding Purposes, shall be Yale Products, YH
 Collection Grade 2 Interconnected Mechanical Locksets
 - b. Locksets must be fire-rated using fire cups
 - c. Locksets must be available with small format I.C. Core preparation
 - d. Interconnected Locksets shall have a field-adjustable center to center dimension.
 - e. Interconnected locksets shall be single point lock
 - f. Latchbolt is operated by either lever at all times.
 - g. Locksets shall be Deadbolt activated by key on the outside and by T-turn on the inside.
 - h. Locksets interior lever shall retract latch and deadbolt simultaneously.
 - Lever design must meet requirements of ANSI A 156.2 Series 4000 Grade 2
 - 1) Levers must match Augusta B-AU and accept both small format interchangeable cores [SFIC] and large format interchangeable cores [LFIC].
- 6. Acceptable Manufacturers:
 - a. Yale Locks and Hardware (YA)
 - b. Schlage (SC) ND Series.
 - c. Corbin Russwin Hardware (RU)

2.06 LOCK AND LATCH STRIKES

- A. Strikes: Provide manufacturer's standard strike with strike box for each latch or lock bolt, with curved lip extended to protect frame, finished to match door hardware set, unless otherwise indicated, and as follows:
 - Flat-Lip Strikes: For locks with three-piece antifriction latchbolts, as recommended by manufacturer.
 - 2. Extra-Long-Lip Strikes: For locks used on frames with applied wood casing trim.
 - 3. Aluminum-Frame Strike Box: Provide manufacturer's special strike box fabricated for aluminum framing.
 - 4. Double-lipped strikes: For locks at double acting doors. Furnish with retractable stop for rescue hardware applications.
 - a. Standards: Comply with the following:
 - 1) Strikes for Mortise Locks and Latches: BHMA A156.13.
 - 2) Strikes for Bored Locks and Latches: BHMA A156.2.
 - 3) Strikes for Auxiliary Deadlocks: BHMA A156.5.

4) Dustproof Strikes: BHMA A156.16.

2.07 EXIT DEVICES

A. Exit Devices

- Exit Devices shall be 6000 Series Push pad Exit Devices as manufactured by Yale Locks & Hardware
- 2. All Exit Devices used in Storefront and in all other door applications must match.
- Exit devices shall be Certified ANSI/BHMA A156.3 Grade 1
- 4. At doors not requiring a fire rating, provide devices complying with NFPA 101 and listed and labeled for "Panic Hardware" according to UL305. Provide proper fasteners as required by manufacturer including sex nuts and bolts at openings specified in the Hardware Sets.
- 5. Where exit devices are required on fire rated doors, provide devices complying with NFPA 80 and with UL labeling indicating "Fire Exit Hardware". Provide devices with the proper fasteners for installation as tested and listed by UL. Consult manufacturer's catalog and template book for specific requirements.
- 6. Except on fire rated doors, provide exit devices with hex key dogging device to hold the push bar and latch in a retracted position. Provide optional keyed cylinder dogging on devices where specified in Hardware Sets.
- 7. Devices must fit flat against the door face with no gap that permits unauthorized dogging of the push bar. The addition of filler strips is required in any case where the door light extends behind the device as in a full glass configuration.
- 8. Electromechanical Options: Subject to same compliance standards and requirements as mechanical exit devices, electrified devices to be of type and design as specified in hardware sets. Include any specific controllers when conventional power supplies are not sufficient to provide the proper inrush current.
- The exit device chassis shall be cold forged steel electroplated for corrosion resistance and shall be architecturally finished brass, bronze or stainless steel.
- 10. The push pad mechanism shall be constructed of extruded aluminum and shall be scalped with architecturally finished brass, bronze or stainless steel.
- 11. The maximum projection shall be three and one-forth inches when push pad is active and two and three-forth inches when the push pad is dogged down.
- 12. Nylon bearing and stainless steel springs shall be used for long life and durability; only torsion springs are acceptable.
- 13. Rear and active case covers shall be wrought brass or bronze and shall be plated to match the exit bar.
- 14. Plastic or painted cover are not acceptable
- 15. Latch bolts shall be steel and shall incorporate a deadlocking latch for increased security
- 16. Exit devices without deadlocking latches are not acceptable.
- 17. Mounting screws shall be concealed to deter tampering
- 18. Exit devices shall be closed on all sides with no pinch points.
- 19. Exit devices shall be easily field sized to accommodate various door widths.
- Panic-listed exit devices shall have single point, one quarter turn hex key dogging standard.
- 21. Optional cylinder dogging shall be available on panic listed devices
- 22. Exit devices with hex key dogging shall be easily field converted to cylinder dogging
- 23. Panic listed devices shall be available less dogging.
- 24. Trims shall be through bolted with concealed fasteners.
- 25. Escutcheon and pull type trims shall be constructed of brass or bronze
- 26. All lever trims shall use cast or forged levers.
- 27. Lever trims (except mortise) shall be Free-Wheeling with clutch mechanism allowing lever to rotate sixty degrees when locked to prevent vandalism.
- 28. Lever trims shall match those on Yale Mortise and Cylindrical locksets
- 29. Exit devices and trims shall be furnished in ANSI/BHMA standard architectural finishes.

- 30. Vertical Rod Exit Devices: Where surface or concealed vertical rod exit devices are used at interior openings, provide as less bottom rod (LBR) unless otherwise indicated.
- 31. Narrow Stile Applications: At doors constructed with narrow stiles, or as specified in Hardware Sets, provide devices designed for maximum 2" wide stiles.
- 32. Dummy Push Bar: Nonfunctioning push bar matching functional push bar
- 33. Rail Sizing: Provide exit device rails factory sized for proper door width application.
- 34. Provide dust proof strikes where thermal pins are required to project into the floor.
- 35. Exit devices shall be listed by Underwriters Laboratories (UL) for safety as panic hardware. Fire-rated devices shall be listed for A label and lesser class doors.
- 36. Exit Devices must have at least a 10 year warranty
 - a. Power Supply must be compatible with warranty on Exit Devices
 - 1) Acceptable Manufacturers:
 - (a) Yale Locks and Hardware (YA)
 - (1) Precision
 - (2) Dorma Products (DO)

2.08 DOOR CLOSERS

- A. Closers: All door closer specified herein shall meet or exceed the following criteria: Yale 2700 Series or Yale 5800 Series as specified.
 - General: Door closers to be from one manufacturer, matching in design and style, with the same type door preparations and templates regardless of application or spring size. Closers to be non-handed with full sized covers including installation and adjusting information on inside of cover.
 - 2. Standards: Closers to comply with UL-10C for Positive Pressure Fire Test and be U.L. listed for use of fire rated doors.
 - 3. Certified for ANSI/BHMA A156.4 Grade 1
 - 4. UL and cUL listed includes compliance to UL10C
 - 5. Meet requirements for Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and ANSI.BHMA A117.1
 - 6. Must have at least a 10-year warranty
 - 7. Closers shall be Aluminum, non-handed with adjustable spring sizes, adjustable closing speed, adjustable latch speed and adjustable backcheck cushioning.
 - 8. Closers shall be Tri-packed: regular, parallel or top jamb mounted
 - 9. Closers must have full plastic cover
 - 10. Closers must have hold open and heavy duty arm options
 - 11. Sleeve nuts furnished standard with all models
 - 12. Closers shall be set so as to eliminate the need for wall bumpers.
 - 13. Closers will provide delayed-action closing and hold open features at all non-fire rated installations or installations in smoke walls.
 - 14. Power of closer must be adjustable to conform to the sizing requirements outlined in the Americans with Disabilities Act; ANSI A 117.1 2009; and, other governing handicapped accessibility codes.
 - 15. Fasteners for fire/smoke door assemblies must conform to NFPA 80. In some applications additional fasteners may be mandated by NFPA 80 that are not shipped with standard Yale product, such as sleeve-nuts/sex-nuts or through-bolts and grommet nuts.
- B. Door Closers, Surface Mounted (Heavy Duty): ANSI/BHMA A156.4, Grade 1 surface mounted, heavy duty door closers with complete spring power adjustment, sizes 1 thru 6; and fully operational adjustable according to door size, frequency of use, and opening force. Closers to be rack and pinion type, one piece cast iron or aluminum alloy body construction, with adjustable backcheck and separate non-critical valves for closing sweep and latch speed control. Provide non-handed units standard.
 - Acceptable Manufacturers:
 - a. Yale Locks and Hardware (YA)
 - b. Norton Door Controls (NO).
 - c. LCN Closers (LC)

- C. Door Closers: Provide Spring Hinges at apartment entrance doors. Coordinate hinge with door weight.
 - 1. Acceptable Manufacturers:
 - a. Stanley; 2060R, RD2060R, RD2068R 4 1/2"
 - b. Approved Equivalent

2.09 DOOR STOPS AND HOLDERS

- A. General: Door stops and holders to be of type and design as specified below or in the Hardware Sets.
- B. Door Stops and Bumpers: ANSI/BHMA A156.16, Grade 1 certified door stops and wall bumpers. Provide wall bumpers, either convex or concave types with anchorage as indicated, unless floor or other types of door stops are specified in Hardware Sets. Do not mount floor stops where they will impede traffic. Where floor or wall bumpers are not appropriate, provide overhead type stops and holders.
 - 1. Acceptable Manufacturers:
 - a. Rockwood Manufacturing (RO)
- C. Overhead Door Stops and Holders: ANSI/BHMA A156.6, Grade 1 certified overhead stops and holders to be surface or concealed types as indicated in Hardware Sets. Track, slide, arm and jamb bracket to be constructed of extruded bronze and shock absorber spring of heavy tempered steel. Provide non-handed design with mounting brackets as required for proper operation and function.
 - 1. Acceptable Manufacturers:
 - a. Glynn Johnson (GJ).
 - b. Rixson Door Controls (RF).
 - c. Rockwood Manufacturing (RO).
 - d. Sargent Manufacturing (SA).

2.10 ARCHITECTURAL SEALS

- A. General: Thresholds, weather stripping, and gasket seals to be of type and design as specified below or in the Hardware Sets. Provide continuous weather strip gasketing on exterior doors and provide smoke, light, or sound gasketing on interior doors where indicated. At exterior applications provide non-corrosive fasteners and elsewhere where indicated.
- B. Smoke Labeled Gasketing: Assemblies complying with NFPA 105 that are listed and labeled by a testing and inspecting agency acceptable to authorities having jurisdiction, for smoke control ratings indicated, based on testing according to UL 1784.
 - 1. Provide smoke labeled perimeter gasketing at all smoke labeled openings.
- C. Fire Labeled Gasketing: Assemblies complying with NFPA 80 that are listed and labeled by a testing and inspecting agency acceptable to authorities having jurisdiction, for fire ratings indicated, based on testing according to UL-10C.
 - Provide intumescent seals as indicated to meet UL10C Standard for Positive Pressure Fire Tests of Door Assemblies, and NPFA 252, Standard Methods of Fire Tests of Door Assemblies.
- D. Sound-Rated Gasketing: Assemblies that are listed and labeled by a testing and inspecting agency, for sound ratings indicated.
- E. Replaceable Seal Strips: Provide only those units where resilient or flexible seal strips are easily replaceable and readily available from stocks maintained by manufacturer.
- F. Acceptable Manufacturers:
 - 1. Pemko Manufacturing
 - 2. DHSI

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 INSTALLATION

A. Install each hardware item per manufacturer's instructions and recommendations. Do not

install surface mounted items until finishes have been completed on the substrate. Set units level, plumb and true to line and location. Adjust and reinforce the attachment substrate as necessary for proper installation and operation.

B. Installation shall conform to local governing agency security ordinance.

3.02 ADJUSTING

- A. Adjust and check each operating item of hardware and each door to ensure proper operation or function of every unit. Replace units which cannot be adjusted to operate freely and smoothly.
- B. Inspection: Hardware supplier shall inspect all hardware furnished within 10 days of contractor's request and include with his guarantee a statement that this has been accomplished. Inspector or Contractor shall sign off the hardware as being complete and correctly installed and adjusted. Further corrections of defective material shall be the responsibility of his representative.

HARDWARE SETS

Hardware Set #1: Apartment Entry Door

- 3 Hinge 4-1/2' X 4-1/2" ST 2060R
- 1 Lockset 4700 LN
- 1 Permanent Core (SFIC) Provided by the Owner US36D
- 1 Door Guard PDL 626 Rockwood
- 1 Viewer 614 626 Rockwood
- 1 Kickplate Vinyl Panel 34" W x 32" H

SECTION 09 2116 GYPSUM BOARD ASSEMBLIES

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Gypsum wallboard.
- B. Joint treatment and accessories.

1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

A. Section 06 1000 - Rough Carpentry: Building framing.

1.03 REFERENCE STANDARDS

- A. ASTM C475/C475M Standard Specification for Joint Compound and Joint Tape for Finishing Gypsum Board; 2015.
- ASTM C645 Standard Specification for Nonstructural Steel Framing Members; 2014, with Editorial Revision (2015).
- C. ASTM C665 Standard Specification for Mineral-Fiber Blanket Thermal Insulation for Light Frame Construction and Manufactured Housing; 2017.
- D. ASTM C754 Standard Specification for Installation of Steel Framing Members to Receive Screw-Attached Gypsum Panel Products; 2017.
- E. ASTM C840 Standard Specification for Application and Finishing of Gypsum Board; 2017a.
- F. ASTM C954 Standard Specification for Steel Drill Screws for the Application of Gypsum Panel Products or Metal Plaster Bases to Steel Studs From 0.033 in. (0.84 mm) to 0.112 in. (2.84 mm) in Thickness; 2015.
- G. ASTM C1002 Standard Specification for Steel Self-Piercing Tapping Screws for Application of Gypsum Panel Products or Metal Plaster Bases to Wood Studs or Steel Studs; 2016.
- H. ASTM C1396/C1396M Standard Specification for Gypsum Board; 2017.
- I. GA-216 Application and Finishing of Gypsum Panel Products; 2016.
- J. GA-600 Fire Resistance Design Manual; 2015.
- K. UL (FRD) Fire Resistance Directory; Current Edition.

1.04 SUBMITTALS

- A. See Section 01 3000 Administrative Requirements, for submittal procedures.
- B. Product Data: Provide data on gypsum board, accessories, and joint finishing system.

1.05 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Installer Qualifications: Company specializing in performing gypsum board installation and finishing.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 BOARD MATERIALS

- A. Manufacturers Gypsum-Based Board:
 - 1. American Gypsum Company; www.americangypsum.com.
 - 2. CertainTeed Corporation; www.certainteed.com.
 - 3. National Gypsum Company; www.nationalgypsum.com.
 - 4. USG Corporation; www.usg.com.
- B. Gypsum Wallboard: Paper-faced gypsum panels as defined in ASTM C1396/C1396M; sizes to minimize joints in place; ends square cut.
 - 1. Application: Use for vertical surfaces and ceilings, unless otherwise indicated.
 - 2. Thickness:
 - a. Vertical Surfaces: 5/8 inch (16 mm).
 - c. Match existing board thickness at infill.

2.02 ACCESSORIES

- A. Acoustic Sealant: Acrylic emulsion latex or water-based elastomeric sealant; do not use solvent-based non-curing butyl sealant.
- B. Joint Materials: ASTM C475/C475M and as recommended by gypsum board manufacturer for project conditions.
 - Tape: 2 inch (50 mm) wide, creased paper tape for joints and corners, except as otherwise indicated.
- C. High Build Drywall Surfacer: Vinyl acrylic latex-based coating for spray application, designed to take the place of skim coating and separate paint primer in achieving Level 5 finish.
- D. Screws for Fastening of Gypsum Panel Products to Cold-Formed Steel Studs Less than 0.033 inch (0.84 mm) in Thickness and Wood Members: ASTM C1002; self-piercing tapping screws, corrosion resistant.
- E. Screws for Fastening of Gypsum Panel Products to Steel Members from 0.033 to 0.112 inch (0.84 to 2.84 mm) in Thickness: ASTM C954; steel drill screws, corrosion resistant.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 EXAMINATION

A. Verify that project conditions are appropriate for work of this section to commence.

3.02 FRAMING INSTALLATION

- Metal Framing: Install components in accordance with manufacturers' instructions and ASTM C1007 requirements.
- B. Studs: Space studs as indicated.
 - 1. Extend partition framing to structure where indicated and to ceiling in other locations.
 - 2. Partitions Terminating at Ceiling: Attach ceiling runner securely to ceiling track in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.

3.03 ACOUSTIC ACCESSORIES INSTALLATION

A. Acoustic Sealant: Install in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.

3.04 BOARD INSTALLATION

A. Comply with ASTM C840, GA-216, and manufacturer's instructions. Install to minimize butt end joints, especially in highly visible locations.

3.05 JOINT TREATMENT

- A. Finish gypsum board in accordance with levels defined in ASTM C840, as follows:
 - 1. Level 5: Walls and ceilings to receive semi-gloss or gloss paint finish and other areas specifically indicated.
- B. Tape, fill, and sand exposed joints, edges, and corners to produce smooth surface ready to receive finishes.
 - Feather coats of joint compound so that camber is maximum 1/32 inch (0.8 mm).
- C. Where Level 5 finish is indicated, spray apply high build drywall surfacer over entire surface after joints have been properly treated; achieve a flat and tool mark-free finish.

SECTION 09 3000 TILING AND GROUT

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

A. Tile and grout for floor applications.

1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

- A. Section 03 5400 Cast Underlayment.
- Section 07 9200 Joint Sealants: Sealing joints between tile work and adjacent construction and fixtures.

1.03 REFERENCE STANDARDS

- A. ANSI A108/A118/A136.1 American National Standard Specifications for the Installation of Ceramic Tile (Compendium); 2013.1.
- B. ANSI A108.1a American National Standard Specifications for Installation of Ceramic Tile in the Wet-Set Method, with Portland Cement Mortar; 2014.
- C. ANSI A108.1b American National Standard Specifications for Installation of Ceramic Tile on a Cured Portland Cement Mortar Setting Bed with Dry-Set or Latex-Portland Cement Mortar; 1999 (Reaffirmed 2010).
- D. ANSI A108.1c Specifications for Contractors Option: Installation of Ceramic Tile in the Wet-Set Method with Portland Cement Mortar or Installation of Ceramic Tile on a Cured Portland Cement Mortar Bed with Dry-Set or Latex-Portland Cement; 1999 (Reaffirmed 2010).
- E. ANSI A108.4 American National Standard Specifications for Installation of Ceramic Tile with Organic Adhesives or Water Cleanable Tile-Setting Epoxy Adhesive; 2009 (Revised).
- F. ANSI A108.5 American National Standard Specifications for Installation of Ceramic Tile with Dry-Set Portland Cement Mortar or Latex-Portland Cement Mortar; 1999 (Reaffirmed 2010).
- G. ANSI A108.6 American National Standard Specifications for Installation of Ceramic Tile with Chemical Resistant, Water Cleanable Tile-Setting and -Grouting Epoxy; 1999 (Reaffirmed 2010).
- H. ANSI A108.8 American National Standard Specifications for Installation of Ceramic Tile with Chemical Resistant Furan Resin Mortar and Grout; 1999 (Reaffirmed 2010).
- I. ANSI A108.9 American National Standard Specifications for Installation of Ceramic Tile with Modified Epoxy Emulsion Mortar/Grout; 1999 (Reaffirmed 2010).
- J. ANSI A108.10 American National Standard Specifications for Installation of Grout in Tilework; 1999 (Reaffirmed 2010).
- K. ANSI A108.11 American National Standard for Interior Installation of Cementitious Backer Units; 2010 (Revised).
- L. ANSI A108.12 American National Standard for Installation of Ceramic Tile with EGP (Exterior glue plywood) Latex-Portland Cement Mortar; 1999 (Reaffirmed 2010).
- M. ANSI A108.13 American National Standard for Installation of Load Bearing, Bonded, Waterproof Membranes for Thin-Set Ceramic Tile and Dimension Stone; 2005 (Reaffirmed 2010).
- N. ANSI A118.4 American National Standard Specifications for Modified Dry-Set Cement Mortar; 2012 (Revised).
- O. ANSI A118.7 American National Standard Specifications for High Performance Cement Grouts for Tile Installation; 2010 (Revised).
- P. ANSI A118.9 American National Standard Specifications for Test Methods and Specifications for Cementitious Backer Units; 1999 (Reaffirmed 2010).

- Q. ANSI A118.10 American National Standard Specifications for Load Bearing, Bonded, Waterproof Membranes For Thin-Set Ceramic Tile And Dimension Stone Installation; 2014.
- R. ANSI A118.12 American National Standard Specifications for Crack Isolation Membranes for Thin-set Ceramic Tile and Dimension Stone Installation; 2014.
- S. ANSI A118.15 American National Standard Specifications for Improved Modified Dry-Set Cement Mortar; 2012.
- T. ANSI A118.15 American National Standard Specifications for Improved Modified Dry-Set Cement Mortar; 2012.
- U. ANSI A137.1 American National Standard Specifications for Ceramic Tile; 2013.1.
- V. TCNA (HB) Handbook for Ceramic, Glass, and Stone Tile Installation; 2015.

1.04 SUBMITTALS

- A. See Section 01 3000 Administrative Requirements, for submittal procedures.
- B. Product Data: Provide manufacturers' data sheets on tile, mortar, grout, and accessories. Include instructions for using grouts and adhesives.
- C. Shop Drawings: Indicate tile layout, patterns, color arrangement, perimeter conditions, junctions with dissimilar materials, control and expansion joints, thresholds, ceramic accessories, and setting details.
- D. Samples: Mount tile and apply grout on two plywood panels, minimum 18 by 18 inches in size illustrating pattern, color variations, and grout joint size variations.

1.05 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Maintain one copy of and ANSI A108/A118/A136.1 and TCNA (HB) on site.

1.06 MOCK-UP

- A. See Section 01 4000 Quality Requirements, for general requirements for mock-up.
- B. Construct tile mock-up where indicated on the drawings, incorporating all components specified for the location.
 - 1. Minimum size of mock-up is indicated on the drawings.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 TILE

- A. Manufacturers:
 - 1. Match existing tile manufacturer.
 - 2. Similar if manufacturer option is not available.
- B. Tile, Type:
 - 1. Size: Match Existing.
 - 2. Shape: Square.
 - 3. Edges: Square.
 - 4. Surface Finish: Match Existing.
 - 5. Color(s): To be selected by Architect from manufacturer's standard range.

2.02 TRIM AND ACCESSORIES

- Accessories: Same color and finish as adjacent field tile; same manufacturer as tile.
- B. Trim: Matching bullnose, double bullnose, cove base, and cove shapes in sizes coordinated with field tile.
 - 1. Applications:
 - a. Open Edges: Bullnose.
 - b. Inside Corners: Jointed.
 - c. Floor to Wall Joints: Cove base.
 - 2. Manufacturers: Same as for tile.

2.03 SETTING MATERIALS

- A. Manufacturers:
 - 1. ARDEX Engineered Cements; www.ardexamericas.com.
 - 2. LATICRETE International, Inc; www.laticrete.com.
 - 3. Substitutions: See Section 01 6000 Product Requirements.
- B. Latex-Portland Cement Mortar Bond Coat: ANSI A118.4, ANSI A118.15
 - Products:
 - a. ARDEX Engineered Cements; ARDEX X 77 MICROTEC: www.ardexamericas.com.
 - b. LATICRETE International, Inc; LATICRETE 254 Platinum: www.laticrete.com.
 - c. Substitutions: See Section 01 6000 Product Requirements.

2.04 GROUTS

- A. Manufacturers:
 - 1. ARDEX Engineered Cements; www.ardexamericas.com.
 - 2. Custom Building Products; www.custombuildingproducts.com.
 - 3. LATICRETE International, Inc; LATICRETE PERMACOLOR Grout: www.laticrete.com.
 - 4. Substitutions: See Section 01 6000 Product Requirements.
- B. Polymer Modified Grout: ANSI A118.7 polymer modified cement grout.
 - 1. Applications: Use this type of grout where indicated and where no other type of grout is indicated.
 - 2. Use sanded grout for joints 1/8 inch wide and larger; use un-sanded grout for joints less than 1/8 inch wide.

2.05 MAINTENANCE MATERIALS

- A. Tile Sealant: Gunnable, silicone, siliconized acrylic, or urethane sealant; moisture and mildew resistant type.
 - 1. Applications: Between tile and plumbing fixtures.
 - 2. Color(s): As selected by Architect from manufacturer's full line.
- B. Grout Sealer: Liquid-applied, moisture and stain protection for existing or new Portland cement grout.
 - Composition: Water-based colorless silicone.

2.06 ACCESSORY MATERIALS

- A. Concrete Floor Slab Crack Isolation Membrane: Material complying with ANSI A118.12; not intended as waterproofing.
 - 1. Type: Fluid-applied.
 - 2. Thickness: 20 mils, maximum.
 - 3. Crack Resistance: No failure at 1/16 inch gap, minimum.
- B. Transition strips and edging: Provide transition strips and edging equivalent to Schluter-Reno-U and other profiles necessary to create smooth transitions between tile and other floor finishes. All profiles are to meet UFAS/ANSI accessible requirements.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 PREPARATION

- A. Protect surrounding work from damage.
- B. Remove broken tile.
- C. Vacuum clean surfaces and damp clean.
- D. Seal substrate surface cracks with filler. Level existing substrate surfaces to acceptable flatness tolerances using cementitious cast underlayment.

3.02 INSTALLATION - GENERAL

- A. Install tile and thresholds and grout in accordance with applicable requirements of ANSI A108.1A thru A108.13, manufacturer's instructions, and TCNA (HB) recommendations.
- B. Lay tile to pattern indicated. Do not interrupt tile pattern through openings.
- C. Cut and fit tile to penetrations through tile, leaving sealant joint space. Form corners and bases neatly. Align floor joints.
- D. Place tile joints uniform in width, subject to variance in tolerance allowed in tile size. Make grout joints without voids, cracks, excess mortar or excess grout, or too little grout.
- E. Form internal angles square and external angles bullnosed.
- F. Install ceramic accessories rigidly in prepared openings.
- G. Install transitions between tile and other floor finishes.
- H. Sound tile after setting. Replace hollow sounding units.
- I. Keep control and expansion joints free of mortar, grout, and adhesive.
- J. Prior to grouting, allow installation to completely cure; minimum of 48 hours.
- K. Grout tile joints unless otherwise indicated. Use standard grout unless otherwise indicated.
- L. At changes in plane and tile-to-tile control joints, use tile sealant instead of grout, with either bond breaker tape or backer rod as appropriate to prevent three-sided bonding.

3.03 INSTALLATION - FLOORS - THIN-SET METHODS

A. Over interior concrete substrates, install in accordance with TCNA (HB) Method F113, dry-set or latex-Portland cement bond coat, with standard grout, unless otherwise indicated.

3.05 CLEANING

A. Clean tile and grout surfaces.

3.06 PROTECTION

A. Do not permit traffic over finished floor surface for 4 days after installation.

SECTION 09 5100 SUSPENDED ACOUSTICAL CEILINGS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

A. Acoustical units.

1.02 REFERENCE STANDARDS

- A. ASTM C635/C635M Standard Specification for the Manufacture, Performance, and Testing of Metal Suspension Systems for Acoustical Tile and Lay-in Panel Ceilings; 2013a.
- B. ASTM C636/C636M Standard Practice for Installation of Metal Ceiling Suspension Systems for Acoustical Tile and Lay-In Panels; 2013.
- C. ASTM E1264 Standard Classification for Acoustical Ceiling Products; 2014.
- D. CAL (CHPS LEM) Low-Emitting Materials Product List; California Collaborative for High Performance Schools (CHPS); current edition at www.chps.net/.
- E. NFPA 286 Standard Methods of Fire Tests for Evaluating Contribution of Wall and Ceiling Interior Finish to Room Fire Growth; 2015.
- F. UL (FRD) Fire Resistance Directory; current edition.
- G. UL (GGG) GREENGUARD Gold Certified Products; current listings at http://http://productguide.ulenvironment.com/QuickSearch.aspx.

1.03 ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

- A. Sequence work to ensure acoustical ceilings are not installed until building is enclosed, sufficient heat is provided, dust generating activities have terminated, and overhead work is completed, tested, and approved.
- B. Do not install acoustical units until after interior wet work is dry.

1.04 SUBMITTALS

- A. See Section 01 3000 Administrative Requirements, for submittal procedures.
- B. Shop Drawings: Indicate grid layout and related dimensioning.
- C. Product Data: Provide data on suspension system components.
- D. Samples: Submit two samples 4 by 4 inch in size illustrating material and finish of acoustical units.

1.05 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Fire-Resistive Assemblies: Complete assembly listed and classified by UL (FRD) for the fire resistance indicated.
- B. Suspension System Manufacturer Qualifications: Company specializing in manufacturing the products specified in this section with minimum three years documented experience.
- C. Acoustical Unit Manufacturer Qualifications: Company specializing in manufacturing the products specified in this section with minimum three years documented experience.

1.06 FIELD CONDITIONS

A. Maintain uniform temperature of minimum 60 degrees F, and maximum humidity of 40 percent prior to, during, and after acoustical unit installation.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 MANUFACTURERS

- A. Acoustic Tiles/Panels:
 - 1. Armstrong World Industries, Inc; www.armstrong.com.
 - 2. CertainTeed Corporation; www.certainteed.com.
 - 3. USG; USG Fissured Basic Acoustical Panels, Fire Rated: www.usg.com.
 - 4. Substitutions: See Section 01 6000 Product Requirements.

2.02 ACOUSTICAL UNITS

- A. Acoustical Units General: ASTM E1264, Class A.
 - 1. Units for Installation in Fire-Rated Suspension System: Listed and classified for the fire-resistive assembly as part of suspension system.
 - 2. VOC Content: Certified as Low Emission by one of the following:
 - a. Product listing in UL (GGG).
- B. Acoustical Tile:
 - Soil-Resistant Polyester Film (9th floor)
 - a. Size: 24 by 24 inches.
 - b. Thickness: match existing tile to fit existing ceiling grid
 - 2. Mineral Fiber Panel (1st floor Community Room)
 - a. Size: 24 by 24 inches.
 - b. Thickness: match existing tile to fit existing ceiling grid
 - Metal Panel (1st floor corridors, lobby and vestibule)
 - a. Size: 24 by 24 inches.
 - b. Thickness: match existing tile to fit existing ceiling grid
 - 4. Products:
 - a. Armstrong Clean Room VL Unperforated
 - b. Armstrong Metal Works Tegular, smooth texture match existing
 - c. Armstrong Georgian Beveled Tegular panels
 - d. Substitutions: See Section 01 6000 Product Requirements.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 EXAMINATION

- A. Verify existing conditions before starting work.
- B. Verify that layout of hangers will not interfere with other work.

3.02 INSTALLATION - ACOUSTICAL UNITS

- A. Install acoustical units in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.
- B. Fit acoustical units in place, free from damaged edges or other defects detrimental to appearance and function.
- C. Fit border trim neatly against abutting surfaces.
- D. Install units after above-ceiling work is complete.

- E. Install acoustical units level, in uniform plane, and free from twist, warp, and dents.
- F. Cutting Acoustical Units:
 - 1. Make field cut edges of same profile as factory edges.
- G. Install hold-down clips on each panel to retain panels tight to grid system; comply with fire rating requirements.

3.04 TOLERANCES

- A. Maximum Variation from Flat and Level Surface: 1/8 inch in 10 feet.
- B. Maximum Variation from Plumb of Grid Members Caused by Eccentric Loads: 2 degrees.

Page Intentionally Blank

SECTION 09 6514 RESILIENT WALL BASE

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 RELATED DOCUMENTS

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions and Division 01 Specification Sections, apply to this Section.

1.02 SUMMARY

- A. Section Includes:
 - 1. Resilient Wall Base.

1.03 SUBMITTALS

A. Product Data: For each type of product indicated.

1.04 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Mockups: Provide resilient products with mockups specified in other Sections.

1.05 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

A. Store resilient products and installation materials in dry spaces protected from the weather, with ambient temperatures maintained within range recommended by Johnsonite, but not less than 55 deg F (13 deg C) or more than 85 deg F (29 deg C).

1.06 PROJECT CONDITIONS

- A. Install resilient products after other finishing operations, including painting, have been completed.
- B. Maintain ambient temperatures within range recommended by Johnsonite, but not less than 65 deg F (18 deg C) or more than 85 deg F (29 deg C) in spaces to receive resilient products during the following time periods:
 - 1. 48 hours before installation.
 - 2. During installation.
 - 3. 48 hours after installation.
 - 4. Maintain the ambient relative humidity between 40% and 60% during installation.
 - 5. Until Substantial Completion, maintain ambient temperatures within range recommended by Johnsonite, but not less than 55 deg F (13 deg C) or more than 85 deg F (29 deg C).

1.07 RESILIENT WALL BASE

- A. Manufacturer:
 - 1. JOHNSONITE
 - a. Traditional vinyl (1/8") toe wall base, 5" & 7" height, color as selected by Owner
 - ROPPE

1.08 INSTALLATION MATERIALS

- A. Trowelable Leveling and Patching Compounds: Latex-modified, Portland cement based formulation manufactured and warranted by a reputable manufacturer.
- B. Adhesives: as recommended by Johnsonite to meet site conditions
 - 1. Johnsonite #960 Cove Base Adhesive (Porous applications)
 - 2. Johnsonite #946 Premium Contact Bond Adhesive (Non-porous applications)
 - 3. rePlace does not require adhesive

PART 1 EXECUTION

2.01 EXAMINATION

A. Examine substrates, with Installer present, for compliance with requirements for maximum moisture content and other conditions affecting performance of the work.

- B. Verify that finishes of substrates comply with tolerances and other requirements specified in other Sections and that substrates are free of cracks, ridges, depressions, scale, and foreign deposits that might interfere with adhesion of resilient products.
- C. Proceed with installation only after unsatisfactory conditions have been corrected.

2.02 PREPARATION

- A. Prepare substrates according to Johnsonite's written instructions to ensure adhesion of resilient wall base.
- B. Fill cracks, holes, and depressions in substrates with trowelable leveling and patching compound and remove bumps and ridges to produce a uniform and smooth substrate.
- C. Move resilient products and installation materials into spaces where they will be installed at least 48 hours in advance of installation.
- D. Vacuum clean substrates to be covered by resilient products immediately before installation.

2.03 RESILIENT BASE INSTALLATION

- A. Comply with Johnsonite's written instructions for installing resilient base.
- B. Apply resilient base to walls, columns, pilasters, casework and cabinets in toe spaces, and other permanent fixtures in rooms and areas where base is required.
- C. Install resilient base in lengths as long as practicable without gaps at seams and with tops of adjacent pieces aligned.
- D. Tightly adhere resilient base to substrate throughout length of each piece, with base in continuous contact with horizontal and vertical substrates.
- E. Do not stretch resilient base during installation.
- F. Preformed corners: Install preformed corners if available before installing straight pieces.

2.04 CLEANING AND PROTECTION

- A. Comply with Johnsonite's written instructions for cleaning and protection of resilient products.
- B. Perform the following operations immediately after completing resilient product installation:
 - 1. Remove adhesive and other blemishes from exposed surfaces.
 - 2. Damp-mop surfaces to remove marks and soil.
 - Protect resilient products from mars, marks, indentations, and other damage from construction operations and placement of equipment and fixtures during remainder of construction period.

SECTION 09 6519 RESILIENT TILE FLOORING

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- Resilient tile flooring.
- B. Installation accessories.

1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

A. Section 07 9200 - Joint Sealants.

1.03 REFERENCE STANDARDS

- A. ASTM D2047 Standard Test Method for Static Coefficient of Friction of Polish-Coated Floor Surfaces as Measured by the James Machine; 2011.
- B. ASTM F386 Standard Test Method for Thickness of Resilient Flooring Materials Having Flat Surfaces; 2011.
- C. ASTM F710 Standard Practice for Preparing Concrete Floors to Receive Resilient Flooring; 2011.
- D. ASTM F1869 Standard Test Method for Measuring Moisture Vapor Emission Rate of Concrete Subfloor Using Anhydrous Calcium Chloride; 2011.
- E. ASTM F2055 Standard Test Method for Size and Squareness of Resilient Floor Tile by Dial Gage Method; 2010.
- F. ASTM F2170 Standard Test Method for Determining Relative Humidity in Concrete Floor Slabs Using in situ Probes; 2011.

1.04 SUBMITTALS

- A. See Section 01 3000 Administrative Requirements, for submittal procedures.
- B. Manufacturer's documentation for flooring and accessories:
 - 1. Technical Data.
 - 2. Installation and Maintenance.
 - 3. Warranty.
- Selection Samples: Submit manufacturer's complete set of color samples for Architect's initial selection.

1.05 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

- A. Upon receipt, immediately remove any shrink-wrap and check materials for damage and the correct style, color, quantity and run numbers.
- B. Store all materials flat off of the floor in an acclimatized, weather-tight space between 65 to 85 degrees F.

1.06 FIELD CONDITIONS

- A. Acclimate material at jobsite between 65 to 85 degrees F and 35 percent to 85 percent relative humidity for 48 hours prior to installation. Temperature and relative humidity should also be maintained at the same levels during installation, and after installation.
- B. Spread unopened cartons no more than 6 cartons high and at least 4 inches apart.
- C. Keep away from heating and cooling ducts and direct sunlight.

1.07 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Manufacturer Qualifications: Company specializing in manufacturing products specified in this section, with not less than ten years of documented experience.
- B. All adhesives and sealants (including caulking) must have VOC levels, in grams per liter, less than or equal to the thresholds established by the South Coast Air Quality Management District Rule 1168

C Any hard surface flooring product used must be in compliance with the Scientific Certification System's FloorScore program criteria.

1.08 WARRANTY

A. See Section 01 7800 - Closeout Submittals, for additional warranty requirements.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 MANUFACTURERS

A. Basis of Design: Southwind, Boundless, LVT - 2.5 mm/20M x 7" Wide x 48" Long, Glue Down installation.

2.02 RESILIENT TILE FLOORING

- A. Class III High Performance glue down LVP:
 - 1. Pattern: as selected by Architect.
 - 2. Color: Allow for 2 colors as selected by Architect and Owner.

2.03 ACCESSORIES

A. Moldings, Transition and Edge Strips: Same material as flooring.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 EXAMINATION - SEE ALSO SECTION 01 7000.

- A. Install flooring and accessories after other operations (including painting) have been completed.
- B. Acceptance of Conditions: Carefully examine all installation areas with installer/applicator present, for compliance with requirements affecting work performance.
 - 1. Verify that field measurements, product, adhesives, substrates, surfaces, structural support, tolerances, levelness, temperature, humidity, moisture content level, pH, cleanliness and other conditions are as required by the manufacturer, and ready to receive work.
- C. Verify that substrate is contaminant-free, including old adhesives and abatement chemicals.
- D. Test substrates as required by manufacturer to verify proper conditions exist.
 - 1. Concrete:
 - a. Check for concrete additives such as fly ash, curing compounds, hardeners, or other surface treatments that may prevent proper bonding of floor coverings.
 - b. Moisture testing: Perform either the In-Situ Relative Humidity (RH) test (ASTM F2170) or Moisture Vapor Emission Rate (MVER) test (ASTM F1869). Refer to the Manufacturer's Installation Guide/Manual for the maximum allowable substrate moisture content. Substrates above the maximum allowable moisture content will require a moisture mitigation system.
 - c. Perform alkalinity testing to verify pH level is between 7 to 10 per ASTM F710.
 - d. Check substrate for absorbency per manufacturer's recommendations.
 - e. Perform bond testing per ASTM F710 to determine compatibility of adhesive to concrete substrate.
- E. Verify that required floor-mounted utilities are in correct location.

3.02 PREPARATION

- A. Flooring installation should not begin until all site conditions have been assessed, testing has been completed and subfloor conditions are approved.
- B. Prepare per manufacturer's written instructions.

3.03 INSTALLATION

- A. Installation per manufacturer's written instructions, Section 01 7000, and as follows:
 - 1. Layout shall be specified by Architect.
 - 2. Follow layout and ensure installation reference lines are square.
 - 3. Field tiles shall be installed with directional arrows on back aligned in the same direction, or may be installed in quarter-turned fashion.

- 4. Expansion Joints: Locate expansion, isolation, and other moving joints prior to installation.
 - Do not fill expansion, isolation, and other moving joints with patching compound or cover with resilient flooring.
 - b. Install movement joint systems per manufacturer's instructions and per Section 07 9200 and Section 07 9513.
- 5. Transition Strip: Provide rubber transition strips between LVP and other flooring types. Transition strips must meet ADA, UFAS, and ANSI accessible requirements.

3.04 FIELD QUALTITY CONTROL

- A. Site tests and inspections per Section 01 4000 and as follows:
 - 1. Inspect flooring installation for non-conforming work including, but not limited to, the following:
 - a. Dirt and debris underneath flooring.
 - b. Excessive gaps.
 - c. Improper substrate preparation as indicated by telegraphing.
 - d. Damage to tiles, including: dents/indentations, cuts, cracks, burns or punctures.
- B. Non-conforming work per General Conditions and as follows:
 - 1. Repair or replace damaged material if not acceptable to the Architect.

3.05 CLEANING

- A. Provide progress cleaning per manufacturer's written instructions , Section 01 7000, and as follows:
 - Work Areas: Clean areas where work is in progress to the level of cleanliness necessary for proper execution of the work.
 - a. Clean and protect completed construction until Date of Substantial Completion.
 - b. During installation, remove wet adhesive from surface of flooring per manufacturer's instructions.
 - 2. Site: Maintain project site free of waste materials and debris.
- B. Provide final cleaning immediately prior to Date of Substantial Completion inspection per manufacturer's written instructions and Section 01 7000.
 - 1. Protection: Remove manufacturer's and other installed protection immediately prior to Date of Substantial Completion inspection, unless required otherwise.
 - 2. Clean floor with a neutral 6-8 pH cleaner.

3.06 MAINTENANCE

- A. Initial maintenance per flooring manufacturer's written instructions and as follows:
 - 1. It is recommended that you sweep & vacuum the area immediately after installation to remove potential damaging soil and debris. You can use your flooring immediately.
 - 2. Southwind recommends using a pH neutral vinyl floor cleaner as required. Examples of pH neutral floor cleaners are Bona Stone, Tile, and Laminate Cleaner, ZEP, Diversey Stride, Hilway Direct HD pH Neutral Cleaner, Armstrongs Once-n-Done, etc.
 - 3. The listed cleaning agents are a representation of flooring cleaners that Southwind recognizes as acceptable for our products. Other neutral pH cleaner may provide satisfactory results as well.
 - 4. Southwind does not warrant any of the cleaning agents or conditions associated with them as the application of them is beyond our control.
 - 5. For commercial installations, we approve the use of a low speed (175 rpm) floor cleaning machine with 3M red or white pad. Southwind will not be responsible for damages associated with a floor cleaning machine.
 - 6. Always rinse the floor thoroughly with clean water and allow to dry as the floor may be slippery when wet. Air movers or fans will speed up drying time.
 - 7. Never saturate your flooring.
 - 8. Do not buff, wax or use cleaning products that contain surfactants. Dish lotions, laundry detergents, Murphy Oil

9. Soap cleaners should not be used to maintain your flooring

3.07 PROTECTION

- A. Protect materials from construction operations until Date of Substantial Completion or Owner occupancy, whichever occurs first.
 - 1. Protect finished floor from abuse and damage by using heavy non-staining kraft paper, drop cloths or equivalent. Use additional, non-damaging protective materials as needed.
 - 2. Light foot traffic on a newly installed floor can be permitted after 24 hours.
 - 3. Keep heavy traffic and rolling loads off the newly installed LVT flooring for 48 hours.
 - 4. Protect the floor from rolling traffic by covering with protective boards.

SECTION 09 6813 TILE CARPETING

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

Carpet tile, fully adhered.

1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

A. Section 03 5400 - Cast Underlayment.

1.03 REFERENCE STANDARDS

- A. ASTM D2859 Standard Test Method for Ignition Characteristics of Finished Textile Floor Covering Materials.
- B. ASTM E648 Standard Test Method for Critical Radiant Flux of Floor-Covering Systems Using a Radiant Heat Energy Source.
- C. ASTM F710 Standard Practice for Preparing Concrete Floors to Receive Resilient Flooring.
- D. CRI 104 Standard for Installation of Commercial Carpet.
- E. CRI 105 Standard for Installation of Residential Carpet.
- F. NFPA 253 Standard Method of Test for Critical Radiant Flux of Floor Covering Systems Using a Radiant Heat Energy Source.

1.04 SUBMITTALS

- A. See Section 01 3000 Administrative Requirements, for submittal procedures.
- B. Product Data: Provide data on specified products, describing physical and performance characteristics; sizes, patterns, colors available, and method of installation.
- Samples: Submit two carpet tiles illustrating color and pattern design for each carpet color selected.
- D. Manufacturer's Installation Instructions: Indicate special procedures and perimeter conditions requiring special attention.

1.05 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Manufacturer Qualifications: Company specializing in manufacturing specified carpet tile with minimum three years documented experience.
- B. Installer Qualifications: Company specializing in installing carpet tile with minimum three years documented experience and approved by carpet tile manufacturer.

1.06 FIELD CONDITIONS

A. Store materials in area of installation for minimum period of 24 hours prior to installation.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 MANUFACTURERS

- A. Tile Carpeting:
 - Shaw or equivalent.
 - 2. Substitutions: See Section 01 1600 Material and Equipment.

2.02 MATERIALS

- A. Tile Carpeting: Multi-level Pattern Loop, 100% Solution Dyed
 - 1. Product: Places Collection, Sky Tile 5T174
 - 2. Tile Size: 24 by 24 inch, nominal.
 - 3. Total Thickness .224 inch.
 - 4. Finished Pile Thickness .089 inches
 - 5. Color: As selected by Architect and Owner
 - 6. Pattern: quarter turn and ashlar, as directed by Architect and Owner

- 7. Smoke: less than 450
- 8. Static Control Fiber: Under 3.5KV.
- 9. Gauge: 1/12 inch.10. Stitches: 9 per inch.
- 11. Tufted Weight: 17 oz/sq yd.
- 12. Average Density: 6876 oz/cu. yd.
- 13. Primary Backing Material: Ecoworx tile

2.03 ACCESSORIES

- A. Edge Strips: Johnsonite Standard Transition Adaptors, Carpet to Resilient 1/4" to subfloor, color as selected by architect.
- B. Carpet Tile Adhesive: Recommended by carpet tile manufacturer.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 EXAMINATION

- A. Verify that sub-floor surfaces are smooth and flat within tolerances specified for that type of work and are ready to receive carpet tile.
- B. Verify that sub-floor surfaces are dust-free and free of substances that could impair bonding of adhesive materials to sub-floor surfaces.
- C. Cementitious Sub-floor Surfaces: Verify that substrates are dry enough and ready for flooring installation by testing for moisture and pH.
 - 1. Obtain instructions if test results are not within limits recommended by flooring material manufacturer and adhesive materials manufacturer.

3.02 PREPARATION

- Remove existing carpet.
- B. Prepare floor substrates as recommended by flooring and adhesive manufacturers.
- C. Remove sub-floor ridges and bumps. Fill minor or local low spots, cracks, joints, holes, and other defects with sub-floor filler.
- D. Vacuum clean substrate.

3.03 INSTALLATION

- A. Starting installation constitutes acceptance of sub-floor conditions.
- B. Install carpet tile in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.
- C. Blend carpet from different cartons to ensure minimal variation in color match.
- D. Cut carpet tile clean. Fit carpet tight to intersection with vertical surfaces without gaps.
- E. Lay carpet tile in square pattern, with pile direction parallel to next unit, set parallel to building lines.
- F. Fully adhere carpet tile to substrate.
- G. Trim carpet tile neatly at walls and around interruptions.
- H. Complete installation of edge strips, concealing exposed edges.

3.04 CLEANING

- A. Remove excess adhesive without damage, from floor, base, and wall surfaces.
- B. Clean and vacuum carpet surfaces.

PAINTING SECTION 09 9123

PART1 GENERAL

1.01 **SECTION INCLUDES**

A. Interior paint

- 1.02 RELATED SECTIONSA. Coordinate with other prime contractors and sub-contractors to assure proper incorporation of and provision for items to be furnished or installed by them.
 - B. Do not paint non-ferrous metals such as aluminum, stainless steel, copper, and lead coated copper, brass and bronze, or metals with baked enamel factory finish.

1.03 **REFERENCES**

- A. SSPC-SP 1 Solvent Cleaning
- B. SSPC-SP 2 Hand Tool Cleaning
- C. SSPC-SP 3 Power Tool Cleaning
- D. SSPC-SP 13 / NACE No. 6 Surface Preparation for Concrete
- E. EPA-Method 24
- F. South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) Rule 1113

1.04 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit under provisions of Section 01300 Submittals.
- B. Product Data: Manufacturer's data sheets on each paint and coating product should include:
 - 1 Product characteristics
 - 2 Surface preparation instructions and recommendations
 - 3 Primer requirements and finish specification
 - 4 Storage and handling requirements and recommendations
 - 5 Application methods
 - 6 Cautions
- C. Selection Samples: Submit a complete set of color chips that represent the full range of manufacturer's color samples available.
- D. Verification Samples: For each finish product specified, submit samples that represents actual product, color, and sheen.

DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

- A. Delivery: Deliver manufacturer's unopened containers to the work site. Packaging shall bear the manufactures name, label, and the following list of information:
 - 1. Product name, type (description)
 - 2. Application & use instructions
 - 3. Surface preparation
 - 4. VOC content
 - 5. Environmental issues
 - 6. Batch date
 - 7. Color number
- B. Storage: Store and dispose of solvent-based materials, and materials used with solvent-based materials, in accordance with requirements of local authorities having jurisdiction.
 - Store materials in an area that is within the acceptable temperature range, per manufacturer's instructions. Protect from freezing.
- C. Handling: Maintain a clean, dry storage area, to prevent contamination or damage to the coatings.
- D. Keep all waste and paint rags in tightly covered metal containers. Gather up all material and dispose of at end of each work day.
- E. Mount an approved type fire extinguisher immediately outside all paint storage areas.

PROJECT CONDITIONS 1.06

A. Maintain environmental conditions (temperature, humidity, and ventilation) within limits recommended by manufacturer for optimum results. Do not apply coatings under environmental conditions outside manufacturer's absolute limits.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

MANUFACTURERS 2.01

- A. Acceptable Manufacturer:
 - 1. The Sherwin-Williams Company

- 2. PPG
- 3. Prat and Lambert
- 4. Approved Equal

2.02 MATERIALS - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

- A. Paints and Coatings General:
 - 1. Unless otherwise indicated, provide factory-mixed coatings. When required, mix coatings to correct consistency in accordance with manufacturer's instructions before application. Do not reduce, thin, or dilute coatings or add materials to coatings unless such procedure is specifically described in manufacturer's product instructions.

B. Primers:

1. Where the manufacturer offers options on primers for a particular substrate, use primer categorized as "best" by the manufacturer.

All interior paints and primers must have VOC levels, in grams per liter, less than or equal to the thresholds established by South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) Rule 1113

2.03 ACCESSORIES

- A. Coating Application Accessories:
 - 1. Provide all primers, sealers, cleaning agents, cleaning cloths, sanding materials, and cleanup materials required per manufacturer's specifications.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 EXAMINATION

- A. Do not begin application of paints and finishes until substrates have been properly prepared. Proceed with work only after conditions have been corrected, and approved by all parties, otherwise application of coatings will be considered as an acceptance of surface conditions.
- B. If substrate preparation is the responsibility of another installer, notify Architect of unsatisfactory preparation before proceeding.
- C. Proceed with work only after conditions have been corrected, and approved by all parties, otherwise application of coatings will be considered as an acceptance of surface conditions.

3.02 SURFACE PREPARATION:

- A. Proper product selection, surface preparation, and application affect coating performance. Coating integrity and service life will be reduced because of improperly prepared surfaces. Selection and implementation of proper surface preparation ensures coating adhesion to the substrate and prolongs the service life of the coating system.
- B. Selection of the proper method of surface preparation depends on the substrate, the environment, and the expected service life of the coating system. Economics, surface contamination, and the effect on the substrate will also influence the selection of surface preparation methods.
- C. The surface must be dry and in sound condition. Remove oil, dust, dirt, loose rust, peeling paint or other contamination to ensure good adhesion.
- D. Remove mildew before painting by washing with a solution of 1 part liquid household bleach and 3 parts of warm water. Apply the solution and scrub the mildewed area. Allow the solution to remain on the surface for 10 minutes. Rinse thoroughly with clean water and allow the surface to dry 48 hours before painting. Wear protective glasses or goggles, waterproof gloves, and protective clothing. Quickly wash off any of the mixture that comes in contact with your skin. Do not add detergents or ammonia to the bleach/water solution.
- E. No exterior painting should be done immediately after a rain, during foggy weather, when rain is predicted, or when the temperature is below 50°F unless the specified product is designed for the marginal conditions.

F. Methods:

- 1. CMU
 - Remove all loose mortar and foreign material. Surface must be free of laitance, concrete dust, dirt, form release agents, moisture curing membranes, loose cement, and hardeners. Concrete and mortar must be cured at least 30 days at 75°F. The pH of the surface should be between 6 and 9, unless the products to be used are designed to be used in high pH environments such as Loxon. On tilt-up and poured-in-place concrete, commercial detergents and abrasive blasting may be necessary to prepare the surface. Fill bug holes, air pockets, and other voids with a cement patching compound.
- 2. Drywall—Interior

Must be clean and dry. All nail heads must be set and spackled. Joints must be taped and covered with a joint compound. Spackled nail heads and tape joints must be sanded smooth and all dust removed prior to painting.

3. Galvanized Metal

Clean per SSPC-SP1 using detergent and water or a degreasing cleaner to remove greases and oils. Apply a test area, priming as required. Allow the coating to dry at least one week before testing. If adhesion is poor, Brush Blast per SSPC-SP7 is necessary to remove these treatments.

4. Wood

Must be clean and dry. Prime and paint as soon as possible. Knots and pitch streaks must be scraped, sanded, and spot primed before a full priming coat is applied. Patch all nail holes and imperfections with a wood filler or putty and sand smooth.

3.03 INSTALLATION

- A. Apply all coatings and materials with manufacture specifications in mind. Mix and thin coatings according to manufacture recommendation.
- B. Do not apply to wet or damp surfaces.
 - 1. Wait at least 30 days before applying to new concrete or masonry. Or follow manufacturer's procedures to apply appropriate coatings prior to 30 days.
 - 2. Test new concrete for moisture content.
 - 3. Wait until wood is fully dry after rain, fog or dew.
- C. Apply coatings using methods recommended by manufacturer.
- D. Uniformly apply coatings without runs, drips, or sags, without brush marks, and with consistent sheen.
- E. Apply coatings at spreading rate required to achieve the manufacturers recommended dry film thickness.
- F. Regardless of number of coats specified, apply as many coats as necessary for complete hide, and uniform appearance.
- G. Exterior Woodwork: If final painting must be delayed more than 2 weeks after installation of woodwork, apply primer within 2 weeks and final coating within 2 weeks.
- H. Inspection: The coated surface must be inspected and approved by the engineer or engineer just prior to each coat.

3.04 PROTECTION

- A. Protect finished coatings from damage until completion of project.
- B. Touch-up damaged coatings after substantial completion, following manufacturer's recommendation for touch up or repair of damaged coatings. Repair any defects that will hinder the performance of the coatings.
- C. Furnish and lay drop cloths in all areas where painting and finishing work is being done and protect all other work from defacement. Promptly replace all temporary protective coverings removed too early from any part of the work and make good any damage from neglect.

3.05 SCHEDULES

A. MASONRY/CONCRETE

1. Latex Systems

a. Semi-Gloss Finish

1st Coat: S-W Heavy Duty Block Filler, B42W46

2nd Coat: S-W DTM Acrylic Semi-Gloss Coating, B66-200 Series 3rd Coat: S-W DTM Acrylic Semi-Gloss Coating, B66-200 Series

B. METAL

Latex Systems

a. Semi-Gloss Finish

1st Coat: S-W Kem Kromik® Universal Metal Primer, B50AZ0006 2nd Coat: S-W DTM Acrylic Semi-Gloss Coating, B66-200 Series 3rd Coat: S-W DTM Acrylic Semi-Gloss Coating, B66-200 Series

C. DRYWALL

Latex Systems

a. Walls: Eggshell & Ceilings: Flat

1st Coat: S-W PrepRite® Classic Latex Primer, B28W101 2nd Coat: S-W ProMar 200® Waterbased Acrylic-Alkyd 3rd Coat: S S-W ProMar 200® Waterbased Acrylic-Alkyd

- D. WOOD
 - 1. Latex Systems
 - a. Walls: Eggshell

1st Coat: S-W PrepRite® Classic Latex Primer, B28W101 2nd Coat: S-W ProMar 200® Waterbased Acrylic-Alkyd 3rd Coat: S S-W ProMar 200® Waterbased Acrylic-Alkyd

- 2. Stain for wood doors
 - a. Doors: Satin

1st Coat: S-W Miniwax Performance Series Tintable Wood Stain 250 VOC

2nd Coat: S-W Miniwax Waterbased Oil-Modified Polyurethane 3rd Coat: S S-W Miniwax Waterbased Oil-Modified Polyurethane

E. Paint and stain shall be applied in strict conformity with manufacturer's directions for original application.

SECTION 10 1101

VISUAL DISPLAY BOARDS AND TACK BOARDS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Visual Display Boards.
- B. Tack Boards.

1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

A. Section 06 1000 - Rough Carpentry: Blocking and supports.

1.03 REFERENCE STANDARDS

- A. ANSI A135.4 American National Standard for Basic Hardboard; 2012.
- B. ANSI A208.1 American National Standard for Particleboard; 2009.
- C. ASTM A424/A424M Standard Specification for Steel, Sheet, for Porcelain Enameling; 2009a.

1.04 SUBMITTALS

- A. See Section 01 3000 Administrative Requirements, for submittal procedures.
- B. Product Data: Provide manufacturer's data on chalkboard, markerboard, tackboard, tackboard surface covering, trim, and accessories.
- C. Shop Drawings: Indicate wall elevations, dimensions, joint locations, special anchor details.
- D. Samples: Submit two samples 2 by 2 inch in size illustrating materials and finish, color and texture of chalkboard, markerboard, tackboard, tackboard surfacing, and trim.
- E. Manufacturer's printed installation instructions.
- F. Maintenance Data: Include data on regular cleaning and stain removal.

1.05 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Manufacturer Qualifications: Company specializing in manufacturing the products specified in this section with minimum three years documented experience.

1.06 WARRANTY

- A. See Section 01 7800 Closeout Submittals, for additional warranty requirements.
- B. Provide five year warranty for chalkboard and markerboard to include warranty against discoloration due to cleaning, crazing or cracking, and staining.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 MANUFACTURERS

- A. Visual Display Boards and Tack Boards
 - 1. Global Industrial or approved equivalent.
 - 2. Koroseal or approved equivalent.

2.02 VISUAL DISPLAY BOARDS AND TACK BOARDS

- A. Tack boards:
 - 1. Global Industrial Ghent Bulletin Board Vinyl Aluminum Frame 36"x24" (silver)
 - a. Locate one (1) in each laundry room three (3) total
 - 2. Koroseal Tac-wall matte finish linoleum/cork Aluminum Frame 18"x24"
 - a. Locate between elevator doors on second through ninth floors (52" AFF to bottom)
- B. Display Cases:
 - 1. Global Industrial Enclosed Bulletin Board Cork Aluminum Frame 48"x36" 2 Door Item #: WB695482
 - a. Locate three (3) on first floor at locations of existing and two (2) at second floor, one on each side of the entry door to Hope & Life Office

- 2. Global Industrial Enclosed Bulletin Board –Cork Aluminum Frame 18"x24" single door Item #: WB695875
 - a. Locate between elevator doors on first floor (52" AFF to bottom)

2.03 MATERIALS

- A. Porcelain Enameled Steel Sheet: ASTM A424/A424M, Type I, Commercial Steel, with fired-on vitreous finish.
- B. Particleboard: ANSI A208.1; wood chips, set with waterproof resin binder, sanded faces.
- C. Foil Backing: Aluminum foil sheet, 0.005 inch thick.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. Install boards in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.
- B. Secure units level and plumb.

3.02 CLEANING

- A. Clean board surfaces in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.
- B. Remove temporary protective cover at Date of Substantial Completion.

SECTION 10 1400 SIGNAGE

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

A. Room signs, door signs, and facility specific signs.

1.02 REFERENCE STANDARDS

- A. 36 CFR 1191 Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Accessibility Guidelines for Buildings and Facilities; Architectural Barriers Act (ABA) Accessibility Guidelines; current edition.
- B. ADA Standards Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Standards for Accessible Design; 2010.
- C. ICC A117.1 Accessible and Usable Buildings and Facilities; 2009.

1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. See Section 01 3000 Administrative Requirements, for submittal procedures.
- B. Product Data: Manufacturer's printed product literature for each type of sign, indicating sign styles, font, foreground and background colors, locations, overall dimensions of each sign.
- C. Signage Schedule: Provide information sufficient to completely define each sign for fabrication, including room number, room name, other text to be applied, sign and letter sizes, fonts, and colors.
 - 1. When room numbers to appear on signs differ from those on the drawings, include the drawing room number on schedule.
 - 2. Submit for approval by Owner through Architect prior to fabrication.
- D. Samples: Submit two samples of each type of sign, of size similar to that required for project, illustrating sign style, font, and method of attachment.
- E. Selection Samples: Where colors are not specified, submit two sets of color selection charts or chips.
- F. Manufacturer's Installation Instructions: Include installation templates and attachment devices.

1.04 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Manufacturer Qualifications: Company specializing in manufacturing the products specified in this section with minimum three years of documented experience.

1.05 FIELD CONDITIONS

- A. Do not install tape adhesive when ambient temperature is lower than recommended by manufacturer.
- B. Maintain this minimum temperature during and after installation of signs.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 MANUFACTURERS

- A. Flat Signs:
 - 1. Inpro; www.inprocorp.com.
 - 2. Best Sign Systems, Inc; ImPressions: www.bestsigns.com
 - 3. Substitutions: See Section 01 6000 Product Requirements.

2.02 SIGNAGE APPLICATIONS

- A. Accessibility Compliance: Signs are required to comply with ADA Standards and ICC A117.1 and UFAS, unless otherwise indicated; in the event of conflicting requirements, comply with the most comprehensive and specific requirements.
- B. Room and Door Signs: Provide a sign for every door.
 - 1. Sign Type: Flat signs with thermoforming panel media as specified.
 - 2. Provide "tactile" signage, with letters raised minimum 1/32 inch and Grade II braille.
 - 3. Character Height: 1 inch.

- 4. Sign Height: 3 inches, unless otherwise indicated on the drawings.
- C. Facility Specific Signs: Provide replacement for all Facility Specific Signs throughout building. Provide sign size, color and font to match existing, unless otherwise indicated by Owner/Architect. Submit list of Facility Specific Signs for Owner/Architect review prior to fabrication.

2.03 SIGN TYPES

- A. Flat Signs: Signage media without frame.
 - 1. Corners: Square.
 - 2. Wall Mounting of One-Sided Signs: VHB Double-sided Foam Tape (interior). Provide double-sided 3M VHB adhesive with conformable foam core to adhere unframed signage to clean, dry, well-sealed surfaces.
 - 3. Color: Brushed Silver, as approved by Architect and Owner
 - 4. Character Font: Helvetica, Arial, or other sans serif font.
 - 5. Character Case: Upper case only.
 - 6. Background Color: as selected by Architect and Owner.
 - 7. Character Color: Black, as approved by Architect and Owner.
 - 8. Sample to be submitted for approval by Architect and Owner.

2.04 TACTILE SIGNAGE MEDIA

- A. Engraved Panels: Laminated colored plastic; engraved through face to expose core as background color:
 - 1. Total Thickness: 1/16 inch.
- B. Injection Molded Panels: One-piece acrylic plastic, with raised letters and braille.
 - 1. Total Thickness: 1/8 inch.

2.05 ACCESSORIES

A. VHB Double-sided Foam Tape (interior):

Provide double-sided 3M VHB adhesive with conformable foam core

to adhere unframed signage to clean, dry, well-sealed surfaces.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 EXAMINATION

A. Verify that substrate surfaces are ready to receive work.

3.02 INSTALLATION

- A. Install in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.
- B. Install neatly, with horizontal edges level.
- Locate signs and mount at heights indicated on drawings and in accordance with ADA Standards and ICC A117.1.
- D. Protect from damage until Substantial Completion; repair or replace damaged items.

SECTION 10 2601 WALL PANELS AND CORNER GUARDS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Corner guards.
- B. Wall Panels.

1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

A. Section 06 1000 - Rough Carpentry: Blocking for wall and corner guard anchors.

1.03 REFERENCE STANDARDS

- A. ADA Standards Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Standards for Accessible Design; 2010.
- B. ICC A117.1 Accessible and Usable Buildings and Facilities; 2009.
- C. ASTM E84 Standard Test Method for Surface Burning Characteristics of Building Materials; 2015a.
- D. ASTM E119 Standard Test Methods for Fire Tests of Building Construction and Materials; 2016a.

1.04 SUBMITTALS

- A. See Section 01 3000 Administrative Requirements, for submittal procedures.
- Product Data: Indicate physical dimensions, features, anchorage details, and rough-in measurements.
- C. Samples: Submit two sections of corner guard, 24 inch long, illustrating component design, configuration, color and finish. Submit color and finish samples for vinyl handrail cover and returns.
- D. Manufacturer's Instructions: Indicate special procedures, perimeter conditions requiring special attention.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 MANUFACTURERS

- A. Corner Guards and Wall Panels:
 - 1. Wallguard
 - 1. Babcock-Davis
 - 2. Construction Specialties, Inc; www.c-sgroup.com.
 - 3. Inpro; www.inprocorp.com.
 - 4. Nystrom, Inc; www.nystrom.com.
 - 5. Trim-Tex, Inc; www.trim-tex.com.
 - 6. Acrovyn

2.02 COMPONENTS

- A. Corner Guards Surface Mounted:
 - 1. Material: High impact vinyl.
 - 2. Width of Wings: 2 inches, and 3 inches
 - 3. Corner: Square.
 - 4. Color: As selected from manufacturer's standard colors.
 - 5. Length: One piece.
- B. Corner Guards Surface Mounted:
 - 1. Material: Stainless Steel
 - 2. Width of Wings: 3.5 inches.
 - 3. Corner: Square (90 degrees)
 - 4. Finish: Satin

- 5. Length: 4 ft and 7 ft.+/- (match opening height)
- 6. Gage: 18
- 7. Mounting: Adhesive
- C. Wall Panels Surface Mounted:
 - 1. Material: Stainless Steel
 - 2. Finish: Satin
 - 3. Size: 4 ft by 8 ft (cut to fit)
 - 4. Gage: 20
 - 5. Mounting: Adhesive
- D. Wall Panels Surface Mounted:
 - 1. Material: Vinyl
 - 2. Finish: Satin
 - 3. Size: 4 ft by 8 ft (cut to fit)
 - 4. Gage: .040"
 - 5. Mounting: Adhesive
- E. Handrail System Hardware
 - 1. Replace broken or unusable existing retainer and/or mounting bracket
 - 2. Aluminum retainer and mounting bracket system: existing to remain
 - a. Provide replacement parts to match existing hardware as needed.
- F. Vinyl kick plate, 34" W X 32"H

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. Install components in accordance with manufacturer's instructions, level and plumb, secured rigidly in position to wall framing members only.
- B. Position vinyl corner guard 5 inches above finished floor to 48 inches high at all outside corners within public spaces.
- C. Position stainless steel corner guards and panels at finished floor level and seal.

3.02 TOLERANCES

A. Maximum Variation From Required Height: 1/4 inch.

SECTION 12 2400 WINDOW SHADES

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

Interior manual roller shades.

1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

A. Section 06 1000 - Rough Carpentry: Concealed wood blocking for attachment of headrail brackets.

1.03 REFERENCE STANDARDS

A. ASTM G21 - Standard Practice for Determining Resistance of Synthetic Polymeric Materials to Fungi; 2015.

1.04 ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

- A. Coordination:
- B. Preinstallation Meeting: Convene one week prior to commencing work related to products of this section; require attendance of affected installers.
- C. Sequencing:
 - Do not fabricate shades until field dimensions for each opening have been taken with field conditions in place.
 - 2. Do not install shades until final surface finishes and painting are complete.

1.05 SUBMITTALS

- A. See Section 01 3000 Administrative Requirements, for submittal procedures.
- B. Product Data: Provide manufacturer's standard catalog pages and data sheets, including materials, finishes, fabrication details, dimensions, profiles, mounting requirements, and accessories.
- C. Shop Drawings: Include shade schedule indicating size, location and keys to details, head, jamb and sill details, mounting dimension requirements for each product and condition, and operation direction.
- D. Selection Samples: Include fabric samples in full range of available colors and patterns.
- E. Manufacturer's Instructions: Include instructions for storage, handling, protection, examination, preparation, and installation of product.
- F. Operation and Maintenance Data: List of all components with part numbers, sources of supply, and operation and maintenance instructions; include copy of shop drawings.
- G. Warranty: Submit sample of manufacturer's warranty and documentation of final executed warranty completed in Owner's name and registered with manufacturer.

1.06 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Manufacturer Qualifications: Company specializing in manufacturing products specified in this section, with not less than five years of documented experience.

1.07 MOCK-UP

- A. Mock-Up: Provide full size mock-up of window shade system complete with selected shade fabric including example of seams and batten pockets when applicable.
 - 1. Obtain Architect's approval of light and privacy characteristics of fabric prior to fabrication.
 - 2. Full-sized mock-up may become part of the final installation.

1.08 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

- A. Deliver shades in manufacturer's unopened packaging, labeled to identify each shade for each opening.
- B. Handle and store shades in accordance with manufacturer's recommendations.

1.09 WARRANTY

- A. See Section 01 7800 Closeout Submittals, for additional warranty requirements.
- B. Provide manufacturer's warranty from Date of Substantial Completion, covering the following:
 - 1. Shade Hardware: One year.
 - 2. Fabric: One year.
 - 3. Aluminum and Steel Coatings: One year.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 MANUFACTURERS

- A. Interior Manually Operated Roller Shades:
 - Rollease Acmeda Contract;
 - 2. Substitutions: See Section 01 6000 Product Requirements.

2.02 ROLLER SHADES

- A. General:
 - Provide shade system components that are easy to remove or adjust without removal of mounted shade brackets.
 - 2. Provide shade system that operates smoothly when shades are raised or lowered.
- B. Interior Roller Shades Basis of Design: Rollease Acmeda Contract; Easy spring ultra: www.rolleaseacmedacontract.com/#sle.
 - Description: Single roller, manually operated fabric window shade system complete with mounting brackets, roller tubes, hembars, hardware, and other components necessary for complete installation.
 - a. Drop Position: Regular roll.
 - b. Mounting: Wall mounted.
 - c. Size: Field measure to fit.
 - 2. Mounting Hardware: As recommended by manufacturer for mounting indicated and to accommodate shade fabric roll-up size and weight.
 - a. Hardware Type: Universal brackets.
 - 1) Color: as selected by owner and architect.
 - 3. Roller Tubes: As required for type of shade operation; designed for removal without removing mounting hardware.
 - Material: Extruded aluminum, with wall thickness and material selected by manufacturer.
 - b. Size: As recommended by manufacturer; selected for suitability for installation conditions, span, and weight of shades.
 - 4. Hembars: Designed to maintain bottom of shade straight and flat, selected from manufacturer's standard options.
 - 5. Manual Operation: Chain and clutch.
 - a. Clutch Operator: Manufacturer's standard material and design, permanently lubricated.
 - b. Drive Chain: Continuous loop stainless steel beaded ball chain, 50 pounds minimum breaking strength. Provide upper and lower limit stops.

2.03 SHADE FABRIC

- A. Fabric Nonflammable, color-fast, impervious to heat and moisture, and able to retain its shape under normal operation.
 - 1. Openness Factor: as selected by owner and architect.
 - 2. Roll Width: cut to fit
 - 3. Color: As selected by Architect from manufacturer's full range of colors.

2.04 ROLLER SHADE FABRICATION

A. Field measure finished openings prior to ordering or fabrication.

- B. Dimensional Tolerances: Fabricate shades to fit openings within specified tolerances.
 - Vertical Dimensions: Fill openings from head to sill with 1/2 inch space between bottom bar and window stool.
 - 2. Horizontal Dimensions Inside Mounting: Fill openings from jamb to jamb.
- C. At openings requiring continuous multiple shade units with separate rollers, locate roller joints at window mullion centers; butt rollers end-to-end.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 EXAMINATION

- A. Examine finished openings for deficiencies that may preclude satisfactory installation.
- B. Start of installation shall be considered acceptance of substrates.

3.02 PREPARATION

- A. Prepare surfaces using methods recommended by manufacturer for achieving best result for substrate under the project conditions.
- B. Coordinate with window installation and placement of concealed blocking to support shades.

3.03 INSTALLATION

- A. Install in accordance with manufacturer's instructions and approved shop drawings, using mounting devices as indicated.
- B. Adjust level, projection, and shade centering from mounting bracket. Verify there is no telescoping of shade fabric. Ensure smooth shade operation.

3.04 CLEANING

- A. Clean soiled shades and exposed components as recommended by manufacturer.
- B. Replace shades that cannot be cleaned to "like new" condition.

3.05 CLOSEOUT ACTIVITIES

- A. See Section 01 7800 Closeout Submittals, for closeout submittals.
- B. See Section 01 7900 Demonstration and Training, for additional requirements.
- C. Demonstration: Demonstrate operation and maintenance of window shade system to Owner's personnel.
- D. Training: Train Owner's personnel on operation and maintenance of system.
 - 1. Use operation and maintenance manual as training reference, supplemented with additional training materials as required.
 - 2. Provide minimum of two hours training by manufacturer's authorized personnel at location designated by the Owner.

3.06 PROTECTION

- A. Protect installed products from subsequent construction operations.
- B. Touch-up, repair, or replace damaged products before Substantial Completion.

3.07 MAINTENANCE

A. See Section 01 7000 - Execution and Closeout Requirements, for additional requirements relating to maintenance service.

Page Intentionally Blank

SECTION 12 3530 RESIDENTIAL CASEWORK

PART 1 GENERAL 1.1 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. Casework in Community Room Kitchen.
- B. Miscellaneous countertops.

1.2 RELATED WORK

A. Coordinate with other prime and sub-contractors to assure proper incorporation of and provisions for items to be furnished or installed by them.

1.3 SUBMITTALS

- Submit shop drawings and catalog cuts showing layout, construction details and dimensions.
- B. Submit one (1) full size door sample, and 3 inch by 3 inch plastic laminate countertop samples.
- Submit color and finish charts for cabinets, plastic laminate, and wall backsplash.

1.4 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

A. Store materials in accordance with manufacturer's recommendations, in original sealed containers, a minimum of four inches above grade, under cover, and protected from physical damage and effects of weather until required for use or installation.

1.5 DESIGN REQUIREMENTS

- A. The residential cabinet design, sizes, style, details, and accessories specified in this Section and indicated on the drawings are based on the manufacturer listed and shall be considered as the standard of quality.
- B. The use of other acceptable manufacturers, whether listed or not, shall be considered subject to including the following information, in writing, with the bid submission:
 - 1. Manufacturer's name and system.
 - 2. The difference between manufacturer's systems.
 - 3. Expected or required alterations to the design, drawings, and details.
 - 4. Compliance to providing a complete functional and aesthetic system compatible with the project design and intent.
- C. All composite wood products (plywood, OSB, MDF, cabinetry) must be certified as compliant with California 93120 Phase 2. If using a composite wood product that does not comply with California 93120 Phase 2, all exposed edges and sides must be sealed with low-VOC sealants, per Criterion 6.2
- D. All adhesives and sealants (including caulks) must have VOC levels, in grams per liter, less than or equal to the thresholds established by the South Coast Air Quality Management District Rule 1168.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.1 MANUFACTURERS

- A. Match existing kitchen casework.
 - 1. Comply with ANSVKCMA A161-1-1995 & HUD Minimum Property Standards-Housing 4910.1 9-8-86 para. 611-1-1

2.2 MATERIALS AND FABRICATION

A. FRONT FRAME: 3/4" Thick kiln dried solid hardwood. Mortise and tenon or bore and dowel construction frame joinery reinforced with glue and nail. Stiles 1 1/2"

- wide. Mulls 3" wide. Rails 1 3/4" wide. Stiles and top and bottom rails dadoed to receive ends, tops and bottoms.
- B. END PANELS: Nominal 1/2" thick (12mm) multi-ply hardwood plywood with oak, maple or cherry veneer on exterior surface and birch veneer on interior surface. All end panels are constructed with the same dado joinery as above and are recessed 3/16".
- C. TOP/BOTTOM PANELS: Nominal 1/2" thick (12mm) multi-ply hardwood plywood. Tops and bottoms set into grooved end panels, front rails and hang rails, glued and stapled. Bottoms are supported at rear of base cabinets by nominal 1/2" thick multi-ply hardwood plywood.
- D. HANGING RAILS: Wall cabinets have nominal 3/4" thick (18mm) x 3" high multiply hardwood plywood, running full cabinet length at the top and bottom. Base cabinets have a nominal 1/2" thick (12mm) x 3" high multi-ply hardwood plywood hang rail at the top.
- E. BACK PANEL: Nominal 1/8" thick (3mm), hardwood plywood. Securely glued and stapled to ends and hang rails.
- F. SHELVES: Nominal 5/8" thick (15mm) multi-ply hardwood plywood, 10 7/8" deep with hardwood veneer banded front edge. Shelves are adjustable in all standard wall and base cabinets.
- G. TOE KICK: Nominal 1/2" thick (12mm) multi-ply hardwood plywood.
- H. BASE CORNER BRACES: High impact, injection molded plastic.
- I. DOVETAIL DRAWER: Front, back and sides are nominal 3/4" thick (19 mm) solid beech hardwood with dovetail construction. Drawer bottoms are nominal 3/16" (5 mm) multi-ply hardwood birch plywood inserted into dado in front, back and sides. Drawer bottoms are glued and stapled to sides.
- J. SOFT CLOSE UNDERMOUNT DRAWER GUIDE: High quality steel, undermount construction provides soft-close feature that helps reduce drawer slamming. Drawers are full extension, self adjusting in mounting brackets. Built-in stop, self-closing and stay closed features with a 100 lb. rated load capacity.
- K. HINGES: High quality steel wrap-around hinge with self closing feature.
- L. FINISH: Furniture quality protective finish system on doors, drawer fronts, front frames and veneer plywood end panels consisting of sanding, stain, catalyzed sealer and catalyzed clear top coats.
- M. Door styles: as selected by Owner/Architect.
- N. See drawings for which cabinets to be ADA accessible. See drawings for counter and mounting heights.
- O. Provide pulls on all drawers and doors. Provide selection from manufacturers full range for approval by Owner.

2.3 COUNTERTOPS AND BACKSPLASHES

- A. Fabrication
 - 1. Match existing kitchen countertop in style.
 - 2. Substrate: Minimum 3/4 inch plywood
 - 3. High Pressure Laminate: Mmanufactured by Formica or Ralph Wilson Plastic Co. (Wilson Art). Provide samples, from manufacturer, full range of color and finishes to select from selection.

- 4. Edge Treatment: Post formed edge with ¾" radius at top of backsplash, ¼" radius at cove of backsplash and countertop and ½" radius edge at front of countertop, 1-1/2" high and a return lip of 1-1/4".
- 5. Top Thickness: Minimum 3/4".

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.1 EXAMINATION

A. Verify that conditions are acceptable and are ready to receive work.

3.2 PREPARATION

- Verify location of existing wall blocking and securement points prior to mounting cabinets.
- B. Verify mechanical and electrical locations and rough-ins prior to mounting cabinets and equipment.

3.3 INSTALLATION

- A. Secure cabinets to walls and countertops to cabinets.
- B. Install level, straight, plumb and true.
- C. Verify and coordinate final connections by mechanical and electrical contractors.
- D. Verify locations of removable base units and access panels with mechanical drawings.

3.4 CLEANING

A. Leave cabinets clean and in ready to use condition.

Page Intentionally Blank

SECTION 26 2726 WIRING DEVICES

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

A. Receptacles.

1.02 WIRING DEVICE INTENT

A. The intent of the work is to provide new exterior receptacles. The contractor shall provide all materials, equipment, fixtures, and devices necessary to complete the installation.

1.03 REFERENCE STANDARDS

- A. NECA 1 Standard for Good Workmanship in Electrical Construction; 2010.
- B. NECA 130 Standard for Installing and Maintaining Wiring Devices; 2010.
- C. NEMA WD 1 General Color Requirements for Wiring Devices; 1999 (R 2010).
- D. NEMA WD 6 Wiring Devices Dimensional Specifications; 2012.
- E. NFPA 70 National Electrical Code; Most Recent Edition Adopted by Authority Having Jurisdiction, Including All Applicable Amendments and Supplements.
- F. UL 20 General-Use Snap Switches; Current Edition, Including All Revisions.
- G. UL 498 Attachment Plugs and Receptacles; Current Edition, Including All Revisions.
- H. UL 514D Cover Plates for Flush-Mounted Wiring Devices; Current Edition, Including All Revisions.
- I. UL 943 Ground-Fault Circuit-Interrupters; Current Edition, Including All Revisions.

1.04 ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

A. Coordination:

- Coordinate the placement of outlet boxes with millwork, equipment, etc. installed under other sections or by others.
- 2. Coordinate wiring device ratings and configurations with the electrical requirements of actual equipment to be installed.
- 3. Coordinate the installation and preparation of uneven surfaces, such as split face block, to provide suitable surface for installation of wiring devices.
- Coordinate the core drilling of holes for poke-through assemblies with the work covered under other sections.
- 5. Notify Architect of any conflicts or deviations from the contract documents to obtain direction prior to proceeding with work.

B. Sequencing:

1. Do not install wiring devices until final surface finishes are complete.

1.05 SUBMITTALS

- A. See Section 01 3000 Administrative Requirements, for submittal procedures.
- B. Product Data: Provide manufacturer's catalog information showing dimensions, colors, and configurations.
- C. Project Record Documents: Record actual installed locations of wiring devices.

1.06 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Conform to requirements of NFPA 70.
- B. Maintain at the project site a copy of each referenced document that prescribes execution requirements.
- C. Products: Listed, classified, and labeled as suitable for the purpose intended.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 WIRING DEVICE APPLICATIONS

- A. Provide wiring devices suitable for intended use and with ratings adequate for load served.
- B. For single receptacles installed on an individual branch circuit, provide receptacle with ampere rating not less than that of the branch circuit.

2.02 WIRING DEVICE FINISHES

- A. Provide wiring device finishes as described below unless otherwise indicated.
- B. Wiring Devices, color as selected by owner and architect.

2.04 RECEPTACLES

- A. Manufacturers:
 - 1. Hubbell Incorporated: www.hubbell.com.
 - 2. Leviton Manufacturing Company, Inc: www.leviton.com.
 - 3. Pass & Seymour, a brand of Legrand North America, Inc: www.legrand.us.
 - 4. Substitutions: See Section 01 6000 Product Requirements.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 EXAMINATION

- A. Verify that field measurements are as indicated.
- B. Verify that outlet boxes are installed in proper locations and at proper mounting heights and are properly sized to accommodate devices and conductors in accordance with NFPA 70.
- C. Verify that final surface finishes are complete, including painting.
- Verify that branch circuit wiring installation is completed, tested, and ready for connection to wiring devices.
- E. Verify that conditions are satisfactory for installation prior to starting work.

3.02 PREPARATION

- A. Provide extension rings to bring outlet boxes flush with finished surface.
- B. Clean dirt, debris, plaster, and other foreign materials from outlet boxes.

3.03 INSTALLATION

- A. Perform work in accordance with NECA 1 (general workmanship) and, where applicable, NECA 130, including mounting heights specified in those standards unless otherwise indicated.
- B. Install wiring devices in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.
- C. Install permanent barrier between ganged wiring devices when voltage between adjacent devices exceeds 300 V.
- D. Where required, connect wiring devices using pigtails not less than 6 inches long. Do not connect more than one conductor to wiring device terminals.
- E. Connect wiring devices by wrapping conductor clockwise 3/4 turn around screw terminal and tightening to proper torque specified by the manufacturer. Where present, do not use push-in pressure terminals that do not rely on screw-actuated binding.
- F. Unless otherwise indicated, connect wiring device grounding terminal to branch circuit equipment grounding conductor and to outlet box with bonding jumper.
- G. Provide GFCI receptacles with integral GFCI protection at each location indicated. Do not use feed-through wiring to protect downstream devices.
- H. Install wiring devices plumb and level with mounting yoke held rigidly in place.
- I. Install wall switches with OFF position down.

- J. Install vertically mounted receptacles with grounding pole on top and horizontally mounted receptacles with grounding pole on left.
- K. Install wall plates to fit completely flush to wall with no gaps and rough opening completely covered without strain on wall plate. Repair or reinstall improperly installed outlet boxes or improperly sized rough openings. Do not use oversized wall plates in lieu of meeting this requirement.
- L. Install blank wall plates on junction boxes and on outlet boxes with no wiring devices installed or designated for future use.

3.04 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

- A. See Section 01 4000 Quality Requirements, for additional requirements.
- B. Inspect each wiring device for damage and defects.
- C. Operate each wall switch with circuit energized to verify proper operation.
- D. Test each receptacle to verify operation and proper polarity.
- E. Test each GFCI receptacle for proper tripping operation according to manufacturer's instructions.
- F. Correct wiring deficiencies and replace damaged or defective wiring devices.

3.05 ADJUSTING

A. Adjust devices and wall plates to be flush and level.

3.06 CLEANING

A. Clean exposed surfaces to remove dirt, paint, or other foreign material and restore to match original factory finish.

Page Intentionally Blank

SECTION 26 5000 LIGHTING

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES

- A. luminaires.
- B. Emergency Fire Signal Fixtures.

1.02 REFERENCE STANDARDS

- A. IES LM-80 Approved Method: Measuring Lumen Maintenance of LED Light Sources; Illuminating Engineering Society; 2008.
- B. NECA 1 Standard for Good Workmanship in Electrical Construction; National Electrical Contractors Association; 2010.
- C. NECA/IESNA 500 Standard for Installing Indoor Commercial Lighting Systems; National Electrical Contractors Association: 2006.
- D. NECA/IESNA 502 Standard for Installing Industrial Lighting Systems; National Electrical Contractors Association; 2006.
- E. NFPA 70 National Electrical Code; National Fire Protection Association; Most Recent Edition Adopted by Authority Having Jurisdiction, Including All Applicable Amendments and Supplements.
- F. NFPA 101 Life Safety Code; National Fire Protection Association; 2012.
- G. UL 1598 Luminaires; Current Edition, Including All Revisions.

1.03 ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

A. Coordination:

- Coordinate the installation of luminaires with mounting surfaces installed under other sections or by others. Coordinate the work with placement of supports, anchors, etc. required for mounting. Coordinate compatibility of luminaires and associated trims with mounting surfaces at installed locations.
- Coordinate the placement of luminaires with structural members, ductwork, piping, equipment, diffusers, fire suppression system components, and other potential conflicts installed under other sections or by others.
- 3. Coordinate the placement of exit signs with furniture, equipment, signage or other potential obstructions to visibility installed under other sections or by others.
- 4. Notify Architect of any conflicts or deviations from the contract documents to obtain direction prior to proceeding with work.

1.04 SUBMITTALS

- A. See Section 01 3000 Administrative Requirements, for submittal procedures.
- B. Product Data: Provide manufacturer's standard catalog pages and data sheets including detailed information on luminaire construction, dimensions, ratings, finishes, mounting requirements, listings, service conditions, photometric performance, installed accessories, and ceiling compatibility; include model number nomenclature clearly marked with all proposed features.
 - 1. LED Luminaires:
 - a. Include estimated useful life, calculated based on IES LM-80 test data.

1.05 QUALITY ASSURANCE

Conform to requirements of NFPA 70.

1.06 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND PROTECTION

- A. Receive, handle, and store products according to NECA/IESNA 500 (commercial lighting), NECA/IESNA 502 (industrial lighting), and manufacturer's written instructions.
- Keep products in original manufacturer's packaging and protect from damage until ready for installation.

1.07 FIELD CONDITIONS

A. Maintain field conditions within manufacturer's required service conditions during and after installation.

1.08 WARRANTY

A. See Section 01700 - Closeout Submittals, for additional warranty requirements.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 MANUFACTURERS - LUMINAIRES

- A. Corelite, a division of Cooper Lighting Solutions: www.cooperlighting.com.
- B. Modern Forms: www.modernforms.com
- C. Substitutions: See Section 01300 Product Requirements.

2.02 LUMINAIRE TYPES

- A. Furnish products as indicated in luminaire schedule included on the drawings.
- B. Substitutions: See Section 01300 Product Requirements, except where individual luminaire types are designated with substitutions not permitted.

2.03 LUMINAIRES

- A. Manufacturers:
 - 1. Corelite, a division of Cooper Lighting Solutions: www.cooperlighting.com.
 - 2. Modern Forms: www.modernforms.com
 - 3. Substitutions: See Section 01300 Product Requirements.
- B. Provide products that comply with requirements of NFPA 70.
- C. Provide products that are listed and labeled as complying with UL 1598, where applicable.
- D. Provide products listed, classified, and labeled as suitable for the purpose intended.
- E. Unless otherwise indicated, provide complete luminaires including lamp(s) and all sockets, ballasts, reflectors, lenses, housings and other components required to position, energize and protect the lamp and distribute the light.
- F. Unless specifically indicated to be excluded, provide all required conduit, boxes, wiring, connectors, hardware, supports, trims, accessories, etc. as necessary for a complete operating system.
- G. Provide products suitable to withstand normal handling, installation, and service without any damage, distortion, corrosion, fading, discoloring, etc.

2.04 EMERGENCY LED SIGNAL FIXTURES

- A. Fixture General Requirements:
 - 1. Unless explicitly excluded, provide new, compatible, operable lamps in each luminaire.
 - 2. Verify compatibility of specified lamps with luminaires to be installed. Where lamps are not specified, provide lamps per luminaire manufacturer's recommendations.
 - 3. Minimum Efficiency: Provide lamps complying with all current applicable federal and state lamp efficiency standards.
 - 4. Color Temperature Consistency: Unless otherwise indicated, for each type of lamp furnish products which are consistent in perceived color temperature. Replace lamps that are determined by the Architect to be inconsistent in perceived color temperature.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 EXAMINATION

- A. Verify that field measurements are as shown on the drawings.
- B. Verify that outlet boxes are installed in proper locations and at proper mounting heights and are properly sized to accommodate conductors in accordance with NFPA 70.
- C. Verify that suitable support frames are installed where required.

- D. Verify that branch circuit wiring installation is completed, tested, and ready for connection to luminaires.
- E. Verify that conditions are satisfactory for installation prior to starting work.

3.02 PREPARATION

- A. Provide extension rings to bring outlet boxes flush with finished surface.
- B. Clean dirt, debris, plaster, and other foreign materials from outlet boxes.

3.03 INSTALLATION

- A. Coordinate locations of outlet boxes provided under Section 26 0537 as required for installation of luminaires provided under this section.
- B. Install products according to manufacturer's instructions.
- C. Install luminaires securely, in a neat and workmanlike manner, as specified in NECA 1 (general workmanship), NECA 500 (commercial lighting), and NECA 502 (industrial lighting).
- D. Install luminaires plumb and square and aligned with building lines and with adjacent luminaires.
- E. Install accessories furnished with each luminaire.
- F. Bond products and metal accessories to branch circuit equipment grounding conductor.
- G. Install lamps in each luminaire.

3.04 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

- Inspect each product for damage and defects.
- B. Operate each luminaire after installation and connection to verify proper operation.
- C. Test self-powered exit signs, emergency lighting units, and fluorescent emergency power supply units to verify proper operation upon loss of normal power supply.
- D. Correct wiring deficiencies and repair or replace damaged or defective products. Repair or replace excessively noisy ballasts as determined by Architect.

3.05 ADJUSTING

- A. Aim and position adjustable luminaires to achieve desired illumination as indicated or as directed by Architect. Secure locking fittings in place.
- B. Emergency Fire Signal Fixture: Set as indicated or as required to properly designate location of Emergency Fire Equipment by authority having jurisdiction.

3.06 CLEANING

A. Clean surfaces according to NECA 500 (commercial lighting), NECA 502 (industrial lighting), and manufacturer's instructions to remove dirt, fingerprints, paint, or other foreign material and restore finishes to match original factory finish.

3.07 PROTECTION

A. Protect installed luminaires from subsequent construction operations.